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Editor’s Foreword

The title and subtitle of this book are a provocation. The Auschwitz Museum
is one of the most-renowned and most-frequented museums in the world, with
well over 2.3 million visitors in 2019 according to Wikipedia. How dare we
revisionists say that they lie to millions of visitors and deceive them with their
exhibits?

The answer to this question is very simple, because the museum officials
themselves have already admitted that they lied to every single visitor in the
past, because they had been forced to do so by the Polish authorities. This
memorable event occurred in 1998, when then-Curator of Research of the
Auschwitz Museum Waéclaw Dlugoborski explained to Germany’s most-
renowned daily newspaper Frankfurter Allgemeine Zeitung (FAZ) what meth-
ods were used before the collapse of the Soviet Union to uphold the lie that
four million inmates had died in the Auschwitz Camp during the war — instead
of the roughly one million currently claimed:

“Up until 1989 in eastern Europe, a prohibition against casting doubt up-
on the figure of 4 million killed was in force; at the memorial site of
Auschwitz, employees who doubted the correctness of the estimate were
threatened with disciplinary proceedings.” (FAZ, Sept. 14, 1998)

But that situation hasn’t actually changed, because today it is illegal in Poland,
under threat of imprisonment of up to three years, to dispute any significant
detail of the camp’s narrative currently told by the Auschwitz Museum. Many
other countries in Europe have enacted similar laws. Hence, the Auschwitz
Museum officials — and any other scholar involved in this topic — face a very
simple alternative: Lie and retain the chance of a comfortable, prestigious ca-
reer, or forsake all that and go to prison as well. It’s that simple.

Which choice will they make? Which choice would you make?

However, it actually doesn’t even require criminal laws to keep people
from challenging the officially ordained narrative. Anyone stepping out of line
even in countries without such legislation will quickly see their reputation
tainted, their career destroyed, their social network shredded. This is so be-
cause the “Holocaust” is a third-rail topic where dissent is not tolerated by any
society.

The question therefore is not whether museum officials at Auschwitz and
elsewhere are lying, but whether we can expect them to tell any kind of un-
welcome truth, and consequentially become a sacrificial lamb on the altar of
the Holocaust religion.

We kick off the present study in Part One with a review of a lie that sur-
vived the collapse of the Eastern Bloc for more than a decade: the claim that
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the Auschwitz Museum’s most-prized exhibit — the camp’s crematorium with
its claimed homicidal gas chamber — is in its original state as it was used by
the evil Nazis for mass murder during the war. That claim was repeated by the
Museum’s tour guides until around the turn of the millennium, although it can
be shown that the Museum’s officials responsible for instructing these guides
knew better: that building had been completely restructured in 1947 following
not solid evidence but Holocaustic propaganda scripts. Hence, although the
Soviet Union was gone by 1991 and could no longer serve as an excuse for
these officials to perpetuate their lies, they nevertheless kept spreading them —
for some ten more years.

Then they changed the narrative a little, without ever admitting having
done anything wrong — and without ever apologizing to their millions of de-
ceived visitors.

Yet the current narrative is just as much a lie. They tweaked it a little to
patch up some jarring contradictions in the old narrative which had become
too obvious to many, but when we look at the details of what they tell visitors
today, it’s still a pack of lies.

Hence, Part One of this book addresses issues directly affecting millions —
the millions of tourists lied to at Auschwitz every year — and could thus poten-
tially benefit both them and countless additional millions of readers.

Part Two of this study, on the other hand, may be of interest only to a se-
lect few scholars specializing in the details of archival research on Auschwitz.
However, since the orthodox narrative told to millions of tourists rests on the
foundations of that archival material, it indirectly affects the whole story more
profoundly than anything else. If the Museum’s scholars are shown to lie, then
the emperor is shown to be naked.

For that reason, the second, much-longer part of the present study is a thor-
ough analysis of the Auschwitz Museum’s latest attempt at pulling the wool
over the eyes of specialized historians and aficionados interested in the Ausch-
witz narrative.

Ever since the end of the war, the museum has been desperate to find doc-
umentary evidence for the claim that people were mass murdered at Ausch-
witz in huge chemical slaughterhouses called “gas chambers.” They have been
utterly unsuccessful with this. Yet they keep on claiming the contrary, while at
the same time ignoring all publications refuting their claims. These museum
publications, the most-recent of which Carlo Mattogno will cite copiously in
his analysis, have been repeatedly revealed as being littered with mistransla-
tions, distortions, inconsistencies, logical fallacies, contradictions and absurdi-

1 Part One of this edition is a combination of text passages taken from the Introduction to the first,
2016 edition of this study, from a chapter contributed to that edition by Eric Hunt (revised and
rewritten), and from a paper by Germar Rudolf first published in early 2020 (Rudolf 2020b).
Since Eric Hunt prefers not to be associated with this study anymore, we removed his name, al-
though some text passages and ideas contained in Part One were originally his.
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ties. Mattogno’s devastating analysis laid out in the present book proves these
accusations to the point where one is tempted to say: Enough! Are these
Auschwitz scholars insane?

Probably not. But the mindboggling deficiencies of the latest publication
by the Auschwitz Museum left me wondering: How can this be explained?
Can the threat of imprisonment in case they decide to dismantle the orthodox
narrative really be that powerful that they all fall in lockstep and parrot the
same absurd lies without anyone ever disagreeing? Considering that the schol-
ars at the Auschwitz Museum are the High Priests of the Auschwitz Gospel, if
they mustered the courage to stand up and say: “Enough is enough, we can’t
take it anymore!”, who could stop them? After all, telling the truth about
Auschwitz is a crime primarily and foremost because of the utterly immoral
lies perpetrated by the “scholars” at the Auschwitz Museum for more than
seven decades and counting. Take those “scholars” out of the equation, and
the whole thing should collapse.

Of course, these Auschwitz scholars would not merely risk criminal prose-
cutions, even if they were acquitted at the end of a certainly excruciating,
drawn-out procedure. They’d also lose their jobs. They’d end their careers
right there. Neither the mass media nor the politicians in Poland or any other
nation deeply invested in the myth — first and foremost Germany, the U.S. and
Israel — would forgive such iconoclastic heresy.

And then there is what the Germans call Raubsicherungspolitik — securing
the spoils of a robbery through politics. After World War 11, Poland annexed
large swaths of Germany and expelled its roughly eight million ethnic-
German inhabitants in what constitutes the largest ethnic cleansing in the his-
tory of mankind. There is nothing in international law that can ever turn this
crime against humanity into a legal, acceptable act. Except, of course, the
Holocaust, a sin for which Germany and the Germans must endure any kind of
punishment, no matter what. What Poland did right after the war and has been
doing ever since, is a simple act of securing her spoils by focusing on German
war crimes, by exaggerating them, even by inventing them. Similarly to Israel,
Poland’s post-war identity is to a large degree based upon her self-promoted
image as Germany’s victim. And many Poles feel it is important to keep any
potential German demand for territorial restitution at bay by constantly wav-
ing the Holocaust in everyone’s face.

But Poland’s existence does not depend on the orthodox Holocaust narra-
tive. Poland existed before the Second World War, and it will keep existing
even after the orthodox Holocaust narrative has been cut down to its actual
size as supported by verifiable evidence. In addition, Poland has nothing to
fear from Germany today. Germany’s population is experiencing a demo-
graphic collapse. Germans aren’t even able to populate what was left to them
after the war, let alone any other territories. Ironically, the same is true of Po-
land, whose demographic trends run pretty much parallel to Germany’s. Both
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countries are tied to each other by geography, ethnicity, history, culture, and
by their current fate of an impending societal collapse triggered by their popu-
lations going extinct, plain and simple.

So why bickering about the Holocaust? Why lie about it?

All the more-so since the orthodox Holocaust narrative is the most-
important weapon used against any European identity movement trying to
prevent or rather revert the collapse of Europe’s 4,000-year-old civilization.?
By simply calling any European identity movement “Nazis” (say: potential
gas-chamber mass murderers), any such movement is doomed to fail, and has
been failing for decades.

| therefore dare say that those promoting the orthodox Holocaust narrative
are the main perpetrators in wiping out European civilization as we know it.
And among them, the scholars at the Auschwitz Museum, the holiest of all
temples of Holocaustianity, bear the heaviest responsibility.

If Europe’s civilization is to become a matter of the past within this or the
next century, you can all point at the scholars at the Auschwitz Museum. They
did it! Provided anyone is left who might still be interested in knowing who
did it.

Germar Rudolf
Red Lion, 29 April 2016,
revised on June 6, 2020

2 Look at the 3,600-year-old “Nebra sky disk” to realize the age and early sophistication of Europe-
an civilization; https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Nebra_sky_disk
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The Auschwitz Crematorium | Gas-Chamber Hoax

Introduction

After the former Polish military barracks south of the Polish city of Oswiecim
had been converted into a concentration camp by German authorities follow-
ing the Polish defeat in September 1939, the old munitions bunker on the
grounds of that camp was converted into a crematorium for the incineration of
the remains of deceased or executed inmates. In war-time and post-war litera-
ture, this building is alternately referred to as either the old crematorium or
Crematorium |. Subsequent to an initial test gassing conducted in the camp’s
gaol in early September of 1941 (see Czech 1990, pp. 84-87; Mattogno
2005Db), the morgue of this crematorium is said to have been converted into a
homicidal gas chamber (Czech 1990, p. 90)

Tourists entering the
Auschwitz Museum’s main
exhibit, which used to be
called the Auschwitz
Stammlager or Main Camp
during the war, pass under
the infamous “Arbeit macht
frei” sign and usually end
their tour on the grand finale
— Crematorium | with its al-
leged homicidal gas cham-
ber and cremation furnaces.

For decades, tour guides A i
and  historians  insisted Figure 1: “Reconstructed” Crematorium | at the
Crematorium | was in its Auschwitz Main Camp. The SS Hospital is located
original state. However, a directly behind it.
modern sign acknowledges
now that Crematorium | existed in a number of layouts throughout the war,
and was again modified after the war. This is very much thanks to revisionist
researcher Dr. Robert Faurisson who uncovered the original plans of the struc-
ture in the Auschwitz archives and shared them with the world.

Figure 2 shows a sign which was set up next to Crematorium | only in re-
cent years. On it, we can see some of the differences between the building in
its state at the time of alleged gassings (on the left), and after numerous post-
1942 and post-war modifications (on the right).

The museum sign shown in Figure 3, located right next to the one shown in
Figure 2, admits:
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“After the war, the Museum partially reconstructed the gas chamber and
crematorium. The chimney and two incinerators were rebuilt, using origi-
nal components, as were several of the openings in the gas chamber roof.”

It is therefore indisputable that this building was modified post-war under So-
viet occupation and direction to represent a homicidal gas chamber.

Faux Zyklon-B Holes

The only sinister feature of this alleged homicidal gas chamber are four open-
ings in the ceiling, framed by wooden boards and closed by equally wooden
lids. For decades, the Auschwitz Museum has claimed through its tour guides
that these four openings were used by the evil SS to pour Zyklon B onto in-
mates trapped in that room in order to asphyxiate them swiftly. Revisionist re-
searchers, such as Robert Faurisson (who called that facility “a ‘reconstructed’
room” — note his quotation marks; Faurisson 1980) and Ditlieb Felderer
(1980), were suspicious early on about the museum’s claim that what we see
in that building is authentic. However, it took a young Jewish activist to bring
this entire problem center stage:

In the summer of 1992, the U.S.-American atheist Jew David Cole went to
Auschwitz and recorded on video tape what the attractive young Polish tour
guide there was telling him about the alleged gas chamber inside Crematorium
| at the Auschwitz Main Camp. She claimed that everything David was seeing
there was indeed authentic, genuine and in its original state (Cole 1993, start-
ing at 9:47).

Later during his tour, David managed to interview Franciszek Piper, at that
time curator of the museum’s historical archives. He confirmed in front of
David’s camera that what tourists are seeing to this day is neither authentic
nor genuine nor original. It was all “reconstructed” shortly after the war to
look similar to what the Auschwitz Museum’s authorities claimed back then it
would have looked when this place was allegedly used by the SS to mass
murder Jews and other inmates with poison gas.

In particular the four holes in the ceiling of the purported gas chamber,
through which the SS murderers ostensibly poured in the lethal Zyklon-B pel-
lets, were confirmed by Dr. Piper to have been put into place after the war on
orders of the museum authorities. Yet Piper insisted that they were put at ex-
actly the same spots where the old, SS-made holes had been, as traces of these
holes, which were supposedly filled up by the SS in 1943 or 1944, were alleg-
edly still visible after war’s end (Cole 1993, 28:38-28:51).

Fact is, though, that until the turn of the 20th to the 21st Century, Ausch-
witz Museum officials told their tour guides to tell tourists a claim of authen-
ticity which the officials knew was not true. So they had their tour guides con-
vey a lie to the millions of tourists visiting that most-revered, holy shrine of
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Holocaustianity every year. They lied, plain and simple, though the guides
may not have known it, or cared.

That changed later, though. After having been deeply embarrassed by Da-
vid Cole’s revealing exposé, the museum officials finally mustered the decen-
cy to own up to this deception and put up some signs openly admitting these
post-war changes. On another sign, the Museum juxtaposes the building’s
layout as shown in blueprints of the year 1942 (when the building’s morgue
was allegedly used as a homicidal gas chamber) with today’s layout, although
without explaining much of anything. (See the illustrations in Part One of the
present book.) It’s up to the visitor to make sense of it all.

For the critical investigator, the first pivotal question is: what evidence ex-
ists for the Auschwitz Museum’s claim that right after the war there were trac-
es of former openings visible on the ceiling of that building’s former morgue?
Because if there weren’t any such traces, then any claims to the contrary
would be yet another Auschwitz lie by the museum officials. If there weren’t
any traces of holes, then the claimed holes never existed in that ceiling. And if
those holes never existed, then no SS man ever poured Zyklon B through that
roof, as many witnesses have claimed. And in inexorable consequence, this
morgue then could not have served as a homicidal gas chamber as claimed by
the museum.

This question is therefore at the very center of the entire issue.

Do we have to simply take Dr. Piper’s word at face value, who was merely
a small child at war’s end (he was born in 1941), and thus cannot possibly
know from his own experience what he is telling us about the state of the
building at war’s end? Or do we have to take at face value the statements of
any other person who has claimed to have seen these holes during the war?

As Carlo Mattogno has shown elsewhere (2005a, 89-97; 2017, pp. 355-
372), these witness statements are highly contradictory not only regarding the
number and shape of these holes. They are actually unreliable for many differ-
ent reasons: internal inconsistencies, conflict with material and documentary
evidence, physical and technical impossibilities, obvious absurdities, and
clearly propagandistic overtones, to name only a few. Hence relying on those
statements does not comport with an investigator’s claiming to be critical.

Insofar as reliable documentary or physical evidence is concerned, it is
therefore unknown in what exact condition this building was in early 1945
when it was taken over by the Soviets. The late French orthodox historian
Jean-Claude Pressac, who has thoroughly investigated the Auschwitz Muse-
um’s archives with the full support of the museum authorities, wrote about
that (1989, p. 133):

“It would appear that the photos of the interior showing the state of the

premises were not taken at the beginning of 1945, which is a pity because

the restructuring of the building back into a Krematorium began immedi-



CARLO MATTOGNO - CURATED LIES 17

ately after the liberation. [...] Because of the lack of original documents
and the transformations that have been made (see the drawing of the pre-
sent state of the premises at the end of this chapter), it was not possible be-
fore to materially demonstrate the existence of a homicidal gas chamber in
the former morgue of Krematorium 1.”

But we didn’t want to take Pressac’s word at face value either, so a friend of
mine, unsuspected of harboring any iconoclastic views, managed to get a well-
established academic involved in research of a similar nature to approach the
current director of the Auschwitz-Museum, Dr. Piotr Setkiewicz, with two
simple questions asked in a letter dated March 14, 2016:

“1) Did Soviet or Polish authorities document, or photograph, the interior
of the crematorium, before any alterations were done? | would like to know
about the layout of the interior, ceiling openings, and so on. Are there any
photographs, drawings, or descriptions? If so, can | obtain copies?

2) It is clear that Soviet/Polish authorities made significant post-war modi-
fications to the building. Is there any documentation about this? Any de-
scription or documents showing the work performed—that is, anything
about cost estimates, blueprints, work orders, materials, etc? And again, if
so, can I obtain copies?”’

Here is what Dr. Igor Bartosik from the Museum’s Research Center answered
in a letter dated March 31, 2016 (see reproduction on p. 38):

“Dear Sir

In response to the letter from 14 March, | would like [to] inform [you] that
unfortunately we can not help you. Our museum does not have any docu-
ments on matters that interest you.

From the memories of former employees (very often ex-prisoners) we know
that the work on the reconstruction of furnaces, chimney etc., [were] made
in the second half of 1947.

Best regards

dr lgor Bartosik ”

So, now we have it from the horse’s mouth: There is no evidence at all as to
the exact condition this building was in at war’s end, and the changes made to
turn that building into the museum’s most-prized exhibit were not documented
either.

Asked which “memories of former employees™ contain information about
the reconstruction, Dr. Bartosik referred to the testimony of Adam Ztobnicki
dated 18 November 1981. Ztobnicki had been interned at Auschwitz during
the war with the inmate number 165010, and had worked as a guard at the
Auschwitz memorial since 13 June 1946.

If we follow Ztobnicki’s statement, he remembered that right after the war
Krematorium | had no chimney, and that the interior of the gas chamber
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looked different from what it looked like later. On the holes in the ceiling of
this room, Ztobnicki stated the following:®

“I remember exactly that the introduction holes for the Zyklon-B gas,
which used to be in the roof of the crematorium, were also reconstructed.
The task of those charged with this reconstruction was facilitated by the
fact that distinct traces of the cement patches of the earlier openings were
left in the spots of the old introduction holes. Hence new openings were
broken through at the same spots, and little chimneys [i.e. introduction
shafts] were built with bricks [domurowano]. This work was also done in
the years 1946-1947.”

The first question that comes to mind, how a guard not involved in the recon-
struction could know any details of what was going on inside the building dur-
ing the reconstruction? This is all the more disturbing as what he says about
the newly built introduction shafts is wrong: they were and still are merely
lined with wooden boards, not made of bricks.

The next question is: If the museum authorities never had any documenta-
tion on the exact state of that building before its “reconstruction”, and none
about the changes made during that process either, why didn’t they approach
anyone involved in that reconstruction to have their testimony recorded, such
as any former museum official in a position of responsibility back in 1947, or
any person involved in the actual work, such as architects, engineers, con-
struction workers, you name them. Why, of all possible people, did they ask a
non-involved memorial guard?

Fact is that all we have is an inaccurate account from a bystander, who may
or may not have adjusted his account to what those recording it — the Com-
munist museum officials of the early 1980s — wanted to hear from him.

Any assertion by any employee of the Auschwitz Museum that the current
holes were opened at exactly the same locations as they had been during the
war is therefore based not on solid, reliable evidence at all. They may or —
considering what is at stake for them — they actually must be convinced that
what Ztobnicki stated is true, yet that doesn’t make it true.

But what is true?

We know that the Polish legal authorities initiated large-scale criminal in-
vestigations against the former camp commandant Rudolf HOss and against
the entire staff of the Auschwitz camp garrison right after the camp’s occupa-
tion by the Soviets. To this end, they collected all kinds of evidence in support
of mass-murder claims. Photos of the claimed mass-murder sites as found
right after the Soviet occupation would have been of the utmost importance, in
particular if they could support any mass-murder claims.

The fact that no such photos of the ceiling of the alleged former gas cham-
ber in Crematorium 1 exist raises the suspicion that such photos would not

8 APMO-B, Statements, vol. 96, p. 60.
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have shown what the Soviet and Polish authorities wanted the world to be-
lieve. This suspicion is supported by the fact that no document exists regard-
ing the changes made to this entire building in 1947. This indicates that the
motivation behind those changes was not to meticulously restore something as
accurately as possible, but to cover up manipulations.

Today we can infer these postwar changes only by comparing the current
state with German construction blueprints of the wartime.

The undocumented manipulation of evidence that is central to a criminal
investigation is itself a crime, by the way. Wikipedia writes in its entry on
“Spoliation of evidence”:

“The spoliation of evidence is the intentional, reckless, or negligent with-
holding, hiding, altering, fabricating, or destroying of evidence relevant to
a legal proceeding. Spoliation has three possible consequences: in juris-
dictions where it is the (intentional) act is criminal by statute, it may result
in fines and incarceration [...].
The spoliation inference is a negative evidentiary inference that a finder of
fact can draw from a party’s destruction of a document or thing that is rel-
evant to an ongoing or reasonably foreseeable civil or criminal proceed-
ing: the finder of fact can review all evidence uncovered in as strong a
light as possible against the spoliator and in favor of the opposing party.”
In most countries, Poland included, tampering with evidence is illegal und can
thus be prosecuted. We are therefore not dealing merely with a case of sloppi-
ness here, but with a potential crime of the Soviet and/or Polish officials in-
volved in “reconstructing” Crematorium I right after the war, whoever they
were.

The Orthodox Position

As explained by Piper, the Auschwitz Museum’s position is that these holes
were “re-made” in the exact locations of the pre-existing, genuine holes,
which were allegedly used in 1942 and 1943 to drop Zyklon B on the heads of
those inside. In the fall of 1944, when the Germans converted the section of
the old crematorium that contained the morgue/”gas chamber,” the washroom
and the laying-out/dissecting room into an air-raid shelter for the nearby SS
hospital,* they allegedly filled in these holes with some concrete.

The Revisionist Position

However, the four holes in the roof of the morgue of Crematorium | at the
Auschwitz Main Camp do not “fit” the original configuration of the building.
In fact, they are centered over the current post-war-modified configuration of

4 This conversion results from a letter dated August 26, 1944, by Heinrich Josten, head of the
Auschwitz air-raid protection department, to the camp commandant, RGVA 502-1-401, p. 34.
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the expanded room. The first to point this out was Germar Rudolf in the first,
1993 German edition of his expert-witness report on the chemistry of Ausch-
witz (in Chapter 1.2.). In the current English edition of 2020, this slightly ex-
panded passage can be found in Chapter 5.3. (Rudolf 2020a, pp. 101f.):

“If the SS had put these holes in the concrete during the war, one must as-
sume that they would have taken care to evenly distribute these holes in the
ceiling of the original(!) morgue in order to ensure an even distribution of
the Zyklon B inside the room. The shafts today, however, are only evenly
distributed in the ceiling of this room if one considers the washing room,
which was only incorporated after the war(!), as an integral part of the
morgue (‘gas chamber’.) [...].

Thus, the arrangement of today’s introduction holes only makes sense if
they were created especially for its present status as a falsely dimensioned
‘reconstruction for Museum purposes’ after the war. This becomes even
more evident from Figure 55, which shows the same section of Crematori-
um | as in Figure 54 as a 3D model, yet in the current state. This shows
that the holes’ locations were chosen with precision in order that crossing
pairs are equidistant to the nearest transverse wall, leading to all four
holes being somewhat evenly distributed over this room. This is the deci-
sive evidence that these holes were created with regard to the measure-
ments of the accidentally enlarged morgue/ ‘gas chamber,” and have noth-
ing to do with the original morgue.”

Carlo Mattogno expanded on that theme in three studies by investigating this
issue more deeply (2004c; 2005a, 89-97; 2017, pp. 355-372).

The 3-D model of Figure 55 mentioned by Rudolf in the above quote — not
contained in the original 1993 edition of his work — was actually taken from
the first, 2016 edition of the present book. A 3-D representation of the relevant
section of Crematorium I is indeed useful to understand this “hole hoax.”

For these basic 3-D representation, the “roof” of the building (dark grey)
has been lowered so the interior walls can be seen. The rear half of the build-
ing is devoted to the furnace room and additional smaller rooms, and has not
been represented in this 3-D rendering.

Figure 4 shows Crematorium | at the time of alleged mass gassings. The
four claimed, square-shaped Zyklon-B-insertion holes are represented in the
roof. The large rectangular room designated as a morgue on the original Ger-
man plans is the alleged gas chamber. This of course raises the question: what
part of this building was used as a morgue instead, if the actual morgue was
used as a gas chamber?

As we can see, the placement of the holes seems wrong, and they are not
centered over the long rectangular morgue, the alleged gas chamber. Wouldn’t
any sensible engineer and construction worker place these holes in such a way
that they are somewhat evenly distributed over the entire ceiling in order to
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2a T /
Figure 4: Configuration at time of alleged mass gassings (but see fn 11 on p. 37).
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Figure 5: Hole close to original wall separating morgue and washroom (white square).

make sure that the poisonous fumes get evenly distribute throughout the entire
“gas chamber”?

Figure 5 shows the location of an oddly placed hole, highlighted by a white
square, which is very close to the location of both an original wall separating
the morgue from the washroom next to it, and the door to the furnace room.
This hole is shown in Figure 6. The beam coming from the left was once a
wall. This wall was removed during the 1947 “reconstruction.”

After the larger purpose-built crematoria at the nearby Birkenau Camp
started operating in early 1943, Crematorium | was first retired, then, in late
1944, converted into an air-raid shelter for the SS hospital located across from



22 CARLO MATTOGNO - CURATED LIES

it. In Figure 7, we can see the many interior walls added, as well as an addi-
tional entrance/exit and air lock on the right. The doorway between the
morgue/alleged gas chamber and the furnace room was walled up.

The current configuration, shown in Figures 8 and 9, is highly revealing.
The museum knocked down one wall too many — the one originally separating
the morgue from the washroom during the time of alleged gassings. They also
created a new opening allowing tourists to walk from the morgue/“gas cham-
ber” directly into the furnace room, although they created that opening at the
wrong location (and with a larger and asymmetrical size; plus they didn’t in-
stall any door at all into this opening...).

Note that now, all of a sudden, those four Zyklon holes appear to “fit,”
meaning they are somewhat evenly distributed across the ceiling of the cur-
rent, accidentally(?) enlarged “gas chamber” tourists walk into.

According to Carlo Mattogno’s measurements, the holes in the upper left
and lower right are 5.1 meters away from the current walls. But during the
war, when the room is said to have been use as a gas chamber, the hole in the
upper left was barely a meter away from the now-removed dividing wall to the
washroom.

The other two holes are 7.1 meters away from currently existing walls. One
of the walls, however — the one on the right separating the morgue from the air
lock — didn’t exist at the time of alleged gassings, because it was added only
in 1944 during the building’s conversion to an air-raid shelter! The actual dis-
tance in 1942/43 would therefore have been some 9 meters, not 7.1 meters. In
1942/43, the distance between the other hole and the closest wall to the left —
the now-removed washroom wall — would have been some 3 meters only.

The placement of the holes in the roof of Auschwitz’s Crematorium I are
centered over a building configuration which only existed after the post-war
modifications.
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Figure 9: Distances of holes from currently existing walls.
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In early 1945, the Soviets found in that building an air-raid shelter for the
SS Hospital equipped with an operating room and a set of toilet stalls. This
served no use for propaganda. Hence, when “reconstruction” began in 1947,
the Polish authorities added a chimney on about the same spot where it was
located previously. They rebuilt two of the three furnaces in the furnaces
room, albeit in a rather flawed way. Furthermore, they removed all but one of
the interior walls dividing up the air-raid shelter, making a big mistake by re-
moving one too many — the original separation wall between the morgue and
washroom which existed at the time of alleged gassings. The air-raid shelter’s
toilet stalls were also removed.

If there had been traces of holes in that ceiling in 1945 that the SS had
closed up, then they should never have been “re-opened” in the first place.
This would have been tampering with a crime scene of alleged mass murder!
And if there weren’t any such traces, the whole thing is nothing short of a gi-
ant, criminal hoax!

The placement of the currently existing four holes, however, points to a
crude mistake on the part of the hoaxers, who centered the supposedly “re-
opened” holes not over the morgue as it was in 1942/43, but over the morgue
+ washroom + 1944 air-lock entrance, a configuration which did not exist at
the time of the alleged mass gassings.

Majdanek: An Admitted “Hole Hoax Precedent

Although the scope of this book is focused on the Auschwitz Museum’s lies,
tricks and obfuscations, Auschwitz is only one part of the larger Holocaust
myth. Most people hear for the first time about revisionist claims regarding
Auschwitz through the mass media which, with their deceitful rhetoric, make
the common reader believe that revisionist claims have no basis in reality and
are merely outrageous, absurd and utterly untenable.

However, there is a precedent where a “hole hoax” is today generally ad-
mitted to have been committed by the Soviets at war’s end. It concerns the
Majdanek Camp, and more specifically, a room in this camp’s “new” cremato-
rium which served as a morgue during the war. For decades after the war’s
end, this morgue was alleged to have served as a homicidal gas chamber. To
that effect, Zyklon B was allegedly thrown through an opening in the ceiling
(see Figures 10-12).

In 2005, however, in a sweeping revision, the director of the Majdanek
Museum, Tomasz Kranz, drastically revised the Soviet-derived propaganda
death toll down to a mere 78,000 — not even 5% of the original number of 1.7
million as claimed at war’s end! (See Graf/Mattogno 2016, pp. 9 and 260-
281.) In this radical process of shedding propagandistic ballast, Kranz also jet-
tisoned five of the seven originally claimed homicidal gas chambers at Maj-
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danek, thus indirectly admit-
ting that at least 57 of the
original Majdanek gas-cham-
ber story was a fraudulent
propaganda hoax.

For the crematorium’s
morgue, this revision was
quite inevitable, because the
room had no means for venti-
lation, and even had two
openings in a wall with no
means for closing them (see
Figure 11). Ever since, this
morgue has no longer been
alleged to have served as a
homicidal gas chamber. Yet
the room’s reinforced-con-
crete ceiling still has the hole
which was obviously cut
through after the war, proba-
bly by Soviet forgers. The
Majdanek Museum remains
absolutely silent about it,

25

Figure 10: Morgue in the New Crematorium of the
Majdanek camp, prior to museum revisions. A
crudely cut hole in the ceiling was for decades al-
leged to have been used to drop Zyklon B pellets
into the room to gas trapped victims — although
those pellets would have fallen directly into a floor
drain below. This sign, now removed and revised,
deceitfully claimed this was a homicidal gas
chamber.

hoping that visitors won’t see it or, if they do, won’t ask any embarrassing

guestions.
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Figure 11: Morgue inside the “‘new crematorium” at the Majdanek Camp with two

openings in one of its walls. Top right: the hole in the ceiling (© 1995 Carlo Mattogno.)
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These drastic revisions of the death toll
and the claimed homicidal gas chambers
are thanks primarily to Jirgen Graf’s and
Carlo Mattogno demolishing of the Maj-
danek “death-camp” claims in their book

Sy
Concentration Camp Majdanek: A Histor- ‘

ical and Technical Study, which Kranz . ..
read, remarked on, and must have been in- ..

fluenced by.

Those new to revisionist research need @ :
to understand and recognize the lies about  Figure 12: Close-up of the Soviet-
the above-mentioned Majdanek morgue made hole in the ceiling of the -
with its “hole hoax,” and similar lies about ~ "77°"gue inside the “new crematori-

. . um” at the Majdanek Camp. Note
various other rooms once claimed to have nat the forgers did not even bother
served as homicidal gas chambers  removing the reinforcement bars.
throughout the German camp system. A (© 1997 Carlo Mattogno.)
multitude of rooms have fraudulently been
alleged to have served as gas chambers, yet these claims have been silently
dropped in later years. These falsely labeled rooms range from morgues (Maj-
danek), kitchens (Breendonck, Belgium), clothing-drying facilities (Maj-
danek), fumigation rooms (Majdanek), shower rooms (Majdanek) to clothing
steamers (Natzweiler, France). “Holocaust” claims such as these are truly ab-
surd, quite in contrast to revisionist analysis of the physical evidence, docu-
mentation and eyewitness errors and falsehoods.

The false claims about the Auschwitz morgue/“gas chambers” belong in
the dustbin of history, along with the previously abandoned claims of the
Majdanek morgue/“gas chamber.”

The “Victims’ Entrance”

In their post-war remodeling of Crematorium I, the Polish authorities left the
air lock with the second entrance added in 1944 in place. Despite revisionists
pointing out the fact that this entrance was created after the time of alleged
gassings, the museum authorities passed it off to visitors for the entire rest of
the 20th Century as the “victims’ entrance.”

As recently as 1999, and according to available information even many
months if not years afterwards, tourists would first walk past the gallows al-
legedly used to hang Rudolf Hoss. A sign shaped as an arrow pointed to
“Crematorium I’s” air-raid-shelter door as the “victims’ entrance” (see Figure
13). However, neither the gallows nor the air-raid-shelter door existed at the
time of mass gassings! Clearly both add to the theatrics. Yet for decades, tour-
ists were told by tour guides that this was the way the victims entered the
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Figure 13: A composite of two photographs taken in 1998. ]
1: “Victims’ Entrance”; 2: Sign shaped as an arrow designating air-raid shelter door

as “Victims’ Entrance”; 3: The gallows built post-war to hang Rudolf Hoss
Photographs courtesy: Scrapbookpages.com

death chamber. The museum tour guides, again improperly instructed by the
museum’s officials, told a lie, whether they were aware of it or not.

The anti-revisionist film Mr. Death directed by Jewish filmmaker Errol
Morris used the air-raid-shelter door to great effect. Using tilted, also known
as canted or “Dutch” camera angles, along with Halloween horror music, the
air-raid-shelter door is shown as proof of sinister Nazi-gas-chamber doors
(Figure 14).

As Morris shows the rusty air-raid-shelter door at Auschwitz filmed like a
B-grade horror movie, Jewish “Holocaust expert” Robert Jan van Pelt claims
revisionists sicken him. Next, a composite shot using fake special effects is a
truly shocking low for the Holocaust industry. For that footage, Errol Morris
used a different-aged steel door with a peephole, and composited a shot of the
inside of the “gas chamber.” All this is an attempt to trick viewers into think-
ing that the steel door at Auschwitz was centered on, and looked right directly
into, the “gas chamber.” Van Pelt even looks through the Hollywood prop
door peephole, mimicking an SS officer watching Jews being gassed (Figure
15a-c).

Figure 14a-c: Screenshots from Mr. Death (1999), the “victims’ entry.”
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Figure 15a-c: Fake footage in Errol Morris’s film Mr. Death.

However, the actual air-raid-shelter door at Auschwitz is not grey but
simply rusty brown, as it consist of a mere wooden door with a piece of sheet
metal nailed to it to make it gas-tight. Furthermore, in the 1980s, David
McCalden pointed out that this air-raid-shelter door opens right into another
wall within arm’s reach (Figure 16a-d)! Hence the SS could not have watched
Jews getting gassed through that peephole for two reasons: first because one
would have looked right into another wall, and second because this door
wasn’t even installed until after the alleged gassings had ended! Morris and
van Pelt are forced to use cheesy Hollywood special effects to con their view-
ers.

According to surviving German documentation, this gas-tight door was or-
dered and put in place to protect lives in case of poison-gas attacks from out-
side the building (from aerial bombing)! Every viewer of Mr. Death was
conned by a total inversion of reality.

In more-recent years, the Auschwitz Museum changed its narrative while
being absolutely unapologetic for the fact that they had been lying to visitors
for decades. The entranceway fitted with the air-raid-shelter door is now no
longer used by tourists to enter the building. In fact, this entrance is physically
closed to tourists by a chain and sign saying “No Entrance” (Figure 17). In
addition, from layout drawings shown on a sign displayed in front of that
crematorium, tourists can infer that this entrance did not exist when the place
was said to have been used to mass murder people — although it is not express-
ly stated in the drawings’ caption. But how many tourists actually look thor-
oughly at those drawings and make inferences about construction details?

Nowadays, the Auschwitz Museum instead herds gullible tourists through
the entrance on the opposite side of this building. They are now told that the

Figure 16a-d: First three images: stills of the air-raid shelter entrance from the revi-
sionist documentary “The Holocaust Revisited.” Last image: section from today’s mu-
seum sign with an arrow added pointing in the line of gaze of Figure 16b (rusty air-
raid shelter door with peephole, closed) and c (door opened, wall behind it visible).
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supposed victims had to walk
through two separate rooms in
order to enter the “chamber.”

It is clear why the Ausch-
witz Museum for all of last
century herded tourists through
the air-raid-shelter entrance.
The entrance’s sloping, claus-
trophobia-inducing walls and
its sturdy steel door with the
sinister myth surrounding its
peephole were a great choice
for traumatizing visitors. The
air-raid-shelter entrance also
makes more sense than the cur-
rent tourist path, because had it
existed at the time, the sup-
posed victims could have
walked almost directly into the
“gas chamber.”

The current tourist pathway
through Crematorium I, which
would also have been the vic-
tim’s parthway during the war,
goes through two rooms (la-
belled a and b on the muse-
um’s map), whose wartime
function would have made it
impossible to hide from in-
mates that prisoners were dy-
ing in masses in that building.
One of these rooms (b), a
“washroom” according to war-
time blueprints, was supposed-
ly “used to store the ashes of
incinerated corpses,” if we be-
lieve the map’s caption, while
the other is labeled as a “lay-
ing-out room” in the blue-
prints, that is to say: this is
where corpses were stored,
prepared for and subjected to
autopsies. The other theoreti-
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Figure 17: N more “victims’ entry”: photo of the

air-raid shelter access door of winter 2012. image
courtesy auschwitz-2012.blogspot.com
Mt it

Figure 18: The 20th-century tourist entrance
(top) through the air-raid shelter’s access door
is now closed. Tourists are instead herded into
this building through an entrance pointed to by

the white arrow at the bottom of this map.
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cally possible pathway is even dumber: victims would have been forced to
walk right past the cremation furnaces! Either of these victims’ pathway
choices, “newly revised for the 21st Century,” would have made any intended
victim aware that they were in a veritable “death building”, with corpses and
their ashes stacked everywhere for them to see. And yet, they are claimed to
have walked calmly into the death chamber, presumably blissfully ignorant of
what was coming, just like sheep to the slaughter...

The Doors

The two doors which allowed access to the room within Crematorium | that is
said to have been used as a homicidal gas chamber in 1941-1943 are of pivotal
importance, because they would have been used to securely trap poisonous
fumes and hundreds of potentially panicking victims inside. The questions to
ask in this regard are:

1. What kind of doors would have been needed for such a task?
2. What kind of door did the room actually have?

Door Type Needed

Keeping a potentially panicking crowd locked inside a room, and at the same
time preventing toxic gases from seeping through the door, requires a tightly
sealed, massive steel door that is firmly anchored into a sturdy wall. Such
doors were mass-produced in Germany during the war for use in Germany’s
thousands of air-raid shelters.

Doors Claimed by Witnesses

The orthodox narrative does not rely on material traces or documents, but
solely on accounts given by witnesses. One of the first documents based on
such eyewitness claims is the report by a combined Polish-Soviet investigative
commission, which stated already two months prior to the end of World War
Two the following about the doors leading into the claimed gas chamber:®
“In early 1941, a crematorium, designated as Crematorium #1, was start-
ed up in the Auschwitz camp. [...] Next to this crematorium there was a
gas chamber, which had, at either end, gas-tight doors with peep-holes and
in the ceiling four openings with hermetic closures through which the
Ziklon’ [sic] for the killing of the persons was thrown. Crematorium | op-
erated until March 1943 and existed in that form for two years.”
In preparation for the 1947 Polish show trial against former Auschwitz Camp
Commandant Rudolf Héss, Polish engineer Dr. Roman Dawidowski compiled

5 GARF 7021-108-15, pp. 2f.
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an expert report on evidence supporting homicidal gassing claims at Ausch-
witz, where we read on this topic:®

“One now [in late 1941'] began to poison people regularly with Zyklon B
and to use for that purpose the Leichenhalle (morgue) of Crematorium |
[...]- This chamber [...] on both sides had a gas-tight door.”

Jan Sehn, the Polish judge who led the investigation leading up to the Polish
post-war show trials against former members of the German Auschwitz Camp
staff, wrote the following about this in his 1960 book on Auschwitz (Sehn
1961, p. 125):

“The mortuary (Leichenkeller)® of the first Oswiecim crematorium [...]
was fitted with two gas-proof doors.”

Claims about gas-tight doors in that morgue originate from witness testimony.
Among them is Stanistaw Jankowski, who stated regarding the doors in that
room in a deposition October 3, 1980 (Pressac 1989, p. 124):

“The two thick wooden doors of the room, one in the side wall, the other in
the end wall, had been made gas-tight.”

The post-war autobiography of Rudolf Hdss, written while in Polish custody
awaiting his execution, contains little information about the doors of this al-
leged gas chamber, only that they must have been very sturdy, because (Bez-
winska/Czech 1984, p. 93):

“When the powder [sic; Zyklon B] was thrown in[to the gas chamber],
there were cries of ‘Gas!’, then a great bellowing, and the trapped prison-
ers [Russian PoWs to be gassed] hurled themselves against both the doors.
But the doors held.”

Hdss moreover speaks repeatedly of the doors being “screwed” shut (ibid., pp.
96, 115, 134), which points to a door with massive steel fixtures not found on
usual doors.

In his post-war declaration writing in the summer of 1945, former SS man
Pery Broad was a little more specific about the doors of this claimed homici-
dal gas chamber, making it clear that this was a heavy, gas-tight, panic-proof
door (ibid., p. 176):

“Suddenly the door was closed. It had been made tight with rubber and se-

cured with iron fittings. Those inside heard the heavy bolts being secured.

They were screwed to with screws, making the door air-tight. A deadly,

paralysing terror spread among the victims. They started to beat upon the

door, in helpless rage and despair they hammered with their fists upon it.”

6 AGK, NTN, 93. The report entered the files of the Hoss Trial in its Volume 11. The quoted pas-
sage is on pp. 26f.

7 Danuta Czech set the date of the first gassing in that morgue to September 16, 1941; Czech 1990,
p. 90.

8  That should be Leichenhalle, as it was above-ground, while “Keller” means basement/cellar.
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While interrogated in preparation of the first Frankfurt Auschwitz Trial, de-
fendant Hans Stark made the following statements in his deposition about the
doors of that room:®

“As early as the autumn of 1941 gassings were carried out in a room of the
small crematorium, the room having been fitted for that purpose. It could
take in some 200-250 people, was higher than a normal living room, had
no windows, and only one door that had been made [gas] tight and had a
lock like the door of an air-raid shelter.”

We conclude from this that heavy, gas-tight, sturdy doors must indeed have
been installed in that facility, if we are inclined to believe these witness re-
ports.

Doors According to Material Traces and Documents

The Current Situation
As mentioned before, for several decades after the war, tourists visiting the
museum entered the building using an opening that has a wooden door clad in
a sheet of iron and equipped with an ominous-looking peephole. Superficially
seen, this door looks like the kind of door that could have been used in a hom-
icidal gas chamber, although it was made merely of wooden boards and was
therefore hardly panic-proof. The problem is that this door was added to this
building only in late 1944 when it was converted to an air-raid shelter. Hence
the door we see there today is an absolutely innocuous air-raid-shelter door.
The second door contained in this room on display as a “gas chamber” that
leads into the former laying-out room is an even flimsier wooden door which
even has a thin, easily breakable window pane. In addition, there is no door at
all in the wall opening connecting that morgue/“gas chamber” with the fur-
nace room. It goes without saying that no room thusly equipped could have
operated as a gas chamber. However, since it is admitted today that this is not
what the place looked like originally, basing an argument on these doors
would be rather pointless. Hence | abstain from illustrating these doors and the
wall opening to the furnace room. It just emphasizes the fact that what we are
shown there today does not merit the term “reconstruction.”

The Door between Furnace Room and Morgue

The only original door of that room about which we have any revealing in-
formation — gleaned from original wartime blueprints — is the one connecting
the morgue a.k.a. “gas chamber” to the furnace room. On all extant blueprints
showing doors, this opening is shown as having had a swing door (see Figure
19 with a plan of 1940, and Figure 20 with a plan of 1942).

9 Minutes of interrogation of Hans Stark, Cologne, April 23, 1959. Zentrale Stelle der Landesjustiz-
verwaltungen, Ludwigsburg, ref. AR-Z 37/58 SB6, p. 947.
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Figure 19: SS blueprint of Crematorium | drawn on November 30, 1940 clearly show-
ing a swing door (inside added rectangle) between the morgue (bottom) and the fur-
nace room (top). See section enlargement in Figure 19a.

Such a swing door, quite like doors commonly
seen in restaurants, leading to the kitchen, was
very convenient for crematorium workers whose
hands were tied up carrying corpses — or corpse
stretchers with corpses — from the morgue to the
furnace room. Their hands tied up holding their
heavy load, they could easily push open the door
when approaching it, and the door would also au-
tomatically close behind them, thus preventing too
much warm air from getting from the furnace
room into the morgue.

A door designed to open in both directions is
utterly worthless as a gas-tight homicidal-gas-
chamber door, however. Such a swing door could
not be properly braced against dozens of panick-
ing gassing victims attempting to bash down the
door. More importantly, a swing door of this type
would by necessity contain a large gap between

B R ™

Figure 19a: Section en-
largement of Figure 19.

the door and the door frame to allow such a swinging action to occur. Such a
door would also have gaps above and below the door. These big gaps mean
that this swing door could not be gas-tight whatsoever, rendering it unfit for
use in a location where large amounts of poison gas are said to have been

used.
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Figure 20: SS blueprint of Crematorium | drawn on April 10, 1942, while the morgue

was allegedly being used as a homicidal “gas chamber,” again clearly showing a swing
door between the morgue (bottom, inside added rectangle) and the furnace room (top).
See section enlargement in Figure 20a. (Source: RGVA, 502-2-146, p. 21)

Evidence of this swing door existing unmodi-
fied inside Crematorium | before, during, and after
homicidal gassings are said to have occurred there
is additional strong evidence against the muse-
um’s current homicidal-gas-chamber claims.

It is conceivable that what we see in those
blueprints actually consists not of one swing door
but of two doors, one opening into the morgue, the
other into the furnace room. Although possible
and well-suited for thermal insulation, such a lay-
out would be cumbersome to deal with for moving
corpses to and fro. What matters in the present
context, however, is that a door opening into the
morgue could not have been opened up if hun-
dreds of corpses had piled up in the morgue after a
claimed gassing, because when suffocating, peo-
ple tend to congregate near doors, hence they pile
up and die in front of them. So either way, that
door design as shown on the blueprints was no
good for a homicidal gas chamber.

3 | L
Figure 20a: Section en-
largement of Figure 20.

While these blueprints prove that they do not reflect any outfitting of the
morgue for homicidal purposes, it can be argued that such deception was in
fact intentional, meaning that the floor plans were simply not updated in this
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regard, in particular regarding the
swing door, in order to conceal the
criminal changes made. Maintaining
this argument becomes close to im-
possible, however, if we consider the
other door in that room.

The Door between Morgue and
Washroom

What remains to be discussed is the
door which separated the former
washroom from the morgue/“gas
chamber”. Since that wall was re-
moved in 1947 during “reconstruc-
tion,” all we have is again war-time
blueprints.

In a long 1998 article, German
architect Willy Wallwey, writing
under the pen names of Hans Jirgen
Nowak and Werner Rademacher,
summarized what the extant docu-
mentation accessible in  various
Moscow archives reveals about gas-
tight doors offered to, delivered to
and installed in the various buildings
at Auschwitz. Wallwey concluded
that the Auschwitz camp authorities
did indeed request cost estimates for
sturdy, gas-tight, and probably also
panic-proof steel doors, but they
were never delivered. These doors
even had so-called wedge locks used
to close them in an air-tight fashion,
a closing mechanism that could be
called “screwing” the doors shut as
described by witnesses, see Figures
21£.1°

The two existing air-raid-shelter
doors made for Krematorium 1 in
1944 during the building’s conver-
sion to an air-raid shelter are made

Figure 21: Gas-tight steel door, type “air-
raid shelter”, offered to the Auschwitz
Camp, but never delivered.

B L
5 i

Figure 22: One of the eight wedge locks
of a gas-tight steel door, type “air-raid
shelter”, offered to the Auschwitz Camp,
but never delivered. The wedging of these
levers into the lock position could rightly
be called “screwed shut”.

10 RGVA 502-1-354-8; July 9, 1942; see Rudolf 2019, p. 326.
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of wooden planks covered by thin
sheet metal, see Figure 23. Although
these doors were probably built by
the local inmate workshop, so far no
documentation about them has been
found. This proves that not every-
thing that was constructed at the
Auschwitz Camp left a trace in the
documental record, or if it did, it
didn’t survive. Hence, it is conceiv-
able that sturdy gas-tight doors simi-
lar to those shown in Figures 21f.
were in fact delivered to Auschwitz
and were subsequently installed
there without leaving a documental
trace.

While it cannot be ruled out cate-
gorically that panic-proof, gas-tight
steel doors were indeed delivered to
Auschwitz and may have been in-
stalled elsewhere, it can be ruled out,
based on war-time floor plans, that
any such door could have been in-
stalled in the relevant door openings
of the morgue of Krematorium 1.

First, we need to be aware that
the frame of a massive wooden or
even a steel door designed to with-
stand a panicking crowd needs to be
anchored firmly in the wall. Figure
24 shows a hoop steel anchor with a
so-called dovetail going some 14 cm
(5.5 inches) into the wall.® Needless
to say, the wall itself had to be con-
siderably thicker than 14 cm in order
to firmly accommodate such an an-
chor.

Turning to the war-time floor
plans of this morgue, we see that the
wall separating the morgue from the
adjacent washroom and the wall
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Figure 23: Makeshift air-raid-shelter door
of Krematorium | made of wood with a
thin sheet-metal cover, probably built by
inmates in the camp’s workshop.

5
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Blueprint of the wall anchor for
a frame of a sturdy, gas-tight steel door.

separating the morgue from the furnace room were both very thin: 15 cm,
which is the width of a standard brick plus some plaster on both sides of it
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(see Figure 25). Hence, these walls
consisted only of one row of bricks
set lengthwise. The wall separating
the morgue from the furnace room
consisted of two such walls with a
gap of some 30 c¢cm in between (for
thermal insulation).**

It is not possible to set a steel an-
chor into bricks. In such a case,
bricks have to be removed, and then
the anchor placed into a block of ce-
ment/concrete. However, since these
walls consisted only of one row of
bricks — unless they consisted only of
a wooden framework of 2-by-5s plus
some boards, in which case we need
no longer discuss this issue — remov-
ing a brick to place an anchor em-
bedded in cement in its stead would : | . X .
have left this chunk of cement held in  Figure 25: Section enlargement of the in-
place by nothing more than the bricks V;gtcs’%w;“ ?ﬁé‘;ﬁ;“sﬁ%g‘%mv\'ﬂmog_';?:;f
on top and at the bottom of it. Such a |~ Wi A o highiight
chunk would have become loose very the walls’ width of 15 cm.
quickly. Any forceful shaking of the
door would have dislodged those anchors, bent the frame, and made the frame
including the door fall out of the wall sooner or later.

In other words, the meager thickness of these walls proves that no sturdy,
panic-proof door of any kind could have been installed in them.

The only option left for the traditionalists is to claim that these walls were
reinforced to a much thicker width at the very moment the morgue is said to
have been converted into a homicidal gas chamber, meaning in September
1941. Yet evidence for this exists neither in the documental record nor in wit-
ness testimonies known to me.

As the late Dr. Robert Faurisson put it aptly:

>

“No doors, no destruction.’

11 This reveals a flaw in the 3-D drawings shown in lllustrations 4f. depicting the internal walls prior
to the conversions to an air-raid shelter. These walls were much thinner than depicted in these
drawings.
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Auschwitz '
' Odwigeim 31.03.2016
Birkenau
CB/1944
Dear Sir

In respanse to the ktter from 14 March, | would ke infoem that unfortunstely we can not help you
Our museum does not have any documents on matters that interest vou ;
Fram the memories of farmer employes (very ofien eX-prisooers) we know that the work an the
reconstruction of fumaces, chimney ete., made in the second half of 1947

Best regards
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Letter by Dr. Igor Bartosik, head of the Auschwitz Museum’s Research Center, con-
firming the lack of any documentation about the condition of Crematorium | at war’s
end and any subsequent alterations.
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Part Two:

How the

Auschwitz Museum

Lies about Documents

in Its Archives
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Introduction
In 2014 the Auschwitz Museum published a bilingual (Polish and English)*?
book edited by Igor Bartosik, Lukasz Martyniak and Piotr Setkiewicz titled
The Beginnings of the Extermination of Jews in KL Auschwitz in the Light of
the Source Materials. | subsequently give the page numbers in parentheses.
Right at the beginning of the book, in its introduction, it contains a clumsy
attempt at disinformation:
“For many years, the beginning of the extermination of Jews in the gas
chambers has been one of the least-researched issues in the extensive liter-
ature on the history of KL Auschwitz. Numerous monumental works by his-
torians devote only a few pages to the question.” (p. 23)
A footnote refers to:
“Franciszek Piper, The Bunkers — Temporary Gas Chambers in Auschwitz
1940-1945 (Oswiecim, 2000), vol. III, pp. 134-143; Jean-Claude Pressac,
Technique and Operation of the Gas Chambers (New York, 1989), pp. 161-
182; Robert Jan van Pelt, The Case for Auschwitz (Bloomington, 2002),
pp. 72, 180.”
The authors can only speak for themselves and for other orthodox historians.
As they know well but prefer to hush up, | have written three studies on this
topic of together almost 600 pages:

— Auschwitz: la prima gasazione. Edizioni di Ar, Padua, 1992; most recent
English translation: Auschwitz: The First Gassing. Rumor and Reality. 3rd
ed., Castle Hill Publishers, Uckfield, 2016, 190 pp., 15 documents and 33
photographs;

— Auschwitz: Crematorium | and the Alleged Homicidal Gassing. Theses &
Dissertations Press, Chicago, 2005, 138 pages, 35 documents; 2nd ed.,
Castle Hill Publishers, Uckfield, 2016;

— Debunking the Bunkers of Auschwitz: Black Propaganda versus History.
Most recent edition: Castle Hill Publishers, Uckfield 2016, 264 pp., 26+7
documents and 21 photographs.

The authors explain this lack of attention by orthodox Holocaust historio-
graphy mainly by “the lack of source materials, basically limited to collections
of accounts, memoirs, and testimony delivered during the trials of Nazi crimi-
nals following the end of the war.” But that changed, as they explain:
“Only at the beginning of the 1990s, with the declassification of the rec-
ords of the SS Central Construction Board that had been held until then in

12 1n the present study I rely on the English text, but in case of necessity fall back on the Polish ver-
sion.
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Moscow, did it become possible to access German documentation making
it possible to fill in to a considerable degree the historical knowledge
about the functioning of the first gas chambers in Auschwitz.” (p. 23)

All this documentation has finally been cataloged and studied by historians of
the Auschwitz Museum:

“As a result of extensive searches conducted in both the Zentralbauleitung
collection and the other archival resources, a range of interesting and pre-
viously unknown documents has been identified. ” (p. 24)

This implied claim of historical discovery is disingenuous, since of the 74
documents published by them, I had already published nine, Pressac had pub-
lished three, and another 19 had previously been mentioned and discussed by
me.

The authors have divided these documents into six sections (p. 24):

1. “the history of the gas chambers at crematorium | in the Auschwitz |
camp”: Documents 1-7. The title of this chapter is “The crematorium and
gas chamber in the Auschwitz | Main Camp” (p. 41).

2. “the functioning of the provisional gas chambers in Birkenau, known as
bunkers I and II (‘The Little Red House’ and ‘Little White House”)””: Doc-
uments 8-20. Chapter title: “Provisional gas chamber bunkers I and Il in
Birkenau” (p. 63).

3. “the wooden barracks used as undressing rooms for the people murdered in
bunkers I and 11”: Documents 21-42. Chapter title: “The barracks for un-
dressing at bunkers I and 11 (p. 103).

4. “the history of the unloading ramp where Jews deported to Auschwitz un-
derwent selection”: Documents 43-51. Chapter title: “The railroad ramp
(Alte Judenrampe)” (p. 173).

5. “the establishment of the Sonderkommando and its first year of existence”:
Documents 52-58. Chapter title: “The Sonderkommando” (p. 199).

6. “the mass murders, known as ‘special operations,” carried out in the
camp”: Documents 59-74. Chapter title: “Sonderaktionen (Special opera-
tions)” (p. 215).

Excluding the nine documents on the “Judenrampe,” which are insignificant

for the Holocaust, 31 of the 65 documents, almost half of them, are not new at

all.

I will defer a detailed examination of the authors’ “Introduction” to Part
Two of this present study, because only after a critical analysis of the docu-
ments cited in their book will the reader be able to full understand my critical
examination of the authors’ allegations.
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Note on references to Documents

When referring to documents reproduced in the Appendix to this present
study, the word DOCUMENT is set in SMALL CAPS. In all other cases, where
another authors’ documents are referred to, they are set in plain text.
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Chapter One: The Documents — Critical Comments

I. Section “The Crematorium and Gas Chamber in the
Auschwitz | Main Camp”

[1] Document 1 (p. 43)

This is a letter by the head of the Main Office Budget and Construction (Der
Chef des Hauptamtes Haushalt und Bauten) of 4 June 1940, with the subject
“Camp Occupancy” (“Belegstarke), addressed to the SS New Construction
Office (SS-Neubauleitung) Auschwitz. The text merely states:

“According to a communication by SS-Oberfuhrer Glicks of June 1,
[19]40, the Auschwitz camp is to be expanded in such a way that it will lat-
er be able to accommodate 30,000 inmates and a guard detail of 6 compa-
nies.” (p. 43)

The authors comment on this as follows:

“This document thus attests that even in mid-1940 plans for the significant
expansion of KL Auschwitz were in existence. This would make the planned
camp the largest one in the Third Reich, capable of holding more prisoners
than all the concentration camps then in existence combined. ” (p. 42)

In the context of the examined section, this documents is absolutely irrelevant,
for it refers neither to a crematorium nor to an alleged “gas chamber” at the
Auschwitz Camp. It would have made more sense to refer here to other docu-
ments, like for instance to the budget for the Auschwitz Camp as drafted by
SS-Obersturmfihrer Fritz August Seidler on 30 April 1940, which provides
for the construction of a new crematorium (“Neubau Krematorium™) at a cost
of 15,000 RM."

The authors also ignore that the “Report of Office 1l — Constructions of the
Main Office Budget and Construction for 1941” (“Bericht des Amtes Il —
Bauten des Hauptamtes Haushalt und Bauten im Jahre 1941”) provided for
the construction of a camp at Lublin and another one at Auschwitz for
150,000 prisoners of war,** which means that no particular priority or im-
portance can be attributed to the latter.

[2] Document 2 (p. 45)

This is an “Activity Report” (“Tatigkeitsbericht”) of June 20, 1940, for the pe-
riod of June 14-20.

13 «“Kostenaufstellung fiir das Lager Auschwitz bei Kattowitz.” RGVA, 502-1-176, p. 37. See Mat-
togno/Deana, vol. 1, p. 212.
4 RGVA, 502-1-13, p. 4.
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The authors highlight the final lines of the document:

“The situation maps were compiled for the projected SS barracks building,
and the implementation of the development for the new state of construc-
tion was commenced. The preliminary drafts for a new crematorium build-
ing were developed and finalized.” (p. 45)

The authors briefly summarize this passage and add that this crematorium
made

“[...] Auschwitz the first German concentration camp in which — surely
because a high future death rate was envisioned — a stationary installation
for burning the bodies of prisoners was planned from the moment of its
founding.” (p. 44)

This is a simple insinuation denying the fact that, as early as 18 June 1938,
and with respect to the Buchenwald concentration camp, a request for an
“emergency crematorium” (Notkrematorium) was presented to SS-Gruppen-
fihrer Theodor Eicke, who at that time was the head of the SS-Totenkopf-
verbande (Death’s Head Units) and of the German concentration camps. On
21 December 1939, the Topf & Séhne company of Erfurt, Germany, which
had been approached by the SS authorities in this regard, submitted a cost es-
timate for “1 Topf incineration furnace, oil- or coke-fired, with double muffle
and compressed air unit, as well as a draft enhancing unit” (1 6l- oder koks-
beheizter Topf-Eindscherungs-Ofen mit Doppelmuffel und Druckluft-Anlage,
sowie Zugverstarkungs-Anlage™), drawing D 56570 “double-muffle cremation
furnace with oil-firing” (Doppelmuffel-Einascherungsofen mit Olfeuerung)
and an undated drawing with the headline “Crematorium of the Bu. CC”
(“Krematorium des K.L. Bu.”) featuring the blueprint of that crematorium.*®

The comment of the authors is clearly specious, because during the period
when the crematorium was requested, the Buchenwald camp had merely 7,958
detainees (7 August 1938; Kommunistische..., p. 30).

The “Description of the structure of the new emergency crematorium
building in the camp for detainees of Buchenwald concentration camp,” writ-
ten on 10 January 1940 by the New Construction Office at Buchenwald, states
in this respect (NO-4401; cf. Mattogno/Deana, p. 208):

“On account of the high mortality at the Buchenwald concentration camp,

the need has arisen for the construction of an emergency crematorium with

a furnace (double-muffle furnace) heated by oil.”

If the SS provided a crematorium for a concentration camp containing less
than 8,000 detainees, how can we be surprised that they had contemplated one
for a camp designed for 30,000 inmates? The authors’ reference to “a high fu-
ture death rate” at Auschwitz is thus at least malicious. It is obvious that the

15 Cf. Mattogno/Deana, vol. I, pp. 208-212, vol. I, Documents 171-174, pp. 275-284.
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SS’s decision to build a crematorium at Auschwitz was based on their own
experience at the Buchenwald camp.

This document therefore does not represent anything new. As for me, |
mentioned this in my study of the Auschwitz cremation furnaces as follows:®

“Instead of erecting a new building, however, the equipment was eventual-
ly installed in a bunker of the former Polish artillery barracks which con-
stituted the nucleus of the new concentration camp. The plans for the
crematorium were drawn up in the week of 14 to 20 June [1940].”

[3] Document 3 (pp. 47f.)

This is another Activity Report, dated 19 July 1941 for the period of 14-19 Ju-

ly, as the headline of this document states on its first page, which the authors

omitted (“Tatigkeitsbericht vom 14. bis 19.7.1941”).1" Paragraph IV on page

111, headlined “Planning” (“Planung”), states:
“SS-O[ber]scha[rflhrer]. Maier of Office Il Berlin delivers preliminary
drafts for the headquarters building. Revising of the draft for a delousing
facility with hydrogen cyanide system. Discussion with Camp Commander,
Head of Administration, First Leader of Protective Custody Camp and
Head of the Pol.[itical] Dept. concerning space requirement of the pro-
ject.”

This absolutely innocuous document is interpreted by the authors as follows:

“The point 7V — Planning’ notes a visit by SS-Oberscharfiihrer Maier, a
representative of Department 1l of the SS-WVHA. He took part in a meet-
ing during which plans for a disinfection installation using Zyklon B
(Blausaure — System) were discussed. The highly unusual presence of the
head of the Politische Abteilung, Maksymilian [recte: Maximilian] Grab-
ner, at a meeting on construction work is noteworthy. Two months later,
Lagerfuhrer Karl Fritzsch—present at the July meeting—made the deci-
sion to use Zyklon B to murder several hundred Soviet POWSs and sick
prisoners in the cellars of block 11. It seems certain [przyjgé zapewne
nalezy = must certainly assume] that he did so after conferring with Grab-
ner, at a time when commandant Hoss was absent.
The use of Zyklon B in Auschwitz for sanitary purposes made it possible to
train a group of SS disinfectors who, having acquired this experience,
could next be assigned to operate the gas chambers.” (p. 46)

This comment is a masterpiece of disinformation and hypocrisy; it aims in a

childish manner at creating a predicate offense in order to somehow substanti-

ate the mythical “first gassing” in the basement of Block 11 at the Auschwitz

6 1bid., p. 212, with the archival reference to the activity report (T4tigkeitsbericht) dated 20 June
1940, for the period of 14-20 June. RGVA, 502-1-214, p. 102.
7 RGVA, 502-1-214, p. 22.
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Main Camp. The attempt, however, is rather clumsy: first the authors arbitrari-
ly assign an exceptional character to Grabner’s presence at a meeting which
he was fully entitled to attend as set out in the document itself; then they pre-
suppose the historical reality of the “first gassing,” in support of which they
do not, of course, submit any “new document”; finally, they establish a ficti-
tious connection between these two assumed events, insinuating that Fritzsch
had consulted with Grabner prior to this “gassing.” The comment implies that
Grabner insinuated himself into a matter which was none of his business — a
disinfestation facility using hydrogen cyanide — allegedly due to malicious
homicidal intentions; next Grabner is said to have suggested to Fritzsch to use
hydrogen cyanide in order to Kill Soviet prisoners of war and detainees, an ad-
vice which Fritzsch allegedly implemented. This way they invent a “documen-
tary confirmation” of the “first gassing,” the one being as inconsistent as the
other!

The specious character of the documentary reference cited by the authors is
even more evident when considering that, in the same series of reports, the
disinfestation of buildings is mentioned twice prior to 19 July 1941, once even
in the report of 12 July 1941, which immediately predates the one discussed
above:

“Building No. 54 meant to accommodate the guard detail was gassed

against vermin and diseases. "8

“Completion of mounting sinks and toilets in Block 14; further work was

impossible, as [the building was] completely occupied due to gassing of

Block 16. "%

That the SS disinfestors, who had attended special training course on the use
of Zyklon B, were later deployed to carry out the alleged homicidal gassings,
is yet another fable invented by the authors.

[4] Document 4 (p. 51).

This is a list dated 1 December 1941 bearing the title “Consumables. De-
liveries during November 1941. — from 1 Nov. to 30 Nov.” (“Verbrauchsmit-
tel. Eingang im Monat November 1941. - vom 1.11.-30.11.”). Among others, it
also contains the following entry: “3000 (kg) of Zyklon (hydrogen cyanide)
railroad car Munich 19931 — Dessau” (3000 (kg) Zyklon (Blauséure) Wagg.
Miinch. 19931 - Dessau”; p. 51). This is the authors’ explanation:

“The document notes the delivery to the camp of three tons of Zyklon B

from Dessau. Lists of this kind for 1941 are only partially extant; this doc-

ument is the first one recording the delivery of Zyklon B to the camp. It is

18 Tatigkeitsbericht of 12 July 1940. RGVA, 502-1-214, p. 97.
19 Tatigkeitsbericht of 12 July 1941. RGVA, 502-1-214, p. 25.
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evident that, because Zyklon B was used in September of that year to mur-
der Soviet POWs, there must also have been earlier deliveries.” (p. 50)

It is a complete mystery what relationship this document has with the crema-
torium and the alleged “gas chamber” of the Auschwitz Main Camp. Instead,
the authors’ malicious intent is blatantly clear: they try to consolidate a purely
imaginary event by conflating it with a real but chronologically unrelated fact.
Their convoluted reasoning is that, since 3,000 kg of Zyklon B were supplied
on 1 December 1941, there must also have been earlier deliveries, because
Zyklon B was used in September 1941 for the “first gassing,” hence this doc-
ument “confirms” that imaginary event! This is a puerile sophism. What can
be said — even though it is tautological but at least serious — is that there must
have been earlier supplies of Zyklon B, because at least the two above-
mentioned documented disinfestation gassings were carried out in that camp
prior to December 1941.

[5] Document 5 (p. 53)

This is a work report (Arbeitskarte) of the inmate locksmith shop (Haftlings—
Schlosserei) for the crematorium at Auschwitz dated 25 September 1941 with
the subject of manufacturing four airtight flaps (Luftdichte—Klappen). The au-
thors comment on this document as follows:

“In the autumn of 1941, the camp authorities began killing prisoners with
Zyklon B gas. After the murder of a group of Soviet POWSs and sick prison-
ers in the basement of block 11 in early September 1941, the room in the
crematorium | building that had previously served as a morgue was desig-
nated as a gas chamber. In order to seal the space to the extent required,
airtight doors were installed and openings were made in the ceiling for the
introduction (pouring in) of Zyklon B; these openings were sealed off by
the flaps mentioned in the document. ” (p. 52)

Here they completely change the meaning of the document. For starters, the
adjective “luftdicht,” meaning “airtight” and properly translated as such in the
English text, was changed to “hermetyczny” (hermetical) in the Polish text,
which is a generic term which can apply both to a possible “gas chamber” and
to a ventilation system, while the proper term for a gas chamber (or gas shel-
ter, for that matter) would be “gasdicht” (gas-tight).

The historical and documentary context of this document points to a venti-
lation system for the crematorium’s morgue. The document in question is nei-
ther new nor unpublished, because | reproduced it in 2005 along with its re-
verse side, which the authors’ did not reproduce (Mattogno 2005a, pp. 120f.),
and | thoroughly discussed its meaning and context (ibid., pp. 19-21), which |
will reiterate here.
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On June 7, 1941, SS-Untersturmfiihrer Maximilian Grabner, head of the
Auschwitz Political Department, wrote the following letter to the SS-Neubau-
leitung:?°

“It is absolutely necessary to install a separate ventilation in the morgue of
the crematorium. The existing ventilation has been rendered useless by the
installation of the second furnace. When the second furnace is in use — and
that is now the case almost daily — the ventilation flap to the morgue has to
be closed because warm air otherwise enters the morgue, causing the exact
opposite of a ventilation.

The deficiencies of the ventilation and of the fresh air feed are particularly
noticeable under the prevailing conditions of warm weather. It is hardly
possible to spend any time in the morgue, even if such instances are gener-
ally of short duration.

A proper ventilation will surely lead to an improvement in the quality of
the air and to a reduction of the humidity of the room. It would also do
away with the presence of flies in the morgue or at least reduce this nui-
sance to a minimum. The elimination of such deficiencies is in the general
interest, not least because it would put a stop to the spread of disease by
the flies.

It is therefore requested that two ventilators be installed in the morgue, one
for intake and one for exhaust. A separate duct leading to the chimney
must be provided for the exhaust. It is requested that the work be started as
soon as possible.”

Between the end of September and the middle of October 1941, ventilation
work, which certainly stemmed from Grabner’s complaints, was carried out in
the crematorium. A “work report” of the inmate locksmith shop dated Sep-
tember 25, 1941, mentions the following order: “Make 4 air-tight flaps.” The
work was done the same day by the detainees Zalewski (8363), Morgiel
(7686), and Dudzinski (16197), blacksmiths, and Bialas (1461), welder, in a
total of 11 man-hours. As is noted on the back of the sheet, the 4 flaps were
done in black plate (Schwarzblech).?

Another work report of the inmate locksmith shop for the crematorium,
dated 7 October 1941,% refers to “fabrication of 2 ventilation caps in steel
plate with an internal space of 27x27 cm, otherwise according to instructions.”
The work was done by the detainee welder Bialas and the detainee plumbers
Maliszewski (9612) and Dyntar (1409) in a total of 50 man-hours between 7

2 RGVA, 502-1-312, p. 111.
2L «4 st. Luftdichte—Klappen anfertigen,” RGVA, 502-2-1, pp. 74-74a.
22 The date refers to the receipt of the order.
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and 13 October 1941. For the fabrication of these devices, 4 square meters of
black plate were used.?

The “airtight flaps” were the air-tight closures which served to block off
the ducts of a room from the system of ventilation. The “ventilation caps”
were probably vertical tubes with caps to block off (or keep rain out of) vent
stacks such as those (in brickwork) which were erected on the roof of the
crematorium above the two furnaces for the ventilation of the furnace room.

The “Inventory map of building No. 47a, BW?* 11. Crematorium,” drawn
on 10 April 1942 by detainee 20033 (the Polish engineer Stefan Swiszczow-
ski), shows in its view of the chimney on the flat roof, to the left, a fat angled
tube, which probably housed an intake fan (Beliiftung).”® It could not have
been an exhaust fan (Entliftung), or a duct for exhaust air for two reasons:
first of all, for the evacuation of the waste air from the morgue Topf had pro-
posed a chimney 10 meters high, whereas the SS-Neubauleitung, for reasons
of economy, had opted for the use of the existing chimney. Both Topf and SS-
Neubauleitung were in agreement that the air removed from an ordinary
morgue would have to be discharged at least 10 meters above ground. In that
case, how could SS-Neubauleitung have decided to discharge not only the
waste air from the morgue but even the lethal exhaust from the alleged homi-
cidal gas chamber through a duct no more than 5 feet high??®

Secondly, blowing out the waste air through the duct in question would
have necessitated opening one or both doors of the morgue — not a good solu-
tion hygienically for an ordinary morgue, and highly hazardous for a homici-
dal gas chamber.

Hence, if an intake fan had been housed in that duct, the ventilation of the
morgue could only have been of the type requested by Grabner. The ventila-
tion system of the morgue was connected, through a metal duct, to the air
conduit that passed under the floor of the furnace room and went to the chim-
ney. Upstream of the juncture with the chimney there was an exhaust fan.

Such an arrangement, however, could only have functioned up to the be-
ginning of July 1942, when the old chimney of the crematorium was demol-
ished. No air conduit was, in fact, attached to the new chimney, as is evident
from the corresponding design drawing done by the Kéhler company on 11
August 1942 regarding a “Smoke flue for the Central Construction Office of
the Waffen-SS and Police Auschwitz, 0.S.”?’

2 «“Anfertigen von 2 Stiick Entliftungshiten aus Eisenblech 27/27 cm i. L. sonst nach Angabe,”
RGVA, 502-2-1, pp. 75-75a.

2 Bauwerk — building or construction site with multiple buildings of the same type; the term desig-
nated also administrative acts.

% «Bestandplan des Gebaudes Nr. 47a. B.W. 11. Krematorium,” RGVA, 502-2-146, p. 21.

% This was Jean-Claude Pressac’s hypothesis.

27 “Rauchkanal fur die Zentralbauleitung der Waffen-SS und Polizei Auschwitz O.S.”, RGVA, 502-
2-23,p. 18.
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The authors avoid any reference to the work report of 7 October 1941, ap-
parently because it refers very explicitly to a ventilation system, which would
have compromised their bogus interpretation of the work report of 25 Septem-
ber in terms of those flaps being destined to equip a homicidal gas chamber.

[6] Document 6 (pp. 55f.)

This is an “Activity Report for the month of May 1942” (“Tétigkeitsbericht
fir den Monat Mai 1942”) written by Sturmmann Heinz Lubitz on 30 May
1942, which | mentioned in my study of the Auschwitz Central Construction
Office (1998, p. 40; 2005d, p. 34) and in more detail in my study of the
Auschwitz cremation furnaces. Paragraph 13 on page 2 says:
“Crematorium. Removal of the old cobbled pavement. Erecting a concrete
fence in front of the entrance with 2 entry gates. Redoing the new driveway
with cobblestones. Transport of material. Removal of soil.” (p. 56)

The authors’ comment reveals an extremely far-fetched logic:

“Deportees undressed in the yard thus formed before entering the gas

chamber.” (p. 54)

There exists quite obviously not the slightest documentary connection be-

tween these activities and the alleged “gas chamber” of Crematorium I. This is

therefore a crude attempt to indirectly substantiate this “gas chamber” with a

document which is absolutely meaningless in the context of the orthodox Hol-

ocaust narrative.

As | mentioned above, the document in question does not represent any-
thing new. In 2012 | summed up this document as follows (2012, Vol. I, p.
265; Mattogno/Deana 2015, Vol. 1, p. 221):

“During the latter half of May, work on the exterior was carried out: the

yard in front of the crematorium was fenced in and provided with two

wooden gates, the old pavement was replaced. ”

In Footnote 173 (208 of the English edition) | gave as sources:
“Zentralbauleitung, Auftrag Nr. 436, Arbeitskarte Nr. 20 for Tischlerei
dated 13 May 1942: manufacture of two entrance gates (Einfahrttoren) 4 x
3.20 m, work done between 21 and 25 May. RGVA, 502-2-1, p. 24.
Description of the job: Téatigkeitsbericht fiir den Monat Mai 1942, RGVA,
502-1-24, p. 299, and Baubericht fiir Monat Mai 1942, RGVA, 502-1-24, p.
261.”

The authors do not mention the other two documents adduced by me.

[7] Document 7 (pp. 59-61)

This is a “List of structures under construction with extent of completion.” On
p. 3 under no. 28, we find the following text: “Construction of a gas-tight
treatment room in the former crema. for the garrison physician.”
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The authors explain that this refers to the “conversion® of an existing gas-
tight room in the former crematorium | [eines gasdichten Behandlungsraumes
im friheren Krema] for use by the garrison physician.” They then add that the
“furnaces in the crematorium were dismantled in 1944; the room used as a gas
chamber was to be adapted as an air-raid shelter for the nearby SS hospital.”
(p. 58).

This interpretation completely distorts the significance of this document,
which has been known for many years and which | already mentioned in my
2005 study on the “gas chamber” in Crematorium 1. Since this book appeared
in both English and German, | reiterate the text of Chapter 11.2. headed “The
Transformation of Crematorium I into an Air-Raid Shelter” (2005a, pp. 22-
24).

On 16 November 1943, the commander of the Auschwitz Camp, SS-
Obersturmbannfiihrer Liebehenschel, issued the following order regarding

“Air-raid measures at Garrison Auschwitz”:?°

“Upon advice of the competent superior authorities, the necessary air-raid
protection measures will now also be undertaken in the Auschwitz garrison
area with immediate effect. In my capacity as local air-raid-protection of-
ficer 1 have appointed SS-Untersturmfihrer Josten to be my permanent
representative. | request all services to support SS-Untersturmfiihrer Josten
in every possible way. ”

The order became effective as of 1 January 1944.%° According to the usual
practice, a construction site was defined for this purpose: BW 98, “air-raid
shelter trench,” into which all such shelters planned or eventually built at
Auschwitz were integrated. They became sections of BW 98 and carried the
same designation, with an added letter. For example, the air-raid shelter of the
camp commander’s residence became BW 98J. The old crematorium at
Auschwitz also became part of this system of air-raid-protection measures.

On 16 July 1944, during his visit to Auschwitz, SS-Obergruppenfuhrer
Pohl approved the “Installation of a gas-proof operating room and shrapnel-
proof shelter in the former crematorium for the garrison surgeon,” which be-
came BW 98M.3!

On 26 August 1944, Josten, who had meanwhile been promoted to SS-
Obersturmfuhrer and appointed “head of air-raid protection” (“Luftschutzlei-

2 The Polish text has here “przebudowie”, restructuring.

2 Standortbefehl [garrison order] no. 51/43 of 16 November 1943. GARF, 7021-108-32, p. 73.

30 Letter of the camp commander SS-Obersturmbannfiihrer Liebehenschel in his function of “Der
SS-Standortalteste als drtlicher Luftschutzleiter” (senior garrison officer as local air-raid protec-
tion chief) to Zentralbauleitung of February 17, 1944. RGVA, 502-1-401, p. 100.

8L Letter from SS-Sturmbannfihrer Bischoff, Leiter der Bauinspektion der Waffen-SS und Polizei
“Schlesien,” to Zentralbauleitung of October 17, 1944. RGVA, 502-2-147, p. 124.
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ter”) wrote a letter to the camp commander on “conversion of the old cremato-
rium for air-raid-protection purposes,” which reads as follows:*

“In the attachment | submit a project for the conversion of the old crema-

torium for air-raid protection purposes with the request for approval of

this transformation.

1. Work scheduled:

Dismantling of the old muffle furnaces, including recovery and cleaning of

the corresponding bricks.

Filling in of heating shafts and conduits with the rubble and waste result-

ing from the dismantling of the muffle furnaces.

Installation of gas protection doors, window shutters, and windows,

creation of wall openings and ducts needed for heating furnaces, aeration

and ventilation,

plumbing and drainage work,

re-arrangement of existing electrical wiring in accordance with floor plan,

improvement of floors and partial installation of wooden floor,

improvement of roof and coating of same with bitumen.

2. Materials needed:

500 kg of cement

400 kg of bricks

20 kg of steel rods

50 m of railway rails

24 pcs. timber, 4.80 m long, 10/15 cm

10 pcs. timber, 3.90 m long, 10/15 cm

102 sqm boards, 25 mm

13 pcs. windows, one-sided, 60 x 80 cm

2 pcs. doors, one-sided, 70 x 200 cm

16 pcs. window shutters, gas-tight and shrapnel-proof

7 pcs. doors, gas-tight and shrapnel-proof”
On 17 October SS-Sturmbannfiihrer Bischoff** wrote a letter to the Central
Construction Office regarding the start of work, which “due to urgency,”
could begin immediately without the usual bureaucratic formalities.®* The
work had, however, already started. A document dated 4 September mentions

%2 RGVA, 502-1-401, p. 34.

3 0On 1 October 1941 Bischoff, at that time SS-Hauptsturmfiihrer, replaced SS-Oberscharfiihrer Au-
gust Schlachter as head of the Auschwitz Bauleitung, whose name was changed to Zentralbaulei-
tung on 4 November 1941. On 1 October 1943 Bischoff, who was replaced by SS-
Obersturmfuhrer Werner Jothann, became head of the Construction Inspectorate of the Waffen-
SS and Police “Silesia” (Leiter Bauinspektion der Waffen-SS und Polizei “Schlesien”).
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“Construction of a gas-tight treatment room in the former crema. for the garri-
son physician,” 5 percent of which had been completed.**

On November 2, 1944, Jothann drew up an “explanatory report for conver-
sion of the old crematorium into an air-raid shelter for the SS sickbay with an
operating room in Concentration Camp Auschwitz O/S. BW 98M,” in which
he described the work to be done:*

“Conversion of the existing and available rooms of the old crematorium
into an air-raid shelter for the SS sickbay with an operating room. The ex-
isting central walls and some partitions will be reinforced to 38 cm. Any
other necessary partitions will be built. An emergency operating room, two
gas-locks, two flushing toilets!®® and a water faucet in the operating room
are to be installed because a water supply line is available and the sewage
line can be extended. Heating will be by furnaces. ”

Regarding the time schedule, Jothann adds:

“On account of its urgency, work has already started and will be complet-
ed within three weeks. ”

On the same day, Jothann also drew up a cost estimate®’ for a total amount of
4,300 RM, and a location sketch for the air-raid shelter project.® The work
was completed in the second half of November.

This, my account of 2005, shows that the authors’ statement about the
“conversion of an existing gas-tight room in the former crematorium I is un-
founded. In fact, it is openly contradicted by Josten’s letter of 26 August 1944,
which, among the work to be performed, explicitly mentions “Installation of
gas-protection doors,” which therefore had not existed before in what the au-
thors claim to have been a “gas chamber.” In addition, it was also necessary to
create “wall openings” not just for the pipes of the heating stoves, but also for
“aeration and ventilation.” From this it can be deduced that the four phantom
openings in the room’s ceiling said to have been utilized for pouring in Zyklon
B did not exist back then either, because had they existed, they would have
been used for this purpose, and new holes would have been unnecessary.

The authors’ fallacious interpretation is therefore just another foolish at-
tempt to corroborate with a real document a fictional story.

3 «Aufstellung der im Bau befindlichen Bauwerke mit Fertigstellungsgrad” (register of building
works under construction with extent of completion), drawn up by SS-Obersturmfiihrer Jothann
on September 4, 1944. RGVA, 502-1-85, p. 2.

% RGVA, 502-2-147, p. 125.

3% These toilets were initially planned as “Trockenklosett” (chemical toilets). The drain pipes of
these toilets can still be seen in the morgue today.

87 «“Kostenliberschlag zum Ausbau des alten Krematoriums als Luftschutzbunker fiir SS-Revier mit
einem Operationsraum im K.L. Auschwitz O/S. BW 98M,” RGVA, 502-2-147, pp. 126-126a.

38« ageskizze fur den Ausbau eines Luftschutzbunkers fiir SS Revier,” RGVA, 502-2-147, p. 122.
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Il. Section “Provisional Gas Chamber Bunkers | and Il in
Birkenau”

[8] Document 8 (p. 65)

This is a report on work carried out at the PoW camp (K.G.L.), that is, Birke-
nau,®® by the company Schlesische Industriebau Lenz & Co. Aktiengesell-
schaft, dated from 8 July 1942, which exists in two versions: a printed form
filled in by hand, and a completely handwritten sheet. The authors observe in
this regard:

“Among the items listed in the document is an entry about ‘the installation
of doors at the second gas chamber’ (TUren in 2 Gaskammer).

The work involved the adaptation as a gas chamber of one of the houses
remaining from the former village of Brzezinka (the so-called bunker 11
‘The Little White House’).” (p. 64)

Here they commit a major blunder, provided it isn’t a devious sleight of hand.
The proper transcript of the text reads in fact:

“1 Pg + 2 M[aurer] Einmauern der Tir in d.[er] Gaskammer”
“1 Pgl + 2 M[asons] blocking in of the door in the gas chamber. ”

The authors therefore turned the expression “in the” into “in 2”, and then they
turned the number into the ordinal “second” (Polish drugiej, which can be ab-
breviated as “d.”). They inferred from this that the work was done in the “sec-
ond” bunker, or “Bunker 11”’!

The fact that the word “Tir” is singular deals a serious blow to the authors’
fatuous interpretation. In a 1994 paper Franciszek Piper presented a plan of
“Bunker 2”:*" a house measuring 8.34 m x 17.07 m containing four “gas
chambers” sporting a total of four entry doors and the same number of exit
doors, so that eight gas-tight doors would have been needed. But this docu-
ment speaks only of one door to the gas chamber. How can this be reconciled
with the alleged “Bunker 2?

% Kriegsgefangenenlager, the official term for the Birkenau camp. The most commonly used abbre-
viation was KGL. The Auschwitz Main Camp was called Konzentrationslager (KL; concentration
camp).

40" The printed form lists ten types of workers, including mason (Maurer) mentioned in the passage
under discussion; among the other nine, the only one starting with the letter “P” is “Polier” (con-
struction foreman); “Pg” could mean “Poliergeselle” (Geselle = skilled craftsman without formal
foreman degree = Meistertitel); this is by analogy with the names of “Maurergesellen” and “Zim-
mergesellen” (masons and carpenters) appearing on a Tagelohnzettel (day-wage sheet) of Josef
Kluge related to construction contracts in Crematorium 1V in February 1943. RGVA, 502-2-54, p.
T1ff.

41 Piper 1994, p. 162. In Polish literature, beginning with D. Czech’s Auschwitz Chronicle, and spe-
cifically in the study by F. Piper just cited, the two “bunkers” are always numbered with the Ara-
bic numerals 1 and 2. In the book under review, however, they are numbered using the Roman
numerals I and I1. I explain the reason for this in my comment on Document 20.
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This document mentions a “gas chamber” in the “prisoner-of-war camp” at
Birkenau, indeed, but it is also true that the only documented “gas chamber”
in this camp at that time appears only as part of a project for a delousing fa-
cility (Entlasungsanlage), first drawn on Map No. 801 of 8 November 1941
(Pressac 1989, p. 55), but also on successive maps (ibid., pp. 56f.). It is well
known that in 1942 two mirror-symmetrical disinfestation facilities were be-
ing constructed at Birkenau. They bore the identifiers BW 5a and 5b (BW =
Bauwerk = structure) and were called “delousing barracks” 1 and 2 in the doc-
uments (“Entlausungsbaracke”). The disinfestation facility BW 5b was com-
pleted on 15 July 1942.%2 On June 9 the Central Construction Office commis-
sioned the inmate joinery (Tischlerei) to manufacture, among other things, “4
gas-tight double doors 1.60 x 2.00” (4 Gasdichte Doppeltiiren 1,60/2,00)
which were indubitably meant to be used for the delousing gas chamber (Gas-
kammer, two doors) and for the adjoining airlock (Schleuse, two doors). Work
for that project started on 11 June and was finished on 28 June.® For this rea-
son, the installation of one of the two doors in the gas chamber on 8 July is
fully compatible with these documents.

The only problem is that the document in question mentions the installation
of just one of the two doors. It is, however, far more likely that it refers to BW
5a than to the mysterious “Bunker 2,” whose existence is not supported by any
document. Not to mention that the date of the document contrasts sharply with
the date at which “Bunker 2” is said to have been put into operation: 30 June
1942 according to Danuta Czech in her Auschwitz Chronicle (Czech 1990, p.
189). The authors are therefore forced to move this date to a time after 8 July.

In another study, Setkiewicz has adduced a documentary “proof” which he
was careful not to repeat here. | will give the reason for this shortly. Setkie-
wicz wrote (2011a, p. 14):

“The several documents attesting to the existence in Birkenau of not one
but two ‘gassing rooms’ (‘Vergasungsraumen des K.G.L.  in orders from
August 6, 1942) date from not earlier than August and September 1942.”

He does not provide any reference, evidently in order to make it difficult to
verify the source. This is actually another fatuous trick. It is in fact known that
the “Explanatory Report on the preliminary draft for the new construction of
the prisoners-of-war camp of the Waffen-SS, Auschwitz, Upper Silesia” of 30
October 1941 uses the term “gassing room” (“Vergasungsraum™) for the de-
lousing chamber of the “delousing barrack”** — in the singular, although two
such buildings were provided for the PoW camp, referred to as “BW 5a de-

42 Baufristenplan of July 1942 for the PoW camp. RGVA, 502-1-22, p. 31.

43 Arbeitskarte. Auftrag Nr. 1577 of 9 June 1942. RGVA, 502-1-328, p. 173.

4 Erlauterungsbericht zum Vorentwurf fir den Neubau des Kriegsgefangenenlagers der Waffen-SS,
Auschwitz O/S. RGVA, 502-1-233, p. 16 (p. 4 of the report).
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lousing barrack 1 and “BW 5b delousing barrack 2.”* It is therefore indeed
obvious that two “gassing rooms” existed in the PoW camp. Since the docu-
ment mentioned by Setkiewicz undoubtedly refers to these facilities, repro-
ducing it in the book reviewed here would have undermined the authors’
agenda, hence he forsook this (pseudo) evidentiary pearl.

[9] Document 9 (p. 69)

This is a list of inmates assigned to construction work at the Birkenau Camp
on 17 August 1942. Among the various entries is also this one: “Assigned
from the camp — on 7:30 hrs. for special unit 475 inmates, 25 foremen.” The
authors comment on this as follows (p. 68):

“Assigning such a large number of prisoners to work for the Sonder-
kommando was connected with the preparation of new burning pits in
proximity to the extermination sites, mainly bunker I. At the same time, the
exhumation of bodies from the mass graves and attempts to burn them on
pyres were underway. This fact finds confirmation in accounts by the pris-
oners Arnost Rosin and Andre Balbin, who were employed at this task. ”

This interpretation is based on the pious fiction, tacitly or expressly accepted
by all historians of the Auschwitz Museum, that only one single kind of “Son-
derkommando” existed at Auschwitz, that is, the one working at the cremato-
ria and the “Bunkers.” | summarize here what | explained about this in another
study (2001, pp. 138-141; 2004b, pp. 101-103), with the necessary additions
and corrections.

Danuta Czech explains the origin and meaning of the term “Sonderkom-
mando” (special unit) as follows (Czech 1994, p. 371):

“The extermination camp created also one other group of people, those
who were forced to work in the crematoria and gas chambers — the unfor-
tunate people were assigned to the work of the special unit. The SS used
code words if they spoke about the mass extermination of those ‘unworthy
of life.” It called the mass extermination as well as the transports leading
to selection ‘special treatment’ (often abbreviated as SB). Thus, also, the
expression ‘special unit.””’

In other words, since criminal activity described by the code word “special
treatment” was allegedly being conducted in the crematoria, the staff em-
ployed there had of necessity to be a “special unit.” Naturally it was the only
work unit at Auschwitz that merited the prefix “special” — otherwise the word
would have lost the criminal significance that it possessed according to ortho-
dox Holocaust historiography.

Based on the documents, the reality is entirely different.

% 1bid., p. 14 (p. 2 of the report).
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First of all, in relation to the crematoria, the term “Sonderkommando” ap-
pears in merely one single document (see my comments on Document 31). In
the 5-volume work on the general history of the Auschwitz Camp written by
the Museum’s historians, Franciszek Piper claims to demonstrate on the basis
of two documents that the term in question was referring to the crematoria
personnel (Piper 1999, note 360, p. 213). These documents are not mentioned
in the book under review: the “Duty roster for Tuesday, 18 July 1944” (dated
17 July),* and Headquarters Order No. 8/43 of 20 April 1943.* The first of
these two documents in fact refers to four names listed on the right: “Buch,
Kelm, Schultz, Bickel.”*® Based on the document in question, Piper considers
them all “SS members directly employed at the gas chambers and crematoria”
(Piper 1999, p. 261). He furthermore states that Buch, Kelm and Schulz are al-
so mentioned as SS supervisors of the crematoria Sonderkommando by the
witnesses Alter Feinsilber (alias Stanistaw Jankowski) and Henryk Tauber
(ibid., pp. 261-263), although the first merely speaks of a “Scharflihrer Buch*
and a certain “Kell” (Bezwinska et al. 1996, p. 45), while the other mentions a
certain “Schultz” and “Kéln.”*

A Scharfiihrer Buch, an Unterscharfiihrer Kelm and an Unterscharfihrer
Schultz appear without first names on an undated list containing a column of
signatures acknowledging “receipt,” so this is probably a payroll list. The list
does not give any indication what these individuals were paid for, i.e., what
their range of duty was.>® Heinz Schulz, who according to Piper (whose source
spells it “Schultz”) was Kommandofiihrer (detail leader) of the crematoria
personnel, was identified during the Frankfurt Auschwitz trial as a certain
Heinz Arthur Schulz, Unterscharfiihrer, who was “leader of the labor detail
for dismantlement works” (Fritz Bauer Institut et al. 2005, pp. 33519, 46036,
46043). Hermann Buch, who Piper claims to have been a Kommandofiihrer at
the crematoria as well, was something entirely different according to the same
work in which Piper makes that claim: Buch was actually “head of camp sec-
tion Blle,” the so-called “family camp for gypsies,” from its inception until
April 1944. In the biographical note about him comprising eight lines, there is
not a hint of his ever having occupied the position of a Kommandofihrer at
the crematoria, which is so important to orthodox historiography (Lasik 1999,
p. 239).

4 “Dienstplan fiir Dienstag, den 18.7.1944.” APMO, D-Aull-3/4. See DOCUMENT 1 in the Appen-
dix.

47 “Kommandanturbefehl Nr. 8/43” of 20 April 1943. APMO, D-Aul-4/20. Transcript of this docu-
ment: Frei et al. 2000, pp. 249-254; the term is on p. 251.

8 In the first edition of my study on Special Treatment in Auschwitz I had erroneously linked the
term Sonderkommando to “Torkontrolle” (2004b, p. 101).

49 Hoss Trial, vol. 11, p. 142.

% GARF, 7021-108-54, pp. 97f.
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Another similar document exists, the “Duty roster for Thursday, 5 October
1944 from 4 October.>* The term “Sonderkommando” appears on it as well,
but only with one name: “Buch.” In the second column of that same line we
find the words “[river] Sola, Hiitte” and next “Kelm.”2

Since the personnel for the crematoria at that time was divided into eight
Kommandos, 2 for each crematorium (one day and one night shift),>® this re-
quired 8 Kommandofuhrer for every day. But the first document mentions on-
ly four SS noncoms, while the second has only one, so that the “Sonderkom-
mando” which that person had to supervise cannot have had anything to do
with the crematoria personnel.

In addition, Piper’s second document, the Headquarters Order of 20 April
1943, speaks simply of the “pursuit of two Jews who were on the run from the
special unit.” Therefore, starting from the assumption that only one single
“special unit” existed at Auschwitz consisting of the crematoria staff, the fact
that this term appears in these two document is said to prove that the cremato-
ria personnel was called “special unit”! A classic example of circular reasoning!

However, in documents explicitly mentioning the crematorium staff, its
designation is simply “staff of crematorium,”®* or it is identified by number —
“206-B boiler, Crematorium | and 11, 207-B boiler, Crematorium Il and V.

There existed moreover numerous other “special units” at Auschwitz, not a
single one of which had anything whatsoever to do with the crematoria. For
instance (see Mattogno 2004b, pp. 102f.):

— Sonderkommando Schadlingsbekampfung: pest control unit made up of
women.

— Sonderkommando Reinhardt: women’s unit assigned to the sorting of
clothing.

— Sonderkommando Zeppelin: external unit based in Breslau.

— Bauhof-Sonderkommando (S.K.): unit working at the storage facility for
construction materials.>®

— Dwory-Sonderkommando (S.K.): unit working in Dwory — a village about
10 km east of the town of Auschwitz.

— Buna-Sonderkommando (S.K.): unit working in Monowitz.

— Bekleidungs-Werkstatte-Sonderkommando (Bekl.Werkst.S.K.): unit in the
clothing workshops producing clothing.

— Sonderkommando Sola-Hiitte.

51 “Konz.-Lager Auschwitz Il. Birkenau, den 4. Oktober 1944. Dienstplan fiir Donnerstag, den
5.10.1944,” GARF, 7021-108-59, p. 3. See DOCUMENT 2.

52 GARF, 7021-108-59, p. 3. The German term Haitte is frequently used for enterprises in the steel
and coal industries.

5 GARF, 7021-108-20. Cf my study 2005c, p. 89.

54 «Krematoriumspersonal”; “Ubersicht iiber Anzahl und Einsatz der Héftlinge des Konzentrations-
lagers”, January 31, 1944, APMO, D-f/402, n.inv. 167217, p. 34.

%5 For example, in the report “Arbeitseinsatz fiir den 15. Mai 1943”, APMO, D-Aull-3a/1a, p. 333a.

%6 Ibid., p. 149.
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Other Sonderkommandos appearing in documents adduced by the authors will
be dealt with further below.

Turning back to Document 9, it is a simply an utterly unfounded conjecture
that the “Sonderkommando” mentioned in the list of 17 August 1942 had any-
thing to do with any personnel working at the phantasmagorical “bunker.” The
orthodox “information” about that alleged “Sonderkommando” stems exclu-
sively from testimonies which are very contradictory to boot. Eric Friedler et
al. (2005, p. 77) wrote in this regard:

“The labor detail consisting of up to 50 inmates per bunker which was de-
ployed directly at the gas chambers was called Sonderkommando right
from the start. There existed another detail with Jewish workers between
May and September, however, which was deployed by the SS for the re-
moval of traces of the mass murder. The task of this ‘burial detail’ was to
excavate the deep pits in which the corpses of the gassed victims from Bun-
kers 1 and 2 had been buried. Finally, in September 1942 the burial detail
and the Sonderkommando were merged by the SS, and from then on it was
called merely Sonderkommando.”

If viewed that way, the term used in the list of 17 August does not refer to a
burial unit, as the authors affirm (which at that time, if we follow Friedler et
al., wasn’t called “Sonderkommando” but “Begrabungskommando”), but
would have been a “gassing unit.”
In her entry for 4 July 1942, Czech writes in her Auschwitz Chronicle
about the origins of the “Sonderkommando™ (1990, p. 192):
“The so-called Sonderkommando (Special Squad) is formed, consisting of
several dozen Jewish prisoners. They must dig pits near the bunker and
bury those who are killed in the gas chambers. The squad is housed in the
barracks in the men’s camp in Birkenau. It is completely isolated from the
other prisoners.”
The source is a report of the Polish resistance. The date, however, is Czech’s
invention. In fact, the “Memorandum on the State of the Nation for the Period
16 July to 25 August 1942 conveyed the following (Marczewska/Wazniew-
ski 1968, p. 37):
“A few dozen, physically very strong detainees are selected from each
group of new arrivals. This is the special company [kompania specjalna]
which at night digs graves and buries the slain. This company — strictly
isolated — was later exterminated in the gas chamber; a new one replaced
it.”
The Polish underground periodical Informacja Biezgca (Current Information)
published in its no. 31 of 26 September 1942 a “Report from Auschwitz”
which contains the same claims with slight variations (ibid., p. 39):
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“100 physically very strong people are selected from the group of new ar-
rivals. This is the special company [kompania specjalna] which at night
digs graves and buries the slain. A short while later, this strictly isolated
company was exterminated in the gas chamber; a new one replaced it.”

Arnos$t Rosin, whom the authors call as their witness, stated that two weeks af-
ter his arrival at Auschwitz — which occurred on 17 April 1942, hence in late
April/early May — 200 detainees of his transport were selected and isolated in
a hut. The next day 50 detainees were taken away. They were all assigned to
the Sonderkommando. The group of 150 inmates to which Rosin belonged
was led into the birch wood near Birkenau. They had to excavate mass graves
near the “white farmhouse,” i.e. “Bunker 2” — although according to the or-
thodox version of events, this structure did not yet exist at that time. The other
50 detainees were allegedly involved in the gassing of the victims and the re-
moval of their corpses (Friedler et al. 2005, pp. 78f.).

It is unclear how these claims can be reconciled: were there a few dozen,
100 or 200 prisoners in the Sonderkommando? Czech writes even that 300
prisoners of the Sonderkommando who had been employed in the exhumation
and cremation of 107,000 corpses were killed in the “gas chamber” of Crema-
torium | at Auschwitz on 3 December 1942 (1990, pp. 277f.). This number is
taken from a deposition Arnost Rosin made during the 16th session of the trial
of the Auschwitz camp garrison. The witness stated:®’

“On 3 December 1942, the Sonderkommando, numbering 300 people, was
gassed at Auschwitz during the preparation of an escape. The rest of the
Sonderkommando, numbering 10-12 people, remained in the block and
were subsequently led into the so-called ‘death chamber’ — this was the
place for the corpses — and the defendant Plagge himself shot them. ”

To top it off, the witness Stanistaw Jankowski, also adduced by Czech, assert-
ed instead that the Sonderkommando had 390 inmates and was “gassed” in
November or December 1942 (Bezwinska et al. 1996, p. 48). So how many?
A few dozen? 100? 200? 300? 390? No, the authors of the reviewed book say:
500!

Leaving aside these numerical contradictions and those relating to the ex-
termination of the Sonderkommando, which according to the Polish re-
sistance’s Memorandum must have occurred already before 25 August 1942
(if at all) but which is completely ignored by Czech, the authors should ad-
dress how the numerical data quoted here can be reconciled with the docu-
ment under discussion. If the maximum number of prisoners in the Sonder-
kommando was 390, how do they explain the assignment to it of 500 inmates
on 17 August 19427

57 Trial of the Auschwitz camp garrison, vol. VI, p. 7.
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The authors also misinterpret the meaning of the document: “Assigned
from the camp — on 7:30 hrs. for special unit 475 inmates, 25 foremen” does
not mean that the Sonderkommando had been permanently increased to 475
inmates and 25 foremen, but that these detainees had been made available on-
ly for that particular day at 7:30 hrs. The comparison between the two pages
of the document shows that the total number of prisoners employed remained
unchanged (3,000) and that the 475 inmates transferred to the Sonderkomman-
do consisted mainly of “Planierungsarbeiter” (workers engaged in leveling
the ground), whose tally went down from 2,145 on August 16 to 1,710 on Au-
gust 17. Some inmate workers also came from the pool originally assigned to
leveling the ground for the future SS lodgings (“Pl. Unterkunft-SS”), which
decreased from 195 to 95. It is important to point out here that the 3,000
workers in question were chosen based on their profession, as is reflected in a
parallel document with the headline “Inmate deployment of 27 February
1942.”°8 The two documents published by the authors were part of a handwrit-
ten list which was certainly meant for internal use only, while the one | men-
tioned was a typewritten official document which reported the pertinent data
in more detail.

As mentioned above, the alleged first Sonderkommando was formed to-
ward late April/early May 1942 according to Rosin, or on 4 July if we follow
Czech. Leaving aside this chronological contradiction, both declare that its
inmates were Jews taken directly from a transport, without first passing
through the official labor deployment procedure. But the 475 inmates and 25
foremen in question were rather precisely part of this official labor pool, and
they remained part of it even after their temporary assignment to the Sonder-
kommando, not to mention that there is no evidence that they were Jews.

In addition, it is unknown which Sonderkommando the document in ques-
tion relates to, and nothing in it indicates that it was involved in the excavation
of mass graves or that it had any relationship to the elusive “bunkers.”

The authors’ interpretation is moreover in striking contrast to one of the
cornerstones of their version of the origin of outdoor cremations. In her
Auschwitz Chronicle under the date of 16 September 1942, Czech (1990, p.
238f.) mentions the fact that Camp Commander Rudolf Hoss, accompanied by
SS-Untersturmfiihrer Franz Hossler and SS-Untersturmfiihrer Walter Dejaco,
visit SS-Standartenfiihrer Paul Blobel on that date, supposedly in Chetmno, to
learn about, and adopt for Auschwitz, the procedures and cremation devices
employed in that camp (see Mattogno 2008). This means that prior to that date
Hoss would have been ignorant as to how to cremate corpses buried at
Auschwitz (otherwise he wouldn’t have turned to Blobel to find out about it),
so he could not possibly have ordered the preparation of “new burning pits”
on August 17.

%8 RGVA, 502-1-67, pp. 94f. See DOCUMENT 3.
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Here is another problem. Historians at the Auschwitz Museum claim that
the corpses of the victims of the “bunkers” of Birkenau were not burned in
cremation pits before Heinrich Himmler’s visit to Auschwitz on 17 and 18 Ju-
ly 1942. In this regard Czech explicitly states (1990, p. 199):

“At this time, the corpses [of Bunker 2] are not yet being burned but are

piled up in pits and buried. ”

Himmler allegedly decided to have the bodies cremated rather than buried,
and “shortly after Himmler’s visit” Blobel is said to have showed up at
Auschwitz “with orders to exhume all buried bodies, burn them, and to scatter
the ashes to prevent the possible reconstruction of the number of victims”
(Piper 1994, p. 163), although no paper trail exists of Blobel’s alleged visit to
Auschwitz, and it is not even mentioned in Czech’s Auschwitz Chronicle.

Hence, if we follow the orthodox Holocaust logic, then the order to ex-
hume and cremate the buried victims is said to have arrive at Auschwitz al-
ready in July 1942 (“shortly after” Himmler’s visit), but, inexplicably, Hoss
went to see Blobel for advice on cremating exhumed corpses only almost two
months later! Meanwhile, according to the authors, he would have ordered the
excavation of “new burning pits,” which indicates that, in their opinion, at that
time there were already “old” cremation pits, i.e. that outdoor cremations were
already happening.

When open-air mass cremations began on 21 September after HOss’s return
to Auschwitz, the procedures adopted are said to have been rather primitive;
after attempts were allegedly made to cremate the corpses on pyres, they were
eventually simply burned directly in the pits (ibid., pp. 305f.). Since Hdss’s
travel permit concerned the visit to an “experimental station for field furnaces
Operation Reinhard,”*® which were masonry furnaces requiring “building ma-
terials,”® it is unclear why Héss would instead apply the crude methods of
pyres and burning pits at Auschwitz.

In my comments on Document 13 | will examine Setkiewicz’s pathetic at-
tempt to unravel somewhat this web of contradictions.

In conclusion, it is unknown to which Sonderkommando the document in
question refers, and nothing indicates that it was involved in the excavation of
mass graves or had any relationship with the elusive “bunkers.” Hence Docu-
ment 9 basically does not prove anything. Just like all the other documents
they mentioned later on, it is of value to the authors only due to the myth of
the Sonderkommando, the sterile vicious circle which assumes apodictically
that merely one Sonderkommando existed at Auschwitz, and that it was of ne-
cessity devoted to cremation and gassings. Then these scholars triumphantly
brandish documents that mention the term in question (and others with the

59 Fahrgenehmigung of 15 September 1942. AGK, NTN, 94, p. 170. Reproduced in Mattogno 2008,
p. 85.
6 1bid., p. 84, Reisebericht tiber die Dienstfahrt nach Litzmannstadt. RGVA, 502-1-336, p. 69.
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“Sonder-" prefix) as “proof” of the claimed reality of the alleged homicidal
gassings.

[10] Document 10 (pp. 71f.)

This is the well-known “Aktenvermerk” (file memo) by SS-Untersturmfiihrer
Fritz Ertl of 21 August 1942%! mentioning “bathing facilities for special opera-
tions,” which the authors, following the common practice of the Holocaust or-
thodoxy, claim to be the elusive “bunkers”:

“Protocol of a discussion that took place at KL Auschwitz on August 19,
1942. Representatives of the camp and the Zentralbauleitung negotiated
with the engineer Kurt Prifer, a specialist from the Topf und S6hne com-
pany from Erfurt, whose products included furnaces for cremating corpses.
This conference was probably an outcome of Himmler’s July 1942 orders
calling for an expansion of the capacity for exterminating Jews at KL
Auschwitz. Instead of being buried in mass graves, the bodies of the people
murdered in the gas chambers were henceforth to be burned. During the
discussion it was decided to build a second crematorium based on the sys-
tem of five three-retort furnaces (the future crematorium Ill) and the in-
stalling of crematorium furnaces next to bunkers I and 11. They are defined
in this document as ‘bathhouses for special operations’ (Badeanstalten flr
Sonderaktionen). The decision to build new furnaces adjacent to the bun-
kers was revised several weeks later, and it was determined that the
equipment for burning corpses would be placed in newly designed facilities
(later crematoria IV and V).” (p. 70)

This absolutely untenable claim has already been abundantly refuted by me in
two other studies (2004b, pp. 66-71; 2019, pp. 186-190). Here | will merely
summarize the three key points of my arguments. First | quote the crucial pas-
sage of this document:®2

“Regarding the installation of 2 three-muffle furnaces each at the ‘bathing
facilities for special operations’ it was proposed by engineer Priifer that
the furnaces be diverted from an already completed shipment to Mogilev
[in White Russia], and the administrative director, who was at the SS Main
Office of Economic Administration in Berlin, was immediately informed of
this by telephone and asked to make further arrangements. ”
First of all, the text does not explicitly state that there were two such bathing
facilities. If it was planned to install two furnaces at each of these “bathing fa-
cilities,” the two three-muffle furnaces originally ordered for the PoW camp
would have sufficed for only one “bathing facility,” but no document men-
tions a further order for three-muffle furnaces .

81 RGVA, 502-1-313, p. 159.
52 RGVA, 502-1-313, p. 159; see Mattogno/Deana 2015, vol. 1, p. 233, for the full text and context.
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Next, in August 1942 no structure existed bearing the name “bathing facili-
ties for special operations” or any similar term. None of the buildings already
erected or under construction had anything whatsoever to do with “bathing fa-
cilities.” And this, even though for this month we know exactly all the struc-
tures that existed at Birkenau; we know when they were ordered, when their
construction began, what their number and their name was, what their extent
of completion was, and where they were located. This information is con-
tained in the “Construction schedule 1942. Month reported: August”®® and the
plan of Birkenau dated 15 August 1942 (Pressac 1989, p. 209). These docu-
ments obviously do not mention the phantasmagorical “bunkers” of Birkenau
either.

These “bathing facilities” don’t show up in any project of the Auschwitz-
Birkenau Camp, in any construction report, in any plan or map, which demon-
strates that these facilities were only in a planning stage at best. This is addi-
tional proof that they could have had nothing to do with “Bunkers” 1 and 2,
which were supposedly already in operation in August of 1942,

My third point is that no document shows that the “special operations”
were homicidal gassing events. As | have shown in my specific study, these
operations referred to the treatment of Jewish transports in general (Sonder-
transporte = special transports) with all related operations, like registration,
disinfestation and admission of deportees (2004b, pp. 60-87).

Finally, while there are “concordant” documents mentioning “bathing fa-
cilities” and crematoria in the context of sanitation and health care (2019, pp.
136-140), there is not a single document mentioning them in a criminal con-
text. I will elaborate on the actual objects which these “bathing facilities” most
likely refer to when commenting on the authors’ “Introduction.”

[11] Document 11 (p. 75)
The authors present it as follows:

“Work card for the electricians’ Kommando from August 22, 1942, con-
cerning the installation for the Sonderkommando of an aboveground power
line 200 m in length and a power wire 600 m in length to 19 burning sites
(19 Brennstellen). The document refers to the beginning of the burning of
corpses retrieved from the mass graves. The power line was associated
with the necessity of illuminating the area where the burning of corpses
went on all day, and also at night.” (p. 74)

The English text translates the German term “Brennstellen” as “burning sites”,

while the Polish text uses the words “miejsc spaleniskowych”, which is crema-

tion sites (since “spalenie” means cremation when dealing with corpses).

8 RGVA, 502-1-22, pp. 40f.
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Here the authors commit a major translation blunder. “Brennstelle” is in
fact a German technical term referring in general to a point for connecting
lighting fixtures or other electrical loads (electrical outlet).

This document is so “new” that | mentioned it already in 2001 (p. 140;
Engl.: 2004b, p. 102, fn. 358). The archival reference is RGVA, 502-1-316, p.
34. This is a work report (Arbeitskarte) of the inmate electrician detail (El-
ektriker-Kommando) for Order No. 1888 of 22 August 1942 regarding the
construction site of structure no. 20 at Birkenau. The text states:

“For installing of the special unit Birkenau BW 20 PoW camp, the follow-
ing work is to be carried out: installation and supply line for the special
unit consisting of: 19 lighting outlets, 1 supply line 200 m overhead line
and 600 m wire 4 x 10.”

The work started on 20 August and was done on the 22nd, requiring 60 spe-
cialist man-hours and 60 unskilled man-hours.

The authors do not show the reverse of the document, which states: “The
material was obtained directly from the construction office” followed by the
number of inmate labor hours used and the total costs of 6 RM.5* An assign-
ment sheet no. 1888 also exists from the same date and addressed to the “in-
mate electricians.” It contains the same text as the work report.%®

It is unclear which Sonderkommando the two documents refer to, and the
way they are phrased does not help to elucidate it either: it speaks of installa-
tion “of the” and “for the” Sonderkommando.

Fact is that the document refers to BW 20 of the PoW Camp, which was the
Kraftstromanlage, the high-voltage power system, hence the Sonderkomman-
do mentioned in the document was not linked to the legendary “bunkers.”

The authors’ interpretation is intentionally misleading, because the docu-
ment clearly says that “19 lighting outlets” were part of the work the electri-
cians had to carry out, not the places where they had to work, so here the au-
thors are committing an unambiguous fraud.

One last observation. The authors state that the “power line was associated
with the necessity of illuminating the area where the burning of corpses went
on all day, and also at night.” Such a conclusion is unfounded, because the
document does not mention at all any floodlights necessary for illumination. If
and when such an illumination was requested, the respective “work report”
stated this clearly, as for example in the case of Crematorium II. On 20 No-
vember 1942, the Central Construction Office drafted a “work report” for Or-
der No. 98/291 which stated:®®

4 RGVA, 502-1-316, p. 34a.
% RGVA, 502-1-316, p. 33. See DOCUMENT 4.
% RGVA, 502-2-8, pp. 1-1a. See DOCUMENT 5.
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“Concerning: Crematorium Il — BW No. 30 in PoW camp the following
work has to be carried out: construction illumination in Crematorium II,
as well as adjusting the floodlights for night shift // guard detail.”

The document’s reverse lists the required material, including electric wire
(Leitung), floodlights (Scheinwerfer) and incandescent bulbs (Gluhlampe).

[12] Document 12 (p. 77)
This is page 113 of an inmate-labor-deployment register. The authors declare:

“Entry no. 1131 of August 22, 1942 mentions the receipt of a request to as-

sign 50 additional prisoners to the Sonderkommando (Verstdrkung des

Sonderkdo. um 50 Héftlingen [sic]). This is further confirmation of the ex-

pansion of the tasks envisioned for this labor detail in the third week of

August 1942, when the recovery of bodies from the mass graves and the

burning on pyres began.” (p. 76)
This interpretation is also utterly unfounded. The document is subdivided into
eight columns, only seven of which are filled in:

1) “Lfd. Nr.,” serial number: 1131

2) “Eingangs-Datum,” date of receipt: 20 August 1942

3) “Aktenzeichen,” file reference (ohne)

4) “von wem,” from whom: administration of inmate property (Gefange-
nen-Eigentumsverwaltung)

5) “Inhalt,” contents: “reinforcement of special unit by 50 inmates” (Ver-
starkung des Sonderkommandos um 50 Haftlinge)

6) “Sachbearbeiter,” responsible clerk: Klapper

7) “Weitergeleitet an,” forwarded to: “labor service” (Arbeitsdienst).
Clearly, then, on 20 August 1942 the administration of inmate property re-
quested the augmentation of its special unit by 50 inmates, all this in keeping
with the normal practice of the camp’s labor service. That is, these 50 inmates
were part of the camp’s normal labor pool, so that the same considerations ap-
ply here as I have explained in relation to Document 9. The inmates’ property,
which had been seized by the camp administration on the inmates’ arrival,
were called “Effekten” (personal effects). Their sorting and cleaning, as | will
show with my comments to Document 31, was carried out by a dedicated
Sonderkommando, which in fact consisted of 50 detainees. It has nothing to do
with any sinister activities.

[13] Document 13 (p. 79)

This is travel order (Fahrbefehl) no. 7 of 7 September 1942 for a five-ton
truck. The authors stated about it:

“The purpose of the trip is listed as the delivery of wood from Radostowi-
Ce. In that locality, as well as in Miedzyrzecze (Messersitz), Stara Wies
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(Altdorf), and Kobior (Kobier) on the grounds of the Pszczyna forestry of-
fice (Oberforstamt Pless), there were prisoner Kommandos (small sub-
camps would later be established there) tasked with gathering branches
and scrap wood used for burning corpses in Birkenau.” (p. 78)

The only information which the Auschwitz Museum has on Radostowice (in
German Radostowitz) originates from statements of a former detainee who
worked there between late 1941 and January-February 1943. Piotr Setkiewicz
reported the essentials. According to this, the detainees in that labor detail
were of all nationalities, but mostly Jews. They worked from 7 am to 5 pm.
The work consisting of clearing out young deciduous trees was carried out
along four lines of woodland, each 750 meters long, called G, H, J and K.
They cut down especially deciduous trees, like oaks and birches, because
these allegedly burned better when green. At the end of the work day, trucks
came in the evening which loaded up the freshly cut wood and brought it to
Birkenau (Setkiewicz 2010, pp. 147f.).

At the beginning of his article, Setkiewicz tries to put the document in
question in the historical context of the alleged origins of open-air cremations
at Auschwitz. After referring to the cremation order allegedly issued by
Himmler during his visit to Auschwitz on 17 and 18 July 1942, he writes
(ibid., pp. 140f.):

“News of the intention to cremate corpses from mass graves in Birkenau
reached Kurt Priifer early, the engineer of Topf & S6hne company, be-
cause on 21 August 1942 he proposed to use for this purpose two field
cremation furnaces. His proposal was rejected very quickly by the SS,
however, who opted instead for the cheaper and safer solution as used at
the extermination camp at Chefmno upon Ner — the cremation of corpses
on pyres. Hoss put the Rapportfiihrer of the Auschwitz camp, SS-Unter-
sturmflhrer Franz Hossler, in charge of carrying out that task.

The cremation of corpses in pits or on pyres began at Birkenau probably

around the turn of August to September, initially using firewood stock

(wood waste), but later, around 7-8 September, also systematically by be-

ginning to bring in wood from outside. This results from the analysis of da-

ta on truck departures sent from the camp to places that are located within
the large forest areas in Tychy, Zory and Pszczyna.

Trucks with 5 tons of payload headed to Radostowice at Pszczyna on 7, 8

and 9 September. The purpose given for the trip was: ‘Abholung von Holz,

Holztransport’ (pick up wood, transport of wood).

We need to understand that at that time no one at the SS camp garrison ini-

tially had any experience in the construction of cremation pyres, and not

even written instructions existed about it. For this reason, problems arose
regarding the cremation of corpses during the initial period of open-air
cremations in Birkenau: either the cremations lasted too long, or the con-
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sumption of wood was too high. Hoss therefore had to recognize that the
difficulties were so serious that in mid-September he decided to stop the
operation and to make a trip to the extermination center at Chefmno upon
Ner in order to inquire about the corpse cremation methods used there. ”

This is an entirely fictitious historical reconstruction, invented in order to try
to iron out the insuperable timing disparities arising from the previous ortho-
dox version of the genesis of open-air cremations at Auschwitz.

Setkiewicz infers the start date of these cremations from a “letter from the
Auschwitz Camp” dated 29 August 1942, which relates this fanciful story
(Marczewska/Wazniewski 1968, p. 43):

“Most terrible are the mass executions in gas chambers especially de-
signed for this purpose. There are two of them, and they can hold 1,200
people. In them, bathrooms with showers are installed, from which, alas,
gas flows instead of water. In this way especially entire transports of peo-
ple are killed who are left clueless. They are told that they will take a bath,
they are even given towels — already 300,000 people have perished this
way. Once they were buried in mass graves; now they [the bodies] are
burned outdoors in specially dug pits [Kiedys zakopywano w rowach, dzis
palg na wolnym powietrzu, w rowach specjalnie wykopanych]. Death oc-
curs by suffocation, because blood streamed from nose and mouth. ”

Hence, if the first documented transport of firewood from outside the camp ar-
rived at Auschwitz on September 7 — ponders Setkiewicz — then wood stored
inside the camp must have been used prior to that. This is merely a conjecture,
because nothing in the above-quoted letter confirms the accuracy of this alle-
gation.

The alleged difficulties encountered during the initial stage of outdoor
cremation are only a puerile trick, devoid even of anecdotal support, in order
to account for HOss’s visit to the field furnaces (Felddfen) of Operation Rein-
hardt on 16 September 1942. But here the contradiction persists, because
Setkiewicz does not explain why the commandant of Auschwitz, after inspect-
ing these field furnaces, returned to Auschwitz yet kept the cremation system
in place (on the surface or in pits) which, according to the Polish historian,
had presented such difficulties that they induced Héss to inspect these furnac-
es in the first place. As | mentioned above, the travel permission of 15 Sep-
tember 1942 authorizing Hoss’s trip explicitly states:®’

“Travel permit for passenger car from Au. to Litzmannstadt [L6dz] and

back for inspecting the experimental station for field furnaces Operation

Reinhard is granted herewith for 16 Sept. [19]42.”

If we consider the reference in SS-Untersturmfihrer Ertl’s file memo of 21
August 1942 to Prifer’s presence at Auschwitz on 19 and 20 August and to

57 AGK, NTN, 94, p. 170. Reproduced in Mattogno 2008, p. 85.
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his proposal for the crematoria, Setkiewicz’s reconstruction appears gro-
tesque: Despite having at his disposal one of the best German cremation spe-
cialists — i.e. Prifer — Hoss is said to have struggled to find merely crude and
improvised solutions. Then he allegedly sought advice from Blobel, who,
when it comes to outdoor cremations, knew just as much about it as Hoss.

For the three travel orders mentioned by Setkiewicz, dated 7, 8 and 9 Sep-
tember 1942, he gives as reference “APMA-B. D-AUI-4 / 29-31, Fahrbefehl
Volume 1 pp. 671-673” (Setkiewicz 2010, note 5, p. 140). This suggests that
the Auschwitz Museum is in possession of at least two volumes of these doc-
uments, and that the first one has at least 673 pages. This Polish historian nev-
ertheless mentions only the three above-mentioned documents, which there-
fore must be the only ones known within the collection of documents for
1942. Since Document 13 speaks of a five-ton truck with trailer (mit Anhang-
er), even if we assume three loads of 10 tons each, the total amount of wood
brought to the camp (the document does not specify that the destination was
Birkenau) would be 30 tons, enough for the cremation of merely some 100
corpses.® Following Hoss’s statement, Czech states that as of 3 December
1942 107,000 corpses had been cremated outdoors (Czech 1990, p. 277). In
this case, (107,000 corpses x 320 kg/corpse =) 34,240 tons of fresh wood
would have been required for their cremation, which is the equivalent of 3,424
trips of one five-ton truck with a trailer. This means that the collection of trav-
el orders should contain at least hundreds of travel orders for hauling wood,
not just three! I will return to that issue in Chapter 12 of Part Two.

The premise of the authors’ (and Setkiewicz’s) interpretation of Document
13 is that transporting firewood to Auschwitz served exclusively the crema-
tion of corpses, but this is a naive and unfounded assumption. We know that
the SS men who lived with their families near the camp routinely received
supplies of firewood. For example, Garrison Order no. 55/43 of 15 December
1943 mandates the following (Frei et al. 2000, p. 381):

“Considering the extraordinary difficulties in supplying firewood, it is or-

dered hereby that the households of SS members get only two loads of

wood delivered during the calendar year 1 Jan. 1944 — 31 Dec. 1944. For
the month of December there will be no more supplies. Since firewood is

allowed to be used only for firing up, and in the Reich 10 families receive 1

cubic meter [of wood], one absolutely has to make do with the allocated

quantity, which is very generous anyway.”

8 Since these are said to have been fresh corpses, | assume a consumption of 2.82 kg dry wood per 1
kg of organic matter, equivalent to 5.36 kg of green wood, and with Robert Jan van Pelt an aver-
age weight of the bodies of 60 kg. (See Mattogno/Kues/Graf 2015, vol. I, pp. 1111, 1286f.). This
results in a consumption of about 320 kg of fresh wood per corpse, so the 30 tons of green wood
would be enough for the cremation of less than 100 corpses.
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Nothing, therefore, rules out that the three wood transports mentioned above
served for heating family homes.

[14] Document 14 (p. 81)

This is the well-known report “Visit of SS-Obergruppenfihrer Pohl on 23
Sept. 1942” written by the head of the Central Construction Office Bischoff.*°

Among the various sites visited by Pohl (head of the SS-WVHA), there is
this: “Station 2 of Aktion Reinhard.” In their comments, the authors simply
highlight this entry without any explanation. In their Introduction, however,
they argue that this “Station 2 of Aktion Reinhard” refers to “Bunker 2,” a
conjecture already proposed by Bertrand Perz and Thomas Sandkuhler. | have
already refuted this imaginative interpretation in another study, where | dis-
cussed the document in question (2008, pp. 16-21). This document contains
another important reference to the “Aktion Reinhard”: “disinfestation and
storage of personal belongings/Aktion Reinhard.” | therefore concluded that
this term referred to the so-called “Kanada I,” that is structure BW 28, which
was called “barracks for delousing and personal effects” (“Entlausungs- und
Effektenbaracken”). This is confirmed by the report on Pohl’s visit (see Doc-
ument 27), which identifies the “disinfestation and storage of personal belong-
ings/Aktion Reinhard” with “delousing chamber and personal effects ware-
houses (resettlement of Jews),” as | will explain in my comments on Docu-
ment 27.

The “Station 2 of Aktion Reinhard” was a huge storage facility for inmate
belongings. It was called “Station 2” because “Station 1,” the main ware-
house, was precisely the above-mentioned BW 28. This interpretation is con-
firmed by the fact that even in May-June 1944 in Birkenau there was a
“Sonderkommando Reinhardt” in which 2,505 inmates worked on 19 June.”

[15] Document 15 (p. 83)

This is a “Detail of a March 1943 map showing the expansion of the Birkenau
Camp.” The authors elaborate:
“Bunker 11, together with three adjacent wooden barracks, is visible. One
of them is crossed out, probably as a result of the updating of the map in
1944, when two barracks used for undressing by the Jews doomed to death
in the gas chamber were erected at the same place where three barracks,
subsequently dismantled, had stood in 1942.” (p. 82)
The document in question is the “Development Map for the Erection and Ex-
tension of the Concentration and POW Camp, Map No. 2215,” dated March

8 RGVA, 502-1-19, p. 86.
" “Ubersicht {iber Anzahl und Einsatz der weiblichen Héftlinge des Konzentrationslagers
Auschwitz O/S. 19. Juni 1943.” GARF, 7021-108-33, p. 153.
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1943, a section enlargement of which | published in my study on the “bun-
kers” of Birkenau (2004a, Doc. 8, p. 205), along with other similar maps
which the authors ignore. | reiterate and expand the respective discussion of
this issue as laid out in my study (ibid., p. 40).

This master plan shows the complete map of the Birkenau Camp. To the
north of Construction Section (BA=Bauabschnitt) Ill, just outside the camp
enclosure, the houses 586, 587 and 588 are visible, together with other houses
further north (H. 581, 582, 583, 584, 585, 589, 590) as well as the group of
houses from the former village of Birkenau to the east of BA Il (DOCUMENT
6). The house that orthodox historiography today calls “Bunker 1” (the one
closest to the camp, located further down in DOCUMENT 10 in the Appendix)
and the other five houses to the west of it (two of which were located next to
the road bifurcation further west), all without ID number, because they had
been demolished. The septic tank (Erdklarbecken), as is apparent from a com-
parison of my DOCUMENTS 10 and 16a, was to be built to the south (left) of
the vertical road visible in DOCUMENT 10 and barely visible in DOCUMENT
16a, while the group of four buildings (including the alleged “Bunker 1) was
north of it (right), so that there was no overlap between the septic tank and the
alleged “Bunker 1.” Therefore, if the above four buildings do not appear in
Plan 2215 of March 1943, then this is precisely because they had been demol-
ished.

To the west of the Zentralsauna, however, the house still appears which
today is known as “Bunker 2” by orthodox historiography, as well as another
house predating the camp in front of it (to which I will return later), both
without identification numbers, which had not yet been demolished. Near
them on the map, the Soviets have crudely sketched in three rectangles sup-
posed to represent the alleged undressing barracks of “Bunker 2,” which,
however, should have been only two in number, not three.”” Realizing their
mistake, the Soviets struck out the third barrack with three strokes of the pen!
(See DOCUMENT 7.)

That those “barracks” are indeed the work of the Soviets can be seen above
all from their drafting technique. In the drawings of barracks done by the Cen-
tral Construction Office” the lines forming the outer edges intersect crosswise
at each corner, while those drawn by the Soviets form a closed angle and
show, moreover, a thicker pen stroke. Furthermore, there is another version of
this drawing, identical except for the fact that the “septic tank” was changed
into a “sewage plant” (Klaranlage). On this map, the two houses mentioned

I RGVA, 502-2-93, p. 1.

2 This applies to the first claimed operational phase of “Bunker 2”; in mid-May 1944, when it is
said to have resumed activity, three barracks were installed there according to F. Miller (1979, pp.
211f).

8 The map was drawn by detainee no. 471, the Polish draftsman Alfred Brzybylski.
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above appear to the west of the central sauna, — again without an identification
number — but there is no trace of any barracks."

It is true that the Central Construction Office drew its maps in several cop-
ies, which were then used for the necessary updates. The upgraded map be-
came in turn an official document, sanctioned by its registration in the issu-
ance ledger, which was confirmed by the stamp “Entered in map issuance
ledger.” Both maps in question bear this stamp; the one on which the Soviets
drew the barracks has the stamp “Entered in map issuance ledger under no.
3373 / 10 Sep 43”; the other has the stamp “Entered in map issuance ledger
under no. 9288 / 13 Feb 44” (see DOCUMENTS 7a & 8a). Once recorded in the
issuance ledger, changes to the two maps in question, like all the others, were
no longer permitted. But since the barracks of the elusive “Bunker 2”” were al-
legedly erected in May 1944, it is clear that, for chronological reasons, neither
of these plans could have been updated to show the claimed barracks, so that
the authors’ explanation is totally inconsistent with the facts.

In this context they committed a serious omission. In the area of “Bunker
2,” both maps show two pre-existing houses, of which the top one (west) is
said to have been “Bunker 2,” but for none of the witnesses the second house
existed at all. This is also true for all the descriptions of “Bunker 2” given by
the key witness Szlama Dragon:’

“We were led into a forest where there was a brick cottage with a straw-
thatched roof. The windows were walled up. The door leading into the
house had a metal plate with the inscription ‘Hochspannung — Lebens-
gefahr’ [high-voltage — danger to life]. At about 30 to 40 meters from this
cottage stood two wooden barracks. On the other side of the house there
were four trenches, 30 m long, 7 m wide, and 3 m deep. ”

There is no reference to a second building. The authors of course know better
than to even address the fact that a second building is shown on both maps.
Another key element also appears on these two maps which the authors don’t
address at all. | proffer the necessary explanations which | have given in my
study on the “bunkers” of Birkenau.

From 31 March 1942 forward, each site of the construction project Con-
centration Camp Auschwitz was assigned an identification number preceded
by the letters BW. All administrative acts related to a Bauwerk had to be
marked with the reference “BW 21/7b (Bau) 13,” in which 21/7b identified the

74 «Bebauungsplan fiir den Auf- u. Ausbau des Konzentrationslagers u. Kriegsgefangenenlagers,
Plan Nr. 2215” dated March 1943. RGVA, 502-1-94, p. 2; section enlargement in Mattogno
2004a, p. 205, Document 9. See DOCUMENT 8 in the Appendix.

™ Interrogation of Sz. Dragon by investigating Judge Jan Sehn on 10 & 11 May 1945. Héss Trial,
vol. 11, p. 103.
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account, “(Bau) 13” the title.”® For the prisoner-of-war camp (the Birkenau
Camp), such dispositions had already come into force in February 1942.”

During the course of the construction of the Auschwitz-Birkenau Camp,
the local population was evacuated;’® many houses that stood in the way of the
plans of the SS were demolished, but countless others located within the “area
of interest” of the camp remained intact and were incorporated into the admin-
istration of the camp and entrusted to the SS New Construction Office (later to
become SS Construction Office and finally SS Central Construction Office).
Some, though very few, houses were neither demolished nor incorporated into
the camp administration.

The SS New Construction Office carried out a census of the incorporated
houses and gave a serial number to each one. Numbering proceeded by zones,
and one of the last zones was that of the Auschwitz railroad station. The Feb-
ruary 1942 report of the surveying section at SS New Construction Office
mentions the following activity:"

“Numbering of the houses between Alter and Neuer Bahnhofstrasse. ”

For example, in the former village of Brzezinka (Birkenau), the SS New Con-
struction Office incorporated some forty houses, to which it assigned the
numbers from 600 to 640 (see DOCUMENT 6).

On September 10, 1944, the Central Construction Office renumbered the
houses to reflect a renaming of the streets.®

All work on the houses was planned and carried out by the above office,
which retained responsibility for maintaining them even after the work had
been completed and the building had been handed over to the camp admin-
istration. For example, in October 1944 the Central Construction Office took
on the inspection and repair of the damage caused by the U.S. aerial bom-
bardment of September 13, 1944, creating for this purpose a special Bauwerk
no. 167.81 Among the structures destroyed or damaged were 18 buildings®

6 “Aufteilung der Bauwerke (BW) fur die Bauten, Aussen- und Nebenanlagen des Bauvorhabens
Konzentrationslager Auschwitz O/S,” March 31, 1942. RGVA, 502-1-267, p. 3.

" “Baufristenplan fir Bauvorhaben: Kriegsgefangenenlager der Waffen SS Auschwitz” of March 9,
1942, for the month of February; RGVA, 502-1-22, p. 9. “Aufteilung der Bauwerke (BW) fur die
Bauten, Aussen- und Nebenanlagen des Bauvorhabens ‘Lager II” Auschwitz,” copy written by Po-
les without indication of date; AGK, NTN-94, p. 154.

8 As early as March 1941, 1,600 Poles and 500 Jews had been evacuated from the Auschwitz “area
of interest” and moved to the Government General; GARF, 7021-108-32, p. 30.

9 “Tatigkeitsbericht der Tiefbau- und Vermessungsabteilung. Februar 1942,” March 2, 1942;

RGVA, 502-1-24, p. 416.

“Aufstellung. Umnumerierung von Hausnummern auf dem westlichen Sola-Ufer (Planungsgelan-

de fur Neustadt-West),” RGVA, 502-2-95, pp. 22-25. (Mattogno 2004a, Document 3, p. 197).

8L «Bauantrag fir die Instandsetzungsarbeiten an den durch Bomben beschadigten Gebauden und
Aussenanlagen im Interessengebiet des Konzentrationslagers Auschwitz. BW. 167;” the document
contains an explanatory report (Erlauterungsbericht) and a cost estimate (Kostenvoranschlag).
RGVA, 502-1-159, pp. 80-90.

82 Buildings no. 134, 135, 136, 138, 128, 129, 116, 117, 118, 119, 120, 157A, 157B, 157C, 157E,
157D, 125.

80
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and 63 houses.® For each house and each building the Central Construction
Office made a damage assessment and a cost estimate for repairs.®* In the vil-
lage of Broschkowitz some thirty houses were set aside for those who had
been displaced.®

Some existing Polish houses were incorporated into the construction pro-
ject Concentration Camp Auschwitz and were given the number of the corre-
sponding Bauwerk. For example, Houses 130, 132, 150, 151, 152 and 171 be-
came part of BW 36B (housing for officers and NCOs).®

From the administrative point of view, the creation of a Bauwerk enabled
the accomplishment of a complex series of bureaucratic steps, embodied in the
drafting of a number of documents: besides the sketch of the location, the con-
struction specification, and the cost estimate already mentioned, they included
a drawing, an explanatory report, a transfer to the camp administration, and a
notice of completion. For each Bauwerk, it was moreover necessary to keep a
cash ledger in which all work done on the Bauwerk and the accompanying
payments were recorded, and which reflected, so to speak, the administrative
life of a Bauwerk (see Mattogno 2015, pp. 38 and 45). The construction or the
modification was carried out by the Central Construction Office, using either
its own detainees or civilian companies called in from the outside. Ordinary
jobs were done by the workshops of the Central Construction Office, which
had at its disposal a number of Kommandos of skilled workmen (blacksmiths,
painters, carpenters, bricklayers, plumbers, etc.).

Turning back to the two maps no. 2215 of March 1943, they show north
and east of BA Il fifty houses, each of which is marked with a number pre-
ceded by the letter “H” (= Haus, house). It is precisely these pre-existing
houses which had been taken over by the Central Construction Office and
which were to be used for a specific purpose (mostly housing for families of
married SS officers and NCOs, but House no. 642 was used as a school). The
two houses west of the Zentralsauna, one of which is said to have been “Bun-
ker 2” (right next to the three Soviet-added barracks), don’t have any num-
bers. This means they were neither demolished nor taken over by the Central
Construction Office, so administratively they did not exist and could not be
used for anything.

8 Houses no. 35, 210, 36, 207, 891, 103, 115, 105, 56, 53, 52, 50, 49, 47, 44, 41, 43, 40, 27, 28, 33,
34,16, 875, 6, 7, 8, 142, 131, 132, 133, 203, 105, 118, 118a, 149, 156, 126, 45, 25, 54, 139, 142,
46,78,1,5,9,121, 21, 116, 117, 120, 122, 123, 125, 129, 130, 150, 152, 163, 170, 208.

84 «Kostenvoranschlag fir die Instandsetzungsarbeiten an den durch Bomben beschadigten Gebau-
den und Aussenanlagen im Interessengebiet des Konzentrationslagers Auschwitz. BW 167.”
RGVA, 502-1-159, pp. 82-90.

8 «Lageplan tber die ausgebauten Wohnhéauser fiir Bombenbeschadigte BW. 166. (Eingetragen im
Planausgabebuch unter Nr. 18125/29.7.44).” RGVA, 502-2-50, p. 83.

8 «Baubericht fiir den Monat Marz 1942.” RGVA, 502-1-24, p. 385; “Tatigkeits- bezw. Baubericht
flir den Monat Mérz 1942” by SS Schiitze Jothann (Abteilung Hochbau). RGVA, 502-1-24, p.
398.
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There is another important document which also shows that the house la-
belled by orthodox Holocaust historians as “Bunker 1” wasn’t taken over by
the Central Construction Office. This is the “Situation map of the area of in-
terest Auschwitz Concentration Camp No. 1733” of 5 October 1942. Four
buildings are shown on this map east of Construction Sector Ill of Birkenau,
which were the homes of Jozefa Wisinska, her uncle J6zef Harmata, and two
barns.®” The first from the bottom (east) is said to have been transformed into
“Bunker 1.” Again, it has no identification number, so at that time (October
1942) houses and barns existed (like the two buildings to the west of them,
next to the road fork), but they had not been taken over by the Central Con-
struction Office, so they, too, were non-existent, administratively speaking.
Hence, without identification number and Bauwerk number, an existing house
could not be remodeled for anything, because it did not exist neither for plan-
ning nor for accounting purposes. The house relabeled to “Bunker 1” thus re-
quired these essential bureaucratic acts, such as in the case of Bauwerk 83,
which was House no. 184 used for sanitary purposes for the troops.

In my study of the “bunkers” in Birkenau, | presented an even more ger-
mane example: a comparison with another pre-existing home which was taken
over and remodeled by the then SS New Construction Office Auschwitz: No.
44, an “existing building shell,” which was rebuilt as BW 36C and assigned as
living quarters to SS-Sturmbannfiihrer César, head of agricultural units. Alt-
hough | have not investigated this Bauwerk in detail, it appears in 23 docu-
ments in my possession, invariably with its Bauwerk number.®

The “Explanatory report on the temp.[orary] expansion of Concentration
Camp Auschwitz O/S,” written by Bischoff on 15 July 1942, explicitly men-
tions BW 35 as a “temporary school with kindergarten” which was obtained
from the “remodeling of an existing residential house.” This report describes
the work done and costs incurred in detail.®

[16] Document 16 (p. 85)

This is a work report (Arbeitskarte) of the inmate electrician detail regarding
Order No. 636 of 9 July 1943. The authors maintain that it contains

“an order to reroute the electrical wire at bunker 11 (Sonderkommando) in
connection with the expansion of sewage treatment facilities on the

grounds of construction segment 11.” (p. 84)

This is the document’s text;*

87 Mattogno 2004a, pp. 165f. See DOCUMENTS 9 & 10.
% 1bid., pp. 36-39.

9 RGVA, 502-1-223, pp. 7, 17.

% RGVA, 502-1-316, p. 68.

® ®
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“Fir Installation Sonderkommando-Birkenau ist folgende Arbeit auszufiih-
ren: Zuleitungskabel zum Sonderkommando verlegen/ wegen Einbau prov.
Erdklarbecken im B.A.Il.”

“For installation special unit Birkenau the following work is to be carried
out: install supply wire to special unit/due to construction [of] temp.[orary]
septic tank in Construction Sector I1.”

Here, the authors mistranslate the German verb verlegen. It can have a number
of distinctly different meanings, depending on the context. If people or organi-
zations are concerned (patients, prisoners, army units, or companies, institu-
tions etc.), verlegen means to move, transfer, relocate, redeploy, even to evac-
uate; however, if items are concerned, this verb simply means to fit, lay down
(grass turfs, carpets and rugs) or to mount, to install (cables, wires, pipes,
tubes, ducts).” If you want to make clear that an already installed wire is to be
rerouted, as the authors suggest, that would be umverlegen or neu verlegen in
German. In other words: the document’s text does not suggest that an already
existing wire was to be moved.

Next, the back of the document, unmentioned by the authors, states that no
material was used (kein Material) and that it took 50 specialist inmate man-
hours (Haftlingsfacharbeiterstunden) at 0.40 RM per hour as well as 120 un-
skilled inmate man-hours (Haftlingshilfsarbeiterstunden), for a total of 56
RM,% with the beginning and end of the work also recorded at the end of the
work report (2 to 4 August 1943). In addition, this work report refers to the
structure BW 20 of the PoW camp (Birkenau). Jean-Claude Pressac has pub-
lished two blueprints of a “temporary septic tank,” the first of which is dated
15 June 1943, but it refers to the “sewage-treatment plant Pow Camp, Con-
struction Sector 111, BW 18” (1989, pp. 169f.), which was located north of
Crematorium V. In Birkenau such a sewage-treatment plant also existed in
Construction Sector Il (between Crematorium Ill and the Zentralsauna), as
shown for example on Map No. 1991 of the Birkenau Camp dated 17 Febru-
ary 1943 (ibid., p. 220). In August 1943 construction work was certainly car-
ried out on this treatment plant, because the “Report on the progress of work
for special measures in the PoW camp and in the Main Camp,” drawn up by
Bischoff on 13 July 1943, states the following:*®

“Temporary septic tanks for Construction Sector II. 2 pieces completely

excavated, 2 more pieces 2/3 excavated. Continued brickwork for operat-

ing footbridge and for feeder channel.”
The “Activity report of the Construction Office of the concentration camp and
agriculture” by SS-Untersturmfihrer Hans Kirschnek for the period from 1

91 Other meanings are: to misplace/mislay an item; to reschedule/postpone/adjourn an event; to pub-
lish a book, none of which is an option here.

9 RGVA, 502-1-316, p. 68a.

% RGVA, 502-1-83, p. 118.
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July to 30 September 1943, which is predated 14 September 1943, does not
mention the sewage-treatment plant of BA Il in the section dedicated to the
jobs carried out at the PoW camp Birkenau headlined “Special construction
measures.” This means that the jobs were completed by 14 September. It does
contain a reference to the treatment plant in Construction Sector BA I,
though. The plant (BW 18) consisted of four basins named E, F, H and |,
which were all marked as completed. F was finished on 11 August, and I on
23 August.** The work report of 9 July 1943 thus refers to the treatment plant
in Sector II. It is true that this plant was only a few hundred meters away from
the site of the alleged “Bunker 2,” but that does not make the authors’ inter-
pretation any less unfounded.

First, since they claim that a power wire leading to “Bunker 2 had to be
moved due to the new treatment plant (the document in question doesn’t even
hint at this), they should show whence the wire in question came, and assum-
ing that it was an overhead wire going in a straight line to the elusive “Bunker
2,” that it crossed the area of the treatment plant.

Second, the same historians at the Auschwitz Museum claim that at the
time — in July 1943 — “Bunker 2” had been decommissioned several months
ago, and that no special unit was working there at that time. For example, in
the voluminous general history on the Auschwitz Camp published by the Mu-
seum, Franciszek Piper writes (Piper 1999, p. 169):

“In the spring of 1943, gassings ceased in the two bunkers after the new
gas chambers and crematoria had been completed and were being used.
Bunker 1 and the barracks erected next to it were demolished or disassem-
bled, the local burning pits were filled in and leveled. The burning pits
near Bunker 2 were also leveled, and the barracks standing there were
dismantled, but Bunker 2 itself was left standing. In May 1944 Bunker 2
was put back into operation and used for the extermination operation of
the Hungarian Jews.”
In other words, the alleged gassings at the “bunkers” ended when the first two
crematoria of Birkenau went into operation, which was on 14 March (the
claimed “first gassing” in Crematorium Il) and 22 March (when the camp ad-
ministration took over Crematorium V). Szlama Dragon, one of the most im-
portant “eyewitnesses,” stated the following in this regard:*®
“Bunker no. 1 was dismantled completely as early as 1943. After the con-
struction of crematorium no. 2 at Brzezinka, the barracks near Bunker no.
2 were dismantled as well and the trenches filled in.”

Dragon thus confirms that the alleged homicidal activity of “Bunker 2” ceased
in March-April of 1943. It is therefore absurd to claim that a link exists be-

% RGVA, 502-1-27, pp. 7f.
% Hoss Trial, vol. 11, p. 106.
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tween this alleged “bunker” and its purported Sonderkommando on the one
hand and this document of 9 July 1943 on the other. | will comment more on
the authors’ contradictory, no-less-than-underhanded interpretations of other
documents regarding the termination of activities at the “bunkers”, the dis-
mantling of the alleged undressing barracks, and the presence of the
Sonderkommando, starting with their Document 34.

If the special unit in question was assigned to “Bunker 2”, which at that
time was no longer in use, it is incomprehensible why the power wire was on-
ly rerouted but not removed and recovered. This is all the more incomprehen-
sible because previously, on 17 April 1943, Bischoff had requested that the
barracks installed at “Sonderkommando II” be moved, a term which the au-
thors of course interpret as “Bunker 2 (see my comments on Document 32).

Finally it should be noted that this work report refers explicitly to “BW 20
KGL,” the high-voltage power system.

[17] Document 17 (pp. 87-90)

This is a report on the enlargement of the Birkenau Camp from 30 September
1943. The authors point out:

“Among the projects mentioned on the list, there is information about the
remodeling of existing residential dwellings for the purpose of carrying out
special operations there (twice: Ausbau eines vorhandenen Hauses fir
Sondermassnahmen) and the erection at each of them of three wooden bar-
racks used as undressing rooms. The projects were registered in the docu-
ments under the numbers BW33 for construction segment Il (bunker I1) and
BW33a for construction segment 111 (bunker I).” (p. 86)

If this interpretation was not deliberately done in bad faith, then it reveals an
astonishing ignorance of the pertinent historical documents.

The document does not constitute anything new nor is it unique. | repeat
here my analysis of the question which | published in my study on the “bun-
kers” of Birkenau (20044, Paragraph 3.5.2.).

“House for Special Measures”

This designation appears in two documents, rather late in the chronology of
the “bunkers”: the “Explanatory report on the construction project Concentra-
tion Camp Auschwitz O/S” of 30 September 1943, which mentions “modifica-
tion of an existing house for special measures” for BA Il and one for BA 11 at
Birkenau, and the “Cost estimate for extension of POW camp of the Waffen-
SS in Auschwitz” of 1 October 1943. Both documents also mention “3 bar-
racks for special measures” for each house. According to Fritjof Meyer, the
designation “house for special measures” is the encrypted designation of the
“punkers.”® As | have shown elsewhere (2004b, pp. 60f.), this alleged encryp-

% Meyer 2002, p. 632, note 7. This reveals that not even the authors’ interpretation is new.



CARLO MATTOGNO - CURATED LIES 81

tion actually refers to the program for the improvement of the hygienic instal-
lations of the Birkenau Camp, appropriately called “special measures for the
improvement of the hygienic installations,” which was ordered by SS-
Brigadefuhrer Kammler in May of 1943. More specifically, the barracks “for
special measures” bore the label BW 33a.

In fact, BW 33a was part of the inmate hospital projected for Construction
Sector 11 of Birkenau Camp, which confirms that it had nothing to do with the
alleged “bunkers.” In 1942, the relevant years for the claimed first operation
period of the “bunkers,” no structure had the name “House for Special
Measures,” and this is further confirmation of the fact that the two houses did
not refer at all to the alleged “bunkers.”

This is fully confirmed by the context of the document. Construction Sec-
tor 111 of the camp is in fact described there as follows:

“Construction Sector 1l1:

BW 3e 114 inmate barracks Type 501/34

BW 4c 5 household barracks

BW 4e 2 household barracks Type 260/9

BW 4f 13 storage and laundry barracks Type 260/9

BW 4f 4 storage and laundry barracks Type 501/34

BW 6¢ 4 disinfestation barracks Type VII/5

BW 7c 11 nurse barracks (Swiss bar.)

BW 12b 12 barracks f. the seriously ill 501/34

BW 12d 2 block leader barracks Type 1V/3

modification of an existing house for special measures

BW 33a 3 barracks f. special measures Type 260/9.”

The authors carefully avoid drawing attention to this context, which by itself
demolishes their senseless interpretation. For a discussion of this issue (the
design and construction of the inmate hospital in Construction Sector Il of
Birkenau) | refer the reader to my dedicated study on this topic.*’

As regards Construction Sector Il, in the Explanatory Report of 30 Sep-
tember 1943, the existing house and the three barracks for special measures
are part of BW 33, which comprised:

— 25 barracks for inmate property (Effektenbaracken) Type 260/9

— 5 barracks for inmate property Type 501/34

— modification of an existing house for special measures

— three barracks for special measures Type 260/9.%

Since the Effektenlager referred to the storage warehouses at Birkenau where
the property seized from the detainees were stored, it is evident that these
“special measures” were part of this area.

9 Mattogno 2016¢, pp. 60-72; this particular document is discussed on pp. 73f.
9% “Erliuterungsbericht zum Ausbau des Kriegsgefangenenlagers der Waffen-SS in Auschwitz 0/S.”
RGVA, 502-2-60, p. 81. See DOCUMENT 11.
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As stated above, this raises another problem which the authors ignore
completely. If, as they claim, “Bunker 2” was BW 33 and “Bunker 1” BW
33a,” these references should already occur in 1942 in the copious documen-
tation on the Birkenau Camp’s construction. Yet BW 33a appears for the first
time in the explanatory report of 30 September 1943 mentioned above; BW
33, consisting merely of “30 barracks for inmate property”, appears for the
first time in a “List of structures, for buildings, exterior and auxiliary facilities
for the construction project of a prisoners-of-war camp Auschwitz, Upper Si-
lesia,” dated 9 April 1943,

It should also be kept in mind that the term “‘special measures” did not
have the sinister meaning which orthodox Holocaust historiography wants to
attribute to it. It referred to simple construction measures, in particular to
those of hygienic-sanitary character. Following SS-Brigadefihrer Kammler’s
visit to Auschwitz on 7 May 1943, a comprehensive program for the im-
provement of the camp’s hygienic and sanitary installations was launched. In
the documents this program is called either “special measures” (Sondermass-
nahme), “instant programm” (Sofortprogramm), “special construction meas-
ures” (Sonderbaumassnahmen) or even “special operation” (Sonderaktion).
On 16 May 1943, Bischoff sent a letter to Kammler with the subject “Special
measure for the improvement of sanitation facilities in the Auschwitz PoW
camp.”%

At least since 30 May 1943, Bischoff regularly sent reports to Kammler
with the subject “Construction report on the special measures in the PoW
camp.”'%% These reports are known at least until 23 November 1943.1% Start-
ing with 13 July 1943, the headline changed to “Report on the progress of
work on the special measures in the PoW camp and the Main Camp.”*%
Among the projects described stand out those related to “disinfestation facili-
ty” and the “inmate hospital” in Birkenau’s Construction Sector IT and the
“inmate hospital” in Construction Sector Ill.

In this historical and documentary context, the authors’ interpretation is
puerile, disconnected and specious, but it is also at odds with the dogmas of
orthodox historiography.

As | pointed out earlier, by 30 September 1943 “Bunker 1” is said to have
been demolished for several months and did no longer exist. How could it
therefore be “remodeled”? And what’s the point of remodeling it anyhow, if

9 Note that this is already in itself illogical, because in that case “Bunker 2 would chronologically
and administratively precede “Bunker 1,” since the letter “a” affixed to the number of a structure
would indicate a sub-structure. For example, the crematorium in the Main Camp was labeled BW
11, while BW 11a referred to the crematorium‘s new chimney.

10 RGVA, 502-1-267, p. 17.

101 RGVA, 502-1-83, p. 309.

102 RGVA, 502-1-83, p. 283.

103 RGVA, 502-1-83, p. 189.

104 RGVA, 502-1-83, p. 118.
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the same historians of the Auschwitz Museum declare that it was no longer
used? As results from the Map No. 2503 of the inmate hospital dated 18 June
1943,'% the building claimed to have been “Bunker 1” had been demolished,
and in its location now existed the sewage-treatment plant “Temp. septic tank
BW 18.71% |t follows that the “existing home” in Construction Sector I11 could
only have been one of the three homes (numbered 586, 587 and 588) which
appear on Map No. 2215 of March 1943 at the northern edge of the camp.'%’

As mentioned above, the “Development Map for the Erection and Exten-
sion of the Concentration and POW Camp, Map No. 2215” of March 1942 not
only does not confirm the existence of “Bunker 2” at Birkenau, it actually
proves that neither “Bunker 1” nor “Bunker 2 ever existed as such at all, that
is, as existing houses taken over by the Central Construction Office and re-
modeled to serve as homicidal “gas chambers.” Plus there is no paper trail at
all for any of the work that would have been required (water supply, sewerage,
construction of fences and guard towers, installation of a power line, erection
of undressing barracks, transportation of materials, installation of a field rail-
road, road works, and all the work in a more narrow sense for creating homi-
cidal gas chambers; see Mattogno 2004a, pp. 40-43).

[18] Document 18 (pp. 93-96)

This is the “Cost estimate for extension of POW camp of the Waffen-SS in
Auschwitz” of 1 October 1943 which | already mentioned in my discussion of
Document 17. The content is identical. In the section about Construction Sec-
tor 11, the following text is written beneath BW 33:1%®
“Remodeling of an existing house for special measures: (blueprint not
available)
3 pcs. barracks for special measures (Type 260/9) (drawing no. 5)”
In the section about Construction Sector 11, in this document labeled “inmate
hospital,” we find almost the identical text:*®°
“Remodeling of an existing house for special measures: (blueprint not
available)
3 ps. barracks for special measures (Type 260/9) (drawing no. 5)”
The authors dwell on the statement “blueprint not available” and claim:

“In both cases it was indicated (in what was an exception to the usual
practice) that no plans had been drawn up for the buildings (Zeichnung

105 RGVA, 502-2-93, p. 2.

106 «“K.L. Auschwitz — Bauabschnitt 111 Haftlingslazarett u. Quarantane-Abt.” RGVA, 502-2-110, p.
36. See DOCUMENT 12.

107 «Bebauungsplan fir den Auf- u. Ausbau des Konzentrationslagers u. Kriegsgefangenenlagers,
Plan Nr. 2215” of March 1943. RGVA, 502-1-94, p. 2. See DOCUMENT 13.

108 RGVA, 502-2-60, p. 86.

109 1hid., p. 88.
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nicht vorhanden). This was surely in order to reduce to a minimum the
number of people who knew the true purpose of the investment.” (p. 92)

This explanation is unfounded and illogical. The most sensible thing that can
be inferred from this document is that the Central Construction Office had not
yet ordered the staff of the surveying department to draft blueprints for the
two houses. For this reason the cost estimate is only approximate for both
houses: “z.b.N. RM 14242” (z.b.N. = zur besten N&herung — best approxima-
tion).

As | explained earlier, according to the historians at the Auschwitz Muse-
um, “Bunker 1” had been demolished at the end of March 1943, hence it did
not exist anymore in September 1943. BW 33a, which is the structure referred
to with the entry “remodeling of an existing house,” could therefore not have
been “Bunker 1.”

The blueprint for the house merely served to estimate the cost of the work.
In the cost estimate in question, this calculation is based on three elements: the
surface, height and cost per cubic meter. How could a blueprint like for exam-
ple the one of House No. 647 in Budy (Mattogno 2004a, Document 5, p. 199),
with the partition wall and the ceiling height indicated, reveal “the true pur-
pose of the investment”? Here the authors merely suggest between the lines
what they are thinking, thus inviting misunderstandings: Are they suggesting
that the two houses in question were already “Bunkers” 1 and 2 at the time
when this document was created (Sept./Oct. 1943)? The question should be
rhetorical in nature, but the answer is not obvious at all. In fact, if the answer
is yes — as it should be according to the orthodox narrative — then what were
the two houses to be remodeled into? If “special measures” was a “code word”
for homicidal gassings, the authors’ interpretation would be senseless, because
then two already existing gassing facilities would be converted into ... gassing
facilities! Conversely, if in September 1943 it was planned to convert two ex-
isting houses into gassing facilities, they could have had no relationship what-
soever to the elusive “bunkers,” because the Auschwitz Museum has never
claimed that, in addition to the two legendary “bunkers,” there existed two
other gassing facilities. Hence, the inevitable consequence is that the criminal
interpretation of these two documents (17 and 18) is documentarily and histor-
ically untenable. Also because, as we shall see below (comments on Docu-
ment 36), the authors overlook a key element in the correct interpretation of
the document.

[19] Document 19 (p. 99)

This is part of a topographical map of 28 October 1943 titled “Topographical
survey to the west of Construction Sector I1.” The authors claim that this map
shows
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“the no longer existing forest road (Waldweg) running from the western

edge of construction segment Il to bunker II. Victims doomed to die in the

gas chamber were led along this road. In aerial reconnaissance photo-

graphs from 1944, the road is visible and ends between the barracks used

as undressing rooms.” (p. 98)
This argument is utter nonsense. Since the elusive “Bunker 2” used to be a
residential house, it is all too obvious that it was connected by a road leading
to the village of Brzezinka (Birkenau). Indeed, there were several roads. From
a 1941 map it can be gleaned that three roads radiated out from the two houses
located in the area of the alleged “Bunker 2.” One of them was the so-called
“forest road.”™® This road also appears on Map No. 2215 of March 1943
(DOCUMENT 8), where, just beyond the camp fence, the four decantation ba-
sins of the sewage-treatment plant jut out from the road.

Only the authors know what the presence of this road could possible prove.
Is the mere claim that it may have led to an alleged gassing facility supposed
to be proof for the facility’s existence? If that were so, then any Birkenau map
showing the Hauptstrasse (Main Street) of the Birkenau Camp leading to
Crematoria Il and Ill, and the B Strasse (B Street) leading to Crematoria 1V
and V,'! would prove the existence of gassing facilities. That claim is absurd.

[20] Document 20 (p. 101)

These are actually two documents. The first, a letter from the SS Garrison
Administration to the Auschwitz Central Construction Office of 18 March
1944, is about the installation of an alarm siren:
“For this purpose, we ask therefore to make available to the Camp Head-
quarters the wire — 4 x 6 m[m]? 1 KV — leading to Bunker I., Birkenau,
which is no longer needed. ”
This is followed by the Central Construction Office’s reply of 24 March 1944:

“The Central Construction Office is willing to make available to the camp
headquarters, for the sirens’ control line and on a loan basis, the wire 4 X
6 mm? which extends from the provisional supply line to Bunker I, Birke-
nau.”
The authors claim:

“This correspondence is evidence of the fact that the area where bunker |
was located was not a part of ongoing extermination operations at the
time, and the installations there were in the process of being dismantled
and put to other uses.” (p. 100)

110 RGVA 502-2-93, p. 15a. See DOCUMENT 14.
111 Especially the Central Construction Office’s Map No. 3512 of 7 February 1944, “Ab-
steckungsskizze der Wachtiirme um das K.G.L.” RGVA, 502-2-95, p. 19.
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This conjecture contradicts the orthodox version of history as defended by the
Auschwitz Museum, which is based on testimonies, according to which “Bun-
ker 1 and the barracks erected next to it were demolished or disassembled, the
local burning pits were filled in and leveled,” as | have explained when dis-
cussing Document 16. If “Bunker 1” was not demolished in 1943, then the
statement by witness Szlama Dragon that it had been must be declared false.

The fact is, however, that, although the alleged “Bunker 2” appears togeth-
er with another building next to it on the two maps “Development Map for the
Erection and Extension of the Concentration and POW Camp, Map No. 2215”
of March 1943, there is no trace of the four buildings in the area around the al-
leged location of “Bunker 1” (DOCUMENTS 6 & 8). The latter is also not in-
cluded on Map No. 2503 of the inmate hospital in BA 11l of 18 June 1943
(DOCUMENT 12). Under these circumstances, there is no doubt that in March
1944 the house called “Bunker 1” had not existed anymore for more than a
year.

Regarding the fundamental “Development Map for the Erection and Exten-
sion of the Concentration and POW Camp, Map No. 2215 another childish
trick of the authors should be noted, who cut off the right margin (= north) of
the map so as to exclude the area of “Bunker 1” (DOCUMENT 15), just so that
the reader does not notice that the same map which, according to the authors,
proves the existence of “Bunker 2 with its alleged undressing barracks actu-
ally demonstrates the non-existence of “Bunker 1” (DOCUMENT 16).

As to the electricians detail working on Order No. 1888 of 22 August 1942
(see the discussion of Document 11), setting aside the ridiculous mistransla-
tion of the term “lighting outlets” (Brennstellen) as “burning sites,” orthodox
historians should actually claim that this was the electric wire installed for
“Bunker 1,” although it would have been rather late, since this alleged gassing
facility is said to have started operations almost two months earlier. It should
be noted, however, that the wire in question had a cross section of 4 x 10
mm?2, while the one mentioned in the letter of 18 March 1944 was 4 x 6 mm2,
so it wasn’t the same wire. The authors’ interpretation of these three docu-
ments is therefore contradictory and moreover unfounded.

Document 20 shows, however, that in March 1944 there existed a “Bunker
I” in Birkenau: what was it? Was this the alleged gassing facility?

This can be ruled out for various reasons.

First of all, as | stated above, the structure called “Bunker 1” by orthodox
historians was demolished and no longer existed after March-April 1943, so in
March 1944 the garrison administration could not refer to it as an existing
structure. But since this structure existed, it could not be the legendary “Bun-
ker 1.” Given the scarcity of construction materials at Auschwitz, it is unlikely
that a precious electric wire, after the structure had been demolition, was left
in place and abandoned for a year rather than being immediately recovered
and stored.
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Second, the Auschwitz Museum has in its possession some 130,000 pages
of documents created during the war by the Central Construction Office of
Auschwitz. As the authors tell us in their introduction (p. 24), the museum his-
torians have at last studied these documents carefully, and they concluded that
this is the only reference to a “Bunker I (and that there is no reference at all
to a “Bunker 11”).

Third, in relation to alleged gassing installations, the term “bunker” was
never in use among the witnesses before the end of World War I1. | reiterate
here what | have found on the subject in my specific study (20044, pp. 75f.).

At the time of his Soviet deposition, Szlama Dragon, the most important
witness, did not yet know the terms “Bunker 1” and “Bunker 2,” allegedly
used even by the SS. In this deposition he speaks always of “gazokamera”
(razoxamepa) Nos. 1 and 2 and states explicitly that this was the official des-
ignation:

“I was taken to the gas chamber called gas chamber no. 2.”

In the later Polish deposition, the term for these alleged extermination installa-
tions becomes “bunker”:

“This chamber was designated Bunker no. 2. In addition to it, at a distance
of about 500 meters, there was another chamber, indicated as Bunker no.
1. »”

The term occurs here with the same frequency as the term “gazokamera” in
the preceding deposition. However, in this deposition Dragon is still unaware
of the other two designations, “czerwony domek” (little red house) for “Bun-
ker 1” and “bialy domek™ (little white house) for “Bunker 2,” which were in-
vented a few years later during the Hoss trial.

The fact that in February-March 1945 the above-mentioned orthodox ter-
minology was still unknown is also clear from the deposition of Henryk
Tauber, dated 27 and 28 February 1945, in which he refers to the “bunkers”
merely as “gas chambers” (razossie kamepsr). The same is true for the Polish-
Soviet investigators who, in their report prepared between 14 February and 18
March 1945, never use the term “bunker” but speak only of “gas chambers”
(razoBeie kamepsl) nos. 1 and 2.

The term “bunker” appears for the first time in the 16 April 1945 deposi-
tion of Stanistaw Jankowski, which was concocted between 9 March and 16
April 1945. The necessity for a proper term for these two claimed killing facil-
ities was obvious: in a legal procedure it was unacceptable that two buildings
of the Auschwitz Camp, in which, as was alleged, hundreds of thousands of
Jews had been murdered, did not even have an official name! Hence the al-
leged “official” designations of “Bunker 1” and “Bunker 2,” where the term
“bunker” was simply taken from the term sometimes used for the building of
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the old crematorium of the Main Camp, which before World War 11 had been
at times an ammunition bunker or a food-storage facility.'*?

This also explains the wide range of meanings the term had for the “eye-
witnesses.” For example, Henryk Mandelbaum, deported to Auschwitz on 23
April 1944, and assigned to the so-called “special unit” in early June, the term
“bunker” designated, in fact, only the alleged semi-underground gas chambers
of Crematoria Il and Ill. At the trial of the Auschwitz camp garrison he de-
clared:!*3

“In Crematoria Il and IV [= IV and V in today’s numbering], the gas

chambers were smaller than those of Crematoria I and Il [= Il and Il in

today’s numbering]. These crematoria were of a new kind: they could ac-
commodate a transport of 3,000 persons. This bunker was some 50 m long
and divided into two parts. In this bunker, there was a bath with showers
and faucets, and a normal person entering it could believe that it was, in-
deed, a bath, [...].”
Four self-proclaimed members of the 1944 Sonderkommando of “Bunker 2”
were interviewed by Gideon Greif in the late 1980s/early 1990s. They de-
clared unanimously that the “bunker” was not a gassing facility but rather a
cremation pit:
— Josef Sackar: When asked “Can you describe the ‘bunker’?” the witness an-
swered (Greif 1995, p. 10):

“Yes, it was a large pit, to which the corpses were brought and then

dumped in.”

— Jaacov Gabai: (ibid., p. 132)

“Pits were arranged there to burn the corpses that the Crematorium itself

could not handle. Those pits were called ‘bunker.’ I worked there for three

days. From the gas chamber, one brought the corpses to the bunker and
burned them.”
— Eliezer Eisenschmidt: (ibid., p. 178)

“They themselves then threw the corpses into the pits. The pits, or ‘bun-
kers’ as we called them, were large and deep.”
— Shaul Chasan: (ibid., p. 228)
“There was, in the area, a basin, a deep pit, which was called ‘bunker’.”
It should be noted here that the German term “bunker,” according to Germa-

ny’s definitive dictionary, the Duden, has as its primary meaning a “large con-
tainer for storing bulk material (e.g. coal, ore, grain).”*** As a secondary

112 Pressac 1989, p. 129; for example in “Baubericht Gber den Stand der Bauarbeiten fir das Bau-
vorhaben Konzentrationslager Auschwitz” of April 15, 1942, one can read: “Krematorium: Im
vorhandenen Bunker eingebaut...” (RGVA, 502-1-24, p. 320).

113 AGK, NTN, 162, p. 165.

114 www.duden.de/rechtschreibung/Bunker
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meaning it refers to a “military shelter facility,” frequently to a “shelter for the
civilian population during war; air-raid shelter.” As a third meaning this term
refers to a prison in the vernacular.*® It never refers to an execution facility,
though.

At the end of the day, we don’t know what this “Bunker I” mentioned in
the discussed documents actually was. But if considering the official use of
this term at Auschwitz:

— it was used for instance for Crematorium I, a former munitions and food
storage building (“bunker” Meaning No. 1) later remodeled to serve as an
air-raid shelter (“bunker” Meaning No. 2);

— it was used for many air-raid shelters throughout the camp (Meaning No. 2;
see the discussion of Document 35 starting on p. 113 of the present study;
and Document 39, starting on p. 122);

— it was used in the term “Kartoffelbunker” for a potato storage area (again
Meaning no. 1; see my comments on Document 44 starting on p. 126);

then it is difficult to believe that it could be attributed to a normal house not
used to store bulk items or as a reinforced air-raid-protection facility.

As mentioned earlier, based solely on these two documents, the authors
have changed the hitherto unchallenged Arab numbers of the alleged “bun-
kers” to Roman numbers.

In conclusion, the presence of the term “Bunker I” in a document in no
way proves that there was a “Bunker 1” at Birkenau in terms of a homicidal
gassing facility, such as the presence of the term “Gaskammer” (gas chamber)
in other documents (such as the blueprints of the disinfestation facilities BW
5a and 5b) does not demonstrate that homicidal gas chambers existed at
Birkenau.

As is all too obvious, everything depends on the context in which these
terms are found, but in the case of this “Bunker I” there is no context, because
these documents only contain the term without any further explanation. It is
therefore foolish to consider Document 20 a proof for the existence of the leg-
endary “Bunker 1.”

I11. Section “The Barracks for Undressing at Bunkers I and I1”

[21] Document 21 (pp. 105-107)

This is the well-known “Construction Report for the Month of May 1942,” in
which the following remark can be found among the description of work done
in the PoW camp:**

115 For instance, the basement jail in Block 11 at the Auschwitz Main Camp was generally referred to
as the “bunker”; Mattogno 2005b, passim; see also p. 101 of this study.
116 RGVA, 502-1-24, p. 263.
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“In addition, 2 barracks (horse-stable barracks) were erected outside the
PoW camp.”

The authors comment:

“Apart from the yard of bunker I, there was no other place outside the
camp fence at Birkenau where barracks of any kind were erected at this
time.” (p. 104)

This is clearly a forced conclusion of convenience but, as we shall see, it is in
contrast to the Auschwitz Museum’s orthodox version of “Bunker 1.”

The two barracks in question are not mentioned in any other document, and
they do not appear in any map of this period, so it is impossible to say with
certainty where they were erected. But “outside the camp fence” did not limit
the possibilities to the north-west (the direction of the alleged “Bunker 17). In
particular, the north and east sides were surrounded by buildings taken over by
the Central Construction Office. About thirty houses were located near the
northeast corner of the camp. They made up what was left of the village of
Brzezinka, and some of them were already being remodeled in April, not to
mention their “exterior” (Aussenanlagen), which are listed in the “Explanatory
report on the construction project Concentration Camp Auschwitz O/S,” writ-
ten by Bischoff on 15 July 1942, which includes, among other things, two res-
idential and work barracks (BW 55), and three housing barracks for labor de-
tails (BW 56).''

The two barracks in question, therefore, are not inextricably linked to
“Bunker 1,” as the authors claim. On the contrary. Piper says that “Bunker 1,”
as indicated by Czech, went into operation “already in March 1942,” and he
adds (referring to six testimonies) that “next to the house stood a barn and two
sheds already installed during the remodeling works” (Piper 1999, p. 159). If
that is so, then it follows that the two barracks were built as early as March
1942. How, then, can the authors point to “Bunker 1” as the location where
the two barracks were erected outside the Birkenau Camp in the month of May
— although they do not know where they were actually set up?

But there is another far more important issue. The authors claim that the
construction report of May 1942 mentions the two alleged barracks of “Bun-
ker 1”; if that is so, how come this document does not contain any reference to
the “remodeling” of this “bunker”? This also applies to the construction report
of March*® and June,**® the respective months when “Bunker 1” and “Bunker
2” are said to have been set up, if we follow the orthodox narrative. And why
does the construction report of June contain no reference either to the three
barracks allegedly installed in the course of that month as “undressing huts”
near “Bunker 2?

117 RGVA, 502-1-220, p. 5.
118 RGVA, 502-1-24, pp. 380-386.
119 RGVA, 502-1-24, pp. 219-225.
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Yet exactly for this time period the remodeling of existing structures is
richly documented. The “Activity and construction report for the month of
March 1942,” drawn up on 1 April 1942 by SS-Schiitze Werner Jothann, lists
work done in houses no. 130, 132, 150, 152, 151 and 171, which were part of
the “officers and NCOs accommodations.”*?® The report headlined “Work
done in the period 26 March to 25 April 1942” of the inmate painter detail de-
scribes the work carried out in House Nos. 151, 136, 1, 25, 130 and 132.*%!

From the authors’ perspective, the alleged gassing facilities had very pre-
cise official names: The “bunkers” and “houses for special measures.” If that
was so, these structures should appear as such in the documents pertaining to
the camp’s construction, but they do not.

In this context, therefore, we should not be surprised by the presence of
two barracks of unknown purpose somewhere outside the camp, but by the to-
tal absence of any sign about the restructuring of the alleged “bunkers.”

[22] Document 22 (pp. 109), 23 (p. 111) and 24 (pp. 113-115)

These documents must be considered together, because they deal with the

same matter, which I treat chronologically (see Mattogno 2004b, pp. 43-47).
On 31 March 1942, Bischoff prepared a list of structures planned as well as

already constructed at Auschwitz, which the authors don’t mention. BW 58 is

described as follows:??

“5 horse-stable barracks (special treatment) 4 in Birkenau 1 in Budy. ”

In the first version of this document — it bears the same date — the existence of

the BW is announced in the following handwritten memo:*?3

“5 horse-stable barracks/special treatment 4 in Birkenau 1 in Bor-
Budy 9124

A letter by Bischoff to Office C/V of the SS-WVHA dated 9 June 1942 (Doc-

ument 22) states:'?°

“For the special treatment of the Jews, the camp commandant of the con-
centration camp, SS Stubaf. Hoss, has applied orally for the erection of 4
horse-stable barracks for the accommodation of personal effects. It is

120 RGVA, 502-1-24, p. 398.

121 RGVA, 502-1-24, pp. 370f. See DOCUMENTS 17, 17a.

122 «“Aufteilung der Bauwerke (BW) fiir die Bauten, Aussen- und Nebenanlagen des Bauvorhabens
Konzentrationslager Auschwitz O/S” of 31 March 1942. RGVA, 502-1-267, pp. 3-13, here p. 8;
reproduced in Mattogno 2004b, Document 5, pp. 114f.

123 “Aufteilung der Bauwerke (BW) fiir die Bauten, Aussen- und Nebenanlagen des Bauvorhabens
Konzentrationslager Auschwitz O/S” of 31 March 1942. RGVA, 502-1-210, pp. 20-29, here p. 25;
reproduced in Mattogno 2004b, Document 6, pp. 116f.

124 The Bor-Budy area — two villages about 4 km south of Birkenau — was the location of the so-
called “Wirtschaftshof Budy”, a secondary camp, in which chiefly agricultural tasks were per-
formed. The actual camp (men and women’s secondary camp) was located in Bor.

125 RGVA, 502-1-275, p. 56; reproduced in 2004b, Document 7, p. 118.
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asked that the application be approved, since the matter is extremely ur-
gent and the effects must absolutely be brought under shelter.”
On 16 June Bischoff reported to the SS-WVHA (Document 23):
“Following an oral application of camp commander SS-Stubaf. Hoss, one
horse-stable barrack was erected in Bor for the accommodation of female
inmates. ”
The “Explanatory Report on the construction project Concentration Camp
Auschwitz O/S”, written by Bischoff on 15 July 1942, mentions as BW 58 “5
barracks for special treatment of inmates.”*?® The attached “Cost estimate for
the construction project Concentration Camp Auschwitz , Upper Silesia” spec-
ifies, at a total cost of 75,000 RM**" (Document 24):
“BW 58 5 Barracks for special treatment and lodging of prisoners, horse-
stable barracks Type 260/9 (O.K.H.)
4 barracks for special treatment of prisoners in Birkenau
1 barrack for the lodging of prisoners in Bor”
The authors explain that the barrack of Document 23 was intended for the “ex-
ternal Kommando” at Budy-Bér (p. 110), and then they insist that of the five
barracks mentioned in Document 24:
“four are designated for use in the ‘special treatment of prisoners in
Birkenau’ (Sonderbehandlung der Héftlinge in Birkenau), that is, for the
storage of property plundered from the victims of extermination (‘Kanada
1°), while one is to be used in the Auschwitz sub-camp in Budy-Bor as
housing for women prisoners.” (p. 112)
In their comments, the authors neither say openly that the four barracks be-
longed to the “bunkers” (although the documents in question appear in the
section “The Barracks for Undressing at Bunkers | and 11”°), nor that “special
treatment” was a “code word” meaning the gassing of Jews in the “bunker,”
so what exactly are they trying to prove by citing these documents? This only
becomes clear in their comments on Document 25.

[23] Document 25 (p. 117)

This is a list titled “Distribution of Barracks” written by Bischoff on 30 June
1942 which lists all barracks planned for the construction project Auschwitz-
Birkenau.
The authors assert that the document mentions
“three undressing barracks situated at bunker I, defined as storage bar-
racks within the framework of the ‘special treatment’ operation then un-
derway (Effektenbaracken fir Sonderbehandlung). The list indicates that

126 RGVA, 502-1-220, p. 5.
121 RGVA, 502-1-22, p. 36; reproduced in 2004b, Document 4, p. 113.
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the functioning of not two (see document 21) but three barracks for un-
dressing at bunker I can be dated from this moment. ” (p. 116)
This comment is an intentional deception. The document lists all the barracks,
sorted by type, which belonged to all sectors of the construction project
Auschwitz, which in the end is summarized as follows:*?

“I.) Prisoner-of-War Camp Auschwitz 516 pieces
I1.) Agriculture Auschwitz 55 pieces
I11.) SS accommodations C.C. Auschwitz 54 pieces
IV.) Construction depot 24 pieces

V.) Main camp for housekeeping Auschwitz 2 pieces. ”
The barracks for “special treatment,” however, were not part of the Birkenau
Camp, but of the Auschwitz Main Camp, so they could not have any relation-
ship with the “bunkers” at Birkenau. In fact, in the section “SS accommoda-
tions and C.C. Auschwitz” the document lists the following types of 260/9
barracks:

“1.) Barracks for personal effects erected near temp. delousing in C.C. 4 pieces

2.) Barracks for personal effects for special treatment 3 pieces
3.) Barracks for personal effects in women’s C.C. 1 piece
4.) Accommodation barracks Bor 1 piece”

Therefore, of the five barracks in question, only three were specifically in-
tended for “special treatment,” although merely for storing personal belong-
ings of inmates in the Main Camp.

The authors’ implied reasoning is as follows: The four barracks mentioned
in Documents 22 and 24 were erected at “Kanada I,” which was structure BW
28, the “barracks for delousing and personal effects.” The “Distribution of
Barracks” mentions four barracks at this structure (called “temporary delous-
ing”). So the authors reason that three “barracks for personal effects for spe-
cial treatment” must have been something else than the above “4 barracks for
special treatment of prisoners in Birkenau.” For the authors, it follows that
they must have belonged to “Bunker 1,” which therefore had not two undress-
ing barracks, as Document 21 seems to suggest, but three.

This reasoning is unfounded, as is its conclusion.

First of all, as is already clear from the list of Auschwitz structures of 31
March 1942 mentioned above, the structure “Kanada |,” which was BW 28,
was indeed called “reception barrack with delousing,” while the five barracks
for special treatment formed BW 58, so they had no relationship with BW 28.
The four barracks that belonged to it were erected in June 1942, as is clear
from the construction report of that month:**°

128 RGVA, 502-1-275, pp. 270-273.
129 «Baubericht fir Monat Juni 1942.” RGVA, 502-1-24, p. 221.
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“B.W. 28 temp. reception barrack with delousing
Construction work has been finished. In addition, 4 prefabricated barracks
(horse-stable barracks) were erected thereat.”

Next, as stated above, the distribution of barracks in question explicitly states
that the three “barracks for personal effects for special treatment” were part of
the construction project “SS accommodations and C.C. Auschwitz,” not of the
“prisoner-of-war camp” (first section of the document), so they could not be-
long to the elusive “Bunker I”” of Birkenau.

Finally, as noted casually by the authors, their interpretation of this docu-
ment contradicts their interpretation of Document 21. The latter mentions the
erection of two horse-stable barracks outside the PoW camp in May, which
they associate with “Bunker 1.” However, Bischoff’s letter of 9 June 1942
(Document 22) says that on that date, “for the special treatment of the Jews,
camp commandant of the concentration camp, SS-Stubaf. Hoss, has applied
orally for the erection of 4 horse-stable barracks for the accommodation of
personal effects.” That means these four barracks did not yet exist on 9 June,
while the two barracks outside the camp existed already during the previous
month. If we apply the authors’ logic, this would mean that after June 1942
“Bunker 1” wouldn’t have two or three, but rather six barracks!

In reality there is no doubt that the three “Barracks for personal effects for
special treatment” of the “Distribution the barracks™ list in question were part
of the five barracks of BW 58, as is clear from the reference to “Accommoda-
tion barracks Bor.”

[24] Document 26 (p. 121)

This is another, well-known list of barracks titled “Auschwitz Concentration
Camp. Distribution of barracks” from 17 July 1942, which | published else-
where (2004b, p. 120).

This is the authors’ comment:

“On page 2 it is noted that a total of five type 260/9 barracks are required
for carrying out the ‘special treatment’ operation (Verwendungszweck-
Sonderbehandlung). Three of them had been installed as of this date, with
the other two waiting to be installed.

These were the barracks used for undressing at bunkers | and Il. Accord-
ing to earlier documents, three barracks of this type were in place at bun-
ker | at this point, and therefore the other two were to be erected next to
bunker I1.” (p. 120)

This reasoning is fallacious and inconsistent. The document under discussion
has seven columns with the following headings: “purpose of use,” “type [of
barracks],” “needed,” “erected,” “to be erected,” “stored.” “pending.” This is
the line that interests us:
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purpose of use | type | needed | erected | to be erected |stored |pending

special treatment|260/9] 5 | 3 | 2 ] 2
These are clearly the five barracks mentioned in Bischoff’s explanatory report
of 15 July 1942. In the original list they are referred to as “5 barracks for spe-
cial treatment of inmates” which in turn, as we have seen, correspond to the
five barracks for “special treatment” in the list of 31 March 1942. None of
them, as | have demonstrated above, had any relationship with the elusive
“bunkers” of Birkenau.

[25] Document 27 (pp. 123f.)

This is the “Report about the inspection of the Auschwitz Concentration Camp
by SS-Obergruppenfiihrer Pohl on 23 September 1942,” which describes the
course of the inspection: protective custody camp (=Auschwitz), construction
depot, DAW (Deutsche Ausrustungswerke workshops), delousing chamber
and storage of personal effects (resettlement of Jews), new horse stable farm,
Birkenau Camp.

A comparison with the detailed description of Pohl’s inspection, after his
visit to the DAW workshops, shows that the delousing chamber and storage of
personal effects (resettlement of Jews) was identical with the “delousing
chamber and storage of personal effects/Aktion Reinhard,”**° that is, “Kanada
I” (see comments on Document 14).

This resettlement of Jews corresponded to the “migration to the East” men-
tioned in Pohl’s report to Himmler of 16 September 1942: Minister Speer
needed 50,000 able-bodied workers who were to be selected at Auschwitz

from the migration to the East. The document says explicitly:**!

“The able-bodied Jews intended for the migration to the east will therefore

have to interrupt their journey and perform armament work. ”
Resettlement of Jews and migration to the east were synonyms referring to the
Jewish deportation to the East via Auschwitz. According to this document, the
Jews fit for labor were kept at Auschwitz, who therefore interrupted their
journey, while those unable to work continued their journey to the East. This
operation of keeping able-bodied Jews at Auschwitz was called “special
treatment of the Jews.” This “special treatment” had therefore nothing to do
with mythical homicidal gassings.

[26] Document 28 (p. 127)

This is a list of structures titled “Structures of the Central Construction Office
of the Waffen-SS and Police Auschwitz in the 3rd budget year of war.” The
page in question concerns the “structures which were added to the priority list

130 RGVA, 502-1-19, p. 86.
131 BAK, NS 19/14, p. 132; see Mattogno 2004b, pp. 53, 82; Mattogno/Kues/Graf 2015, pp. 521-524.
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of the defense district” (Bauten, welche die in Wehrkreisrangfolgeliste aufge-
nommen wurden) for the construction project Concentration Camp Auschwitz.
The first five columns refer to “serial no.”, “construction project,” “GBBau
Nr.” (a project’s ID number on the lists of the Speer ministry’s construction
sector), “percent complete,” “total costs.”

Items 20 and 21 contain the following entries:

“20Delousing bar. a. 4 inmate property bar. VIII Zal (1) 100% 80,000.--
21Special tr. 5 barracks as before  100% 90,000.--"

The authors claim the five barracks for “special treatment,” had been assigned
as follows:

“three undressing barracks at bunker | and two at bunker 11" (p. 126)

As | have shown above, such a claim is completely unfounded. The authors,
among other things, forget to explain why the five barracks, if they were lo-
cated at Birkenau, were part of construction project Concentration Camp
Auschwitz rather than construction project PoW camp.

The “Plan of the prisoner-of-war camp of Auschwitz Upper Silesia” of 28
October 1942 shows two barracks for “inmate belongings,” both at the west-
ern border of the camp, one in BA II, close to the southeast angle of the
Effektenlager, the other in BA Ill, close to the first of the two morgues
(Leichenhallen).'*

[27] Document 29 (pp. 129-131)

This is another distribution list of barracks, dated 8 December 1942, which is
a well-known document published by me (2004b, p. 121.).

On p. 3, under the heading “PoW camp,” appears an entry relating to “spe-
cial treatment (old),” according to which five barracks Type 260/9 were need-
ed, five had already been erected, and none were pending. Here is the translat-
ed text of this entry:

purpose of use | type | needed | already erected |pending

special treatment (old) [260/9] 5 | 5 o
This entry is listed under Construction Sector I, which further detracts from
the authors’ claim that they had been installed near the elusive “Bunkers” 1
and 2, which, administratively speaking, would have belonged to the area of
Sectors 11 and 11, respectively. These all in all (5+5=) ten barracks were most
likely “Station 2 of Aktion Reinhard.”

The authors’ comment on this is bizarre and senseless:

“The use in this list of the term ‘old special treatment site’ (Sonderbehand-

lung alt) must certainly have resulted from the fact that, as of December

132 «“Lageplan des Kriegsgefangenenlagers Auschwitz O/S. Plan Nr. 1782” of 28 October 1942.
VHA, Fond OT 31(2)/8.
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1942, the construction of the ‘new’ crematoria and gas chambers was al-

ready quite advanced.” (p. 128)

The translation is misleading, because special treatment was not implemented
on a “site” (in Polish: miejsce), but was rather a general operation. The “old”
special treatment referred undoubtedly to the old special treatment procedure,
which was replaced in October 1942 by the new procedure, by virtue of which
the entire construction project “PoW camp Auschwitz” received the official ti-
tle “implementation of special treatment” (see Mattogno 2004b, pp. 38f., 72-
75). 1 will return to this fundamental issue when discussing Document 64.

[28] Document 30 (p. 133)

This is another list of barracks headlined “As of 7 Feb. 1943 the barracks
listed below have been installed.” Among other entries, it lists five horse-
stable barracks for a “special unit.” The authors argue that these barracks are
“associated with bunkers | and 11” because they “appear under the rubric
‘Sonderkommando’ (Sonder Kdo.).” (p. 132).

Here the authors commit the same inane circular reasoning that I men-
tioned earlier: they assume a priori that the Sonderkommando was inextrica-
bly linked to the legendary “bunkers” without supporting this with even the
vaguest documentary hint. Then they deduce from the presence of the term
Sonderkommando the existence of the “bunkers.” Their explanation is also il-
logical because in the document in question the term Sonderkommando indi-
cates the barracks’ purpose of use, as results from other entries in it, beginning
with the preceding one (Entwesung, disinfestation). At the alleged “bunkers,”
however, the claimed undressing barracks were not to be used by the members
of the Sonderkommando, if we follow the orthodox narrative, but rather as un-
dressing huts by the inmate victims who were to be gassed.

According to the authors’ logical fallacy, the purpose of use should have
been “special treatment of the Jews,” i.e., alleged homicidal gassing, or the
“old” special treatment as it appears in the list of 8 December 1942. From this
list we learn that a disinfestation facility existed as part of the construction
project concentration camp (Auschwitz), for which they planned five barracks
Type 260/9, another one in construction project construction depot (Bauhof,
Kanada 1), which involved seven barracks of the same type, two of which
were already erected and five more were to be erected. In the list of 7 Febru-
ary 1943 under discussion, a first disinfestation facility with five barracks is
listed, a second with two, followed immediately by the “special unit” with five
barracks. In this list the “special treatment (old)” of Sector Bl is no longer
mentioned, but not even a reference to the five still missing barracks for the
disinfestation facility appears here. This indicates that the five barracks for
“special unit” of this document are precisely the five barracks of the disinfes-
tation facility that were still missing two months earlier, and that the special
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unit in question was a disinfestation detail, the “special unit pest control” or
“Sonderkommando Reinhardt” whose members worked at the “Station 2 of
Action Reinhard.” Their intended use was the storage of personal belongings
of Jews subject to the migration to the East, as is confirmed by the next docu-
ment.

[29] Document 31 (pp. 135f.)

This is a “file memorandum regarding the barracks and permanent buildings
presently used for the storage of personal effects,” written by Bischoff on 10
February 1943.1%

The authors assert:

“At the head of the list are facilities referred to as ‘Sonderkommando 1’
and ‘Sonderkommando II,” each of which has three adjacent stable-type
barracks (now there are six of them, which means that the third barracks
at bunker Il had been erected over the previous few days—see document
30) used for undressing.” (p. 134)

Here they completely distort the real meaning of this document, which | out-
lined in another study (2004b, pp. 73f). | will reiterate and expand my elabora-
tion here.

The quantity of personal belongings taken from the — for the most part
Jewish — prisoners was huge and consequently required much space. Ac-
cording to a “file memorandum regarding the barracks and permanent build-
ings presently used for the storage of personal effects” written by Bischoff on
February 10, 1943, 31 “horse-stable barracks” with a total surface area of
12,090 m2 as well as four walled structures serving as storehouses with a total
area of 4,306 m?, thus 16,396 m? altogether, were employed for this purpose.
In addition there were the 30 barracks of the so-called personal-effects stor-
age, of which 25 had already been built, and the rest were supposed to be fin-
ished within fourteen days.

The personal-effects storage was identical with BW 33. It consisted of 25
“personal-property barracks Type 260/9” with dimensions 9.56 m x 40.76 m
and five “personal-property barracks Type 501/34 Z.8,” also called “air-force
barracks,” which measured 12.64 m x 41.39 m. The construction of the horse-
stable barracks (Numbers 1-8 and 13-29) had begun on October 15, 1942,
that of the air-force barracks (Numbers 912 and 30) on February 4, 194313

133 «“ Aktenvermerk iiber die derzeit fiir die Lagerung von Effekten verwendeten Baracken und Mas-

sivgebdude,” RGVA, 502-1-26, pp. 33f.

13 _ «“Bauantrag zum Ausbau des Kriegsgefangenenlagers der Waffen SS in Auschwitz O/S. Errich-
tung von 25 Stck. Effecktenbaracken. Erlauterungsbericht und Kostenvoranschlag”, March 4,
1944. RGVA, 502-1-230, pp. 95-97.

— “Bestandsplan der 25 Effektenbaracken”, October 20, 1943. RGVA, 502-1-230, p. 100.
— “Bauantrag zum Ausbau des Kriegsgefangenenlagers der Waffen SS in Auschwitz O/S. Errich-
tung von 25 Effektenbaracken BW 33. Erlauterungsbericht Kostenvoranschlag”, March 4,
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Since the personal-effects storage was intended specifically to accommo-
date personal belongings of prisoners, as soon as it came into operation, the 31
horse-stable barracks initially allocated for this purpose became free for other
uses. This is crucial in order to understand the true meaning of the following
documents.

According to Bischoff’s file memo of 10 February 1943, the following bar-

racks were still available “for the storage of personal effects”:**°

“1. At Special Unit 1, 3 horse-stable barracks
2. At Special Unit 2, 3 horse-stable barracks. ”

The document explicitly says that these barracks were intended to store per-
sonal belongings of prisoners, but then how can the authors seriously claim
that these six barracks were used as undressing huts near the elusive “bun-
kers”? Here, as elsewhere, this is a matter of bad faith, as is reflected further
by the fact that they are silent about other documents confirming my interpre-
tation.

In a 1999 article, German orthodox scholars Bertrand Perz and Thomas
Sandkdhler drew attention to the personnel files of some SS NCOs transferred
to Auschwitz in 1942 as part of Operation Reinhard (Perz/Sandkihler 1999,
pp. 283-318; see Mattogno 2008, pp. 24-31), a fact confirmed by the authors’
Document 61 (p. 221), which lists 12 SS men transferred from Dachau to
Auschwitz “for Operation Reinhard.” Perz and Sandkihler write (ibid., p.
296):

“Kuhnemann %! was deployed exclusively at the operation ‘resettlement

of the Jews,” where he was in charge of supervising, sorting and storing

the belongings accumulating at So.[nder]K[omman]do. | and Crematorium

In.”

The source given by Perz and Sandkihler is a “certificate of service” (Dienst-
leistungszeugnis) of 30 March 1943 (ibid., p. 314, note 110). They also inform
us that SS-Hauptscharfihrer Georg Hocker “watched Sonderkommandos |
and Il and the delousing chambers 1 and 2” (ibid., p. 314, note 113). They also
quote the following note by SS-Sturmbannfuhrer Willi Birger, head of the
camp’s Section IV — Administration (ibid., p. 296):

“As of 25 September 1942, SS-Hauptscharfiihrer Hocker carries out his du-

ty at the administration CC and SS garrison administration Auschwitz. [...]

He was entrusted with supervising the Sonderkommando and the disinfes-

tation chamber. He was moreover employed as deputy head of the admin-

1944, RGVA, 502-1-230, pp. 103-105.
— “Bestandsplan der Effektenbaracke — Type Luftwaffe”, October 22, 1943. RGVA, 502-1-230, p.
108.
135 RGVA, 502-1-26, p. 73.
1% SS-Unterscharfihrer Heinz Kiihnemann was administrator of inmate belongings (Effektenverwal-
ter).
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istration of inmate property. From end of September until mid-November
1943 Hocker supervised Disinfestation Chamber I.”

The context of the document under review is therefore unequivocally that of
storage and pest control of Jewish property: the connection between Sonder-
kommando | and Il on the one hand and “storage of personal effects” and “dis-
infestation chambers” on the other confirms that the Sonderkommando I and 11
in question had nothing to do with any alleged homicidal gas chambers, but
had to do precisely with pest control.

Franciszek Piper commented as follows about this (Piper 1995, p. 181):

“Initially, until the commissioning of the ‘Kanada I’ warehouses, the per-
sonal belongings of gassed inmates were stored in the Deposit Warehouses
at the Main Camp. These warehouses located next to the DAW workshops,
including the disinfection chamber, were surrounded by a barbed-wire
fence and were constantly guarded by SS guards on watchtowers. The SS
man Wladimir Bilan was the first head of these warehouses, then Georg
Hocker since October 1942 [...].”

As Andrzej Strzelecki confirms, this refers to “Kanada I,” whose former head
was Wladimir Bilan (Strzelecki 1999, p. 199). Hence Hocker was the head of
this storage area precisely since October 1942.

Strzelecki also states that neither Kilhnemann nor Hoécker has ever been
accused by witnesses of having been involved in any extermination activities
(ibid., p. 140). This is not quite true, though, because Hocker is mentioned as
“Hauptscharfiihrer and head of disinfestation | Auschwitz 1”3 as well as an
alleged “murderer” in a list of former SS men from various concentration
camps drawn up on 16 December 1946 by former Auschwitz inmate Adolf
Rogner. Kihnemann appears there as “Unterscharfthrer, disinfestation |
Auschwitz 1,” with his alleged “crimes” being thuggery and denouncing
Jews. 138

Finally, the relationship between the belongings of prisoners and Cremato-
rium 1l remains to be explained. In March 1943 the situation of storing the be-
longings of the deported Jews was catastrophic, as is clear from a letter by
Bischoff to Kammler dated 2 March 1943 with the subject “installing disinfes-
tation barracks,” in which we read:**°

“As can be seen from the letter of the Central Construction Office to the
Commandant of the CC, everything possible has been done on this side to
provide accommodation for the accumulating effects. If clothing and other
items accruing from the transports are stacked in the open, then this is only

137 Which confirms that the “Entwesungs- u. Effektenkammer Aktion Reinhard” — i.e. “Kanada I” —
was identical with “Station 17 of “Aktion Reinhardt.”

138 «SS-Beurteilungsliste von ehemaligen SS-Angehdrigen verschiedener Konzentrationslager,
Auschwitz I, Il, 111, Dachau, Mauthausen, Melk und Ebensee i/S.” AGK, NTN, 118, p. 10, 5.

139 RGVA, 502-1-336, p. 77.
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due to their improper storage, for which the administration of the concen-
tration camp is responsible. If a major part of the effects stored outdoors is
lost due to the weather, then this office cannot be blamed for this at all.”

In this situation, the most-likely scenario is that some of the personal effects
had been provisionally deposited outdoors near Crematorium II, which had
one of the largest open spaces of the entire camp, awaiting the pending entry
into operation of the new Effektenlager, which was located in the same west-
ern sector of the Birkenau Camp where this crematorium was located.

Document 32, which we will discuss next, fully corroborates the interpreta-
tion set out above.

In this context, the authors overlooked an important document published
several years ago by the Auschwitz Museum, which in fact mentions the term
Sonderkommando | and 11 (see DOCUMENT 18). It is from the officer on duty,
dated 9-10 December 1942.2%° Here | translate only the most important parts:

“At 12:25 it was reported that 6 inmates had fled from Sonderkommande |

[sic...]. At 20:30 Harmenze [sic] called that 2 inmates were apprehended.

[...] These were the two Jewish inmates N 36816 + 38313 who had fled

early on 7 Dec. 42 from Sonderkom. 11.”

In her Auschwitz Chronicle, Danuta Czech summarizes the reviewed docu-
ment as follows in an entry of 9 December 1942 (1990, p. 282):

“At 12:25 P.M., the Guard Commander receives the report that six prison-

ers have escaped from the Special Squad.”

She then states that “[t]he two Jewish prisoners, Nos. 36816 and 38313, fled
“from Special Squad I11.” For 10 December she adds (ibid.):
“The two Jewish prisoners, Ladislaus Knopp (No. 36816) and Samuel Cu-
lea (No. 38313), who escaped from the Special Squad on December 7, are
locked in the bunker of Block 11 and released from the bunker to the camp
the same day.
Two Jewish prisoners who escaped from the Special Squad the previous
day are captured and sent to the bunker of Block 11. They are Bar Boren-
stein (No. 74858), born February 10, 1920; and Nojech Borenstein (No.
74859), born March 25, 1925, in Szrensk. [...] The two of them are proba-
bly executed publicly on December 17 in the presence of the Special Squad
to terrorize the other prisoners.””

In a footnote Czech explains (ibid.):

““* Next to the names of the two prisoners and the entry ‘released’ is the
letter ‘U".”

140 The document gives as its date “9/10.42,” but this cannot be the 9th of October, but must be the
night from the 9th to the 10th of December (the month, missing in the date, is given in the report’s
text). This is the night spanning the two days when the officer in question was on duty (judging
from the mentioned hours, probably from 12.00 on the 9th to 12.00 on the 10th).
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It is unclear why the author of the Auschwitz Chronicle assumes that these two
prisoners were executed, since “U” usually was short for “(iberstellt” — trans-
ferred. In fact, the numbers of these detainees are not included in the list of
deceased inmates of the morgue register of Block 28 of the Main Camp — nei-
ther for 9 December 1942 nor for any of the following days.**

It is not even clear why the two pairs of Jewish inmates are supposed to
have been treated so differently: the first pair was released back into the camp,
while the second pair is assumed to have been killed. As for the first pair, the
names of Ladislav Knapp [sic] and Samul Culer [sic] are listed in the fragment
of the camp’s card index as copied by the former prisoner Otto Wolken. Ac-
cording to this, Knapp belonged to Sonderkommando II, while the other was
employed at a Sonderkommando. For both, their cards show under “changes”:
“15:12:42 abg. am 10:12:42 abgesetzt / Fliichtling /.”*** The term “abgesetzt”
means that the two detainees’ entries had been suspended from the card index;
the abbreviation “abg.” could mean “abgegeben,” handed over, i.e. reassigned
to the inmate-labor-deployment authorities. It is certain, however, that the two
detainees were not killed, because the words “verstorben” (deceased) are
missing, as occurs for instance for the two prisoners preceding the entry of
Knapp: the Slovak Jews Eduard Tintner, no. 36682, “died 22 June 1942” (ver-
storben 22.06.42), and Alfred Timféld, no. 36810, “died 16 June 1942” (ver-
storben 16.06.42).143

This is confirmed by the list “Arrivals of 23 May 1942, transferred from
CC Lublin,” which includes 1,000 detainees with serial number, first and last
name, date and place of birth, as well as date of death. The vast majority of
these prisoners died during August 1942, but Ladislav Knapp was one of the
few survivors, while Alfred Timfold died on 16 June 1942,

Had Knapp, Culer and/or the Borensteins really been part of any Sonder-
kommando tied to homicidal activities at the “bunkers,” these prisoners who
had dared to escape would have been killed without mercy, if the orthodox
narrative were true.

The most important aspect of Wolken’s record referred to above is the fact
that Czech omitted the Roman number of the Sonderkommando from which
six detainees had fled: “I.” The reason is easily understood. In her entry for 3
December 1942 she writes (1990, pp. 277f.):

“The approximately 300 Jewish prisoners in the special squad who dig up

and burn the 107,000 bodies buried in mass graves are taken from Birke-

nau to the main camp by the SS. There they are led to the gas chamber in

141 AGK, Leichenhallenbuch, Collection “OB,” 385, pp. 42f. and following.
142 AGK, NTN, 149, pp. 142f., serial numbers 2083 and 2092.

143 1bid., p. 142, serial numbers 2081 and 2082.

144 APMO, Fot. 423, pp. 142f.



CARLO MATTOGNO - CURATED LIES 103

Crematorium I and killed with gas. Thus the witnesses to the corpse burn-
ing are disposed of.”

For 6 December 1942 she notes (p. 280):

“A new Special Squad is formed to which several dozen Jewish prisoners,
selected from Section B-lb, are assigned. It is probably called Special
Squad Il; some of those assigned to it are Meilech (Milton) Buki (No.
80312) and Szlama Dragon (No. 80359) [...]. In the trial against Rudolf
Hdss, he [Szlama Dragon] appears as a witness and charges that the group
of Jewish prisoners was sent to the Special Squad on December 9 and em-
ployed in incinerating corpses for several days thereafter. On the other
hand, the camp documents indicate that the Special Squad [Il] must have
already been in existence when prisoners who were working in it made at-
tempts to escape on December 7 and 9.”

Her reference to “camp documents” most likely points at the above-mentioned
report by the officer on duty filed on 9 December 1942.

In summary, the Sonderkommando allegedly exterminated on 3 December
1942 is said to have been replaced by a Sonderkommando Il on 6 December,
which means the first one was Sonderkommando I. Czech claims that the pris-
oners who escaped on 7 and 9 December all came from Sonderkommando |,
but the report by the officer on duty explicitly says that the six detainees in
guestion had been employed in Sonderkommando I. By omitting the number
“I” in her entry on 9 December and by falsely asserting in her entry on 6 De-
cember that all escaped prisoners came from Sonderkommando I, Czech tried
to conceal the fact that on 9 December 1942 both a Sonderkommando | and a
Sonderkommando |1 existed simultaneously, which destroys her fallacious re-
construction. It is all too obvious that, if the two Sonderkommandos existed at
the same time, the first could not have been exterminated several days earlier,
and the second could not have taken its place a few days later.

Czech’s deceptions aimed at giving credence to the thesis that only one
Sonderkommando existed at Auschwitz which worked in the crematoria, and it
had to be the only one, because, as | explained above, its very name pointed at
its alleged duty of cooperation in the claimed Sonderbehandlung. It is clear
that the editor of the Auschwitz Chronicle was forced to resort to this decep-
tion because at that time (1989/1990) no document was known which estab-
lished a relationship between the Sonderkommando and the crematoria.

The Auschwitz Museum has since published a document on its website,
which, as far as | know, is the only one unequivocally establishing this rela-
tionship: the “escape report” of 7 September 1944 (see DOCUMENT 19).

Transcript:

“a) Geheime Staatspolizei Auschwitz

b) Stadtrevier Auschwitz

Pezola, Wachtm[eister] d[er] S[chutzpolizei] d.A. [?]
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€) 7.9.44. 1915 Uhr Wilczek

Fluchtmeldung.

Gegen 1400 Uhr ist heute aus dem K.L. Auschwitz Il vom Sonderkomman-
do (Krematorium) eine grofRere Anzahl Haftlinge ausgebrochen meist Ju-
den. Die Fliichtigen wurden bereits zum Teil bei der sofort aufgenomme-
nen Verfolgung erschossen. Die Suchaktion wird fortgesetzt.

Kennzeichen: geschoren, auf dem I[inken]. Unterarm eintétowierte No.
Kleidung teils Civil mit roten Streifen. Weitere Fahndungsmafnahmen
u[nd]. Verstandigung der untergeordneten Stellen bitte ich sofort durchzu-
fihren.

Es sind nur noch 4 Haftlinge fliichtig.

Verstarkte Streife zum Bahnhofsgelande entsandt. ”

Translation:

“[Column 1]

a) Secret Police Auschwitz

b) City district Auschwitz

Pezula, Constable of the Protective Police d.A. [?]

C) 7 Sept. 44. 19:15 AM Wilczek

[Column 2]

Escape report.

Around 1400 hours today, a large number of prisoners escaped from the

C.C. Auschwitz Il, from the Sonderkommando (crematorium), mostly Jews.

Some of the fugitives have already been shot during the instantly initiated

pursuit. The search operation continues.

Features: shaved, no. tattooed on the |.[eft] forearm. Clothing: partly civil-

ian with red stripes. | request to instantly carry out further search

measures a.[nd] to inform subordinate offices.

There are only 4 inmates left on the run.

[Column 3]

Reinforced patrol sent to the railway station area.”
This document tells us that there was a Sonderkommando even at the cremato-
rium, but this was just one of many Sonderkommandos existing at Auschwitz.
This is even confirmed indirectly by the document itself, because the fact that
it specifies in parentheses that they had escaped from the Sonderkommando of
the “crematorium” implies that there were also other Sonderkommandos. Even
the fact that only “most” of the escapees from this Sonderkommando were
Jews contradicts the orthodox Holocaust narrative, according to which basi-
cally all members of the Sonderkommando at the crematoria were Jews.

[30] Document 32 (pp. 139)

This is a letter by Bischoff to the Camp Commandant dated 17 April 1943
with the subject “Allocation of horse-stable barracks on a loan basis.” There is
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nothing new about this either, as | examined this document already elsewhere
(2004b, pp. 73f.). It states:**°

“The horse-stable barracks erected at Special Unit Il and at Crematorium
Il are urgently needed for troop accommodation in Birkenau and for the
infirmary in Construction Sector Il. After the operation of Special Unit 1l
has stopped and the corresponding rooms at Crematorium Il are availa-
ble as well, information is requested as to when the barracks can be dis-
mantled, so that they can be erected at the determined places as soon as
possible.”

The authors claim that Sonderkommando 11 refers to the inmate detail working
at “Bunker 11” and that the entry relating to Crematorium Il1 is erroneous and
should be Crematorium Il instead. Then they add:

“An extant map of the camp from March 20, 1943 shows the location of the
barracks next to the north wall of crematorium I1. It served as a provision-
al undressing facility before the completion of the underground rooms de-
signated for this purpose.” (p. 138)

The first interpretation, as | noted above, is completely unfounded: Sonder-
kommando Il was referring to the storage of personal effects confiscated from
the deportees, and was therefore unrelated to the chimeric “Bunker I1.” The
activity of Sonderkommando Il had ceased because, as explained in the file
memo of 20 February 1943, the new Birkenau Effektenlager went into opera-
tion in late February/early March 1943.

The second interpretation is equally unfounded. It should be noted right
away that the map of 20 March 1943 (reproduced by the authors on their p.
140) had already been published by Jean-Claude Pressac, as will be seen. He
meant to use it in order to undergird Henryk Tauber’s declaration which at-
tributed a murderous purpose to this shed, a claim embraced by the authors.
On this issue there are again a number of other fundamental documents which
the authors ignore. | reiterate here a slightly updated version of my exposé
published in another study (2019, pp. 67-73).

On 21 January 1943, the SS garrison surgeon of Auschwitz, SS-Haupt-
sturmfiihrer Eduard Wirths, wrote a letter to the camp commander:**®

“1. The SS garrison surgeon at Auschwitz requests to install a partition in
the dissecting hall planned for the new crematorium building at Birkenau,
dividing the hall into 2 rooms of equal size and to have 1 or 2 wash basins
installed in the first of these rooms, because the latter will be needed as an
autopsy room, whereas the 2nd room will be needed for anatomical prepa-
rations, for the preservation of files and writing materials and books, for

145 «Leihweise Zurverfiigungstellung von Pferdestallbaracken Typ 260/9.” RGVA, 502-1-79, p. 119.
146 RGVA, 502-1-313, p. 57.
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the preparation of colored tissue sections and for work with the micro-
scope.

2. Furthermore it is requested to provide for an ‘undressing room’ [Aus-
kleideraum] in the cellar rooms.”

Highly important conclusions for our topic derive from this letter. Before set-
ting them out, we must outline the implications of the alleged decision to
transform Leichenkeller 1 of Crematoria Il and Il into homicidal gas cham-
bers.

If we follow Pressac, the Central Construction Office decided in November
1942 “to equip the crematoria with homicidal gas chambers” (1993, p. 66).
This decision is said to have begun to permeate the crematoria projects such as
Blueprint No. 2003 of 19 December 1942. Because a ventilation with aeration
and de-aeration had been planned only for Leichenkeller 1, it is clear that this
room had to become the homicidal gas chamber. And because it was planned
to implement mass exterminations, it is also clear that Leichenkeller 2 had to
be turned into the undressing room for the future victims, in keeping with the
procedure already tried out — according to Pressac — in Crematorium I. Hence,
the decision to transform Leichenkeller 1 into a homicidal gas chamber im-
plied the decision to transform Leichenkeller 2 into an undressing room, and
the two decisions were taken at the same time.

This having been said, let us go back to the letter discussed above, from
which we derive:

1. The decision to create an undressing room in the crematorium was taken
neither by the Kommandantur (the camp commander, i.e. H8ss) nor by
Central Construction Office (Bischoff) but by the SS garrison surgeon.

2. The garrison surgeon did not specify anything in particular in his request,
presenting it as a mere afterthought to the sanitary and hygienic require-
ments set out for the autopsy room.

3. In hygienic and sanitary matters, as well as in matters relating to pathology
and forensic medicine, the crematorium was attached to the garrison sur-
geon who knew the corresponding projects very well and occasionally in-
tervened — as in this case — with the Central Construction Office asking for
modifications.

4. The letter cited demonstrates that the SS garrison surgeon was completely
unaware of the alleged plan to change Leichenkeller 2 into an undressing
room for the victims to be gassed: he requested for an undressing room to
be provided, in a very general way, “in the cellar rooms” without specifi-
cally mentioning Leichenkeller 2 or excluding Leichenkeller 1 for this pur-
pose. However, in view of his position, the SS garrison surgeon could not
have been unaware of a decision, allegedly taken three months earlier, to
create an undressing room in Leichenkeller 2, because otherwise, consider-
ing his position in the camp hierarchy, such a decision could not actually
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have been arrived at. Yet as results from the above document, the idea of
an undressing room was conceived by the SS garrison surgeon only in Jan-
uary 1943 and conveyed to the Auschwitz camp commander on January
21st.

On 15 February, Janisch replied to the SS garrison surgeon’s letter by a hand-

written note stating:**’

“item 1.) has been arranged for.
item 2.) for undressing, a horse-stable barrack has been erected in front of
the cellar entrance.”

Why should a crematorium have an undressing room? And why was a barrack
built for such a purpose?

Pressac has noted that a horse-stable-type barrack in front of the crematori-
um does indeed appear on the map entitled “Situation map of the PoW Camp
Auschwitz O/S” dated 20 March 1943. It is at the location mentioned by Jan-
isch, i.e. “in front of the cellar entrance.” Pressac writes (1989, p. 462):

“The drawing confirms the erection of a hut of the stable type in the north
yard of Krematorium Il in March 1943. We know little about this hut, ex-
cept that after serving as an undressing room for the first batch of Jews to
be gassed in this Krematorium, it was quickly dismantled — only a week
later according to the Sonderkommando witness Henryk Tauber. The first
mention of an access stairway through Leichenkeller 2 found in the PMO
archives, BW 30/40, page 68e, is dated 26/2/43 (Document 7a). As soon as
this entrance was operational, the undressing hut was no longer required. ”
Pressac treats the matter also elsewhere, but provides a different reasoning
(ibid., p. 227):
“On Sunday 14th March, Messing continued installing the ventilation of
Leichenkeller 2, which he called ‘Auskleidekeller 11/Undressing Cellar I1.’
In the evening, about 1,500 Jews from the Cracow ghetto were the first vic-
tims to be gassed in Krematorium Il. They did not undress in Leichenkeller
2, still cluttered with tools and ventilation components, but in a stable-type
hut temporarily erected in the north yard of the Krematorium.”
He later comes back to the first interpretation (ibid., p. 492):
“This Bauleitung source confirms the erection in mid-March 1943 of a hut
running south-north in the north yard of Krematorium Il, which was used,
according to Henryk Tauber, as an undressing room, apparently because
the access to the underground undressing room (Leichenkeller 2) was not
yet completed. ”
.148

Pressac refers to the following statement by Henryk Tauber:

147 RGVA, 502-1-313, p. 57a.
148 Minutes of the deposition of Henryk Tauber dated 24 May 1945, before the investigating Judge
Jan Sehn. Héss Trial, vol. 11, pp. 122-150, here, p. 136.
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“They [the alleged victims] were pushed into a barrack which then stood
perpendicular to the building of the crematorium on the side of the en-
trance to the yard of crematorium no. Il. The people entered into this bar-
rack through a door located near the entrance and went down [into the
half-basement of the crematorium] along steps which were to the right of
the Muhlverbrennung [sic] (garbage incinerator). This barrack was used
at the time as an undressing place. But it was used for more or less one
week and was then dismantled. ”

Pressac publishes Map 2216 of 20 March 1943 in its entirety, but with illegi-
ble writing (ibid., p. 226). However, he points out a detail from another ver-
sion of this map (corresponding to another negative at the Auschwitz Muse-
um) in which the entries are clearly visible (ibid., p. 462). The barrack in front
of the crematorium is shown as a light-colored rectangle, a symbol which cor-
responds neither to a finished barrack, which would have been a dark rectan-
gle, nor to a barrack under construction, which would have had diagonal
hatching, but to a planned barrack. This shows up even more clearly in anoth-
er detail of this map also published by Pressac (ibid., p. 256).

There is, moreover, yet another map of Birkenau, drawn up immediately
prior to the one shown by Pressac, in which the barrack in question does not
appear at all. It is the “Development Map for the Erection and Extension of
the Concentration and POW Camp, Map No. 2215” dated March 1943 (see
Note 71 on p. 73). As it has the number 2215, it was prepared immediately be-
fore the one numbered 2216, and therefore dates from 20 March 1943 or be-
fore.

It is not clear why this barrack appears only on Map 2216. Even though it
had already been erected in front of Crematorium Il on 15 February 1943, it is
not indicated on map 1991 of 17 February, which otherwise shows barracks
planned, under construction, and finished (Pressac 1989, p. 220). This is prob-
ably due to its being an emergency stop-gap measure. One does not know
when the barrack was taken down. What is certain, however, is that the erec-
tion of this barrack had nothing to do with the alleged homicidal gassings.

Pressac’s first explanation — that the barrack was erected because access to
Leichenkeller 2 was not yet ready — does not hold much water. Speaking of
Crematorium 111, he affirms that work on the entrance to Leichenkeller 2 of
Crematorium 111 began on 10 February 1943, and that for Crematorium Il the
only reference to the realization of an entrance is dated 26 February, which
according to Pressac would lead us into an irresolvable paradox (1989, p.
217). In fact, there is no paradox, because Pressac’s dates for Crematorium IIT
are wrong. On 14 March 1943, the entrance was perfectly serviceable, and
there would therefore have been no need for an undressing barrack.

On 20 March 1943, the day on which map 2216 was being prepared, the
SS garrison surgeon at Auschwitz, in a letter to the camp commander, men-
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tioned the removal of the corpses from the detainee hospital to the crematori-
um.*® This makes the matter very clear. The SS garrison surgeon was worried
about the poor sanitary and hygienic conditions in which the corpses of the de-
tainees were kept on account of the inadequacy of the then existing morgues.
These were simple wooden sheds which could not keep rats from feeding on
the corpses, with the risk of an outbreak of the plague, as he writes clearly in
his letter of 20 July 1943™° about a situation which must already have existed
in January.

The SS garrison surgeon thus intended to have the corpses taken to a safer
place, from a sanitary point of view, and the best places were obviously the
two morgues of Crematorium Il which, at that time, was the farthest advanced.
On 21 January 1943 he requested the provision of an undressing room for
these corpses “in the cellar rooms” of Crematorium Il. On 29 January, Bis-
choff replied that the corpses of the detainees could not be placed in Leichen-
keller 2, but said that this was irrelevant because they could be placed in the
Vergasungskeller instead.

On 15 February Janisch informed the garrison surgeon that “a horse-stable-
type barrack in front of the cellar entrance” had been erected at Crematorium
Il as an undressing room for the corpses. This barrack was therefore built be-
tween 21 January and 15 February, and for that reason alone it could not have
had a criminal purpose. This is confirmed by the fact that Crematorium Il
went into operation on 20 February 1943. A report by Kirschnek dated 29

March 1943, states the following about this crematorium:*!

“Brickwork completely finished and started up on 20 February 1943.”

Thus, the crematorium went into operation even before the ventilation had
been installed in Leichenkeller 1, which means that it received corpses even
before that room could theoretically have been used as a homicidal gas cham-
ber. But why then was an outdoor barrack needed? The answer is simple. On
11 February 1943 — four days before the date of Janisch’s reply to the SS gar-
rison surgeon — work on the installation of the ventilation equipment in
Leichenkeller 1 had begun,*® and therefore this room was no longer available
as an undressing room. Besides, Leichenkeller 2 was not operational either
from January 1943 onwards. In “Report no. 1” from Bischoff to Kammler dat-

149 ) etter from SS-Standortarzt to the Commandant of CC dated 20 March 1943, concerning “Haft-
lings-Krankenbau — KGL.” RGVA, 502-1-261, p. 112.

150 | etter from SS-Standortarzt to Zentralbauleitung of July 20, 1943 concerning “Hygienische So-
fort-Massnahmen im KL.” RGVA, 502-1-170, p. 263.

181 “Titigkeitsbericht des SS-Ustuf. (F) Kirschnek, Bauleiter fur das Schutzhaftlager und fiir land-
wirtschaftliche Bauvorhaben. 1. Jan. 1943 bis 31. Méarz 1943,” of March 29, 1943. RGVA, 502-1-
26, p. 59.

152 APMO, BW 30/31, p. 30.
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ed 23 January on the subject “Crematoria POW camp, state of advancement”
we can read:'®

“Cellar 1l. Reinforced-concrete ceiling finished, removal of planking sub-
ject to weather conditions.”

In his report dated 29 January 1943, Priifer confirmed:*>*

“Ceiling of Leichenkeller 2 cannot yet be freed of planking because of
frost.”

On the same day, Kirschnek confirms in a file memo:

“Leichenkeller 2 basically finished, except for removal of planking from
ceiling, which can only be done on days without frost. ”

Finally, as we have already seen, Bischoff informs Kammler in his letter of 29
January 1943:1%

“The Reinforced-concrete ceiling of the Leichenkeller could not yet be
freed of its planking because of frost conditions. ”

During the first week of February 1943, average temperatures at Krakow were
below —5°C, and during the second week below 0°C (Setkiewicz 2011b, p.
59), which makes it highly likely that Leichenkeller 2 remained non-operatio-
nal for some time longer because of the impossibility to remove the form
planks from the concrete.

On 8 March 1943, Messing, the technician, began to install the ventilation
duct in Leichenkeller 2, which he regularly calls “undressing cellar” in his
weekly work reports.’> The work was finished on 31 March 1943 (“de-aera-
tion system undressing cellar installed”).!*® Therefore, already by 8 March the
Central Construction Office — acting on the request of SS garrison surgeon —
had decided to create an undressing room in the half-basement of Crematori-
um II, more specifically in Leichenkeller 2. As against this, Leichenkeller 1
became operational as of March 13 (“aeration and de-aeration systems of cel-
lar 1 put into service”).™ On 20 March, the day of the alleged gassing of
2,191 Greek Jews (Czech 1990, p. 356), the SS garrison surgeon was occupied
only with the removal of the corpses of detainees from the camp hospital to
Crematorium Il without any reference to any alleged gassing victims.

We now have the answers to the two questions raised in the beginning:

1. The undressing room was used for the corpses of the detainees who had
died in the camp. At the Belsen trial, SS-Hauptsturmfihrer Josef Kramer,

155

158 RGVA, 502-1-313, p. 54.

15 APMO, BW 30/40, p. 101.

155 APMO, BW 30/34, p. 105.

15 APMO, BW 30/34, p. 100.

157 Arbeitszeit-Bescheinigung of Topf for the period of March 8-14, 1943. APMO, D-ZBau/2540, p.
26.

158 |bid., p. 23.
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commander of the Auschwitz Camp from May 8, 1944, declared in this re-
spect (Phillips, p. 731):
“Whoever died during the day was put into a special building called the
mortuary, and they were carried to the crematorium every evening by
lorry. They were loaded on the lorry and off the lorry by prisoners. They
were stripped by the prisoners of their clothes in the crematorium before
being cremated. ”

2. Initially a barrack set up in front of the crematorium was used as undress-
ing room, because Leichenkeller 2 was not yet operational on 21 January
1943, the day the SS garrison surgeon requested an undressing room;
Leichenkeller 1 was available from 11 February.

The existence of an undressing room in the crematorium is therefore entirely

normal, as results moreover from the assignment of rooms in Crematorium |

of the Main Camp: Laying-out room (Aufbahrungsraum), corpse washing
room (Waschraum) and morgue (Leichenhalle). As the corpses were cremated
without a coffin, the Laying-out room was not a “hall for the placement of the
corpse on a stretcher” but a room in which the bodies were undressed before
being washed in the room next door and finally placed naked in the morgue.
This exposé deals with the building appearing on Map No. 2216 of 20

March 1943, but that does not mean that Bischoff’s letter of 17 April 1943

(Document 32) refers to it, erroneously mentioning twice Crematorium Il in-

stead of Crematorium Il. Because this building was dismantled after just a

week, hence toward the end of March, if we follow the orthodox Holocaust

authority Henryk Tauber, we have to assume that Bischoff was referring pre-
cisely to Crematorium Ill. Although it was in an advanced stage of construc-

tion at that time, this crematorium became operational only on 26 June 1943.

This means that one or more shacks erected near it before 17 April could not

have had a criminal purpose. Their purpose could simply have been for the

temporary storage of crematorium or construction equipment. When “the cor-
responding rooms at Crematorium 111 were available for their intended pur-
pose, the barrack was dismantled (or the barracks).

[31] Document 33 (pp. 143-145)

On 7 May 1943 Kammler visited Auschwitz. At 20:15, at the Fihrerheim (of-
ficers’ hall), he had a meeting with six SS officers, SS-Obersturmbannfiihrer
Hoéss, commandant of the camp, SS-Obersturmbannfiihrer Mockel, head of
the SS garrison administration, SS-Sturmbannfihrer Bischoff, head of the
Central Construction Office, SS-Sturmbannfihrer Caesar [Cdsar], head of ag-
ricultural units, SS-Hauptsturmfuhrer Wirths, garrison surgeon, and SS-
Untersturmfihrer Kirschnek, head of the construction office C.C. Auschwitz
and agriculture Auschwitz.
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After that meeting, Bischoff wrote a file memo on 9 May which the au-
thors present as their Document 33. As point i), under the heading “Agricul-
tural Construction,” it states:'*°

“I. Stable farm Birkenau:

Two horse-stable barracks from ‘Special Operation 1’ are erected in addi-
tion to one Swiss and one air-force barrack. While all agricultural struc-
tures are now to be finished in sequence with massive efforts, erecting
these barracks is particularly urgent.”

The authors first decree that “Special Operation 1” was “Bunker 1,” then ex-

plain:
“Documents 32 and 33 indicate that bunkers | and Il were withdrawn from
use in May 1943. In the light of the entry into operation of the new crema-
toria and gas chambers in the first half of 1943, there were probably plans
for the dismantling of both bunkers. It seems, however, that the malfunc-
tions of the crematoria that occurred at the turn of May/June 1943, which
could potentially result in the suspension of the extermination of the Jews,
led to the abandonment of these plans.” (p. 142)

From this document we can actually infer on the one hand that there was at
least one “Special Operation 2,” and on the other hand that “Special Operation
1” had more than two barracks. It is therefore clear that “Special Operation 1”
corresponded to the activity of Sonderkommando 1 at the three barracks for
inmate property (Effektenbaracken) assigned to it, and that Sonderkommando
2 was in service at “Special Operation 2.” And if “Sonderkommando 2” had
gone out of business on 17 April 1943, and on 9 May two of the three barracks
of “Special Operation 1” could be put to another use,*® this resulted obviously
from the fact that the 30 barracks of the Effektenlager were ready for use since
late February/early March 1943, as | pointed out above.

[32] Document 34 (p. 147)

This is a letter by Bischoff to the head of the SS garrison administration, SS-
Obersturmbannfiihrer Karl Ernst Mdckel, dated 4 February 1944, stating:

“For carrying out a special measure, | once made available 3 horse-stable
barracks from Construction Sector Il of the PoW camp on a loan basis.
After the crematoria have been completed long time ago and have been
handed over to your administration, the above-mentioned barracks allo-
cated on a loan basis are no longer needed at Sonderkommando 1. The
barracks were meant for a specific purpose and must be set up in the Con-
struction Sector 11 of the PoW camp. [...]

1% RGVA, 502-2-117, p. 6.
180 Both documents speak of “horse-stable barracks,” as in the file memo of 10 February 1943 in rela-
tion to Sonderkommando 1 and 2.
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I have given orders that the barracks are to be dismantled at Sonderkom-
mando | and are to be set up in Construction Sector II.”

According to the authors,

“This passage indicates that bunker | and its three undressing barracks
were still in existence in early 1944, and that their occasional use for kill-
ing Jews deported to Auschwitz as late as the second half of 1943 cannot
be ruled out.” (p. 146)

Here the authors are forced to overturn one of the tenets of the fantastic ortho-
dox story of the “bunkers” at Birkenau, according to which, as | pointed out in
my comments to Document 16, “Bunker 1” was demolished and the alleged
undressing barracks were removed in March/April 1943. The historians at the
Auschwitz Museum arrived at this tenet based on testimonies, starting with
the fundamental one by Szlama Dragon. If they want to change that story line
now, they will also have to admit that the testimonies upon which the old ver-
sion is based are incorrect, unreliable or deceitful. But since the entire story of
the “bunkers” as extermination facilities is based exclusively on testimonies,
that entire story would thus become incorrect, unreliable or deceitful.

There is also another serious problem. Eyewitnesses of the “bunkers” do
not refer to any activities of these alleged extermination facilities for the peri-
od from March/April 1943 through May 1944, so that the authors’ random
conjectures are without any anecdotal support.

The authors’ interpretation is not merely unfounded, but also contradictory.
In fact, they claim that the “Special Operation 1” mentioned in the file memo
of 9 May 1943 (their Document 33) refers to “Bunker 1.” In that case, two of
the three alleged undressing barracks would have been dismantled already in
May 1943 and installed at the “stable farm Birkenau.” There can be little
doubt about that, because Bischoff had declared that their setup was “particu-
larly urgent,” and because Kammler had ordered the transfer of 60 inmate car-
penters from Weimar and Neuengamme to Auschwitz for this project.’®! If
that is so, how could there still have been three barracks near “Bunker 1” in
February 1944?

I will return to this document’s reference to the crematoria in Section 12 of
Part Two.

[33] Document 35 (pp. 149-151)
Document 35 is a telegram by Kammler to Bischoff dated 21 May 1944 with
the following text:

“For Special Operation Hungary Program 3 horse-stable barracks are to
be set up immediately at the evasion bunkers.”

161 RGVA, 502-1-233, p. 35.
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The authors, who erroneously translate the German prefix Ausweich- as re-
serve, assert that this document refers to “bunker II, referred to here as a ‘re-
serve bunker’ (Ausweichbunker)” (p. 148).

For the real meaning of this document, I point the reader to what | have al-
ready laid out in a different study (2004b, pp. 96-98), and | elaborate on it fur-
ther here.

On 31 May 1944 Bischoff, as head of the Construction Inspection Office of
the Waffen-SS and Police, Silesia, sent a letter to the Central Construction Of-
fice on the subject “Construction of three horse-stable barracks for Special
Operation Hungary,” in which he advised, with reference to Kammler’s tele-
gram of 25 May, that the barracks were to be picked up from Construction
Depot | (depot for storing construction material) of the Construction Inspec-
tion Office of Silesia, and he requested the immediate preparation of the nec-
essary administrative documents for the construction.’®? This is the authors’
Document 37, of which they published a transcript of the original X3

Their interpretation is based on a misreading of the two terms Sonderaktion
(special operation) and Ausweichbunker (evasion bunker). As to the first, the
authors tacitly assume that it referred to the alleged gassing of Jews. In fact, as
I have shown with documents in a dedicated study, the term had a wide range
of meanings that not only revolved around the internment of Jewish deporta-
tion convoys and the transport and storage of their personal effects, but also
referred to the construction of hygienic and sanitation facilities, and in one
case even to the interrogation of civilian workers by the Political Department
of the camp (2004b, pp. 60-75, 96-99).

The Sonderaktion was finally also connected to the collection and sorting
of Jewish assets. SS-Sturmbannfuhrer Alfred Franke-Gricksch made an in-
spection visit to Poland between 4 and 16 May 1943, about which he wrote a
detailed report. Among other things, he visited Auschwitz and Lublin, where
he became interested in Operation Reinhardt. Today, only an English transla-
tion of this report is known. It uses the term ““special enterprise’ Reinhard,”**
while another translation of the document shows the original expression:

“Sonderaktion ‘Reinhard,”” which is described as follows:®

“This branch has had the task of realising all mobile Jewish property in
the Gouvernement Poland.”
This explains the request dated 24 December 1943 from the head of the Cen-

tral Construction Office to the SS Garrison Administration:'%

162 | etter by the Leiter der Bauinspektion der Waffen-SS und Polizei “Schlesien” (Bischoff) to the
Central Construction Office of 31 May 1944. RGVA, 502-1-251, p. 46.

163 RGVA, 501-2-351, p. 46.

164 TNA, WO 309-374, pp. 6f.

185 TNA, WO 309-2241, p. 6.

166 | etter by the head of the Zentralbauleitung to the SS Standortverwaltung of 24 December 1943.
RGVA, 502-1-345, p. 69. See Mattogno 2004b, Document 23, p. 136.
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“For the operations of the Construction Office of the POW camp Birkenau,
the following drafting instruments are most urgently required:

10 sets of drawing instruments, 10 stylographs

10 slide rules

5 calipers

It is requested that these be made available on loan to the Construction Of-
fice from the stores of the special operations.”

A message partially deciphered by the British on 18 Dec. 1942 spoke of
“stocks from the Jewish resettlement” which included watches and razors,
among other things.*®’

This also explains the “special operation” mentioned in Document 33.

Next we turn to the authors’ faulty interpretation of the term Ausweich-
bunker. First, the authors’ translation for Ausweich- as “reserve” is flawed.
The German verb ausweichen translates as “to get out of the way of some-
thing, to avoid, elude, evade, dodge, swerve, shirk, duck.” The term “reserve”
is nowhere connected to it. It can therefore not surprise that this structure had
nothing to do with the alleged “Bunker 2.” This is already clear from the fact
that “Bunker 2” is said to have been the only homicidal “bunker” in operation
in the summer of 1944, while the three barracks for the “Special Operation
Hungary” had to be installed “at the reserve bunkers” (“bei den Aus-
weichbunkern”) in the plural.

Ausweichbunker were in fact harmless bomb shelters — built so people
could “get out of the way of, avoid, elude, evade, dodge, swerve, shirk, duck”
Allied bombs. Point 2 of Garrison Order No. 12/44 of 12 April 1944, titled
“evasion points in case of air-raid alarm” (Ausweichstellen bei Fliegeralarm),
provided that, in case of an air-raid attack against housing, the rank and file
should seek shelter in the indicated “evasion rooms” (Ausweichraume) and
explained:*®®

“The evasion rooms are meant to have the purpose of protecting rank and

file from bomb blasts, shrapnel, and fire”

The various types of air-raid shelters also included proper air-raid shelters
(Luftschutz-Bunker), which were bomb-proof structures (bombensichere Bau-
werke).'®® Therefore the “evasion bunkers” (Ausweichbunker) were air-raid
bunkers probably destined for the SS troops running the camp.

Garrison Order no. 13/44 of 2 May 1944 dedicated its Point 6 to the “pollu-
tion of the line of bunkers,” complaining that:"™

167 TNA, HW 16/22, German Police Decodes No. 3 Traffic: 18.12.1942. ZIP/GPDD 331b/22.12.42.

168 «“Sonderbefehl Nr. 12/44” of 12 April 1944. AGK, NTN, 121, p. 114.

169 3S-Wirtschafts-Verwaltungshauptamt. Amtsgruppe C. Amt C 11 - Technische Fachgebiete.
“Richtlinie Nr. 58” of 14 July 1944. RGVA, 501-1-401, page number illegible.

170 Freij et al. 2000, p. 442.
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“The prisoners use the prepared field positions and bunkers within the
large sentry cordon as toilets. ”

Regarding other documents, the authors write:

“Two more telegrams with similar contents were sent to Auschwitz several
days later, on May 25 and 30, 1944.” (p. 148)

In reality only one document exists, the original of which, dated 25 May 1944,
was published years ago by me (2004b, Document 25, p. 138).1* The authors
reproduce it on p. 150. The transcript of this telegram reproduced on their p.
149 bears the erroneous date of 21 May;'"? this document was again tran-
scribed on 30 May (reproduced on their p. 151); yet another transcript which
the authors did not publish was passed on to Jothann at the Birkenau Con-
struction Office on that same day.*"

In conclusion, the three horse-stable barracks for the Special Operation
Hungary had to be set up near air-raid shelters and had consequently no rela-
tion to the imaginary “Bunker 2.”

[34] Documents 36 (pp. 153-156), 40 (p. 167) and 42 (p. 171)
Document 36 is presented by the authors as follows:

“Request dated May 26, 1944 for the re-erection of three barracks desig-
nated for a special operation (Errichtung von 3 Baracken fur Sondermass-
nahmen). There can be no doubt that they were to be located at one of the
already existing bunkers, which previously bore the number Il. Page 2 of
this document is a standard formula used to describe the implementation of
construction projects. The rubric ‘time of construction’ (Bauzeit) often re-
fers in such documents not to any specific step, but rather to the general
time frame of the entire construction project. That is why the protocol con-
tains the information that the work on erecting the barracks in Birkenau
for special operations was begun in March 1942 (Bauzeit: mit den Arbeit-
en wurde im Marz 1942 begonnen). This is indirect evidence that bunker |
dates from and began operating in March 1942.” (p. 152)

The document in question is a “construction request for the expansion of the
PoW camp of the Waffen-SS at Auschwitz Upper Silesia. Installation of 3 bar-
racks for special measures” prepared on 26 May 1944.1" The authors’ claim
that this was a re-erection is only a transparent ploy to create a fictitious con-
nection with the alleged barracks of “Bunker 2” of the first operational phase
(mid-1942 to early 1943). Their claim about the “indirect proof” of the exist-
ence of “Bunker 1” since March 1942 is absolutely inconsistent. The reference

1 RGVA, 502-1-83, p. 22.

172 RGVA, 502-1-83, p. 21.

173 RGVA, 502-1-83, p. 21a.

114 RGVA, 502-2-125, pp. 227-229. See DOCUMENT 22
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to the beginning of the work in March 1942 is in fact a standard phrase taken
from another application form, like the one directly thereafter: “The buildings
have [been] completed and handed over for use to the SS garrison administra-
tion,” which, if it were true, would mean that Jothann filed a construction re-
quest after the structure had already been finished and handed over!

The authors, however, commit an even more serious error — attested to by
their comment on Document 42 — attributing to the elusive “Bunker 2” both
the “3 horse-stable barracks for Special Operation Hungary” and the “3 bar-
racks for special measures,” as if they were of the same barracks. In reality,
however, as is confirmed by their Document 42, these were two different
structures: the “3 barracks for special measures” were part of BW 54, while
the “3 horse-stable barracks for Special Operation Hungary” were part of BW
33a.

Document 42 is a “list of existing construction requests of the Central Con-
struction Office for the construction project PoW Camp Auschwitz, Upper Si-
lesia.” The first three columns show the serial number, the structure’s ID, and
the number and date of construction order. Entries no. 49 and 50 have the fol-
lowing handwritten annotations:

“49. 33A 3 barracks for special measures
50. 54 3 barracks for special measures (Hungary).”

The authors comment:

“The meaning of this entry is not completely understood. It might, howev-
er, be hypothesized that two orders have been entered twice, and that the
annotation (Ungarn) in point 50 actually pertains to point 49 because the
designation of investment BW33A corresponds to work connected with the
undressing barracks that existed at the bunkers in 1942 and 1943.” (p.
170)

It is clear that they have understood nothing of the issue at hand, particularly
when considering their false interpretation of the explanatory report of 30 Sep-
tember 1943 (their Document 17). They interpret the document in retrospect,
as if (in this case) it were referring to barracks already completed in the past.
Only by doing this are they able to allocate the three barracks for special
measures Type 260/9 mentioned therein for Construction Sectors Il and 11 of
Birkenau to the “bunkers,” which are said to have gone into operation in 1942,

In reality, however, this is a very simple project, as is clear from the fact
that three barracks of Construction Sector 11, called BW 33a, are preceded by
a series of structures related to the hospital camp (BW 3a, 4c, 4e, 4f6 ¢, 7 c,
12 ¢, 12 b), a total of 167 barracks, but on 6 October 1943, about a week after
the preparation of the explanatory report mentioned above, the shells of only
47 barracks had been erected (im Rohbau).'” As | explained above, both the

175 | etter by Jothann to Kammler of 6 October 1943. RGVA, 502-1-351, p. 352.



118 CARLO MATTOGNO - CURATED LIES

existing houses as well as the barracks for special measures appear for the first
time in this document, which means that the barracks did not exist prior to 20
September 1943.

Another essential thing which has escaped the authors’ attention is the fact
that the three barracks for special measures from the construction request of
26 May 1944 (Document 36) are identical to the three barracks for special
measures in Construction Sector 111 of the explanatory report of 30 September
1943: the planned expenditure is in fact identical (RM 55,758), and Document
42 identifies these three barracks as BW 33A (or 33a).

This is further confirmed by a document ignored by the authors. It is the
construction expense ledger (Bauausgabebuch) of BW 54, headed precisely “3
barracks for special measures.”*’® It gives the expense chapter with <21/7 b”
and the title “(Bau) 65”. The back specifies the work carried out on 5 Septem-
ber 1944 by the company Lenz & Co. A.G. Kattowitz for a total amount of
681.08 RM. It can therefore be stated with certainty that the three barracks in
question were erected in early September 1944.

The “Construction Order No. 61” issued by Bischoff as head of the Con-
struction Inspectorate of the Waffen-SS and Police “Silesia” dated 11 July
1944 is about the “construction request for the installation of 3 barracks for
special measures.” The reference is to a letter from the Central Construction
Office dated 19 June with registration number 51851/44/Tei/L. The total ex-
pense is calculated as 51,000 RM.Y"" The authors’ Document 40 (p. 167) al-
lows us to correctly interpret Bischoff’s order.

On 19 June 1944, Jothann sent to the Construction Inspectorate of the
Walffen-SS and Police “Silesia” a letter with protocol number 51851/44/Tei/L.
with the subject: “CC Il — Structure: — Construction Request for installation of
3 barracks for special measures in CC Il [Birkenau].” Attached to this letter
was the construction request of 26 May 1944, which in fact bears the stamp
“Gepruft” (audited) of Construction Inspectorate of the Waffen-SS and Police
“Silesia” with the date of 6 July 1944. The estimated cost was 61,000 RM,
recorded in expenditure item 21/7b (Bau) 65, which was that of structure BW
54.178 All these data coincide with those of Bischoff’s “Construction Order
No. 61,” except for the expense, which was undoubtedly reduced by his office
from 61,000 to 51,000 RM.

It can therefore be concluded with certainty that the “3 barracks for special
measures / BW 54” had no relation to the legendary “Bunker 2.”

The text of Document 36 published by the authors was a first version that
was subsequently edited by hand (the total due for the three barracks was re-
duced from 55,758 to 46,467 RM). The document is partially torn at the mar-

176 RGVA, 502-1-111, pp. 573-573a. See DOCUMENT 20.

T RGVA, 502-1-281, p. 54. See DOCUMENT 21.

178 In the document published by the authors, the header row relating to “Subject” has a wide space
between “BW” and “— Bauantrag™: it is probable that the original text was “BW: 54 — Bauantrag.”
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gin. I reproduce all pages of the final, edited version in the Appendix (my
DOCUMENT 22).

[35] Document 37 (p. 159)

As mentioned before when discussing Document 35, Bischoff sent a letter to
the Central Construction Office on 31 May 1944 with the subject “Construc-
tion of 3 horse-stable barracks for Special Operation ‘Hungary.”” With refer-
ence to Kammler’s order of 25 May, he stated that the barracks had to be tak-
en from Bauhof | (storage of construction materials) of the Construction In-
spectorate “Silesia,” and demanded that the administrative steps needed for
this construction be carried out instantly.*®® This is the authors’ Document 37,
of which they published merely a transcript of the original.}”® They comment
as follows:

“These barracks had not yet been built, but they were at the so-called
Bauhof I—the construction material depot near the Auschwitz main camp
(Die Baracken sind dem Bauhof I der Bauinspektion ‘Schlesien’ zu ent-
nehmen). In the first phase of the extermination of the Jews deported from
Hungary, the persons destined to die in bunker Il were made to disrobe in
the open air nearby. This is confirmed by an aerial photograph of the
Birkenau camp taken by an RAF aircraft on May 30, 1944, in which only
the vestigial outlines of the old undressing barracks are visible.” (p. 158)

On p. 159, below this document, the authors publish a section of an air photo
showing the area of the alleged “Bunker 2.” Here they commit yet another
blunder, because the air photo in question was taken on 31 May 1944 by an
aircraft of the U.S. Air Forces.'®° | have dealt in depth with this and other air
photos in two of my earlier studies.*®

The issue is much more complex than the authors would have you believe.
It concerns not only three barracks, but also the activities around the alleged
homicidal “Bunker 2.”

In the photo of 31 May 1944, the old “forest road,” which is discussed here
in the section dealing with Document 19, is no longer well defined; the dis-
used road seems to have been invaded by vegetation. This is in contrast to the
three rectangular shapes which show newly cleared areas. It is therefore im-
possible that these were the footprints of the barracks that had been disman-
tled more than a year before.

Two barracks, erected on two of the three rectangular shapes just men-
tioned, appear in the vicinity of “Bunker 2 for the first time in an air photo

1% RGVA, 501-1-351, p. 46.

180 NA, Mission 60 PRS/462 60 SQ, Exposure 3056.

181 Mattogno 2004a, pp. 226f.; Mattogno 2005c, pp. 101-103 (photo of 31 May 1944 and its section
enlargements).
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taken on 26 June 1944,'®2 and more-clearly still on a photo made by the Royal
Air Force on 23 August 194418

On this photo, the “forest road” appears to have been restored. This road
started at the camp’s western gate (near the Effektenlager), then passed be-
tween the two newly erected barracks, and a few meters beyond that it merged
into the old road, forming the hypotenuse of a right triangle.

On 30 August 1944, two members of the camp resistance movement,
“Stakto” (Stanistaw Klodzinski) and an unidentified “J.,”” sent the following

secret message out of the camp:*8*

“The gassing of Jews continues. Transports from Lodz, the Netherlands
and Italy. The pits in which they cremated the corpses of the gassed at
Birkenau when the crematoria were insufficient, are currently filled up
[obecnie zasypujg] to erase the traces.”

This means that the outdoor cremations of allegedly gassed corpses had
ceased at that time, and consequently that the activities of “Bunker 2” had
ceased as well.

However, the two barracks still appear on an air photo taken on 29 No-
vember 1944,'% which also shows the building said to have been “Bunker 2.”
According to normal practice prevailing in Auschwitz because of the shortage
of barracks, when a barrack was no longer needed, it was dismantled and reas-
sembled wherever needed for another purpose. But if the two barracks had
been the changing rooms for the alleged victims of “Bunker 2,” why were
they left in place for three months after the cessation of its activities? This is
all the more inexplicable since, according to Czech, the presumed order to
“end all homicidal gassings” arrived at Auschwitz on 2 November 1944
(Czech 1990, p. 743).

No known document mentions these two barracks, so it is hard to say what
their purpose was. Even though they cannot be the “three horse-stable bar-
racks for Special Operation ‘Hungary,”” since those were three barracks rather
than just two, it seems certain that they have a direct relation to the deporta-
tion of the Hungarian Jews.

The Hungarian Jews were deported between mid-May and early July 1944.
They brought to Birkenau enormous quantities of personal items, which were
piled up in front of the barracks of the Effektenlager, as shown by various era
photos (Freyer/Pressac, photos 121-125, pp. 150-155). It is likely that the two
barracks in question, erected not far from the Effektenlager, were intended to
accommodate these items, which had to be protected from the elements. The

182 NA, Mission: 60/PR522 60SQ. Can: C1172, Exposure 5022.

183 Mattogno 2005¢, Documents 36 & 37, pp. 117f.

18 APMO, D-RO/85, vol. II, p. 126.

18 NA, Record Group no. 373, Mission: 15 SG/887 5 PG. Can: D 1610. Exposure: 4058. Auschwitz:
Open Air Incinerations, op. cit., Document 41 on p. 122.
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expansion of the courtyard of “Bunker 2” can be explained as follows: it was
used to unload the material, which was then sorted by the inmates and placed
inside the two barracks.

According to “eyewitnesses,” the following numbers of cremation pits are
said to have operated in the summer of 1944 in the area of “Bunker 2”:

— one according to Shaul Chasan and Shlomo Venezia;
— two according to Miklos Nyiszli and Dov Paisikovic;
— four according to Filip Miller.*8®

According to Filip Mller, the preparations for the extermination of the Hun-
garian Jews in “Bunker 2” (which he called “Bunker VV”*) began in early May
1944. Four “cremation pits” were excavated measuring 40-50 m x 8 m x 2 m.
In mid-May the first transports of Hungarian Jews arrived, who were allegedly
exterminated in “Bunker V.”*®

Dov Paisikovic claimed to have worked at “Bunker 2” for two weeks, from
23 May to 6 June. According to him, an uninterrupted extermination activity,
day and night, unfolded in that area on 31 May 1944. The two mass cremation
pits claimed by him measuring 30 m x 10 m or 30 m x 6 m had to operate at
full capacity. Pressac spoke of two small pits of 30 and 20 square meters.'®
The orthodox Holocaust writer Mark van Alstine claims to have identified on
air photos three “cremation pits” with an area of about 106.8 m2 each and
about 320 m2 in total in the area of the alleged “Bunker 2.”'®® Piper did not
mention the number of “cremation pits” near “Bunker 2,” but claimed that
their total capacity was 5,000 corpses per day.'®

On 31 May 1944, the area of “Bunker 2” would therefore have been an in-
ferno of fire and smoke, but the above-mentioned air photos, including the one
published by the authors, show no trace of either smoking or non-smoking
pits; or of any kind of smoke; or of any activity of the 100 or 150 inmates who
were allegedly employed there; or of trucks delivering fuel wood or removing
ashes; or of stacks of wood piled up for the cremation of the corpses. As |
mentioned above, in the air photo of 31 May 1944, the “forest road” was not
even in use. The only road linking the Birkenau Camp to “Bunker 2” started
from the area of the sewage-treatment plant, continued to the southwest, then
bent at a 90° angle to the southeast toward the area of “Bunker 2,” but it was
blocked by a thick hedge preventing access to the fenced-in yard of the build-
ing.’* So the claimed trucks with the victims (which are not visible on any air
photo either) had to stop at the end of the road, the victims had to get off the
trucks and somehow get through the hedge in order to get to the yard of the al-

18 Mattogno 2005c, p. 23.

187 Maller 1979, pp. 198-212.

188 Pressac 1994, p. 172.

189 Mattogno 2005c, p. 44.

190 Piper 1994, pp. 173f.

191 Mattogno 2005¢, Documents 20 & 22, pp. 103, 105.
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leged “bunker,” with the risk of them escaping and having to be shot at, and
all this in plain view of the camp. Hence the very air photo presented by the
authors radically debunks all their conjectures on the gassing “bunker” and its
alleged undressing barracks.

[36] Document 38 (p. 161)

This is a letter by Jothann dated 1 June 1944 with the subject “Erection of 3
horse-stable barracks — Special Operation ‘Hungary.”” The authors adduce it
as such without any comment.

[37] Document 39 (p. 163-165)

This is a file memo about the Auschwitz visit by SS-Obergruppenfihrer Pohl
on 16 June 1944, dated 17 June. In this regard the authors write:

“On page 2 of the protocol there is a list of intended construction projects
that cannot be carried out until the appropriate proposals have been sub-
mitted. Item 10 mentions three barracks needed as urgent measures for the
Jewish operation’ (3 Baracken fiir Sofortmassnahme ‘Judenaktion’).” (p.
162)

This document®® states that Pohl had authorized the list of 29 requested con-
struction projects, including these three barracks, after he had checked their
degree of urgency. Among these construction projects were finishing a build-
ing for the Hygienic Institute (Point 2), extending and finishing House No. 7
(Point 11), an air-raid shelter (Luftschutzbunker) and a shrapnel-protection
shelter (Splitterschutzbunker; Points 20, 21 and 29).

The term Sofortmassnahme (immediate measures) had no criminal connota-
tion, on the contrary: it is in fact referring to sanitation. For example, on 7
June 1943 the garrison surgeon submitted a request to the Central Construc-
tion Office requesting that, “in the course of the immediate measures to im-
prove the hygienic conditions in CC Auschwitz,” the hot-air-disinfestation
chambers be modified in such a way that they no longer pose any fire haz-
ard.'®® In another letter dated 20 July 1943 with the subject “hygienic immedi-
ate measures,” Wirths asked the Central Construction Office to install ade-
guate morgues, because rats were feeding on the corpses in the existing wood-
en ones.™*

It is also worth mentioning that the term special measures had the same
meaning. The entire Birkenau hospital sector BA Il was a “special measure,”
as the “List of barracks necessary for the implementation of the special meas-
ure in the PowW camp” of 11 June 1943 shows.'*®

192 NO-2359.

193 RGVA, 502-1-170, p. 150.

19 RGVA, 502-1-170, p. 263.

195 RGVA, 502-1-79, p. 100. See Mattogno 2016c, Document 26, p. 334.
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[38] Document 41 (p. 169)

This is the well-known “Construction Order No. 63,” signed by Bischoff on
20 July 1944, which refers to the “construction request for the erection of 3
barracks for special measures,” for a total amount RM 41,000.1® The authors
comment on this as follows:

“Under point 13 on page 2 of document 7 above, there is information that
three barracks for the ‘Jewish operation’ (Judenaktion) are 90 percent
completed. RAF aerial photographs from the second half of August 1944,
however, show that in the end only two undressing barracks were built at
bunker 11.” (p. 168)

The reference to their Document 7 is to the “List of structures under construc-
tion with extent of completion” dated 4 September 1944, which in Paragraph
13 of the list b) reads: “3 barracks for immediate measures (Jewish opera-
tion).” The list also includes finishing a residential house for agriculture (List
a), Item 9), finishing two residential houses for civilian employees (Item 20),
temporarily finishing 60 residential houses in the relevant camp area for
bombed-out SS members (Item 43), finishing a house for the Hygienic Insti-
tute (List b), Item 5), and the extension of House No. 7 (Item 14). The authors
do not even ask why the documents supposedly list the erection of the un-
dressing barracks at the elusive “bunker,” while being absolutely silent about
the transformation work which would have been required to convert the two
relevant existing houses into the claimed gassing facilities, although docu-
ments on similar conversion projects appear in abundance for many existing
houses which the Central Construction Office had taken over and put to one
use or another.

The authors’ conjecture is also senseless from a chronological point of
view. Kammler’s telegram containing the order to erect three barracks for
“Special Operation Hungary” dates back to 25 May 1944. The deportation of
Hungarian Jews to Auschwitz began on 15 May 1944, and the first transport
arrived at the camp on May 17 (Czech 1990, p. 628). By 25 May, already
138,870 Jews had been deported in 44 trains.*” During these first 10 days, on
average almost 13,900 Jews arrived at Birkenau every day, most of whom, ac-
cording to the historians at the Auschwitz Museum, were gassed in the
claimed extermination facilities at Birkenau, including “Bunker 2.” If, there-
fore, Kammler’s order was referring to the erection of three undressing bar-
racks near “Bunker 2,” this was not only a little late (the deportation schedule
had been discussed in Vienna on 4 and 5 May 1944, at which point Ausch-
witz camp administration must have been informed about the upcoming de-
portations). In addition, the order was not even implemented!

1% RGVA, 502-1-281, p. 57. See DOCUMENT 23
197 NG-5623.
198 NG-55605.
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Fact is that the deportation of the Hungarian Jews ended on 8 July 1944,
and the last transport arrived at Auschwitz three days later, but on 4 Septem-
ber the three barracks in question had still not been finalized and were not yet
in operation. Even if they were for the “Special Operation ‘Hungary,”” the
barracks now were meant to serve a completely different purpose. In fact, the
“Hungary Program” brings to mind the ““fighter-construction program,” a pro-
gram for the construction of underground aircraft factories to quickly build a
large fleet of small aircraft capable of defending Germany against the Allied
bomber fleets. For this purpose, Hitler informed Luftwaffe Field Marshal Er-
hard Milch on 9 April 1944 that Himmler was in charge of gathering 100,000
Hungarian Jews for this program,’®® and on 9 May the Fihrer ordered the
withdrawal from Sevastopol of 10,000 men to watch over 200,000 Jews who
were about to be sent to concentration camps in order to be deployed in that
program.”® Kammler’s stake in the “Special Operation ‘Hungary’” program
was that he was Himmler’s representative in the German government depart-
ment overseeing the production of fighter aircraft; he was the “Plenipotentiary
of the Reichsflihrer-SS at the Reich Ministry for Armaments and War Produc-
tion, ‘Fighter Staff”” (Bevollmé&chtigter des Reichsfiihrers-SS beim Reichs-
mininisterium fiir Riistung und Kriegsproduktion, ‘Jigerstab’).*

IV. Section “The Railroad Ramp (Alte Judenrampe)”

This section is the most-tenuous of the whole book, since the documents prof-
fered have not the slightest relevance to the alleged extermination of the Jews.

[39] Document 43 (p. 175)

This is a file memo by SS-Untersturmfiihrer Kirschnek dated 28 July 1943
which merely mentions the “Jews ramp” (Judenrampe), and this is the only
reason why the authors published it, as if this fact had been unknown! They
explain that on this ramp “SS men received transports of deportees and sub-
jected them to selection from mid-1942” (p. 174). Is the presence of the rail-
way ramp supposed to be evidence for the claim that arriving Jews were
gassed later on?

[40] Document 44 (p. 175)

It is a sketch by the industrial construction company Schlesische Industriebau
Lenz & Co. AG on a project called “railway construction — potato transporta-
tion to the potato bunker” — another real yet innocuous bunker! The sketch
sports a label saying “external ramp — Jew track” — and that’s all!

199 R-134.
20 NO-5689.
2L NARA, T 175/226, 2764970.
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[41] Document 45 (p. 179)

This is a letter by Bischoff to Kammler of 19 January 1943 concerning the
construction of a spur from the Auschwitz railway station to the Birkenau
Camp. The authors comment:

“The first of its functions mentioned here is receiving transports sent to the
camp within the framework of special operations (Direkte Anfahrt der
Transportzlige — Sondermassnahmen).” (p. 178)

The German phrase translates to: “Direct approach of the transport trains —
special measures.” But what proves that these “special measures” were homi-
cidal gassings? Above | have elaborated on the various meanings of the terms
Sondermassnahme or Sofortmassnahme, so there is no need to probe the sub-
ject here again.

[42] Document 46 (pp. 181-183)

This is a report on a meeting of 23 March 1943 between representatives of the
railway management at Oppeln (today Opole) as well as members of the
Auschwitz Central Construction Office and camp headquarters. The report is
dated 25 March 1943. Among the issues discussed is also that of a railway
spur between the Auschwitz railway station and the Birkenau Camp. The au-
thors point out:

“The report includes information about plans to use the freight station as
the place for the ‘unloading of special transports of the office of the com-
mandant of Auschwitz concentration camp’ as well as for the unloading of
construction materials required by the Zentralbauleitung. Additionally, the
document mentions the necessity of expanding the area of the freight sta-
tion so that it can handle the daily arrival of 10 special transports and 40
train cars carrying construction material and supplies (Soll das Baugleis
taglich neben dem Baustoffverkehr mit bis zu 10 Sondertransporten und
bis zu 40 Waggons mit Baustoff, Verpflegung usw. flir die Kommandantur
und die Zentralbauleitung belastet werden).” (p. 180)

Apparently, the authors reproduced this document merely because it contains

the term “special transports,” which for them is obviously evidence that the

majority of these “special transports” were then gassed.

[43] Document 47 (pp. 185)

This is a letter by the German State Railway (Reichsbahn) to the Central Con-
struction Office dated 17 March 1943. It refers to “Relocating the ramp for the
camp’s special transports.” Here, too, the magical term “special transports”
appears.
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[44] Document 48 (pp. 187)

This is page 335 of the inmate labor-deployment register (see their Document
12) which confirms the “Relocation of the ramp for special transports,” and
that is all.

Since the authors seem to be obsessed with the “relocation of the ramp for
special transports,” | inform them that more documents exist in this regard, the
“File memo about a conference with representatives of the Reichsbahn at the
Central Construction Office of the Waffen-SS and Police Auschwitz on 9
April 1943 regarding relocating the ramp for special transports,”?*? and a “Re-
port on the relocation of the ramp for special transports.”?*

[45] Document 49 (pp. 189-191)

These are two documents, a letter from the Reichsbhahn railway management
Oppeln to the Central Construction Office of 20 April 1943, and a letter from
the Central Construction Office to the camp commandant of 25 March 1943.
In both the magical term “special transports” appears again, and that’s good
enough for the authors to include it. What they imagine this proves remains a
mystery.

[46] Document 50 (p. 193)

This document is about the “potato-storage warehouses.” The authors explain:
“They were built in 1943 near the unloading ramp where Jewish trans-
ports were received in the period from the spring of 1942 to May 1944 and
subjected to selection. The location and dimensions of the unloading ramp
are visible, as is the road running in the direction of the Birkenau camp
that was defined as the ‘camp access road’ (Zufahrtstrasse zum KGL).” (p.
192)

In this document, not even the term “special transports” appears but simply

the word “ramps”’!

They could just as well have reproduced the map of 21 June 1944 showing
the area between Sectors | and Il of Birkenau which Pressac published dec-
ades ago and which even indicates the width of the two ramps: 2 and 10 me-
ters, respectively (“Rampe 2 m breit; Rampe 10 m breit”; Pressac 1989, pp.
254f.).

[47] Document 51 (pp. 195f.)

This is a file memo by Bischoff of 12 July 1943 mentioning the “track for
special transports” (Gleis flir Sondertransporte). Yet another irrelevant docu-
ment.

202 RGVA, 502-1-186, pp. 205f.
203 RGVA, 502-1-86, pp. 160f.
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V. Section “The Sonderkommando”
[48] Document 52 (p. 201)

This is a compilation of expenses for materials at the Birkenau Camp. On 23
April 1942 are recorded 300 kg of cement and 400 kg of bagged lime (Sack-
kalk; see my DOCUMENT 28). The authors explain that these materials had
been “required by the Sonderkommando” and that the lime “was used as a dis-
infectant when burying bodies in mass graves” (p. 200).

This is a deliberate misrepresentation for two reasons. First, Sackkalk was a
German term for powdered unslaked lime (CaQ) sold in bags to the pottery
and construction industry (see Lamock 1911). It was and is to this day one of
the major components of mortar and plaster, together with cement, water and
sand. The fact that the lime was listed together with cement should alert read-
ers to the incontrovertible fact that here simple building materials were or-
dered. But the authors very prudently decided to ignore the cement so that
they wouldn’t have to repeat the absurd explanation in their introduction.?®*
After all, what was the alleged Sonderkommando at the elusive “bunkers”
supposed to have done with 300 kg of cement? Besides, had the SS ordered
lime-based powder for disinfection purposes, they would have ordered chlo-
rinated lime (Chlorkalk),?® see the next document discussed.

Next, the authors pass over a second central bit of information: the com-
plete recipient of these supplies: “BW. 4 Sonderk. Bir.,” which means “Struc-
ture 4 of the Birkenau Sonderkommando.” BW 4 Birkenau referred to the con-
struction of 14 barracks for economy (Wirtschaftsbaracken).?® The construc-
tion work of two of these barracks, labelled BW 4a, had started on 10 Novem-
ber 1941; one had been completed at the end of March 1942, the second was
90% finished, and its completion was scheduled for 31 May 1942.%" The
above-mentioned construction materials were used for building these very bar-
racks for logistical maintenance, and the “Birkenau Sonderkommando” was
working in it.

[49] Document 53 (p. 203)

This is a request (Anforderung) by the “Sonderkommando Birkenau” from 10
February 1943 regarding “1 barrel of chlorinated lime.” The authors affirm

204 See my comments below on their Introduction, Part Two, Section 11. “Sonderkommando™ and
“Bunker.”

205 A mixture of highly corrosive calcium hypochlorite Ca(ClO)2, calcium chloride CaCl2 and calci-
um hydroxide Ca(OH)2.

206 “BW 4 Wirtschaftsbaracken 1-14”; “Erlduterungsbericht zum Vorentwurf fiir den Neubau des
Kriegsgefangenenlagers der Waffen-SS Auschwitz O/S.,” 30 October 1941. RGVA, 502-1-233, p.
14 (p. 2 of the report). It is not entirely clear what a Wirtschaftbarracke was, but it may have re-
ferred to buildings for activities of logistical maintenance/domestic economy (Hauswirtschaft-
baracke), like bakery, kitchen, laundry etc.

27 “Baufristenplan” of the “Kriegsgefangenenlager” dated 5 May 1942. RGVA, 502-1-22, p. 15.
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that the Sonderkommando used these 200 kg of chlorinated lime “for disinfec-
tion” (p. 202), always insinuating that it was meant to be used in mass graves
of gassing victims. This is, of course, purely conjectural, because no one
knows to which Sonderkommando the document refers. But even if it were
true that it was used in mass graves, that doesn’t prove that a mass murder was
going on in Birkenau at that time. Since at that point in time a typhus epidem-
ic had been raging inside the camp for seven months, claiming tens of thou-
sands of victims without adequate cremation capacity, a huge need for chlo-
rinated lime cannot surprise. Actually, it is a miracle that this is the only order
for chlorinated lime the museum could locate. But we don’t even know
whether that lime was meant to disinfect corpses, because that is not the only
possible application for chlorinated lime. It is also used in garbage dumps,
septic tanks, cesspits, and last but not least for cleaning toilets and other sani-
tary facilities.

[50] Document 54 (p. 205)

This is Receipt No. 2102 of 18 December 1942 for “Sonderkommando Nr. 2”
concerning the delivery of 3 tons of coke. Here the authors’ incredible inter-
pretation:

“In the winter, coke was burned in portable iron baskets to heat the gas
chambers.” (p. 204)

This is a ridiculous stopgap trick designed to somehow explain the supply of
coke, a hypothesis not backed up by anything, not even an anecdote. Szlama
Dragon, who claims to have been assigned to the Sonderkommando on 10 De-
cember 1942 — eight days before the aforementioned coke delivery — de-
scribed with great wealth of detail the alleged gassing procedure, but without
ever mentioning portable coal baskets (so-called braziers), which in fact
wouldn’t have been needed, because when the “gas chamber” was opened, it
“was very warm” (bylo bardzo gorgco).?®

Setkiewicz published another document elsewhere which is said to indicate
the supply of another 3 tons of coke to this Sonderkommando on 26 February
1943. This is not, however, a proper document such as Document 54, but a
mere sheet of paper in which the following text appears in handwriting:

w3 __

Sondern [sic] Kommando 1l

26/ Februar.”

It is therefore neither specified whether it is 3 tons of coke nor that the year is
1943. Here is Setkiewicz’s incredible comment (2011a, p. 106):

208 Interrogation of Sz. Dragon by investigating Judge Jan Sehn, 10 & 11 May 1945. Hoss Trial, vol.
11, pp.103-106.
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“This suggests that at the time a ‘Sonderkommando I’ had to exist; in other
words, there were two Sonderkommandos assigned to the gas chambers of
the ‘red house’ and the ‘white house’.”

A delirious logic, to say the least!

[51] Document 55 (p. 207)

This is a page of the inmate-labor-deployment register from which the authors
drew their Documents 12 and 48 (see there). In an entry dated 19 January
1943, we read in the “contents” column:

“Request for 2 guards for Sonderkommando. ”

As in the case of Document 12, the authors fail to report that in the fourth col-
umn headed “by whom,” giving the entity which filed the request, has the fol-
lowing text: “Administration of Inmate Property.” So this Sonderkommando,
exactly like the one mentioned in Document 12, was sorting and disinfesting
inmate belongings. The Administration of Inmate Belongings was a subsec-
tion of “Department IV — Administration” of the Auschwitz Concentration
Camp.

[52] Document 56 (p. 209)

This is again taken from the just-mentioned register, page 259. On 10 Febru-
ary 1943 a “Request for dentists to the special operation” was filed by the
“dental center.” The authors merely repeat this request without making any
comment. They probably imply that any reader sufficiently imbued with or-
thodox propaganda assumes that the two dentists in question had the task of
extracting gold teeth from the corpses of allegedly gassed victims. This pre-
sumably derives from the mere presence of the term “special operation.” But
the term referred very generally to the arrival of “special transports” with all
the operations resulting from it: reception, disinfestation and sorting of the de-
portees, as | explained earlier. These operations were also called “special
measures,” as is sensationally confirmed by Document 67, to be discussed fur-
ther below.

The former detainee Ménne Kratz claimed during the hearing on 21 De-
cember 1964 of the Frankfurt Auschwitz Trial that he had been part of the

dental center’s Sonderkommando, which he described as follows:?%°

“The ‘Sonderkommando’ of the dental station was occupied with smelting
the gold teeth extracted from the dead.”
The use of the term “special operation” to describe the extraction of gold teeth
from dead bodies is not attested to by any document. It is however known
that, according to investigating judge Jan Sehn, during 200 days of the year

209 Fritz Bauer Institut et al. 2005, p. 27049.
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1942, 16,325 gold fillings or fillings of other precious metal alloys were ex-
tracted from the teeth of 2,904 corpses.?!® For this existed special pre-printed
forms which read as follows:**

“Inmate Dental Center of CC Auschwitz. Auschwitz, the ....194...

To the Political Department of CC Auschwitz.

From the corpse of ... inmate no. ... the following dentures were removed.:
1.) precious metal alloy R... L... 2.) GoldR ... L...

Number of links

Total number of links

The Head of the Inmate Dental Center of the CC Auschwitz
SS-Untersturmfihrer.”

All this happened in broad daylight without any “code word.” Removing den-
tures and dental fillings from corpses prior to their cremation is not only
standard practice in every crematorium of the world, but it is also necessary to
prevent those metals from accumulating in the cremation device — and from
polluting the environment (in case of amalgam fillings).?*? The issue is not
that fillings were extracted, but what happened with the precious ones after-
wards.
On 14 January 1943 the British decoded the following message sent by the
SS-Fiihrungshauptamt to the doctor of an unspecified division:*
“To div. surgeon.
The 18 dentists and dental technicians drafted to the division for a special
operation are to be put in motion immediately, together with the addition-
ally supplied equipment, to the SS medical replacement battalion STET-
TIN, Kuckenmihle.”
This suggests that a “special operation” performed by dentists did not neces-
sarily have a criminal character.

[53] Documents 57 and 58 (p. 211-213)

Document 57 is a letter by SS-Untersturmfiihrer Josef Janisch to the camp
headquarters dated 24 December 1943 with the subject “Return of field rail-
way material made available to Sonderkommando | on a loan basis.” It sta-
tes: 214

210 Hoss Trial, vol. 3, p. 86; note that this would amount to 5.6 gold fillings per corpse, which seems
a little high.

211 J, Sehn, “Obéz koncentracyjny i zagtady O$wiecim”, in: Biuletyn Gtéwnej Komisji Badania
Zbrodni Niemieckich w Polsce, I, Poznan, 1946, photo on unnumbered page.

212 Amalgam is an alloy of silver and mercury. The latter, a poisonous heavy metal, melts and evapo-
rates during cremation.

213 TNA, HW 16/23, German Decodes No. 3 Traffic: 14.1.43 Addenda to | Traffic. ZIP/GPDD
358a/4.2.43.

24 RGVA, 502-1-83, p. 54.
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“A while ago, the Central Construction Office made some field railway
material available to Sonderkommando I, specifically tracks and wagons.
This field railway material, which is currently not being used there, is ur-
gently needed by the PoW Construction Office. It is requested to immedi-
ately hand it over to the PoW Construction Office in Birkenau.”

The authors comment on it this way:

“It can be concluded from numerous accounts by Sonderkommando pris-
oners such as Szlama Dragon and Eliezera Eisenschmidt that the transport
of corpses from the gas chamber to the burning pits and pyres at bunkers |
and Il was carried out with the aid of flatcars running on the provisional
rails of a field railroad. ” (p. 210)

Subsequently the authors present two more documents dealing with the same
issue (their Document 58) — a letter by the camp headquarters to the Central
Construction Office dated 7 February 1944, and the Office’s response on 24
February®®® (p. 213). They highlight the phrase “currently not being used,”
perhaps because, in their confused version of the orthodox history of the
“bunkers,” they believe that “Bunker 1” had ceased operations in December
1943. Neither of these documents adds anything new to the debate.

It is true that “Bunker 2” is claimed to have had such a field railway as
well. It appears clearly on the map drawn by Ing. Eugeniusz Nosal based on
Dragon’s instructions (Mattogno 2004a, p. 207, Document 12). Other than
that, however, nothing is known about this field railway. Not even the inmate-
labor-deployment register, of which the authors publish three pages (their
Documents 12, 48 and 55), contains any hint of a field railway loaned to
Sonderkommando | (supposedly working at “Bunker 1) or to Sonderkom-
mando 2 (at “Bunker 2”), because in that case it would have been invariably
reported.

Apart from that, the authors’ time line of dismantling various items said to
have belonged to “Bunker 1” is confused and illogical. Here are some of the
things they claim:

— May 1943: request to remove two undressing barracks from “Bunker 1”

(their interpretation of Document 33).

— 24 December 1943: request to remove field railway from “Bunker 1”
(their interpretation of the present document).

— 4 February 1944: request to remove three undressing barracks from
“Bunker 1” (although two had already been removed earlier; their inter-
pretation of Document 34).

— 18 March 1944: request to dismantle an electric wire from “Bunker 1”
(their interpretation of Document 20).

25 RGVA, 502-1-83, p. 41.
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If “Bunker 1” ceased its activities in early May 1943, with a large sewage-
treatment plant built on its claimed site, why was it noticed only seven months
later, on Christmas Eve of 1943, that the field railway was “currently not be-
ing used”? Can anyone believe that, after the termination of the alleged activi-
ties of “Bunker 1,” the railroad would have been left abandoned for seven
months, sitting in plain sight of the sewage-treatment plant rusting away?

In the absence of any specific documents, we cannot ascertain the location
and purpose of this field railway.

A letter from the company Schlesische Industriebau Lenz & Co. AG to the
Central Construction Office of 3 February 1944 contains an offer for a field
railway track (Feldbahngleis) for “BW 47 — BA 111,”%*® which was to be used
to transport construction materials. This shows that the presence of a field
railway in Auschwitz was not necessarily linked to any alleged extermination
activities.

VI. Section “Sonderaktionen” (Special Operations)

[54] Document 59 (p. 217)

This is a letter from Bischoff to the camp Headquarters dated 18 August 1942
with the headline “immediate measure” (SofortmalRnahme). This is the text:

“Due to constant labor interruption caused by the special operation, the
Central Construction Office requests the allocation, with immediate effect,
of one additional NCO and three guards for the labor detail Pow Camp
ring trench, Construction Sector Il (100 inmates, currently with four
guards), so that it can be deployed for urgent excavation works at the Vis-
tula trench with a guard [ratio] of 1:6.”

The authors claim that the prisoners of this excavation detail “at the time were
used to dig drainage ditches near the bunker 1” (p. 216), but they do not ex-
plain the document’s meaning in this perspective.

First, why does it mention only one “special operation” in the singular ra-
ther than “special operations” (= alleged homicidal gassings) in the plural, as
would have to be expected? How and why could the “special operation” con-
stantly interrupt this detail’s work? How could four additional guards prevent
further interruptions? And apart from that, four additional guards would in-
crease the ratio only from 1:25 to 1:12.5, not 1:6, as the document claims.

Without the aid of other documents it is very difficult to determine what
the special operation in question was about, but we can assume this document
was about the same inmate detail as the one mentioned in Document 66.

216 RGVA, 502-1-346, p. 44.
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[55] Document 60 (p. 219)

On 14 September 1942, SS-Obersturmbannfihrer Arthur Liebehenschel, head
of Office D/I of the SS-WVHA (Zentralamt),?*’ signed the following travel
permit (Fahrgenehmigung):
“For the purpose of an urgent transfer of 5 trucks and an accompanying
machine, a travel permit from Oranienburg to Auschwitz is herewith issued
for 14 September 1942,
Reason:
Immediate transfer of the allotted trucks to C.C. Auschwitz, since these ve-
hicles have to be used immediately for special operations. **¢

This is the content of Document 60, which the authors interpret as follows:

“These trucks were used to carry deported Jewish children and those who
were too sick or frail to march from the ‘old ramp’ to the gas chambers.
They also delivered the victims’ luggage to the ‘Kanada 1’ warehouses.”
(p. 218)

As | explained earlier, in September 1942 the personal belongings of the Jew-
ish deportees were disinfected and stored as part of “Operation Reinhard,” and
it is evident that those belongings were to be transported from the Auschwitz
railway station to “Kanada I” and to “Station 2 of Aktion Reinhard” Birkenau,
then into the various warehouses at Auschwitz and Birkenau. That is why the
trucks were needed. This is further confirmed by Document 61, while the au-
thors’ claim that the trucks served to transport kids and disabled inmates to the
“gas chambers” is not in the least supported by any document.

[56] Document 61 (p. 221)

This is a transfer document from Dachau to Auschwitz “for Operation ‘Rein-
hard”” concerning 12 non-commissioned SS officers and soldiers, including
the already-mentioned SS-Hauptscharfihrer Georg Hocker and SS-Unter-
scharfiihrer Heinz Kiihnemann. As | demonstrated in my comments on Doc-
ument 31, they were employed in the disinfestation and storage of Jewish be-
longings. It is not clear why the authors have included this document in the
section of “special operations,” since it does not contain any reference to this
term.

[57] Document 62 (p. 223)
This is a note (Vermerk) by Bischoff dated 1 October 1942 saying:

“During the service meeting on 28 September 1942 at Camp Commandant
Obersturmbannfiihrer Hoss s, the undersigned, in his capacity as building

27 Department 3 of the office (D/1/3) was in charge of motor vehicles (Kraftfahrwesen).
218 Trial of the Auschwitz camp garrison, vol. 38, p. 113.
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inspector, drew attention to the fact that no luggage and refuse from in-
mate belongings are to be incinerated nearby buildings, since otherwise a
conflagration can break out, to which whole parts of the camp could fall
victim.

As determined on Saturday, 26 September 1942, the start of a fire could be
prevented at the last minute, which was caused by carelessly burning old
suitcases and the like at the effect barracks south of the DAW. ”

The authors do not provide any explanation, except that “at the time, these
items were stored on the grounds of the ‘Kanada 1’ storehouses located near
the Auschwitz | camp.” (p. 222)

As with the previous case, it is not clear what relationship this document
has with “special operations” in the eyes of the authors. Instead, it illuminates
the background of Hoss’s visit to the “experimental station for field furnaces
Operation Reinhard,” which had taken place only a few weeks earlier, on 16
September 1942.

In an older study, in which | treated that issue in depth, I demonstrated the
utter absurdity of the interpretation proffered by orthodox Holocaust historians
(that is, that HOss had gone to Chelmno to learn from Blobel a corpse crema-
tion technique which was then also to be introduced at Auschwitz) and even-
tually | came to the conclusion that this trip had nothing at all to do with cre-
mating corpses (2008, p. 56):

“Even the claim that these ‘field furnaces’ were intended for corpses is ac-
tually a simple hypothesis: in hindsight, in fact, there is nothing in the two
documents mentioned above — Dejaco s report and the travel permit by the
SS-WVHA — indicating that this was about cremating corpses. The ‘field
furnaces’ really had nothing to do with cremation furnaces. The famous
engineering manual ‘Hiitte’ describes them as follows:
‘Ceramic furnaces (brick furnaces). Combustion temperature from 800 to
1200°. One distinguishes furnaces for temporary operation and furnaces
for continuous operation. The first is part of the so-called field furnace,
rectangular with solid side walls and stoking channel at the bottom. The
furnaces are between 4 and 9 meters wide, as long as needed, and open at
the top.’

The device designed by F. Siemens was indeed specifically a ‘Feldofen fur

Leichenverbrennung’ (field furnace for cremating corpses).!?**!

However, since the ‘Operation Reinhard’ at Auschwitz simply meant the

collection and exploitation of property stolen from the Jews, the term ‘field

furnaces’ could refer in one way or another only to these goods. ”

At the time | did not want to get deeper into the matter, but Document 62 pro-
vides the missing key: in the Auschwitz Camp, combustible refuse from the

219 | published the design of this device: Mattogno/Deana 2015, vol. 11, Doc. 93, p. 130.
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deportees’ belongings was burned outside, and this was dangerous. Hdss
therefore travelled to a place near Litzmannstadt (£.6dz), not to Chelmno! The
authorization for this trip (Fahrgenehmigung), coming directly from Glicks as
head of Office Group D of the SS-WVHA, referred expressly to a trip “from
Auschwitz to Litzmannstadt and back,”??® while Chetmno is located about 60
km north-west of £.6dz. On the other hand, Chetmno had no relation to “Oper-
ation Reinhard” (or Reinhardt). Furthermore, no orthodox Holocaust historian
has yet managed to explain why any experimental corpse cremation for the
Reinhardt camps (Belzec, Sobibor, Treblinka) would have been conducted at
Chetmno rather than at those camps or at Auschwitz, and why those experi-
ments would have been entrusted to a layman like Blobel, while the engineer
supervising the planning and construction of the crematoria at Auschwitz was
one of the leading German specialists in that field: Engineer Kurt Prifer.

The “Travel report service trip to Litzmannstadt,” prepared on 17 Septem-
ber 1942 by SS-Untersturmfiihnrer Walter Dejaco on the trip he had made the
day before together with Hoss and SS-Untersturmfiihrer Franz Hossler — but
without Garrison Surgeon Wirths or any of his representatives, which would
be strange if this had been about inspecting a cremation device — contains an-
other important element: it was decided to hand over to the Auschwitz Camp a
“pall mill for substances.”?* This ball mill was a spinning metal drum with
metal balls inside to pulverize the materials placed in it. There is not even a
trifle of support for the orthodox hypothesis that this device served to crush
the cremated bones of alleged gassing victims. In the context outlined above,
however, this device can be understood as the counterpart to the “field furnac-
es:” the mill was used to grind down the incombustible remains from inciner-
ating the refuse from the deportee’s belongings.

[58] Document 63 (p. 225)

On 13 October 1942, Bischoff sent a letter to the head of Office C/V of the
SS-WVHA with the subject “Assignment of construction tasks for the new
construction of the prisoner-of-war camp of the Waffen-SS in Auschwitz, Up-
per Silesia” which states, among other things:??
“Due to the situation created by the special operations, the construction of
the crematorium had to be begun immediately just this past July. The firms
of Huta, Hoch- und Tiefbau-A.G., Kattowitz, Friedrichstr. 19, and Schles.
Industriebau Lenz & Co, A.G., Kattowitz, Grundmannstr. 23, which are al-
ready working in the prisoner-of-war camp, were invited to a restricted
bidding.

220 AGK, NTN, 94, p. 170.
221 RGVA, 502-1-336, p. 69.
222 GARF, 7021-108-32, pp. 45-47.
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According to a letter of 15 July 1942, the Schles. Industriebau Lenz & Co.
made no bid due to lack of workers. For this reason, the Huta firm was
commissioned immediately to begin work in accordance with its bid of 13
July 1942.”

This letter, known even to Pressac, was published by the authors as their Doc-
ument 63 with this following comment:

“The ‘situation’ that Bischoff writes about surely refers to the constantly
rising number of people who were deported and killed in the gas cham-
bers.” (p. 224)

In other words, they opine that the construction of the new crematorium was
commenced instantly because of the gassings in “Bunkers” 1 and 2. This in-
terpretation is unfounded and contradictory, as | showed in an earlier dedicat-
ed study (2004b, pp. 62-66), which I will reiterate here.

The sentence “Due to the situation created by the special operations, the
construction of the crematorium had to be begun immediately just this past Ju-
ly”” means that the special operations had created an unexpected new situation.
The limited bidding mentioned by Bischoff was thus the first consequence of
these circumstances. Since it took place at the instance of the Central Con-
struction Office on 1 July 1942,2%® the new situation must have manifested it-
self in all its urgency already before this date.

On the other hand, dealing with this question was not at first a matter of
urgency for the Central Construction Office. After the Lenz firm declined to
submit an offer on 15 July, they waited fourteen days before concluding a
contract with the Huta firm.?** In July 1942, prisoners under the authority of
the Central Construction Office had “finished the excavation work at the
crematorium,”?*® which had already begun the previous month.??® The actual
construction work began in August.??” The PoW camp’s construction schedule
for July gives the second of that month as the starting date of the construction
of the crematorium.??

However, the “special operations,” in the orthodox sense, allegedly began
on 4 July, the date on which, according to Danuta Czech, the “selection” of a
Jewish transport took place for the first time at Birkenau, in consequence of
which those “selected” were allegedly gassed in the “bunkers” (Czech 1990,
pp. 191f.). The necessity to immediately begin the construction of the crema-

22 APMO, D-Z/Bau-6.

224 Contract award (Zuschlag) by the Central Construction Office to the Huta firm on 29 July 1942.
Document published by Pressac 1989, p. 200.

225 «“Am Krematorium wurden die Ausschachtungsarbeiten beendet.” “Baubericht fiir Monat Juli
1942.” RGVA, 502-1-24, p. 184.

2% “Ebenso wurde mit dem Ausschachten der Baugrube fiir das Krematorium aufgestellt.” “Bauber-
icht fir Monat Juni 1942.” RGVA, 502-1-24, p. 224.

227 On 10 August, according to Pressac 1994, p. 57.

228 “Baufristenplan 1942.” “Berichtsmonat Juli” for the POW camp. RGVA, 502-1-22, p. 32.
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torium can, therefore, have had nothing to do with these alleged “special oper-
ations.”

But there is a much more fundamental problem: Why would the “special
operations” have made the construction of the crematorium so urgently neces-
sary, if no crematoria whatsoever had been planned for “Bunkers” 1 and 2?
Their alleged victims were supposedly just buried in mass graves!

It deserves emphasis that the crematorium of the PoW camp was planned
for the cremation of registered prisoners who had died “naturally,” but not for
criminal purposes, that is, for the cremation of murdered inmates, as Pressac
demonstrated impeccably (1994, p. 64).

According to the Auschwitz Chronicle, the burning of those allegedly
gassed in the “bunkers,” together with the dead buried in mass graves, is sup-
posed to have begun on 21 September 1942 (Czech 1990, p. 242), allegedly
resulting from an order issued by Himmler on 17 July 1942, on the occasion
of his visit to Auschwitz. Franciszek Piper claims (1994, p. 163):

“During Himmler’s second inspection visit to Auschwitz on 17 July 1942,
he witnessed the entire procedure of liquidation of one transport — from
unloading the train cars to gassing (in bunker two) and removing the bod-
ies. It cannot be ruled out that his observations resulted in the decision to
cremate the bodies instead of burying them. In fact, shortly after Himm-
ler’s visit, Standartenfiihrer Paul Blobel from Eichmann’s office arrived at
Auschwitz with orders to exhume all buried bodies, burn them, and scatter
the ashes to prevent the possible reconstruction of the number of victims. ”

Himmler’s order to burn the alleged victims of “special operations” — on
pyres! — is therefore supposed to have been issued after the decision to imme-
diately build the crematorium — which had been triggered by “special opera-
tions.” The conclusion is compelling that at the time when a new situation
made this construction necessary, there could not yet have been any thought of
burning gassed persons — in a crematorium or otherwise. Consequently, the
“special operations” — if by this one means the gassing of human beings —
could in no way have given the impetus for the rapid construction of the
crematorium, but, possibly, only an expansion of the mass graves.

Indeed, there can be no doubt that the Bischoff letter indicates a direct
connection between the new situation caused by the “special operations” and
the immediate construction of the crematorium. But of what does this connec-
tion consist? In order to be able to answer this question, we must embed Bis-
choff’s remarks within their historical context.

On 1 March 1942, the strength of the camp population of Auschwitz was
11,132 prisoners at the morning roll call, the majority of whom were Poles.?*
On 26 March the first “special trains” organized by the RSHA arrived. In
March 2,909 Jewish deportees arrived, 7,762 in April, 1,000 in May, and

229 gtarkebuch, analysis by Jan Sehn. AGK, NTN, 92, p. 22.
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5,096 in June, amounting to a total of 16,767, of which 10,332 were men and
6,435 women. There was a corresponding increase in prisoner mortality. In
March 1942 3,038 deaths were registered in Auschwitz, 2,209 in April, and in
the following months the mortality climbed at an even greater rate: 3,341
deaths in May and 3,817 in June, among them 2,289 Jews in the men’s camp
alone, which accounted for more than 62 percent of the deaths for that month.
From June 22-30, an average of 140 prisoners died each day, the highest fig-
ure (194 deaths) occurring on June 25. From 1 to 13 July, the average daily
mortality rate hovered was about 130.

This already desperate state of affairs was made worse by the murderous
typhus epidemic that broke out on 1 July in the communal camp of the civilian
workers deployed in Birkenau®*® and very soon spread to the prisoners.?®! Un-
der these circumstances, a further increase in mortality in the camp was to be
expected. The situation became so drastic that on 23 July Hdss had to impose
a total quarantine on the camp to prevent the epidemic from spreading to the
outside world.?*? In the month of July, 4,401 prisoners died, 4,124 of them in
the men’s camp alone; 2,903 or more than 70 percent of the victims were
Jews.? Nevertheless, the “special trains” continued to arrive in Auschwitz,
indeed more frequently than before: In July 11,756 Jews were received into
the camp population, so that typhus was able to reap an even richer harvest
than before. This explains the extremely high percentage of Jews among those
who died.

The hygienic situation became even more catastrophic: The crematorium at
the Main Camp had not been functioning properly since the beginning of June
1942, because its chimney was damaged. The chimney had to be removed and
restored, and the crematorium went out of service at the beginning of July.?*
Therefore the dead had to be buried in mass graves, which of course further
worsened hygienic and sanitary conditions in the camp.

Let us recapitulate. At the beginning of July the situation was as follows:

— Sanitary conditions were rapidly worsening.

— Mortality was rising.

— The Jewish transports were arriving at a faster pace.

— The crematorium in the Main Camp had stopped operations.

230 | etter of 1 July 1942 from the official commissioner to the firms of Huta and Lenz. RGVA, 502-
1-332, p. 151.

1 As a matter of fact, typhus was already raging in the camp prior to this, as Czech indicates with
her entries for 27 March, 10 & 25 May and 17 June 1942 (1990, pp. 150, 165, 171, 182). The first
typhus cases seem to have been imported into the camp by a transfer of prisoners from the Lublin
prison as early as 6 April 1941, however (ibid., p. 57).

232 The measure was already in preparation on the 20th. “Hausverfiigung” no. 40 of 20 July 1942.
RGVA, 501-1-25, p. 61.

233 gStarkebuch, analysis by Jan Sehn. AGK, NTN, pp. 109f.

234 | etter of 6 July 1942, from Pollock. RGVA, 502-1-312, pp. 29 and 31. The crematorium was
most certainly taken out of operation the following day.
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The first three factors were closely connected with one another: In a tragic
feedback loop, the increase in Jewish transports led to a worsening of sanitary
conditions and consequently to soaring mortality.

In this context, the sentence of Bischoff that is under dispute can mean
nothing other than this: In July 1942, the immediate construction of the new
crematorium had become an absolute necessity as a result of the unexpected
and critical deterioration of health and sanitary conditions in the camp caused
by the Jewish transports as described above.

As we will see in Documents 67 and 69, “special measures” and “immedi-
ate operations,” equivalents for “special operations,” consisted precisely in the
reception and accommodation of Jewish transports.

[59] Document 64 (p. 229)

This is a letter by Bischoff dated 4 November 1942 with the subject “Con-
struction Project VIII Up a 2.” At the beginning the “Construction Project
‘PoW Camp (Implementation of Special Treatment)’ is mentioned, which
had the 1D number VII1 Up a 2.2 The authors explain in this regard:

“The contingent documentation identification number (Kennummer VIII
Up a 2) refers, among other things, to the construction of the crematoria
and installations defined as ‘for special treatment’ (fiur Sonderbehand-
lung).” (p. 228)

Here the authors’ dishonesty is outright blatant. First they reported an insigni-
ficant document instead of an essential documentation, and they moreover
give information which must be utterly incomprehensible to anyone who is
not a specialist in the matter: “contingent documentation identification number
(Kennummer V111 Up a 2).” Finally, as we shall see, they falsely associate the
crematoria with the term “for special treatment.”

On 28 October 1942, Bischoff drafted a general construction project for the
Birkenau Camp titled “Construction Project PoW Camp (Implementation of
Special Treatment),” bearing the construction reference number VIII Up 2
(see DOCUMENT 24). All structures of the camp fell within the “Implementa-
tion of Special Treatment,” but contrary to the authors’ mendacity, the sole fa-
cility to which the document specifically assigns the function of “special
treatment,” is not a crematorium, but a disinfestation facility, as | have stated
already many years ago elsewhere (2004b, pp. 38-41):2%

“l16a) Delousing facility

1. for special treatment

Area: 50.00 x 20.00 = 1,000 m2

Height of building: 6.20

235 On the meaning of this reference see Mattogno 2005d, pp. 26f.
236 «“Vorhaben: Kriegsgefangenenlager Auschwitz (Durchfiihrung der Sonderbehandlung).” VHA,
Fond OT 31(2)/8, p. 9. See DOCUMENTS 24a, 24b.
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Enclosed space: 1,000.00 x 6.20 = 6,200 m3

Cellar section: 35.00 x 20.00 x 3.20 = 2,240 m3

total 8,400 m3

Cost for 1 m3 RM 28.00

8,400.00 x 28.00 = 236,320.00

Extra charges for heating, shower

and disinfestation facilities RM 73,680.00

310,000.00

16b) 2. For the guard troops

Area: 12.25x12.65 + 12.40x 8.70 = 262.84 m?

Height of building: 2.80 m

Enclosed space: 262.84 x 2.80 = approx. 736.00 m3

[...]

Costs for 1 ms3: RM 30.00

736.00 x 30.00 = RM 22,080

Extra charges for heating, shower

and disinfestation facilities RM 7,920
RM 30,000

It remains to be established what the nature of this “disinfestation facility for
special treatment” was.

The two disinfestation facilities mentioned are listed under the same num-
bers (16a and 16b) in another report of the Central Construction Office, dated
2 February 1943. Here, Facility 16b is designated a “delousing facility for the
guard troops,” and its dimensions correspond exactly to those stated in the
project — of 28 October 1942: “12.65x12.25 + 12.40%8.70 m”; Facility 16a is
called a “delousing facility for prisoners” and shows dimensions different
from those given in the project: 48 m x 12 m + 34 m x 12 m. This reduction in
volume can be explained by a shortage of building materials, for the document
referring to this is, in fact, titled “Auditor’s Report on Saving Building Mate-
rial.”?*” The new dimensions of the installation agree perfectly with those of
Drawings No. 1841 of the Central Construction Office of 24 November and
No. 1846 of 25 November 1942, in which the “Disinfection and Delousing
Facility in the PoW Camp” is depicted and which reflect the original project
of the Birkenau Zentralsauna (blueprints reproduced in Pressac 1989, pp.
68f.).

The “Situation map of the prisoner-of-war camp” of 6 October 1942 con-
firms this situation explicitly: The rectangle representing the so-called Zen-
tralsauna bears the designation “16a disinfestation.”?*® Thus the “disinfesta-
tion facility for special treatment” of the project of 28 October 1942 was noth-

237 “Priifungsbericht Nr. 491 iiber Baustoffeinsparung geméB G.B.-Anordnung Nr. 22.” RGVA, 502-
1-28, pp. 234-238. The two facilities are mentioned on p. 236.
238 VVHA, Fond OT 31(2)/8.
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ing other than the famous Zentralsauna, the most important hygienic-sanitary
facility of the entire Auschwitz-Birkenau camp complex. Special treatment —
Sonderbehandlung — consisted therefore in carrying out hygienic-sanitary
measures.

The authors’ dishonesty is also evident from the fact that their Document
28, “Structures of the Central Construction Office of the Waffen-SS and Police
Auschwitz in the 3rd budget year of war,” which in paragraph 21 mentions
five barracks for special treatment, explicitly refers to the “disinfestation facil-
ity for special treatment” in the section for the PoW camp Birkenau. A differ-
ent version of the document, dated 15 November 1942, reported under the
construction reference number “GB Bau VIII Z a 1(1),” Point 21, “5 barracks
for special treatment,”*° and under the construction reference number “G.B.-
Bau Nr. VIII Up a 27, Point 31, “disinfestation facility a) f. special treatment
b) f. the troops (sauna and disinfection).” Point 30 mentions “4 crematoria and
4 morgues,”?*® which shows that the crematoria were not designated for “spe-
cial treatment,” and at the same time this exposes the authors’ lie and explains
the reason for their calculated omission.

[60] Documents 65 (p. 231) and 68 (p. 237)

These two documents concern the same issue, so | examine them together.
The first is a “list of concrete requirements for the month of January 1943”
written by Bischoff on 20 November 1942. The estimated need was 300 met-
ric tons, 150 of them for Construction Project VIII Up a 1, and 150 for Con-
struction Project VIII Up a 2. Point 2) clarifies:

“a) SS accommodation and CC Auschwitz — VIl Upa 1
b) Pow Camp Auschwitz O/S — VIII Up a 2 (implementation of special
treatment).”

The authors limited themselves to stating that “the special treatment operation
was underway on the grounds of the Birkenau camp (Durchfihrung der
Sonderbehandlung)” (p. 230), but carefully avoid explaining why this “special
treatment” operation required 150 tons of cement (just like the Auschwitz
Main Camp, where that operation was not in progress). What is the relation-
ship between these 150 tons of cement and the alleged gassings in the “bun-
kers”?

Document 68 is a letter by Bischoff of 9 January 1943 addressed to the
camp commandant listing the camp’s various construction offices subordinate
to the Central Construction Office. Birkenau is listed there as follows:

“3. Construction Office of the Prisoner-of-War Camp (implementation of
special treatment) Auschwitz. ”

239 RGVA, 502-1-85, p. 114.
240 RGVA, 502-1-85, p. 119. See DOCUMENT 25.
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The authors do not comment on this, but merely point to the presence of the
expression “implementation of special treatment,” as if that were enough.

As indicated earlier, they have dishonestly concealed from the reader that
the special treatment referred to in these documents had nothing to do with
any mythical homicidal gassings, but with sanitary and hygienic measures.
This fact and other documents ignored by the authors allow us to further deep-
en our understanding of the meaning and significance of this “special treat-
ment.”

The organizational chart for the Central Construction Office created by
Bischoff in three versions in January 1943 gives the tasks of the Birkenau
Construction Office as follows:

1) “Construction Office of the Prisoner-of-War Camp (implementation of
special treatment)”?*

2) “Construction Office of the Prisoner-of-War Camp (implementation of
special construction measures)’22

3) “Construction Office of the Prisoner-of-War Camp (implementation of
special operation)”?*®

In the latter document we also rea

“At the present time, the completion of the PoW camp (special measures)

is most urgent.”

These documents prove that “special treatment” (“Sonderbehandlung™), “spe-
cial construction measure” (“Sonderbaumassnahmen”) and “special opera-
tion” (“Sonderaktion”) were one and the same thing, none of which referred to
the alleged homicidal gassings.

The equivalence of these terms is further confirmed by other documents
ignored by the authors:

— Bischoff’s letter to the Contingency Office of the General Plenipotentiary
for Regulating the Construction Industry (Albert Speer; Kontingentstelle
des G.B. Bau) of 19 December 1942, in which he complains that Construc-
tion Project VIII Up a 2 (Birkenau) had received an allocation of 2,800
tons of cement for the months of November and December, but that only
1,800 had been delivered. The letter has as its subject: “PoW camp
Auschwitz, special construction measures.”*

244

241 “Geschiftsverteilungsplan der Zentralbauleitung der Waffen-SS und Polizei Auschwitz und der
unterstellten Bauleitungen.” RGVA, 502-1-57, p. 316; reproduced in Mattogno 2004b, p. 129.

242 Organization chart of the Zentralbauleitung on key personnel for the operations of each individual
Bauleitungen (the first page of this document is missing). RGVA, 502-1-57, p. 310; reproduced in
Mattogno 2004b, p. 130.

23 | etter by Bischoff to Kammler of 27 January 1943. RGVA, 502-1-28, p. 248; reproduced in Mat-
togno 2004b, p. 131.

24 1bid., p. 249.

5 RGVA, 502-1-319, p. 49.
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— Bischoff’s letter to Kammler of 14 May 1943 with the subject “Carrying
out of the special operation — procurement of material,” regarding the con-
signment of various types of pipes.?*®

— SS-Untersturmfuhrer Pollock’s request to the contingency office of the GB
Bau from 14 March 1943 concerning “Construction project Prisoner-of-
War Camp — implementation of special treatment.” It mentions an alloca-
tion of 459,111 kg of iron for the second quarter of 1943; 29,940 kg of
construction iron (Baueisen) were destined for Crematoria Il and I,
15,316 for Crematoria IV and V. The remaining quantity was for five other
structures, including the sewage-treatment plant and the fresh-water supply
system (Wasserversorgung).?*” Which demonstrates that the crematoria did
not have any special relevance in the context of special treatment, since the
term referred to the entire Birkenau Camp.

— Kirschnek’s already-mentioned “Activity report of the Construction Office
of the concentration camp and agriculture” for the period from 1 July to 30
September 1943 contains a section headlined “Work carried out in the
PoW camp — deployment of local construction office for special construc-
tion measures”; the construction of five wash and toilet barracks is listed
for Construction Sector | (BW 6-7A); for Construction Sector |1 the follow-
ing items are listed: four storage barracks (BW 14), 12 wash barracks (BW
6b), 21 toilet barracks (BW 7b), 60 housing barracks for prisoners (BW 3d),
the disinfestation facility (BW 32, the Zentralsauna), the delousing facility
in the gypsy camp (also BW 32) as well as 11 infirmary barracks with an-
nexes (BW 12a); for Construction Sector Il the document lists only the
fence (BW 24) and drainage ditches E, F, H, | (BW 18).2

— The “Report on requirements for thick, medium and thin sheet metal for
the 1V. Quarter of 1944” contains two references to Construction Project
VIII b Up a 2003 “Auschwitz CC |1 special measures.”?*°

[61] Documents 66 (p. 233), 71 (p. 249) and 72 (p. 251)

Document 66 is a letter by Bischoff to Office C/V (Central Construction In-
spectorate) of the SS-WVHA dated 29 December 1942 with the subject “Labor
Deployment Auschwitz. Reimbursement of canceled labor hours due to a de-
creed special operation.” The text says:
“The Central Construction Office hereby reports that inmates and civilian
workers employed at the individual construction sites could not be de-
ployed during four days as a result of carrying out a special operation.

246 RGVA, 502-1-83, pp. 315f.; reproduced in Mattogno 2004b, pp. 133f.
%7 RGVA, 502-1-319, p. 15.
248 RGVA, 502-1-27, pp. 6-8.
29 RGVA, 502-1-317, p. 36.
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Advice is requested as to which titles and chapters these costs are to be al-
located to.”

In their English caption the authors speak of “interruptions of work by prison-
ers and civilian workers resulting from special operations”®° (p. 232), evi-
dently having in mind the “constant labor interruption” mentioned in Docu-
ment 59.

In this context, they omit a well-known document from an earlier date
which clarifies the entire affair. On 18 December 1942 Bischoff sent a secret
telegram to Kammler on the expected completion of the crematoria in which
he conveyed the following:**

“In the month of December work had to come to a standstill for several
days due to delousing and disinfestation. Likewise, a Gestapo special op-
eration for security reasons encompassing all civilian workers has been
underway since 16 December. Due to the imposition of a camp lock-down,
the civilian workers have been unable to leave the camp for six months.
For that reason, a grant of leave from 23 Dec. 1942 to 4 Jan. 1943 is abso-
lutely essential.”

Pressac commented on this as follows (1994, p. 73):

“The revelation [postponement of vacations for civilian workers] embit-
tered the civilian workers, since they had been stuck in Auschwitz for five
months. It is not known exactly what happened next, but on the 17th and
18th of December none of the civilian workers showed up at the building
site, and work didn’t resume until the 19th. On the 17th a spontaneous
strike is supposed to have occurred, that led to the intervention of the camp
Gestapo (the political department), in order to bring it under control. This
intervention was designated a ‘special action for security reasons.’ (Son-
deraktion aus Sicherheitsgriinden). The civilian workers are supposed to
have been subjected to interrogation by the political department, which
wanted to learn the reason for the strike.”

Document 72 is a simple reminder letter by Bischoff from 28 January 1943,
also with the subject “Labor Deployment Auschwitz. Reimbursement of can-
celed labor hours due to a decreed special operation,” to find out which title
and chapter the costs should be allocated to that had been caused by the spe-
cial operation conducted by the camp’s Political Department. The reference of
the letter shows that Bischoff had already written a first reminder on 29 De-
cember 1942.

Document 71 is a letter from the company Baugeschéft Anhalt — Hoch-
Tief-Eisenbetonbau of Berlin to the Central Construction Office dated 22 Jan-

20 In the Polish original “przerwa,” interruption, and “w wyniku realizacji akcji specjalnei,” “as a re-
sult of carrying out of a special operation.”
%1 APMO, BW 30/27, p. 17.
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uary 1943. It lists the costs of the company’s activities during the construction
of various structures at Auschwitz, which also includes:

“Special operation, department for labor deployment, Auschwitz O/S on 11
Jan. 43 in the amount of RM 753.29 — 12 daily-wage slips.”

According to the authors, this referred to “work done on January 11, 1943 at a
place where a special operation (Sonderaktion) was underway” (p. 248).

Their concealing the telex dated 18 December 1942 happened in my opin-
ion more likely due to deliberate dishonesty than to simple historical-docu-
mentary ignorance. In fact, Document 71 is closely linked to the special op-
eration conducted by the Political Department of Auschwitz. That special op-
eration was triggered by the strike of the civilian workers, which in turn
caused the interruption of work for four days, resulting in financial damage to
their employers. With the letter of 22 January 1943, the company Baugeschaft
Anhalt therefore simply sought reimbursement of the 753.29 RM lost during
the four days of forced labor standstill. The date of 11 January 1943, which is
also given for two other entries on that document not mentioning any special
operation, is probably that company’s reference to an administrative act by the
Central Construction Office, with which the employer’s right to a reimburse-
ment had been recognized. Subsequently Bischoff urged Kammler precisely
because of this request (and possibly those of other companies) to inform him
how he should account for — and then also pay — these expenses.

[62] Document 67 (p. 235)

This is a letter by Bischoff to the camp commandant dated 7 January 1943.
The first paragraph states:

“18 guards for wagon transports to the PoW camp are urgently needed for
the special measures to be carried out (accommodating the announced
transports of 10 to 31 January 1943). Should the assignment of the guards
not be possible, then the commandant’s task cannot be carried out. The
construction materials are required for setting up the stoves. ”

The document clearly says that the special measures consisted in accommo-
dating the transports, not in killing them in “gas chamber.” The 18 guards had
to supervise the trucks used to transport construction materials for heating
stoves to Birkenau, which evidently were to be installed in the barracks set up
to accommodate the announced transports.

In their mendacious comments, however, the authors distort the meaning of
the document, stating that the SS guards were meant to supervise “the trans-
port of materials for the construction of objects serving special actions”! (p.
234, Polish text).
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A week later, on 14 January 1943, the British intercepted the following
message illuminating the letter in question:
“From WVHIA] SS, BERLIN, to CC. AUSCHWITZ, outpost FLUSSZNIES
[sic].
Re.: Stoves for barracks. Stoves are wrapped and ready for shipment at
ORANIENBURG. Shipment follows by railway right after approval of
waybill; pickup therefore not needed.
SS WVHIA] BERLIN, the Head of Office W I, p.p. signed SCHWARZ, SS

Hauptsturmfihrer.”

[63] Document 69 (p. 241)

This is a telex by Bischoff to the head of Office B/V (transports) of the SS-

WVHA, SS-Sturmbannflihrer Rudolf Scheide, dated 15 January 1943, which

contains the following request:
“Referring on the one hand to the above-mentioned letter, and on the other
hand with regard to the instant operation ordered by the Reichsfiihrer SS —
accommodation of 47,000 Jews within a very short period of time — this of-
fice once more requests the immediate assignment of 6 dump trucks in or-
der that the construction of the respective accommodations can be finished
on schedule (until 31 Jan. 43), which is technically impossible for this of-
fice with the motor pool currently available to it.”

This document fully confirms Document 67: special measures and immediate
operation meant accommodating Jewish transports. We have seen above that
special treatment, inter alia, expressly referred to the disinfestation and disin-
fection facility called Zentralsauna.

The authors butcher the document’s self-evident meaning by speculating:

“This might have been connected with preparations to deport and extermi-
nate Jews from Greece, whose concentration in the ghetto at Salonika be-
gan a month earlier. A total of 47,200 Greek Jews were deported to Ausch-
witz from March to June 1943.” (p. 240)

Such an explanation can only be the result of deliberate deceitfulness. Their
conjecture actually doesn’t even make sense, precisely because the deporta-
tion considered by the authors took place between March and June 1943,
while the document in question mentions a “very short period of time” and a
deadline “until 31 Jan. 43.”

In this context another pathetic ploy of the authors should also be noted.
From 20 March to 18 August 1943, 18 Jewish transports arrived at Auschwitz
from Greece bringing 48,533 people into the camp. In order to make that
number match the figure of 47,000 given in the telex, the authors ignore the
last transport of 18 August 1943 with 1,800 people. But even then their figure

252 TNA, German Police Decodes No. 3 Traffic: 14.1.43. | B Traffic. ZIP/GPDD 358b/22.1.43.
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of 47,200 deportees is wrong, apparently forcibly adjusted for the same rea-
son, because the total number of deportees from the remaining earlier trans-
ports is 46,733 (Czech 1970, Table outside of text).

It is clear that the content of the document in question refers to the telex
sent on 16 December 1942 by the Gestapo Chief Heinrich Miller to Himmler,
which reads: >3

“In the course of the increased recruitment of manpower into the concen-
tration camps, as ordered to occur by 30 January 1943, the following may
be applied in the Jewish sector:

1./ Total amount: 45,000 Jews. —

2. / Start of transportation 11 January 1943 —

End of transportation: 31 January 1943 — (In the period from 15 Dec.
1942 to 10 Jan. 1943, the Reichsbahn is unable to provide special trains
for the evacuation due to increased Wehrmacht holiday traffic.) —

3. / Breakdown: the 45,000 Jews are divided up in 30,000 Jews from the
Bialystok district — 10,000 Jews from the ghetto Theresienstadt. Of them
5,000 employable Jews, who were employed so far for minor jobs in the
ghetto, and 5,000 Jews, generally unable to work, even those over 60 years
old, in order to reduce the camp’s overly high occupancy on this occasion
in the interests of expanding the ghetto.

For this | ask to grant a special permission. As before, only those Jews
would be included in the evacuation who have no special relationships and
connections and who have no high decorations. — 3,000 Jews from the oc-
cupied Dutch areas. — 2,000 Jews from Berlin = 45,000. The number of
45,000 includes unemployable (underscored) relatives (elderly Jews and
children). When applying conducive criteria while examining the Jews ar-
riving at Auschwitz — at least 10,000 to 15,000 laborers (underscored)
arise from this.”

Evidently, Himmler had increased the number of these deportees to 47,000.
We therefore leave aside the difference of 2,000 deportees, which is irrelevant
in the context of this argument. Since the above-mentioned 45,000 deported
Jews could contain 30,000-35,000 unemployable individuals, the document
shows that these were not slated to be gassed. Otherwise Himmler would have
ordered only an “immediate operation — accommodation” for 10,000-15,000
Jews fit for labor, not for all 47,000.

According to the Auschwitz Chronicle, between 11 and 31 January 1943,
51,417 deportees arrived at Auschwitz, of which 43,764 were gassed and just
7,653 registered, less than 15%! This is in total contrast to Himmler’s order to
accommodate 47,000 inmates at Auschwitz, and to Bischoff’s concern to pre-
pare the necessary accommodations for all of them on time.

258 PS-1472. IMT, vol. XXVII, pp. 252f.
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[64] Document 70 (p. 245)

This is the well-known file memo written on 22 May 1943 about a meeting
with Kammler in the offices of the Central Construction Office which oc-
curred during the previous day. The authors interpret it this way:

“On the first page, in the section presenting the founding and development
of the Auschwitz camp, there is information that the operation to solve the
Jewish question is currently underway there (Dazu kam in letzter Zeit die
Losung der Judenfrage).” (p. 244)

Even this comment is surprisingly insidious. | reiterate here my analysis of
this document as presented in one of my earlier studies (2004b, pp. 51f., 58)
and elaborate on it further.

On 22 May 1943 Hoss gave a speech to the head of Office Group C of the
SS-WVHA, Hans Kammler, as well as other functionaries, in which he out-

lined the origin and development of the institutional missions of the camp:%**

“In the year 1940, the Auschwitz Camp came into existence in the delta es-
tuary between the Vistula River and the Sola River after the evacuation of
7 Polish villages, through the reconstruction of an artillery-barracks site
and much construction of extensions, reconstructions and new buildings,
utilizing large quantities of material from buildings that had been demol-
ished. Originally intended as a quarantine camp, this later became a Reich
camp and thereby was destined for a new purpose. As the situation grew
ever more critical, its position on the border of the Reich and G.G. [Gen-
eral Gouvernement] proved especially opportune, since the filling of the
camp with workers was guaranteed. Recently and in addition to that came
the solution of the Jewish question, which required creating the means to
accommodate 60,000 prisoners at first, which increases®® to 100,000
within a short time. The inmates of the camp are predominantly intended
for the industries which are locating in the vicinity. The camp contains
within its sphere of interest various armament firms, for which the workers
are regularly provided.” (p. 85)

The “solution of the Jewish question” thus required no extermination or crem-
atorium facilities, but instead measures for the construction of accommoda-
tions for 100,000 prisoners: The supposed homicidal function of the camp was
not only not a priority, it did not exist at all!

Throughout the document there is not the vaguest hint at deportees being
killed; in fact, it insists on the improvement of the camp’s hygienic and sani-
tary conditions. Point 2 of the speech, headlined “Large PoW camp” (Gross-
lager K.G.L.), reports (p. 86):

24 pktenvermerk of 22 May 1943. RGVA, 502-1-26, pp. 85-87.
25 The past tense (“increased”), which appeared originally in the text, has been changed to present
tense. In this context, this present tense has the meaning of a future tense.
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“But due to various dangers of epidemic disease, it is at present essential
to take immediate measures for the improvement of the existing facilities. ”

The section on the “PoW camp” laments the poor hygienic conditions of the
Birkenau Camp, the lack of a general drainage system and of water supply,
which created the danger of epidemics breaking out. The garrison physician
declared that

“the huge danger of epidemics caused by the admissions from the East
cannot be coped with properly owing to the scant control possibilities due
to a lack of water and the lack of allocated quotas for the necessary drain-
age system.” (p. 86)
There was also the problem of the birth of 50 children per day in the gypsy
camp, and the problem of caring for 10,000 sick inmates with very primitive
medical facilities. Therefore, the physician concluded, the increase of the
camp’s strength to more than 100,000 prisoners would be catastrophic (p. 87).
At this point in time, however, Dr. Wirths complaints had already been
considered, because on 13 May, under the program for the improvement of the
Birkenau Camp’s hygienic installations as inaugurated by Kammler on 7 May,
Bischoff had authored a “report concerning the division of labor for the instant
program in the POW camp Auschwitz,” which assigned to his subordinates
their respective tasks in the scope of that program.®*® Furthermore, as | already
mentioned, starting on 16 May at the latest, the reports to Kammler began
about the “special program in the PoW camp Auschwitz”®’ or on “special
measures in the PoW camp.”?®
These special measures, as | mentioned above, were at times also called
“immediate program” (Sofortprogramm), “special construction measures”
(Sonderbaumalinahmen) and “special operation” (Sonderaktion). This pro-
gram also involved the crematoria of Birkenau, but not for “gassing” any de-
tainees. The above-mentioned report of 16 May states in Step 6, “disinfesta-
tion facility”:?*°
“For the disinfestation of the clothing of prisoners, a disinfestation facility
is planned in each of the individual camp sectors of BA II. In order to be
able to perform a flawless body delousing of the prisoners, hot water heat-
ers and boilers are being installed in the two existing prisoner baths in
BA 1, so that hot water is available for the existing shower facility. It is

26 «“Bericht Uber die Arbeitseinteilung beim Sofortprogramm im K.G.L. Auschwitz,” 13 May 1943.
RGVA, 502-1-83, pp. 336-338.

257 “Bericht iiber die getroffenen MaBnahmen fiir die Durchfiihrung des durch SS-Brigadefthrers und
Generalmajor der Waffen-SS Dr. Ing. Kammler angeordneten Sonderprogrammes im KGL.
Auschwitz.” 16 May 1943. RGVA, 502-1-83, pp. 309-311.

28 “Baubericht iiber die SondermaBnahmen im KGL.” 30 May 1943. RGVA, 502-1-83, pp. 283-285.

29 RGVA, 502-1-83, p. 311. On these real showers planned but only partly realized in Crematoria Il
and Il at Birkenau see the documentation | have collected in 2009, pp. 138-142 (2019, pp. 134-
140).
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further planned to install heating coils in the waste incinerator of Crema-
torium 11 in order to obtain water for a shower facility to be built in the
basement of Crematorium Ill. Negotiations to perform the construction for
this installation were held with the Topf & S6hne firm.”

How can this project be reconciled with the alleged criminal purpose of
Crematorium I11?

[65] Document 73 (p. 253)

Even this is a well-known document which was already published by Pressac
(1994, Document 21). It is a map with the headline “Overview of surveying
the area of interest of CC Auschwitz” from 2 June 1943, in which an area is
marked as an “off-limits zone.”?®® | have thoroughly analyzed this document
elsewhere in order to refute the French historian’s interpretation.?®* Hence |
reiterate and expand on the main parts of that elaboration, and to make it un-
derstandable to the reader, | again reproduce this map (see DOCUMENT 26).

The map in question was drawn for topographical and cartographical rea-
sons. In this respect the Central Construction Office had already become ac-
tive in late 1942.%%2 Preliminary work on the survey grid of the zone had been
done by 13 January 1943, but other work still remained to be done.?®® The
map has a direct link with the enlargement of the area of interest of Auschwitz
Concentration Camp, which took place the day before the map was drawn. It
was announced in the Amtsblatt der Regierung in Kattowitz, the official jour-
nal of the Kattowitz region, which gave a detailed description of the new lim-
its of the “area of interest.”*

The “off-limits zone” had a clear relationship with the various camp lock-
downs decreed by Hoss on account of the typhus epidemics. For example, in
1943, on 9 February, Hoss gave a Garrison Order No. 2/43, in which he an-
nounced that the head of Office Group D of the SS-WVHA, SS-Brigadefiihrer
Gliicks, had ordered a “total lock-down of the camp” because of the spread of
typhus cases.® In Garrison Order No. 3 of 14 February, Hoss defined the lim-

its of the “off-limits zone for the total camp lock-down’:?%

“In reference to Garrison Order 2/43 [recte: 25/42] cited in Garrison Or-
der 25/42 [recte: 2/43], the former will be modified in the sense that the fol-

20 RGVA, 502-1-88, p. 8.

261 2009, Section 7.4, “Sperrgebiet,” pp. 195-197; | reproduced the map on p. 700, Document 36
(2019, pp. 191-193, 643).

262 On 12 October 1942, a civilian employee of Zentralbauleitung went to Breslau on an official mis-
sion to discuss topographical and cartographical questions with the competent authorities. RGVA,
502-1-385, pp. 253-257.

263 Report by SS-Schiitze Fischer of the surveying team of 23 Jan. 1943. RGVA, 502-1-385, pp. 47-
49,

264 APK, Land 81 Go/S-467.

25 APMO, Standort-Befehl, D-Aul-1, p. 46.

26 Standortbefehl no. 3/43 of Feb. 14 1943. APMO, Standortbefehl, t. I, D-Aul-1, p. 48.
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lowing area is defined as an off-limits zone for the total camp lock-down in
accordance with indications on the map of CC Auschwitz area of interest:
The off-limits zone is represented by the CC Auschwitz area of interest,
limited in the north, west and east by the Vistula and/or Sola rivers [...].”

This having been clarified, let us now look at the map of June 2, 1943. The
map shows, within an obliquely shaded area, a white zone labeled “off-limits
zone” and “Birkenau PoW camp.” The latter zone corresponds more or less to
the Birkenau Camp, whereas the one labeled “off-limits zone” extends some
950 m toward the Vistula River, north-northwest from the left side of the
camp. If the “off-limits zone” was no larger than this, it included neither the
location of the alleged “bunkers” nor their mass graves. My DOCUMENT 27 in
the Appendix is a superimposition of the map of the Birkenau Camp on the
map of 2 June 1943. The zones marked by circles indicate:

B1: area of the alleged “Bunker 1” and its mass graves.

B2: area of the alleged “Bunker 2.”

F. mass graves allegedly belonging to “Bunker 1,” actually graves of reg-
istered detainees who died in 1942 which the crematorium of the Main
Camp could not incinerate.?®’

As shown by the superposition, the areas of the “bunkers” fall outside of the
“off-limits zone” (the area of “Bunker 1” lies even inside the shaded zone).
The area of the “off-limits zone” is surrounded by a curved line which corre-
sponds to the one appearing on the “map of the area of interest of CC Ausch-
witz” of October 1943, in which also the area of the Birkenau Camp is indi-
cated in a similar way.?®® Actually, in the above document, the “off-limits
zone” refers to the entire unshaded area, hence also to the Birkenau Camp. As
early as 24 October 1942, Headquarters Order No. 21/42 mentioned the “off-
limits zone Birkenau,” and specified the following (Frei et al. 2000, p. 190):

“Effective immediately, the area around Birkenau will be off-limits for ci-
vilians. Entering this space is authorized only in connection with official
matters. ”

We may therefore conclude that the “off-limits zone” of the map dated 2 June
1943 has no connection with the alleged Birkenau “bunkers.”

We are also dealing with a chronological problem: all the witnesses agree
that the alleged activities at the “bunkers” stopped when Crematoria Il, IV and
V went into operation in early 1943. In my comments on Document 16 | al-
ready mentioned the related statements by F. Piper and Sz. Dragon.

Friedler, Siebert and Kilian, who have collected and examined the largest
collection of testimonies of ex-members of the Sonderkommando, write about
this as follows (Friedler et al. 2005, p. 104):

267 n this respect cf. the appendices with documents and explanations in Mattogno 2004a and 2005c.
268 “plan vom Interessengebiet des K.L. Auschwitz Nr. 3203 of October 1943. APMO, negative no.
6189.
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“In March 1943, the first of four new crematoria in Birkenau was opera-
tional. The mass destruction had thus reached a new, much more perfect
dimension. The farmhouses converted to killing facilities were superfluous.
The SS had Bunker 1 and the adjacent barn torn down, and the barracks
erected there dismantled. Bunker 2, which admittedly constituted a primi-
tive, yet highly effective ‘small’ murder factory, was probably shut down in
May 1943, but not demolished. ”

To this we can add the testimony of Milton Buki. During the 127th hearing of
the Frankfurt Auschwitz Trial (14 January 1965) he testified that he was as-
signed to the Sonderkommando on 14 December 1942. Among other things,
he was also asked about how long the “bunkers” operated (20044, p. 116):

“P: How long were the two little houses used for gassing?
B: Until the crematoria were built. ”

There is also the testimony given at the Hoss trial by Wilhelm Wohlfahrt, an
inmate who was employed in the Central Construction Office’s “melioration”
section, which was connected to the surveying section. He consequently could
move around the camp rather freely. With reference to the alleged “Bunker 1”
he declared (ibid., p. 104):

“That cottage was demolished in 1943, when | went there at that time

[month not given], the whole area had been plowed and the cottage was

gone.”
Hence, if “Bunker 1” was demolished in May 1943 at the very latest, why
would there be any reason to keep its vicinity off limits on a map of June
1943? The authors’ dirty trick — that is, their extending the alleged activities of
the “bunkers” beyond the extreme chronological limit of May 1943 in order to
eliminate the contradictions arising from their fallacious interpretation of vari-
ous documents — is therefore puerile and in vain, because the version of histo-
ry bandied about by the Auschwitz Museum itself and the testimonies it relies
upon contradict such an extension. Hence we are not dealing with a “new” in-
terpretation in the light of “new documents,” but with a risible interpretative
sleight of hand.

It ought to be kept in mind that the whole story of the “bunkers” is based
exclusively on testimonies, and that the documents adduced by the authors are
more or less deliberately misrepresented by them exactly because of these tes-
timonies, although those document don’t provide even the slightest hint in fa-
vor of the existence of the legendary gassing “bunkers.” It is therefore absurd
to try and “correct” the testimonies on the basis of these documents.

[66] Document 74 (p. 255)

This is a letter dated 10 June 1943, attached to which the company Bauge-
schaft Anhalt. Hoch-, Tief-, Eisenbetonbau of Berlin sent an invoice to the



CARLO MATTOGNO - CURATED LIES 153

Central Construction Office seeking payment of day wages for “construction
site ‘special operation”” in the amount of 146.28 RM.?*°

The authors make no comment, and it is difficult to imagine what value
this document might have for orthodox Holocaust historiography. It cannot
have any relation to the “bunkers,” because at that time the alleged conversion
of these existing structures to homicidal “gas chambers” had supposedly al-
ready taken place roughly a year earlier. It is therefore unclear what kind of
work a company specializing in reinforced-concrete structures could have
been involved in. The document cannot even have any relationship with the
Birkenau crematoria, because the company Baugeschaft Anhalt was not
among those who participated in constructing the Birkenau crematoria (those
that did include: Robert Koehler, Huta, Vedag, Continentale Wasserwerk-Ge-
sellschaft, Karl Falk, Triton, Konrad Segnitz, Industrie-Bau, W. Riedel u.
Sohn, Josef Kluge, and Hermann Hirt; Pressac 1994, pp. 161-163).

I have already published and discussed this document in one of my earlier
books (2004b, pp. 75, 139, Document 26), although erroneously giving the
year as 1944. It therefore does not fall within the context of “Special Opera-
tion Hungary,” but the “special operation” inaugurated by Kammler on 7 May
1943: the program to improve the hygienic and sanitary conditions at Birke-
nau mentioned earlier. In particular, the document is linked to the aforemen-
tioned letter by Bischoff to Kammler of 14 May 1943, which has as its object
“Carrying out of the special operation — procurement of material.”

The company Baugeschaft Anhalt appears on the “List of all construction
companies active in the camp. Construction Site Auschwitz” dated 9 April
1943, which comprises 29 companies, among them Koehler, Huta, Continen-
tale, Falk, Triton, Industrie-Bau, Riedel, Kluge and Hirt.?”® Another, undated
list, which includes 27 companies, relates that the company Anhalt had 60
skilled workers and 40 unskilled workers (camp inmates made available by
the Central Construction Office) and also gives the company’s permit number:
V1/42/PB/17 7™

The name “Construction Site Auschwitz” shows that the term “construc-
tion site” did not refer to a single structure (Bauwerk), but to the entire con-
struction project (Bauvorhaben) Auschwitz-Birkenau Camp, as can be seen
from the fact that many of the listed companies worked on many different
structures precisely within the Birkenau Camp. This confirms that the “con-
struction site ‘special operation’” was not a specific structure where a “special
operation” took place, but a term referring to the entire camp complex.

269 |_etter by Baugeschéft Anhalt to Zentralbauleitung of 10 June 1943. RGVA, 502-1-83, p. 258. The
invoice has not been found.

210 RGVA, 502-1-96, p. 39.

2L RGVA, 502-1-19, p. 88.
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Chapter Two: Critical Analysis of the “Introduction”

My examination of the documents published by the authors makes it clear that
their comments are characterized by superficiality and dilettantism. They start
from the deep-seated prejudice, based on testimonies, that homicidal gassing
facilities existed at Auschwitz and Birkenau, which they then try to substanti-
ate with documents by systematically distorting their meaning, often quite ev-
idently with malicious intent. Their presentation does not exhibit the slightest
effort to really understand the documents. It furthermore ignores the historical
and documentary context in which these documents are embedded and their
mutual relations. Their Introduction does not add anything to the picture |
have outlined; in fact, it makes it worse.

1. The Historical and Documentary Context

The authors argue that the documents submitted by them

“make it possible significantly to clarify the chronology of events and to
confirm facts known until now only through witness accounts. It should
nevertheless be noted that the documents do not usually refer directly to
killings in the gas chamber, [...]” (p. 24)

Stop! This is a rather hypocritical understatement. In fact, the documents in
question never refer, directly or indirectly, to killings in homicidal gas cham-
bers! Resumed:
“[...] and interpreting the entries sometimes requires a detailed familiarity
not only with other documents, but also with the reality of the camp. For
instance, when analyzing a report on the inspection of Auschwitz in Sep-
tember 1942 by WVHA chief Oswald Pohl, it is necessary to know that the
car carrying Pohl and his entourage of officers along the road from the
camp would pass, in turn, the SS equipment warehouses (TWL)[Truppen-
wirtschaftslager], the building materials depot (Bauhof), the carpentry
shops (DAW), the warehouses known as ‘Kanada I’ (‘Entwesung u.
Effektenkammer — Aktion Reinhard’) for property plundered from Jews, the
new stables, and the Birkenau camp—and that, carrying on along the same
road, it would next come to gas chamber/bunker I, the so-called ‘Little
White House’ (described in the schedule for the visit as ‘Station 2 der Ak-
tion Reinhard’). ” (p. 24)
In reality, however, this conjecture does not make much sense, because the re-
port on Pohl’s visit mentions “Birkenau Camp,” “Station 2 of Operation Rein-
hard” and “Troop Camp Birkenau,” which was the eastern part of the camp
where the guards were quartered. Therefore Pohl would have entered the
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camp through the main entrance, located on the east side, about 400 meters
away from “Troop Camp Birkenau,” would have crossed the entire camp to
reach the elusive “Bunker 2,” then he would have gone all the way back in the
opposite direction, but without going to “Bunker 1,” in order to finally enter
the “Troop Camp Birkenau.”

The authors’ hypothesis proceeds from the assumption that a homicidal
gassing facility called “Station 1 of Operation Reinhard” existed (the alleged
“Bunker 1”), which does not appear in any document. Conversely, the term
“Operation Reinhard[t]” appears only in relation to the “disinfestation cham-
ber and storage of inmate belongings” and “Station 1.” Yet if the first facility
was a simple disinfestation facility with attached warehouses even according
to the authors, why should the latter have been a homicidal gas chamber?

As | demonstrated in my comments on Document 35, SS-Sturmbannfiihrer
Alfred Franke-Gricksch wrote explicitly that “Special Operation ‘Reinhard’”
consisted of the seizure of Jewish personal effects, and that also applied
whenever the word was used in the context of the Auschwitz Camp. It could
not possibly mean the alleged extermination of the Jews at Auschwitz for the
simple fact that the head of “Operation ‘Reinhard,”” SS-Brigadefiihrer Odilo
Globocnik, had no jurisdiction over this camp. It follows that at Auschwitz the
name “Operation Reinhard[t]” could refer only to the seizure of Jewish pos-
sessions, not the killing of their Jewish owners. Thus “Station 2 of Operation
Reinhard” could not be a term referring to the elusive “Bunker 2.”

In reference to the alleged extermination of the Jews, the authors say:

“It must also be emphasized that the number of documents originating in

the years 1941-1942 that confirm the commission of mass murder by

Zyklon B in Auschwitz is significantly smaller in comparison to what the

documents contain on the later period. This results—one might assume—

from the fact that at first the SS men employed in the camp offices scrupu-

lously observed orders to keep the extermination operation covert.” (p. 25)
After 1943, however, when the four crematoria of Birkenau went into opera-
tion, the SS realized according to the authors that it was impossible to contin-
ue keeping the claimed ongoing mass murder a secret:

“This is why the overall number of such entries rises significantly in this

period, despite the continued formal use of the recommended code words

(SB, Sonderbehandlung) in documents that were issued.” (p. 25)

The authors’ delusion is truly staggering. What documents are they writing
about? There exists not a single document about the perpetration of mass kill-
ings by means of Zyklon B at Auschwitz, and those documents containing al-
leged code words have a completely different meaning. Only with a huge ef-
fort of deception and imagination do the authors manage to efface the docu-
ments’ real meaning over and over again.
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2. Euthanasia at Auschwitz

Outlining the history of Auschwitz, the authors mention the alleged camp visit
of a commission presided over by Dr. Horst Schumann on 28 July 1941, in
consequence of which 575 detainees were “reviewed” in the hospitals and
“transferred to the euthanasia center in Sonnenstein” to be murdered (p. 26).

But on the entire affair claimed to be the very beginning of the murder of
inmates at Auschwitz, not a single document exists. Danuta Czech, who tells
this story in her Auschwitz Chronicle, refers to multiple sources, all of which
are anecdotal in nature (1990, p. 75). She mentions among others Volume VI,
p. 474, of the collection of material from the camp’s resistance movement, in
which, under the heading “Transport,” the following entry appears for 28 July
1941: “Dresden 575 gassings.”?’? This is obviously the source for the date of
the alleged visit of the Schumann Commission. The choice, however, was not
very judicious, because on that one single day, 28 July, the commission is said
to have arrived, supposedly carried out the “selection” of the incurably sick
inmates, and allegedly sent them off to their ostensible death: the Auschwitz
SS would have been amazingly efficient, indeed! There is no evidence that the
transport in question had gone to Sonnenstein. It is more likely that it went to
Dachau instead, because the document records two previous transports to Da-
chau: on 6 December 1940 (68 detainees) and on 2 May 1941 (36 detainees).

Not to mention that the above message is in direct conflict with another
earlier message from the resistance movement dated 2 July 1941, which states
(Marczewska/Wazniewski 1968, p. 47):

“The first [pierwsze] use of the gas chambers took place in June 1941 [w
VI. 1941]. It consisted of a transport of 1,700 ‘incurably sick’ who were
[allegedly] sent to the sanatorium in Dresden, but in reality into the build-
ing converted into a gas chamber [do budynku przebudowageno na ko-
mor¢ gazowa].”
Elsewhere | revealed that not a single document exists about this alleged his-
torical event (2005b, pp. 70f.), and that the 2008 article by Jochen August —
“The transport of 575 inmates from CC Auschwitz to Sonnenstein (28 July
1941). Reconstruction of the destroyed transport list” — quoted by the authors
in support of their conjecture, confirms only that the Auschwitz Museum does
not possess any documentary proof for the reality of this alleged transport to
Sonnenstein.

22 AGK, NTN, 155, p. 474; the actual Polish term used — gazownia — usually refers to a facility pro-
ducing gaseous fuel, but here it apparently means “gazowanie” — gassing.
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3. Injections with Phenol

This (alleged) crime — so the authors continue — “could only temporarily alle-
viate the problem of the overcrowding of the hospital blocks in Auschwitz,”
so the SS, to avoid “bothersome transports to euthanasia centers in Germany,”
undertook killing experiments right afterwards.

“Among the available poisons, the choice fell on phenol, a popular disin-
fectant that was injected directly into the chambers of the doomed prison-
ers' hearts. From the end of the summer of 1941, hundreds of prisoners
were murdered this way. ” (p. 26)

Because the euthanasia centers allegedly used carbon-monoxide gas chambers
to kill patients, it is unclear why a similar facility was not set up in Auschwitz
as well, instead of resorting to bothersome individual injections. It goes with-
out saying that not a single document exists on these alleged killings, and the
whole thing is therefore relegated to suitable testimonies, as always. From a
historical point of view, the whole story is unfounded and inconsistent.?”

4. The “First Gassing” in the Basement of Block 11 at
Auschwitz

Then the authors turn to the purported first homicidal gassing with Zyklon B
in the basement of Block 11, which according to the orthodox version hap-
pened in the period between 31 August and 4 September 1941 — which alleg-
edly results from the fact that the bunker’s registry does not contain any en-
tries of newly interned prisoners in its prison cells for these days. During that
gassing, 600 Soviet PoWs and 250 sick inmates were ostensibly Killed. To
back this up, the authors refer, among other things, to the report of the camp
resistance from 24 October 1941 that “speaks of 850 POWSs killed, which
surely includes the sick prisoners taken from the camp hospital”; they also cite
“later reports from November 15 and 17 [which] mention 600 murdered
POWSs.” (p. 27, note 7).

The first report states (Marczewska/Wazniewski 1968, p. 11):

“At Oswigcim [Auschwitz], in early October, 850 Soviet officers and

noncoms (POWSs) that had been taken there were killed by gas as a test of a

new type of combat gas, which is to be used on the eastern front. ”
As we see, the dating, the number of victims, and the purpose of the gassing
are completely at odds with the Auschwitz Museum’s orthodox version. As to
the authors’ claim that the “850 POWS” included “sick prisoners taken from
the camp hospital,” this is clearly a lie. The report of 15 November speaks of
“600 Soviet prisoners, among them several army ‘politruks’ [political com-

273 See in this regard Mattogno 2016¢, Chapter 5.3, ““Special Treatment 14 f 13* and Phenol Injec-
tions in Auschwitz,” pp. 97-102.
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missars]” and “about 200 Poles”; the gassing is claimed to have occurred
“during the night of 5-6 September.” The report of 17 November refers to
“600 civilian Soviet prisoners of war” and “about 250 Poles” supposedly
gassed during the night of 5 to 6 September (ibid.).

These are only a few examples of the countless contradictions with which
the orthodox narrative of the “first gassing” is riddled. In a study dedicated to
this imaginary event | demonstrated that this narrative was concocted with
great malice on the basis of the resistance movement’s reports and eyewitness
accounts, which are all utterly contradictory on all essential points (location,
date, preparations, type of victims, perpetrators, start time and duration of the
gassing, the fate of the corpses; see Mattogno 2005b). There is therefore no
need to dwell further on this aspect of the Auschwitz myth.

5. The “Gas Chamber” in Crematorium | at Auschwitz

Since the gas chamber in the basement of Block 11 had proved awkward to
use — only a madman would have come up with the idea to carry out a homi-
cidal gassing in the bunker cells — the murderous practice is said to have been
moved to the crematorium, turning its morgue into a “gas chamber.” “The ex-
tent of the remodeling” necessary for this, the authors assure us, “was relative-
ly small, limited to mounting two solid doors and punching four drop hatches
in the flat roof” (p. 27). The first gassing is said to have been carried out in
that morgue in September or October 1941. The authors explain:

“This information is confirmed by an order from the camp metalworking
shop, dated September 25, for four airtight flaps (Luftdichte Klappen) for
the crematorium building (doc. 5), which can be interpreted in two ways:
either POWSs had been murdered there earlier and the order resulted from
the need to stop leaks, or—more probably—the covers were ordered ahead
of time to prevent the gas from leaking out. The short time for the order to
be filled is also noteworthy: the metalwork was finished the same day the
order was submitted. It was treated as ‘urgent’ because the arrival of a
transport of POWSs was expected.” (p. 27)

The authors’ claims are really incredible. They claim that the morgue of the
crematorium was equipped with two solid — presumably gas-tight — doors, but
they do not provide the vaguest documentary clue for this. They assert that
four holes were punched through the morgue’s ceiling, but again they do not
even adduce a scrap of evidence for this. They nevertheless have the nerve to
present the order for “four airtight flaps” as evidence for the existence of those
four openings for pouring in Zyklon B through the morgue’s roof. They first
talk about pokrywy, lids (p. 11), then klapy, trap doors, similar to the German
term Klappen, hinged lids. Such speculation does not make sense, because
these lids of sheet iron had to be mounted in frames set into the ceiling open-
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ings, otherwise they could not have been closed hermetically. Such frames
would have been manufactured by the inmate locksmith shop (what the au-
thors call the camp metalworking shop). In other words, if the authors’ hy-
pothesis was sensible, Order No. 1714 of 25 September 1941 would have en-
compassed not only four (alleged) flaps, but also four frames.

That the order in question had been regarded as “urgent” is a mere whim of
the authors, because nothing on the document indicates that it was. The space
provided for the “degree of urgency” (Dringl.-Grad) at the top right is empty!
And the fact that the order was completed within just one day only means that
the workshop had at its disposal men and material to do this minor job right
away.

This alleged urgency is a meaningless ploy even if viewed from the per-
spective of the orthodox narrative, because the authors do not in any way
show that “the arrival of a transport of POWs was expected.” In fact, after the
alleged transport of 600 Soviet PoWs who were allegedly gassed in Block 11
on 3 September 1941, no other Soviet POWs arrived at Auschwitz until 7 Oc-
tober, when 2,014 of them were transferred from the Lamsdorf camp (Brand-
huber 1961, pp. 16-18). The authors’ trick is foolish even from their own per-
spective because, as Czech explains lucidly, these Soviet PoWs were not in-
tended indiscriminately for extermination. In November 1941 a special com-
mission of the Gestapo came to Auschwitz, chaired by the head of the Gestapo
in Katowice, Rudolf Mildner, who interrogated the Soviet PoWs and sorted
them into four groups (Czech 1990, p. 102):

“1. Fanatic Communists—approximately 300 [PoWs]

2. Group A: politically suspect—approximately 700 [PoWs]

3. Group B: not politically suspect—approximately 8000 [PoWs]
4. Group C: suitable for habilitation—approximately 30 [PoWSs]”

Only the PoWs of the first group were eventually killed,?* but that could not
have happened before November 1941, so it makes no sense that already on
25 September the Auschwitz SS attached a special urgency to the completion
of an alleged killing device.

In reality, however, as | made clear in my comments to Document 5, the
four “airtight flaps” were used for the crematorium’s ventilation system, and
the term reminds us of the one used by Grabner in the above-mentioned letter
of 7 June 1941: “ventilation flap to the morgue,” which confirms that the
“flaps” were not some imaginary “lids” but in fact ventilation dampers.

The authors continue as follows:

214 On 15 November 1941, Gliicks passed on to all the concentration camps, including Auschwitz,
Himmler’s order that the execution of Soviet PoWs transferred to the camps for the sake of execu-
tion, especially political commissars, will be postponed for those who are physically robust and
thus capable of working in a quarry. See Mattogno 2005b, pp. 125f. (letter by Glicks and re-
sponse by Grabner of 17 November 1941).
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“Nor can there be any doubt that the gas chamber at crematorium | was
used on at least several occasions over the following months to exterminate
successive groups of Soviet POWs. Eyewitnesses, however, provide varying
dates and numbers of transports. According to Marian [sic] Kula, 300
prisoners were killed on a certain day. Stanistaw Gadomski recalled a
‘second or third gassing’ of about 400 POWs who arrived at the end of
October 1941. Kazimierz Halgas mentioned a total of several thousand
victims, and a resistance movement report from December 15 speaks of the
killing of 500 POWs in ‘the concrete shelter.”” (pp. 27f.)

Here, too, the authors uncritically concoct a hodgepodge of anecdotal evi-
dence, since there is no objective evidence supporting any of this. Quite to the
contrary, the documents actually outright refute this narrative.

Michat (not Marian!) Kula stated the following:?®

“In 1942, Hoss became interested in the metal workshop, and particularly
in the tools of the crime. Of course, he turned to us in the metal workshop.
Ordered to do so by him, we fashioned various things, he supervised us
personally. [...]
First there was the small crematorium in Auschwitz, for which a ventilator
was made in our metal workshop. This ventilator was worked on by Mali-
szewski Stefan, Szablewski Stanistaw, Stecisko Mieczystaw, and by me. We
worked until midnight. Before midnight, Hss came to see us, accompanied
by Grabner. He made a big fuss, because the job was not yet done. It was
about the ventilator for the aeration of the gas chamber; an opening had
been made there, into which the ventilator was set to draw out the gas. Be-
fore midnight we raced to the crematorium with the ventilator, screwed it
in, and we were taken back to the camp by the SS. Along the road to the
crematorium, we met some 300 persons who ran towards the crematorium.
They were Russian, because they spoke Russian. On that very night they
were gassed.”
Since the temporary ventilation for the crematorium’s morgue, which had
been request by Grabner, was installed in September-October 1941, and, as |
explained earlier, because it required both an intake and an exhaust fan in or-
der to function properly, it is a mystery what a fan supposedly built in 1942
for the “gas chamber” (the morgue, in fact) could have been used for.
Moreover, from the arrival of the first official transport of Soviet PoWs at
Auschwitz on 7 October 1941 until the end of the Mildner Commission’s
work in November or December of that year, no gassings could have been car-
ried out, because the commission’s task was precisely to determine through
interrogation which of the Soviet POWs were to be executed eventually.

215 Statement by M. Kula of 15 March 1947. Héss Trial, AGK, NTN, 107 [vol. 25], pp. 481-483 [16-18].
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This essential objection also applies to Stanistaw Gadomski’s statement.
What’s more, the only transport of Soviet PoWs that arrived at Auschwitz at
the end of October 1941 contained 1,908 inmates (on Oct. 25; Czech 1990, p.
99), so the authors should at least explain why only 400 of them were
“gassed” according to Gadomski. Kazimierz Hatgas’s statement is entirely un-
specific and therefore irrelevant. Finally, the report of the resistance move-
ment is the “Appendix to Report No. 21 for the period from 1 to 15 December
1941, dated 15 December 1941, which states (Marczewska/Wazniewski
1968, p. 16):

“About 500 prisoners of war were poisoned in a concrete shelter [w beto-

nowym schronie] by means of a war gas [za pomocg gazu bojowego].”

The term “shelter” is strange, but it may be a mistranslation of the German
term “bunker,” which can refer to both a shelter and a storage facility for bulk
items. The building used by the SS as a crematorium used to be a storage
building for munitions and at some point also for food items, and as such it
was at times called a “bunker.” Stranger still is the faulty reference to “war
gas.” The murder weapon claimed by orthodox historiography today, Zyklon
B, was a disinfestant, a pest-control agent useless for battlefield applications.

The authors then say that, according to witnesses, in addition to Soviet
PoWs, also transports of Jews were gassed in Crematorium | in late 1941 or
early 1942, but they add:

“Unfortunately, this information is imprecise in relation to both the num-
ber of people murdered and the chronology of the transports. Pery Broad,
a functionary in the KL Auschwitz Political Department, stated that he ob-
served the extermination of a numerous group of Jews at the beginning of
19421 1...]

171...] probably in January [...]” (p. 28, and note 17, ibid.),

The authors provide another proof of their superficiality and lack of a critical
disposition. Broad was in fact transferred to Auschwitz only on 8 April
1942.2® How is he supposed to have “observed” an event which allegedly
took place three months earlier?

They then invoke the testimony of Hans Stark, another member of the Po-
litical Department at Auschwitz, who “testified that he was present at the kill-
ing of 150 to 200 people in this gas chamber in October 1941” (p. 28). In their
Footnote 18 they provide as a source for this: “ZStL, IV 402 AR-Z37/58 Son-
derband 6, p. 970,” in which, as we shall see below, the page number is
wrong, and inform us: “Christopher Browning feels that, because Stark spent
time away from Auschwitz between December 1941 and March 1942, he

216 Affidavit by P. Broad of 20 October 1947. NI-11984. Even the book published by the Auschwitz
Museum to which the authors refer (Note 17 on p. 28, English text), clearly states in Broad’s brief
biography that he was sent to Auschwitz in April 1942. Bezwiniska 1997, p. 222.
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could have witnessed the event in October.” The authors have in fact misquot-
ed Browning, who said:

“Since Stark was on leave from Auschwitz from December 1941 through
March 1942, he could not have been confusing events from the fall of 1941
with those of early 1942.”

Browning refers to the same source, apparently simply copied by the authors,
with the same page number error: ZStL, 1V 402 AR-Z 37/58, Sonderband 6, p.
970 (Browning 2004, Note 211, p. 527; the correct page number is 948).

The authors once more blithely overlook the many ways in which Stark’s
testimony contradicts the Auschwitz Museum’s orthodox narrative. For exam-
ple, he spoke of “two openings of approximately 35 cm in diameter” — thus
circular, which is in contrast with the four square or rectangular openings can-
onized by the Museum; he also mentioned one “hermetically sealed door,” but
as is known, the crematorium’s morgue had two doors. For a thorough exami-
nation of Stark’s testimony I refer the reader to my specific study (2005a, pp.
62-65).

The next witness summoned by the authors is the former first chief of the
Protective Custody Camp (1. Schutzhaftlagerfiihrer) SS-Hauptsturmfihrer
Hans Aumeier:

“Former Lagerfuhrer Hans Aumeier testified shortly after the end of the
war that he saw 50 to 80 Jews being murdered in the crematorium | gas
chamber in November or December 1942, which the American researcher
Christopher Browning is inclined to regard as a mistake, shifting the date
of this event to 1941.” (pp. 28f.)

I have dealt with Aumeier’s statements in that same study (ibid., pp. 48-50),
from which | draw the following observations in order to primarily highlight
once again the authors’ superficiality and lack of critical capacities.

In a report from 25 July 1945 prepared for the British, who had arrested
him, he wrote:?"’

“As far as | remember, it was in November or December 1942 [sic!] that
the first gassing of about 50-80 Jewish detainees was undertaken. This
took place in the morgue of the crematorium in camp |, under the direction
of the camp surgeon, of Untersturmfiihrer Grabener [Grabner], of the
L.K.28 and a number of medics. | was not present at the time and did not
know beforehand that this gassing would take place either. Towards me,
the LK was always very distrustful and taciturn. It was only the next day
that the camp surgeon, Grabner, Untersturmfiihrer Hessler [Hossler]
Hauptscharfiuhrer Schwarz and | were called to the LK, who informed us
that the order of the RFSS has come from RSHA-Berlin that all Jewish de-

2T TNA, File WO0.208/4661. Statement by H. Aumeier of 25 July 1945, pp. 5f.
218 | K., Lagerkommandant, commandant of the camp.
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tainees unfit for work as well as the sick judged by the doctor as not being
fit for work in the future are to be gassed in order to avoid the spread of
epidemics. He stated further that the night before the first detainees had
been gassed, but the crematorium had turned out to be too small and could
not cope with the cremations, so that in the crematorium®™® now under
construction at Birkenau, gas chambers were being included. [...]

In the period that followed, some 3 or 4 gassings were still carried out in
the old crematorium. This always took place in the evening hours. There
were 2-3 air shafts in the morgue and 1-2 medics wearing gas masks
poured bluegas through them. We ourselves were not allowed to get close,
and the bunker was opened only the following day. As the doctor said, the
people had died within 1/2 to 1 M.[inute].”

Browning limited himself to writing (2004, Note 211, p. 527):

“Hans Aumeier testified that the gassing of small groups of Jews (50-80)
occurred in November or December 1942, but presumably he meant 1941.
See Expert Opinion of Robert Jan van Pelt, Irving v. Penguin Books and
Deborah Lipstadt, citing PRO WO 208/4661, p. 261.”

Van Pelt was just as laconic (1999, Note 29, p. 185):

“Aumeier is confused on this point. All the evidence points to the com-
mencement of gassings in crematorium 1 a year earlier.”

He therefore merely notes the chronological contradiction, without trying to
explain it. The authors simply attribute Aumeier’s date to a “mistake,” alt-
hough that makes no sense, because according to Aumeier’s story, “the first
gassing of about 50-80 Jewish detainees” was carried out while he was in
Auschwitz, but he was transferred to the camp only on 16 February 1942, so
he could not have committed a “mistake” by confusing 1941 (when he was not
yet in Auschwitz) with 1942.

The authors themselves point out “that Aumeier arrived in Auschwitz
somewhat later, on February 1 [sic], 1942,” and that “he testified in a Polish
court on another occasion,” during the trial of the camp garrison, “that Jews
were already being Killed in the gas chamber in the Main Camp when he ‘took
up his post in Auschwitz,” and that there were at least several events, of this
type” (p. 29).

This is a rather curious way of resolving this anachronism: since Aumeier
stated in a later deposition that there had been gassings prior to his arrival at
Auschwitz, his initial claim about the first gassing having taken place in No-
vember or December 1942, while he was stationed at Auschwitz, is no longer
anachronistic but rather a simple “mistake”? In reality, in reference to this
date, he spoke explicitly of the “first gassing,” so that the authors have simply
reported yet another internal contradiction between Aumeier’s statements. Not

219 German: “der Krematorium,” plural article, but singular noun.
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to mention that, in his first statement to his British captors on 29 June 1945,
Aumeier flatly denied that homicidal gassings had occurred at Auschwitz:*®

“In the Main Camp there was a crematorium consisting of two furnac-
es.[1 Corpses were burned there. The crematorium was under the respon-
sibility of the head of the Political Department and the camp surgeon. Dur-
ing my time, 2 or 3 crematoria were under construction at Birkenau. | have
no knowledge of gas chambers, and during my time no detainee was
gassed. At the time of my transfer, there were some 54,000 detainees at
Auschwitz and Birkenau, among them about 15,000 women and children.
Detainees who fell ill were moved to the infirmary, which was under the
exclusive responsibility of the camp surgeon.”

One could of course claim that these were mere lies as a defensive strategy.
But as | have shown in yet another study (20044, pp. 133-136), he “confessed”
the alleged gassings only when he realized that the “gassings” were deemed
an unquestionable and undeniable fact by the British interrogators, and he
simply adjusted his defensive tactics accordingly, since denying it would have
been a useless defense strategy.

Aumeier’s statements contain other contradictions and absurdities which
are no less serious. | refer the reader to my studies cited above. For example,
the gassings allegedly occurred by pouring gas through 2 or 3 (1) “air shafts”
(rather than through the canonical four openings formed especially for this
purpose); by means of “bluegas” (Blaugas)®? (1), and the gassing procedure is
said to have lasted only 1 to 1% minutes (!), not to mention the anachronistic
dating of the claimed gassing order by Himmler (November-December
19421).

The authors then mention a virtually unknown witness, Karl Bara, an “SS
medical orderly [...] posted to the SS hospital,” located right next to the crem-
atorium, “in March 1942.” He “testified that at that time he could see through
the window how people were being led to their death in the gas chamber at the
crematorium” (p. 29), which is a historically commonplace statement lacking
any detail, thus making any critical assessment of it impossible.

Finally the authors adduce Engineer Kurt Prifer of the Topf company:

“who probably visited Auschwitz at the beginning of February 1942, testi-

fied after the war that on that occasion he saw many corpses (Menschen-

leichen) lying in various poses on the floor of the room next to the furnace

280 TNA, File WO-208/4661, handwritten document starting “Gefangener Oslo, den 29 Juni 45>, p.
5. These documents were discovered by David Irving, who posted it on his website
http://www.fpp.co.uk/Auschwitz/Aumeier/.

281 The third furnace was installed in April 1942.

282 «Blaugas” was “fuel gas, a lighting gas, named after its inventor, [a man by the name of] Blau.”
Lenz/Galiner 1934, p. 15. This claim is similar to homicidal-gassing claims made by other wit-
nesses, such as Walter Petzold in his “Report about the first gassing of prisoners in German con-
centration camps” of 17 May 1945. See Mattogno 2005b, pp. 37-40.
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hall in crematorium I, and that the SS man accompanying him explained
that the place was a gas chamber.” (p. 29)

As their source the authors cite a book by Annegret Schiile (which they mis-
spell as Schiille), Industrie und Holocaust. Topf & S6hne — Die Ofenbauer von
Auschwitz. Wallstein Verlag, Gottingen, 2010, from which they have taken the
German word “Menschenleichen.” It is apparent that they don’t even know
that the protocols of Kurt Prifer’s interrogation (like those of the other Topf
engineers Karl Schultze, Fritz Sander and Gustav Braun), which were con-
ducted by investigators of the Soviet SMERSH counterintelligence service be-
tween 1946 and 1948, are all written in Russian, so it makes no sense to quote
a German word as ostensibly being part of the original text, as that text isn’t in
German to begin with!

For a full discussion of the matter, | refer the reader to my specific study
(2014a), on which my subsequent elaborations are based. First of all, the doc-
ument in question is Priifer’s interrogation of 4 March 1948. The Topf engi-
neer declared there (ibid., pp. 34-36):

“In the spring of 1942 | went to Auschwitz at the request of the SS Con-
struction Office in order to review the construction project of a new crema-
torium planned in the Auschwitz camp sector, to set out my conclusions
and also to inspect the site where the construction of this crematorium was
planned.

| inspected the specified construction site, accompanied by an SS man.
When we passed the first crematorium, | saw in one of the rooms of the
crematorium, through a half-open door, human corpses lying on the floor
in various positions. They were more than ten. When | approached the
room, someone from inside quickly slammed the door. Because | was un-
familiar with the purpose of this room in Crematorium 1, | asked the SS
man accompanying me about it. He replied that a gas chamber had been
set up in that room and that detainees were poisoned in it by gas.”

The authors explain their dating thusly:

“Dated on the basis of a letter from the Topf company to the camp con-
struction administration on a request for the supply of a ventilation system,
which indicates that Prifer was at Auschwitz shortly before Feb. 10,
1942.” (Footnote 23 on p. 29)

In fact, however, as | have documented elsewhere (20144, p. 31), Priifer went
to Auschwitz to discuss with Bischoff the project of the new crematorium (the
future Crematorium I1) between late October and late November 1941, not “in
the spring of 1942,” or “shortly before Feb. 10, 1942,” so that the authors are
not even able to properly date the visit in question.

| also revealed that the story told by Prifer is completely invented. In fact,
he claimed to have seen in a room of the crematorium — that is, the “morgue,”
as becomes clear from its subsequent identification with the “gas chamber” —
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“through a half-open door” “more than ten” corpses. Prifer pretended to have
been “unfamiliar with the purpose of that room,” which is not true, because he
had gone to Auschwitz already on 19 November 1940 to discuss “on-site” the
“extension of the crematorium,” that is to say, the construction of the second
double-muffle cremation furnace. Together with deputy head of construction,
SS-Rottenfiihrer Walter Urbanczyk, he had inspected the furnace room in or-
der to establish the location of this second furnace, and on the basis of this in-
spection he drew Topf Blueprint No. D 57999 on 30 September 1940, show-
ing precisely the position of the second furnace. On that occasion, Prifer also
inspected the “morgue” right next to the furnace room. He therefore could not
possibly have been surprised to have seen “more than ten” corpses in the
morgue of a crematorium (if he had actually seen them in the condition de-
scribed). After all, seeing morgues with corpses was daily business for an en-
gineer specializing in cremation furnaces.

To make matters worse, Prifer couldn’t possibly have seen what he claims,
because the front door of Crematorium | opened into the “Vorraum” (vesti-
bule), after which, on the right wall, a door led to the morgue (the alleged gas
chamber). It was therefore invisible from the outside through the front door.
However, according to Prifer, exactly “that room” which he had allegedly
seen from outside and where “a gas chamber had been set up,” was precisely
this “Vorraum.”

After the authors have adequately “corrected” other evidence adduced by
them (Tadeusz Pietrzykowski: he does not remember the exact date of the
gassing alleged by him, but the authors ordain that it took place ““at the end of
1941 or the beginning of 1942”; Ignacy Golik: he claims the gassing occurred
in early spring of 1943, but, so the authors aver, this is “surely a mistake—it
was 1942,” pp. 29f.), the authors conclude:

“Presumably, therefore, the gas chamber at crematorium | was used only
sporadically to exterminate groups of newly arrived Jews at the turn of
1942/1943, and the total number of victims—in comparison to the period
when mass extermination began in Birkenau—was small.” (p. 30)

Since it is unknown who the victims of these alleged gassings were, the au-
thors resort to the assumption that these were Jews who had become unable to
work and who had been transferred to Auschwitz by the Organization Schmelt
in order to be “gassed.” | have demonstrated in another study (2016b, pp. 96-
100) that this thesis, first developed by Robert van Pelt, is not backed up by
any documents. Suffice it to note here that in the Auschwitz Chronicle the
name Schmelt appears for the first time in a footnote under the date of 28 Au-
gust 1942 in connection with Jews fit for labor being taken off a train at Cosel,
precisely for the Organization Schmelt. These Jews were “exchanged for unfit
or dead prisoners” (Czech 1990, p. 229). In addition, Rudolf Héss, in his re-
marks on the Organization Schmelt of November 1946, does not make the
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slightest reference to the alleged gassing of prisoners who were unable to
work. 2

6. The “Bunkers” at Birkenau

According to the authors’ conclusion, there is no evidence that any prepara-
tions were being carried out before the winter of 1941-1942 to establish an ex-
termination center in the vicinity of the Auschwitz Camp. According to them,
it is also doubtful that the SS ever had “intentions to kill large groups of de-
portees in the gas chamber at crematorium 1: Using it would have created nu-
merous difficulties for the SS: a number of undesired eyewitnesses in the
camp among prisoners and civilian workers [...], and the limited capacity of
the crematorium furnaces.” Therefore, in order to carry out the alleged exter-
mination of the Jews, a different location had to be found, and the choice fell
on the village of Brzezinka (Birkenau) and a farmhouse belonging to the
Harmata family, which was transformed into the “gas chamber”: thus was
born the legendary “Bunker 1” (p. 31).

The authors then scramble to somehow justify the date conjured up by Da-
nuta Czech: 20 March 1942:

“Two different accounts of the beginning of the extermination of Jews in
Auschwitz can be found in the Autobiography of commandant Rudolf Hoss:
it occurred in December 1941/January 1942, or in the spring of 1942. Ap-
pearances notwithstanding, both versions are probably accurate, with the
former referring to the Killing in the gas chamber at the crematorium in the
main camp of small groups of Jews arriving, as already mentioned, from
the Organisation Schmelt camps, and the latter to the start of mass murder
in bunker I in Birkenau.” (p. 31)

And they add:

“Hdoss is more specific elsewhere about the arrival dates of these trans-
ports, placing them before the creation of the women's camp (March 26,
1942).” (p. 32)
This interpretation of HOsS’s statement is somewhat misleading. Here is what
the Auschwitz commandant wrote about this:
“l am unable to recall when the destruction of the Jews began — probably
in September 1941, or perhaps not until January 1942. At first we dealt
with the Jews from Upper Silesia.” (Paskuly 1992, p. 31)
“During the spring of 1942 we were still dealing with small police actions.
But during the summer the transports became more numerous and we were
forced to build another extermination site. The farm area west of Cremato-

283 Hgss Trial, vol. 21, pp. 180f. The Korherr Report of 27 March 1943, subsequently edited (28
April), refers to 50,570 Jews belonging to the Organization Schmelt. NO-5194, p. 13.
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ries IV and V,4 which were built later, was chosen and prepared. ” (ibid.,
p. 32; that points to “Bunker 2”)

“Originally, all the Jews transported to Auschwitz by the authority of
Eichmann’s office were to be destroyed without exception, according to
Himmler’s orders. This also applied to the Jews from Upper Silesia. But
during the arrival of the first transports of German Jews, the order was
given that all able-bodied men and women were to be separated and put to
work in the arms factories. This occurred before the construction of the
women’s camp, since the need for a women’s camp in Auschwitz only
arose as a result of this order. ” (ibid., p. 34)

In this context, Hoss also mentions the alleged first gassing in the basement of
Block 11 and a gassing in the morgue of Crematorium | at Auschwitz, but
both involved exclusively Soviet PoWs (ibid., p. 30). He knew nothing about
an extermination of Jews in the alleged gas chamber of Crematorium I, and in
this context also never mentions the Jews from the Organization Schmelt. So
the most consistent dating (if we credit Hoss’s statements) would be January
1942, and for that very reason D. Czech, in the first edition of her Auschwitz
Chronicle, dated the start of “Bunker 1” with January 1942, asserting: “They
started killing Jews from Upper Silesia with gas” (Czech 1960, p. 49). The ed-
itor of the German edition of HO6ss’s memoirs, Martin Broszat, stated in a
note:

“The deportation of Jews from Upper Silesia to Auschwitz occurred in ear-

ly 1942. For instance, according to information sent from the Internat.

Tracing Center to the Institute for Contemporary History [in Munich] from

27 March 1958, the Jews from Beuthen were deported on 15 February

1942.%1 (Broszat 1981, note 3, p. 127)
It therefore makes no sense to posit that the claimed activities of “Bunker 1”
began in the spring of 1942, since Hoss explicitly declares that the Jews of
Upper Silesia were gassed in “Bunker 1” (Paskuly 1992, p. 31). Hence, ac-
cording to the Auschwitz commandant’s chronology, “Bunker 1 began its al-
leged activities no later than January 1942, while “Bunker 2” was set up in the
summer due to an increase in deportations.

But this contradicts what Hoss himself wrote about it (Paskuly 1992, pp.
142, 147):

“The original order of 1941 to annihilate all the Jews stated, ‘All Jews

without exception are to be destroyed.’ It was later changed by Himmler SO

24 The original German text mentions “I11 and 1V,” which was changed by Paskuly to match the
common numbering of all crematoria at Auschwitz.

25 |n fact, the letter from the tracing center states that ‘deportations of Jews from Beuthen could only
be established from 15 May[!] 1942”; cf. Longerich 2010, Note 169, pp. 551f. Of course, this date
neither jibes with Czech’s earlier dating of Bunker 1’s startup, which is based on Héss, nor with
the currently claimed date of March 20, 1942.
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that those able to work were to be used in the arms factories. This made
Auschwitz the assembly point for the Jews to a degree never before known.
[..]

When the transports of Jews from Slovakia began (March 26, 1942), within
a few days the women’s camp was crammed full to the rafters. Washing
and toilet facilities were barely able to satisfy even the smallest needs for
one third of them.”

So in the summer of 1942 the intensification of Jewish transports led to over-
crowding in Auschwitz, but that could be the case only if the arriving Jews
were not murdered in masses, so what then would have been the need for the
creation of “Bunker 2?

According to Czech’s Auschwitz Chronicle, “Bunker 2 began its opera-
tions on 30 June 1942. Until this date, 18 real, documented Jewish deportation
trains arrived at Auschwitz, whose members were all duly registered, accord-
ing to the table below as taken from Czech’s Auschwitz Chronicle. Hence not
a single soul coming off these trains was gassed on arrival, as the orthodox
narrative suggests.

Date 4 From Registered men Registered women
dd/m # ID nos. # ID nos.
26/3 999|Slovakia / / 999| 1000-1998
28/3 798|Slovakia / / 798| 1999-2796
30/3| 1,112|Compiegne 1,112| 27533-28644 / /

2/4 965|Slovakia / / 965| 2797-3761

3/4 997|Slovakia / / 997| 3763-3812

3814-4760

13/4| 1,077|Slovakia 634]28903-29536 | 443| 4761-5203
17/4| 1,000|Slovakia 973| 29832-30804 27| 5204-5230
19/4| 1,000|Slovakia 464|31418-31881| 536| 5233-5768
23/4| 1,000|Slovakia 543|31942-32484 | 457| 5769-6225
24/4| 1,000|Slovakia 442|32649-33090| 558| 6226-6783
29/4 723|Slovakia 423|33286-33708| 300| 7108-7407
22/5| 1,000|KL Lublin 1,000| 36132-37131 / /

7/6| 1,000|{Compiegne 1,000| 38177-39176 / /
20/6 659|Slovakia 404|39923-40326| 255| 7678-7932
24/6 999|Drancy 933|40681-41613 66| 7961-8026
27/6| 1,000|Pithiviers 1,000| 41773-42772 / /
30/6| 1,038|Beaune-La Rolande | 1,004|42777-43780 34| 8051-8084
30/6 400|KL Lublin 400| 43833-44232 / /
Total| 16,767 10,332 6,435

Absurdly, this means that “Bunker 2” is said to have been prepared for — and
put into — operation while all deported Jews, without exception, were normally
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registered, which means that not a single one of them had been slated to be
gassed on arrival.
In addition to these real transports, Czech also lists other, purely invented

deportation trains, totally devoid of any documentary confirmation,?®® which
are listed in the following table:
Date |Transport from #
5-11 May|Dombrowa [Dabrowa Gornica], Bendsburg [Bedzin], 5,200
Warthanau [Zawiercie], Gleiwitz
12 May|Sosnowitz 1,500
2 June|llkenau ?
17 June|Sosnowitz 2,000
20 June|Sosnowitz 2,000
23 June|Kobierzyn 566

However, even from the perspective of the orthodox Holocaust narrative, this
makes no sense. If the last Jewish transport murdered in “gas chambers” ar-
rived at Auschwitz on 23 June, with which Jewish transport was “Bunker 2”
inaugurated on 30 June?

Here we discover yet another of Czech’s deceptions, who writes in refer-
ence to the entire month of June 1942 (1990, p. 189):

“2,289 Jews, 1,203 Poles, including 100 reeducation prisoners, 149
Czechs, 49 Germans, and one Gypsy die in Auschwitz-Birkenau. A total of
3,683 prisoners have lost their lives. Most of the 2,289 Jewish prisoners
were killed in the gas chamber. ”

These are all regularly registered detainees, as is confirmed by the alleged
source: the Starkebuch (register of the men’s camp strength). The registered
Jews allegedly gassed would have to have been “selected” by SS doctors as
unfit for work, but for the entire month Czech does not record a single “selec-
tion,” which means that this story is not supported by any evidence.

If we consider that the only transport allegedly gassed on arrival prior to
the fictitious Jewish deportation trains of the period of May 5 to 11 is the other
fictitious deportation train from Beuthen arriving at Auschwitz on 15 February
1942 but that these Jews are said to have been gassed not in “Bunker 1” but in
Crematorium | (ibid., p. 135), one has to wonder with which Jewish transport
“Bunker 1” could have been inaugurated, given that, according to Czech, no
Jews arrived at Auschwitz prior to this, and that all deportees from the three
deportation trains arriving in March 1942 were all duly registered, hence not
gassed.

26 As | have shown in Mattogno/Kues/Graf 2014, vol. |, Chapter 4. [48], pp. 540-543.
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7. Documents on the “Bunkers” at Birkenau

After this bizarre presentation of the origins of the alleged homicidal gassings
at Auschwitz, the authors finally begin to discuss the documents they present.

They claim that the date of March 1942 in relation to “Bunker 1” is con-
firmed by a 1944 document “that refers to the initiation in March 1942 of the
construction of the extermination center” (p. 32). This is their Document 36,
the “construction request for the expansion of the PoW camp of the Waffen-SS
at Auschwitz Upper Silesia. Installation of 3 barracks for special measures”
from 26 May 1944. As | have shown above, they misleadingly interpret it as a
“re-erecting” of the three undressing barracks at the elusive “Bunker 2.”

According to the tenets of the orthodox Holocaust narrative, “Bunker 2~
was the only one of the “bunkers” put back into operation in 1944. But with a
fatuous sleight of hand, the authors claim that the document in question is “in-
direct evidence that bunker | dates from and began operating in March 1942”
(p. 152). In other words, they use a date given in a document which, in their
contorted logic, deals with “Bunker 2” and apply it to “Bunker 1”! Not to
mention that their Document 36 only mentions “3 barracks for special
measures” without the slightest reference to the alleged modification of an ex-
isting house (the alleged “Bunker 1”). Hence their guess is doubly fallacious,
and only with blatant dishonesty can they speak in this regard about an “ex-
termination center,” a term that basically refers to the alleged gassing facili-
ties, although there is no trace about it in the document.

The authors then claim to know that “by the middle of April 1942 at the
latest a Birkenau Sonderkommando was in existence (Doc. 52), and it would
und[o]ubtedly have been employed in the operation of the bunker” (p. 32).
This argument, like all those referring to the presence of the term Sonderkom-
mando in a document, is based on the lie that only one type of Sonderkom-
mando existed at Auschwitz, and that it was exclusively used for criminal
purposes. This legend is as dear to the Auschwitz Museum and its acolytes as
it is false and unfounded. As | pointed out above, the authors completely hush
up the actual recipient of the supplies in question, which was “BW. 4 Sonderk.
Bir.,” which means “Structure 4 of the Birkenau Sonderkommando.” BW 4
Birkenau referred to the construction of 14 barracks for logistical mainte-
nance. | will return later to the supply of 300 kg of cement to this Sonderkom-
mando.

The authors then continue by asserting:

“We know about the appearance of bunker I only on the basis of eyewit-
ness accounts, above all that of Szlama Dragon. In the SS records, there
are two extant documents containing the information that the two gas bun-
kers originated as a result of the adaptation of existing houses (doc. 17 and
18).” (p. 32)
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These are the “Explanatory report on the construction project Concentration
Camp Auschwitz O/S” of 30 September 1943 and the respective “Cost esti-
mate for extension of POW camp of the Waffen-SS in Auschwitz,” which,
among other things, mention twice the “Remodeling of an existing house for
special measures” with reference to the Birkenau Construction Sectors Il and
111, respectively. The authors distort the meaning of these two documents,
clumsily attributing projects allegedly carried out in the past (the elusive
“bunkers,” allegedly remodeled in the first half of 1942) to projects not yet
carried out which obviously were to be implemented only in the future. This is
exactly the reason why both of these houses and the related barracks appear
for the first time in these two documents: they simply did not yet exist as pro-
jects for anything before 20 September 1943.
Referring to the mythical “bunkers,” the authors write:

“It is noted that no plans for the remodeling [of the pre-existing houses in-
to “gas chambers”] were drawn up, which might suggest the limited scope
of the work that was carried out using bricks from the demolition of houses
in nearby villages, costing 14,242 RM. Aside from financial and material
savings, this might have had the additional benefit that there was no need
to inform the bureaucrats who handled supply matters about the intended
use of these facilities.” (p. 32)

Here, as usual, they distort the meaning of the invoked document, as | showed
with my comments on their Document 18. | add that the hypothesis that the
two houses in question, which were not and could not have been the imagi-
nary “bunkers,” had been remodeled using bricks from the demolition of other
houses has no special significance, because the entire Birkenau Camp was
built in this way, as is explicitly stated in a file memo of 22 May 1943, pub-
lished by the authors themselves (Document 70):%"

“In the year 1940, the Auschwitz Camp came into existence in the delta es-

tuary between the Vistula River and the Sola River after the evacuation of

7 Polish villages, through the reconstruction of an artillery-barracks site

and much construction of extensions, reconstructions and new buildings,

utilizing large quantities of material from buildings that had been demol-
ished.”
In addition, there is also no relation to the estimated cost of RM 14,242.

The claim that “there was no need to inform the bureaucrats who handled
supply matters about the intended use of these facilities” is meaningless in this
context, because a potential blueprint of the two houses (outlining the outer
walls, partitions and height in order to calculate the volume and thus the relat-
ed costs for remodeling them) would not have provided any information
“about the intended use of these facilities.”

7 «Aktenvermerk” (file memo) of 22 May 1943. RGVA, 502-1-26, p. 85.
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Next, in an attempt to somehow explain the 300 kg of cement delivered to
the Sonderkommando of BW 4a (Document 52), the authors are forced to re-
sort to a huge nonsense:

“Some of the work [to remodel “Bunker 1] was done by prisoners from
the Sonderkommando who, as bearers of secrets, were condemned in ad-
vance to death.” (p. 33)

And in a note they explain:

“On Apr. 23, 1942 they received an allotment of 300 kg of cement (doc.

52)”

Given that “Bunker 1,” according to Danuta Czech and the authors them-
selves, was completed and went into operation in March 1942, are we to be-
lieve that this “some of the work” was started on 23 April? On the other hand,
the claim that the construction work was carried out by a Sonderkommando
charged with assisting with the claimed mass murder instead of a special de-
tail or Sonderkommando from the Central Construction Office is simply fool-
ish and is also not confirmed by any testimony.

The barracks erected in Birkenau rested on concrete slabs, and the 300 kg
of cement assigned to BW 4a served precisely for creating this slab (and for
the barracks’ brick-and-mortar heating stoves).

Another sleight of hand should also be noted. On the line following the en-
try of their Document 52 discussed here, there is an entry dated 15 July 1942.
It reports another delivery of 1,000 kg of “simple concrete” (Zement einfach).
The recipient is referred to as “Ba 4” (or “Be 4”) followed by repetition marks
(=" -) meant to repeat the line “Sonderk.Jommando] Bir.[kenau]” three lines
above (see my DOCUMENT 28). It follows that the Sonderkommando received
another 1,000 kg of cement on 15 July 1942. What could have been the point
of that, if, as the authors claim, the Lenz company had installed “gas-tight
doors” in “Bunker 2” on 8 July, so that it had been operational since?

Continuing their methodical work of distorting the sources, the authors
state that in May 1942 “two wooden barracks of the stable type were erected
outside bunker I to serve as temporary storage for the belongings of the people
murdered” (p. 33). The reference is to Document 21, i.e., the “Construction
Report for the Month of May 1942,” which, in the job description for the PoW
camp, contains the entry:

“In addition, 2 barracks (horse-stable barracks) were erected outside the

PoW camp”

That these two barracks had been installed at the elusive “Bunker 1” and that
they served to store personal belongings of the alleged victims is based on
nothing, since this stems entirely and exclusively from the delusional rantings
of the Holocaust orthodoxy.

The authors continue as follows:
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“In May 1942 it also turned out, when the mass extermination of Jews
transported from the Dgbrowa Basin began, that the bunker I gas chamber
was sometimes too small to hold all the deportees. For this reason, accord-
ing to extant accounts by former prisoners, some transports continued to
be sent to the gas chamber next to [the furnace room of] crematorium | in
the main camp.” (p. 33)

This refers to the invented deportation trains during May-June 1942 as listed
above, including 6,700 fictitious deportees between 5 and 12 May, and 4,566
between 17 and 23 June (I will address the invented train of 2 June later).

Here the authors mock their readers in three different ways, first because
these transports are invented, next because their star witness Szlama Dragon
had declared that “Bunker 1” could hold “fewer than 2,000 naked persons,?®
while the capacity of its claimed incineration trenches was 7,000-8,000 per
day.? Consequently all the invented deportees from the Dabrowa Basin could
have been processed by “Bunker 1” in less than two days, if one is inclined to
believe Dragon, as the authors obviously are.

In addition, not even the minimum requirements were given to keep the
“gassings” a secret which are supposed to have been carried out inside Crema-
torium | at the Main Camp. On 13 May the head of the Garrison Administra-
tion asked the Central Construction Office to “repair the crematorium’s chim-
ney and the motor housing.”®® The work was carried out on 14 and 15 May.
The first repair covered the flue duct connecting the three furnaces to the
chimney. Fifty refractory bricks were replaced with the use of 50 kg of refrac-
tory mortar.?*

During the second half of the month, various external works were carried
out at the crematorium: the courtyard in front of the crematorium was fenced
in and closed with two wooden entry gates (Einfahrttore) 4 meters wide and
3.20 high, and the old pavement was replaced.?*

On 30 May SS-Oberscharfihrer Josef Pollock informed Bischoff that the
chimney’s steel bands had become loose and that the masonry had cracked.?*®
The next day the chimney was indubitably inspected and tested.

28 Interrogation of Sz. Dragon by investigating Judge Jan Sehn, 10 & 11 May 1945. Hgss Trial, vol.
11, p. 104

29 GARF, 7021-108-8, p. 18.

290 «Verwaltung KL Auschwitz. Bestellschein Nr. 4517 of 13 May 1942. APMO, BW 11/5, p. 3:
“Den Kamin und das Motorenhaus des Krematoriums instandzusetzen.” “Motorenhaus” was the
small structure adjacent to the chimney housing the motor for the forced-draft blower.

21 “Aufstellung der ausgefiihrten Bauarbeiten.” 20 May 1942. APMO, BW 11/5, pp. 5f., and “Be-
richt {iber ausgefiihrte Arbeiten im Krematorium” of 1 June 1942. APMO, BW 11/5, pp. 1f.

292 Zentralbauleitung, “Auftrag Nr. 436, Arbeitskarte Nr. 20 for the “Tischlerei” (joinery) of 13 May
1942: construction of two entry gates (“Einfahrttore™) of 4m x 3.20m; work done from 21 to 25
May. RGVA, 502-2-1, p. 24. Work description: “Tatigkeitsbericht fiir den Monat Mai 1942,”
RGVA, 502-1-24, p. 299, and “Baubericht fiir Monat Mai 1942,” RGVA, 502-1-24, p. 261.

293 RGVA, 502-1-314, p. 12 & 502-1-312, p. 64.
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Between 12 June and 8 August 1942, Crematorium | was a big construc-
tion site swarming with people — 688 inmates and 123 civilian workers, who
demolished the old chimney, built the new chimney and replaced the smoke
ducts — accompanied with a great to and fro of trucks hauling away tons of
debris of the old chimney and ducts, and delivering tons of materials — 31 tons
of refractory bricks alone.?®*

The authors, with their typical deceitfulness, hide this context and all the
work carried out at Crematorium | at this time, and cite only what suits their
thesis, with reference to their Document 6:

“It was probably for this reason that the wooden fence around the yard
outside the crematorium (where these Jews had to undress) was replaced
at this time by a more solid one made of concrete panels (doc. 6).”

To top it off, the claim that the alleged victims had to undress in the yard of
Crematorium | is itself a convenient interpretation, because Hoss, for example,
in his description of the alleged gassing of 900 Soviet PoWs, says that they
“had to undress in the vestibule and proceeded quietly into the morgue, as
they had been told that they would all be deloused there.” (Broszat 1981, p.
126).

In light of the massive construction activities carried out at Crematorium |
during that time, the claim of the authors and their “eyewitnesses” about al-
leged “gassings” in Crematorium | during May and June 1942 exposes the
true, fictitious nature of their stories.

Before proceeding any farther, allow me to come back to the invented de-
portation train of 2 June from llkenau. Danuta Czech describes it as follows:

“In Bunker 1 in Birkenau, men, women, and children sent from llkenau are

killed with Zyklon B gas. ”

In a note she gives as her source: “Szternfinkiel, Jews of Sosnowitz, p. 35.”
(1990, p. 173).

In this novelistic work, which contains simple chit chat without the slight-
est documentary evidence, we read in this regard (Szternfinkiel 1946, p. 35):

“In early June, a ‘resettlement’ took place in Olkusz [llkenau]. All local

Jews were brought to Auschwitz; only a handful of privileged survivors

were taken to Sosnowiec. ”

Czech has therefore not only invented the date of this fake transport, but also
the alleged gassing of its deportees in “Bunker 1.”

Continuing their imaginary reconstruction, the authors state:

“Furthermore, it would seem, Hoss had already been informed that he

should expect the arrival in the near future of numerous new transports

from Western Europe. This is probably why the decision was made at the

294 Handwritten note “Schornstein-Krematorium. BW 11” of 7 December 1942. RGVA, 502-1-318,
pp. 4f.
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beginning of June 1942 to convert another house at the edge of the woods
in Brzezinka into a gas chamber.” (p. 33)

This comment highlights the authors’ historiographic ineptitude and lack of
familiarity with the documents. First of all, they do not explain at all why the
18 Jewish transports which arrived at Auschwitz until 30 June 1942 — 16,767
people — were all duly registered, but why then, starting on 4 July 1942, all of
a sudden the “selection” of the deportees would have been introduced result-
ing in the “gassing” of those unable to work (while those allegedly deported
from the Dabrowa Basin would have been gassed indiscriminately, including
those fit for labor). Secondly, the justification for the creation of “Bunker 2” is
a holocaustic fable, because it is known that the decision to deport to Ausch-
witz “numerous new transports from Western Europe” was made on 22 June
1942, when Adolf Eichmann wrote a letter to Franz Rademacher, an official at
the German Foreign Office, with the subject “Labor deployment of Jews from
France, Belgium and the Netherlands,” which states:?%

“Starting in mid-July or rather at the beginning of August of the current
year, it is planned to initially deport, in daily scheduled special trains to
the Auschwitz Camp for labor deployment, about 40,000 Jews from the oc-
cupied French territory, 40,000 Jews from the Netherlands, and 10,000
Jews from Belgium.

The group of people to be apprehended comprises Jews able to work, as
long as they are not living in mixed marriage and are not citizens of the
British Empire, the USA, of Mexico, of the enemy countries of Central and
South America, as well as of the neutral and allied countries.”

As we see, the plan was to send to Auschwitz Jews capable of work, which
cannot be reconciled at all with the authors’ exterminationist crazes, and even
less with their fictitious chronology “at the beginning of June 1942,” because
at that time Hoss could not possibly have known anything about this plan yet,
which was only drawn up three weeks later. Hence he consequently could not
make any decision on setting up the elusive “Bunker 2,” a decision all the
more anachronistic since the plan called for the deportation of precisely those
Jews who were fit for work, hence who were not to be exterminated even ac-
cording to the orthodox point of view: whom then would Héss have “gassed”
in his “Bunker 2?
The authors then carry on unfolding their mythical Holocaust narrative:
“Three wooden barracks to hold the belongings of the murdered were to
be erected next to it (doc. 23). Bunker 11 was presumably put into operation
after July 8, the day when the Lenz firm installed gas-proof doors there
(doc. 8).” (p. 33)

2% NG-183; reproduced in Kempner 1961, p. 199.
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In my comments on Document 8, | have already explained that associating
this document with “Bunker 2” is based on a blatant misinterpretation (unless
it is a deliberate deception): The authors in fact mistranslated “in d.[er] Gas-
kammer” (“in the gas chamber”) as “in 2 Gaskammer” (“in 2 gas chamber”),
then they turned the non-existent “2” into “second,” so that the phrase “the gas
chamber” obtained the invented meaning “in the second gas chamber” by add-
ing ex catedra an ordinal, et voilal, with this sleight of hand they created
“Bunker 2 out of thin air!

Even the claim about the erection of three barracks is a simple feint, result-
ing from a flawed interpretation of their Document 22 (not 23), which says:

“For the special treatment of the Jews, the camp commandant of the con-
centration camp, SS Stubaf. Hoss, has applied orally for the erection of 4
horse-stable barracks for the accommodation of personal effects. ”

Here, the authors commit an additional error, because the letter in question is
dated 9 June 1942, so even according to their twisted logic it could refer only
to “Bunker 2,” which at that time was not yet operational. If Hoss was plan-
ning ahead, it would have been more logical to provide undressing barracks
for the victims near the allegedly planned additional gassing facility.

The authors then report on Himmler’s visit to Auschwitz on 17 and 18 July
1942, which they obviously interpret in a criminal way, since the Reichsfiih-
rer-SS is claimed to have ordered the intensification of the alleged extermina-
tion, By so doing, he allegedly turned Auschwitz from a “regional center for
the extermination of the Silesian Jews” into a European extermination center
(p. 33). But Hoss had to be aware of these plans already, “because the decision
to build bunker Il and introduce systematic selection was surely made before
Himmler’s July 17-18, 1942 visit” (note 37, p. 33). Indeed, as | have shown
above, even before the decision had been made to deport European Jews in
masses to Auschwitz. A beautiful timeline! Hoss no doubt possessed a holo-
caustic crystal ball enabling him to predict the future.

The content of the talks between Himmler and Hdss is known only based
on the Auschwitz commandant’s post-war account, which is known to contain
such huge blunders that it must lead the critical researcher to doubt his entire
narrative. In particular, he stated that Himmler witnessed a gassing in one of
the two “bunkers,” but based on what is documented, this is simply impossible
(see Mattogno 2004b, pp. 17-25). Moreover, Hss claims that Himmler visited
“the Gypsy camp” at Birkenau (Paskuly 1992, p. 287), which was only created
in February 1943, as is well-known, and he declared (ibid., p. 290):

“The Gypsies are to be exterminated. With the same relentlessness you will

exterminate those Jews who are unable to work.”

But, thanks to his proverbial “clairvoyance,” Hdss had begun to “select” the
Jews unable to work already a fortnight earlier, on 4 July (according to Czech
1990, pp. 191f.).
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8. “Sonderkommando”, “Cremation Pits” and Barracks Near the
“Bunkers”
Next the authors claim:

“Soon after Himmler’s visit, an order arrived from Berlin to exhume the
bodies from the mass graves and burn them on wooden pyres.” (p. 34)

If that was indeed Himmler’s order, then the question arises, from an orthodox
point of view, why Hoss visited the “field furnaces Operation Reinhard” on 16
September, hence almost two months later: is the advice of the layman Blobel
supposed to have been indispensable for the erection of wooden pyres, even
though one of Germany’s leading experts in cremation technology, the Engi-
neer Kurt Prifer, was present at Auschwitz on 19 and 20 August precisely to
discuss cremation and crematoria?

The mass graves are said to have been excavated by men of the Sonder-
kommando, and that is allegedly proven by authors’ Document 9, which states
that on 17 August 500 men were assigned to a Sonderkommando (p. 34). Here
emerges the authors’ superstitious craze about the term Sonderkommando, or
if you will, the malicious fiction according to which only one Sonderkomman-
do existed at Auschwitz, which of course was in charge of “gassing,” mass
graves, exhumations and open-air cremations.

According to the authors, this assignment of 500 prisoners to the Sonder-
kommando “was probably connected with the need to prepare the pits in
which the corpses recovered from the mass graves were to be burned” (p. 34).
This is yet another anachronism which presupposes that Hoss knew ahead of
time what the cremation method was going to be before he had even visited
the “field furnaces Operation Reinhard.”

The authors emphasize:

“It is not known how long this work went on, but the employment of such a

large group of prisoners suggests that it took only a few days to complete

the assigned tasks. This would explain Arnost Rosin’s testimony that he
worked ‘in the Sonderkommando’ but later managed to obtain a transfer to

a different labor detail.” (p. 34)

The source adduced by them is “Hoss Trial Collection, vol. 6, p. 114,” alt-
hough Rosin did not testify during that trial, but rather during the trial against
the personnel of the Auschwitz camp garrison. Regarding the subject of inter-
est here, he declared:**®

“In 1942 1 was taken to the Auschwitz Concentration Camp, where | stayed

three days, after which | was transferred to Birkenau. A week later | was

assigned to the so-called ‘Sonderkommando.’ At the beginning, our work
consisted in the excavation of mass graves. In this period our Kom-

2% Trial of the Auschwitz camp garrison, Vol. VI, pp. 6f.
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mandofuhrer was the defendant Plagge. Initially we did not know for what
purpose these pits were excavated, until the day when the first gassing took
place in the small gas chamber at Birkenau [pierwsze gazowanie w malej
komorze gazowej w Brzezince], in the morning, before going to work, we
found that our pits had been filled with people, but partially naked bodies
could be seen.”

The witness then said that this Sonderkommando was exterminated on 3 De-
cember 1942. It is unclear how Rosin managed to escape death. In any case,
this testimony contains an element that upsets the authors’ fictitious history.
As Danuta Czech informs us, Rosin had the serial number 29858, which was
assigned on 17 April 1942 (1990, pp. 635, 157). If we follow his timeline, he
was transferred to Birkenau on the 20th, and assigned to the Sonderkommando
on the 27th of that month. The “first gassing” “in the small gas chamber at
Birkenau” must therefore have been later than that, so not before 27 April.
This dating is incompatible with both “Bunker 1” (March 1942), and “Bunker
2”7 (July 1942).

On another note, what was the “small gas chamber at Birkenau” supposed
to have been? From this expression we can deduce two incontrovertible facts:
1) the witness (like all the others) did not know the term “bunker”; 2) he did
not even know that there should have been two “bunkers.”

As we see, the authors rely once more on an utterly unreliable witness.

They then continue to embroider their imaginary “historical reconstruc-
tion” with the same method of distorting the meaning of the documents:

“On August 20, 1942, 50 more prisoners were added to the Sonderkom-
mando roster (doc. 12). Finally, as indicated by the contents of an August
22, 1942 report by the electricians’ Kommando, they laid electrical cable
that day for the purpose of providing the Sonderkommando with illumina-
tion at ‘nineteen burning places,” which doubtless means the pits men-
tioned above (doc. 11).” (p. 34)

I already mentioned above that the authors omit the key information that the
request for 50 detainees was made by “Administration of Inmate Property”
(Gefangenen-Eigentumsverwaltung), which means that its Sonderkommando
dealt with sorting and storing inmate belongings, not with the excavation of
mass graves. As for Document 11, I revealed the authors’ fatuous deception,
who want us to believe that the German term Brennstellen, in this context
concerning electricians, refers to “cremation pits” instead of to utterly mun-
dane lighting outlets.

Here, again, they don’t just scoff at the reader, but also at the “eyewitness-
es.” In his deposition given to Soviet investigators, Szlama Dragon declared in
fact that there were a total of 10 (not 19) cremation pits near the “gas cham-
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bers” (gazokameri/raszokamepsr) 1 and 2.2’ These pits could allegedly burn no
fewer than 17,000 to 18,000 corpses per day, with peaks of up to 27,000 to
28,000.%® Such magical capacities raise the question why the SS wasted so
much of their financial and material resources to build four crematoria which
had a considerably inferior extermination and cremation capacity!

So, if their document proves that there were 19 cremation pits, where were
the remaining nine cremation pits? Who testified about them?

Next there is the chronological contradiction about the beginning of the
outdoor cremations, which also applies to the revised version of this story pro-
posed by Setkiewicz, one of the three editors of the book under review, as |
pointed out in my comments on Document 13:

“The cremation of corpses in pits or on pyres began at Birkenau probably
around the turn of August to September [1942], initially using firewood
stock (wood waste), but later, around 7-8 September, also systematically
by beginning to bring in wood from outside. ”

If therefore the cremation began as soon as possible, “around the turn of Au-
gust to September” (but Czech says it started on 21 September), how can it be
that on 22 August there were already “nineteen burning places” at Birkenau?

But that’s not all. Maurice Schellekes was deported to Auschwitz from the
Dutch Westerbork camp on 11 August 1942, and soon after his arrival at the
camp he was transferred to Birkenau and assigned to the Sonderkommando,
whose task was to dig graves and bury the corpses of people who had been
killed “in a white farmhouse in the woods.” The witness pointed out: “All this
happened during the heat of the summer” (Friedler et al. 2005, pp. 79f.). The
story of the “nineteen burning places” is therefore a crude deception which
distorts even the tenets of orthodox Holocaust historiography and its “eyewit-
nesses.”

The authors conclude their fanciful presentation with a remark which is no
less preposterous:

“It can be concluded from this that the Auschwitz commandant’s office re-
garded the removal of the corpses from the graves as a priority task that
had to be carried out day and night regardless of the rigorous regulations
on observing the blackout. The removal of the bodies from the graves and
the burning must therefore have begun around August 20, or soon after.”
(p. 34)
Incredibly, on the basis of a vulgar deception (the Brennstellen passed off as
“burning places” in the face of “eyewitnesses” saying the contrary), the au-
thors revise the orthodox chronology of the beginning of outdoor cremations
and backdate it to 20 August 1942!

297 At that time the witnesses were still ignorant of the term “bunker.”
2% Interrogation of Sz. Dragon by Military Judge Levin, 26 February 1945. GARF, 7021-108-8, p.
19.
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Thus they also distort H6ss’s story (which Czech adhered to): “shortly after
Himmler’s visit, [...] Blobel [...] arrived at Auschwitz with [Himmler’s] or-
ders to exhume all buried bodies, burn them, and scatter the ashes” (Piper
1994, p. 163; based on Hoss’s story, Paskuly 1992, p. 33). At the time Blobel
was allegedly engaged in cremation experiments at Chelmno, and by order of
Eichmann had to show his devices to Hoss. They therefore went to Chelmno
and saw “different auxiliary furnaces” constructed by Blobel. This alleged vis-
it, he remembered, occurred on 16 September 1942. Cremation at Auschwitz
began after Hoss had returned to the camp, at the “end of the summer” (Pasku-
ly 1922, pp. 32f.). And precisely from this statement Czech inferred the exact
date of 21 September: the end of summer and beginning of autumn!

The distortion of a document thus led to a (pseudo-)historical distortion.

Even the claim that the wire installed by the electricians served to illumi-
nate anything whatsoever is devoid of any foundation, as | have shown above.
In this context one could refer to the witness Moshe Garbarz, who was deport-
ed to Auschwitz on 17 July 1942 from the French camp at Drancy. He claims
to have been assigned to the electricians’ detail, and at an unspecified time he
was sent with his detail to install floodlights in a place that does not match ei-
ther of the two imaginary “bunkers”:

“We had seen a kind of barn, closed on three sides, of the type where the
farmers store their hay, and not far from there three or four pretty build-
ings, like country houses, of which only the first, fairly close, was clearly
visible. The convoys arrived, adult men and small children together, wom-
en, girls, and babies together. They moved, completely naked, in groups of
twenty towards the cottage.”
The floodlights were used while mass graves were being dug. The cremation
of corpses, as this “direct witness” reported, came much later, but not in “cre-
mation pits” (Garbarz/Garbarz 1983, pp. 109-116; see my analysis in 20044,
pp. 114f.):
“When the first crematorium furnaces became operational [early 1943],
the victims were recovered to be burned: | was part of the Kommando
made to dig out the dead, thousands of dead. ”
“Two months later | met a detainee still employed at digging out the dead.
Not just mud: the ground was frozen. They had to break the ground and the
dead with pick-axes.”

9. The Genesis of the Crematoria at Birkenau

The authors continue with a long discussion of the file memo of 21 August
1941 (Document 10), which the authors interpret in an utterly deceptive and
misleading way, as | have shown in my commentary. Here | examine another
important aspect of the matter: the decision to build four crematoria at Birke-
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nau. The fundamental question is: did this decision depend on the alleged
mass extermination, as the authors claim, or was it a result of the extremely
high “natural” mortality caused by the camp’s primitive sanitary and hygienic
conditions and the subsequent epidemics?

The authors’ interpretation that, during his visit on 17 and 18 July 1942,
Himmler ordered the intensification of the alleged extermination by turning
Auschwitz into a European extermination center, contrasts sharply with the
actual genesis of the Birkenau crematoria. According to this orthodox perspec-
tive, on the one hand Hoss, by virtue of his notorious “clairvoyance,” estab-
lished “Bunker 2” by early July 1942 so he could carry out Himmler’s exter-
mination plan announced two weeks later, and on the other hand Himmler or-
dered the cremation of those allegedly gassed. As a result, the allegedly inten-
sified extermination plan needed to be matched by an equally intensified, cor-
responding cremation capacity. However, even as a late as 3 August 1942, on-
ly the one crematorium initially designed for the Main Camp was planned for
Birkenau.?®® The “Explanatory Report on the preliminary draft for the new
construction of the prisoners-of-war camp of the Waffen-SS Auschwitz, Upper
Silesia” of 30 October 1941 stated in this regard:®

“On account of the high [projected] occupancy (125,000 prisoners) a
crematorium is built. It contains 5 pcs. muffle furnaces with three muffles
each for 2 men, so that 60 men can be incinerated in one hour. Further-
more an underground morgue and a waste incinerator will be built. The
crematorium will be erected on the grounds of the CC.”

Originally this facility was to be built in the Auschwitz Main Camp, but on 27
February 1942 it was decided to build it in the Birkenau Camp.® This
change, by the way, took place before the creation of the alleged “Bunker 1,”
which confirms that the decision had nothing to do with imaginary extermina-
tion plans. Not even the authors dare to explicitly state that this crematorium
was designed for extermination, which would be absurd to claim after Jean-
Claude Pressac’s fundamental studies. Therefore the future Crematorium Il in-
itially had a purely hygienic and sanitary purpose. Hence, if as of 3 August
1942 this was the only crematorium in the pipeline, then this means that the
decision to build the remaining three Birkenau crematoria had also no relation
to the alleged extermination of the Jews.

The map of the Birkenau Camp of 15 August 1942 shows only the future
Crematoria Il and Il (labeled 1 and 2; Pressac 1989, p. 203), but the first
known blueprint of Crematorium IV/V was drawn the day before and shows
in the furnace room an eight-muffle cremation furnace (ibid., p. 393), the

299 | etter by Bischoff to Kammler of 3 August 1942. GARF, 7021-108-32, p. 37.

300 “Erlguterungsbericht zum Vorentwurf fir den Neubau des Konzentrationslagers der Waffen-SS,
Auschwitz O/S.” RGVA, 502-1-233, p. 20.

301 | etter by Bischoff to Kammler of 30 March 1942. RGVA, 502-1-313, p. 174.
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model of the Mogilev contract. Ertl’s file memo of 21 August says two im-
portant things in this regard:
“2) Regarding the installation of 2 three-muffle furnaces each at the ‘bath-
ing facilities for special operations,’ it was proposed by engineer Priifer
that the furnaces be diverted from an already completed shipment to Mogi-
lev [in White Russia], and the administrative director, who was at the SS
Main Office of Economic Administration in Berlin, was immediately in-
formed of this by telephone and asked to make further arrangements.
3) Concerning the erection of a 2nd crematorium with 5 triple-muffle fur-
naces as well as aeration and de-aeration installations, results of the nego-
tiations on assignment of materials, already under way with Reichssicher-
heitshauptamt (RSHA), must first be waited for.”

The document in question contains a handwritten note by Bischoff saying:3®

“24 Aug. 42 by phone notified Herr Prifer that 2 pieces 8-muffle furnaces
can be diverted from delivery Mogilev. Herr Prufer imparted that SS-
Stubaf. Lenzer has told him that already. ”

Hence, if Priifer had proposed to provide two 8-muffle cremation furnaces for
“bathing facilities for special operations,” a proposal that was accepted within
a few days, and if a blueprint of Crematorium 1V/V existed already on 14 Au-
gust showing an 8-muffle furnace, the logical conclusion is that “bathing facil-
ities for special operations” was a term used to describe the future Crematoria
IV and V, which were indeed equipped with this kind of furnaces.

As | have shown elsewhere (2019, pp. 158-162), “water installations” were
installed in these crematoria. These were undoubtedly two shower facilities
operated with water heated by means of heating coils incorporated into the de-
sign of the room’s heating stoves. Hence these were sanitary facilities rather
than extermination facilities. In this context, “special operations” consisted of
receiving and accommodating the arriving deportees, which was also called
“immediate operation” or “immediate measure.” The first term appears in

Garrison Order No. 31/43, which states as follows:%

“As recognition for the labor performed by all SS members during the spe-
cial operation of the last few days, the commandant has ordered that from
1300 hours on Saturday evening, 7 August 1943, through Sunday, 8 August
1943, inclusive, there will be a rest from every operational duty. ”
Since all SS men of the entire Auschwitz Camp had participated in this “spe-
cial operation” (and not just a selected few allegedly deployed during homici-
dal gassings), it is clear that the term referred to the entire deportation proce-
dure with all operations involved in receiving, sorting and accommodating the
deportees.

02 RGVA, 502-1-313, p. 160.
03 AGK, NTN, 94, p. 179.
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It remains to explain why the “bathing facilities for special operations” had
a close relationship with the crematoria. This derived from the catastrophic
sanitary situation prevailing inside the camp in August 1942. After the first
cases of typhus had manifested themselves among civilian workers of the
Lenz and Huta companies between late June and early July,** a typhus epi-
demic quickly broke out which spread to the entire camp complex of Ausch-
witz-Birkenau. The mortality rate among prisoners skyrocketed to frightening
heights, reaching 8,600 deaths in August.*® Pressac himself spoke of

“[...] absolute panic that seized the SS in July/August 1942 when they
were confronted with a raging typhus epidemic and were in a situation
where they had to combat this by every possible means.” (Pressac 1989, p.
227)

This was precisely the reason for the decision to build three additional crema-
toria at Birkenau, in addition to the order issued by Himmler after his visit to
Auschwitz on 17 and 18 July 1942 to increase the camp’s occupancy to a diz-
zying 200,000 inmates (see Rudolf/Mattogno 2017 pp. 157-162). Precisely the
risk of an epidemic breaking out in a camp holding 200,000 inmates led the
SS authorities to agree to construct three more crematoria. From October 1941
(the month in which the first draft of the PoW camp was released) to August
1942, the death rate at the camp rose from 2,128 (Czech 1990, pp. 102) to
8,600 deaths per month, a fourfold increase. But the ratio of muffles to detain-
ees was increased less than twofold compared to that for the originally
planned camp for 125,000 PoWs (from 1:4,350 to 1:8,350). Seen this way, the
camp surely was not over-equipped with cremation capacity in relation to the
expected or rather feared mortality rates.

In conclusion, Ertl’s file memo of 21 August 1941 referred to crematoria
planned for registered inmates who were dying at the camp in large quantities,
particularly as a result of the catastrophic typhus epidemic. It had nothing to
do with corpses of anyone allegedly gassed.

Not to mention the absurdity of the orthodox version’s suggestion that the
SS would have planned between October 1941 and the summer of 1942 to
build a modern crematorium with five triple-muffle furnaces in order to trace-
lessly incinerate the inmates who had died a mere “natural” death, while at the
same time planning to simply bury their mass-murder victims of the alleged
extermination of the Jews in mass graves!

304 Letter by “Staat. Gesundheitsamt fiir den Kreis Bielitz” to the commandant of CC Auschwitz
dated 3 July 1942. RGVA, 502-1-332, pp. 148f.

305 The Sterbeblcher of Auschwitz (register books of deceased inmates) contain 8,507 death certifi-
cates for the month of August 1942 (Grotum/Parcer 1995, p. 249), with some gaps. The certifi-
cates’ numbers range from 17789 to 26388, so the actual number of deaths was about 8,600.
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10. “Sonderaktion,” “Aktion Reinhard” and Open-Air Cremations

The authors then distort the meaning of other documents in order to forcibly
adapt them to their holocaustic predilections, while being indifferent to — or
unable to resolve — the resulting contradictions:

“The next problem that the SS authorities had to solve in connection with
the arrival of numerous transports of Jews designated for extermination
was the lack of a sufficient number of trucks to carry the selected persons
from the ramp to the gas chambers. A request was therefore submitted for
the allocation of five trucks required for ‘special operations,” and the
WVHA approved the request by the end of the month (doc. 60). At the same
time, 12 SS clerks were transferred from Oranienburg to Auschwitz to ad-
minister the plundered property of the victims (Operation Reinhard) (doc.
61). Simultaneously, the supply of firewood from the Pszczyna forests (Ra-
dostowice, Kobidr and Miedzyrzecze) was organized (doc. 13). On Sep-
tember 16, accompanied by Franz Hossler and Walter Dejaco, Hoss set
out on a business trip to the extermination center at Chelmno on the Ner
(Kulmhof) to learn about the experiences of SS men who ran the burning
pits there. (doty spaleniskowe, p. 20).” (pp. 35f.)
As | have shown above, the claim that the five trucks “for special operations”
served to transport the alleged victims “from the ramp to the gas chambers”
has no basis. The most likely use of those trucks was for transporting the in-
mates’ belongings from the Auschwitz railway station to the disinfestation and
storage facilities inside the camp, which is confirmed by the transfer of 12
non-commissioned SS officers and soldiers to Auschwitz “for operation
‘Reinhard,”” which was ordered on 25 September 1942 by the WVHA, eleven
days after the request for the trucks. Since the term “special operations” also
described the reception of trains full of deportees, it does not exclude the pos-
sibility that the trucks also served to transport some of the deportees, mainly
the disabled and elderly, as attested to by a witness.

The transport which left the Netherlands on 9 October 1942 was subjected
to a selection on the old ramp (alte Rampe) at the Auschwitz railway station,
which was located halfway between Auschwitz and the Birkenau Camp. This
can be gleaned from the testimony of “one of the returnees” of these transports
published by the Dutch Red Cross. According to this, a group of young wom-
en was ‘“selected” (geselecteerd) for work on arrival, while “the group of
women and children and elderly men were loaded onto three large trucks with
trailers, and they also left in the direction of Auschwitz I” (Het Nederland-
sche... 1952, p. 72). This group of people unable to work was therefore also
sent in the direction of Auschwitz — rather than toward Birkenau to be
“gassed” in the two alleged homicidal “bunkers.”

The “supply of firewood,” presumably for the open-air cremation of the
corpses of those allegedly gassed, began already on 7 September (Document
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13), so the authors claim, hence even before Hdss visited Blobel in order to

learn the cremation technique. Here they also eliminate the embarrassing ref-

erence to the Feldofen Aktion Reinhard“field furnaces Operation Reinhard,”

which (as far as Hoss knew) could also work with coke and did not require

firewood. They replace them instead with totally invented “cremation pits.”
For the subsequent period, the authors claim:

“The sequence of events that unfolded at this point is not completely
clear.”

Hence they force and manipulate it to suit their interpretative agenda:

“Presumably, the prisoners whose job it had been to disinter the corpses
from the mass graves were murdered first, as a consequence of which the
prisoners who manned the gas chambers organized several escapes out of
fear for their lives. The SS then decided to murder all the remaining mem-
bers of the Sonderkommando in the gas chamber at crematorium 1| in
Auschwitz, and to form a new Sonderkommando (December 9, 1942) from
transports that arrived at this time.” (p. 36)

To lend credibility to their escape stories, the authors mention in a footnote
that “it is known that there were escapes by two prisoners from Sonderkom-
mando Il on December 7, and 6 from Sonderkommando | on December 9”
(Note 43, p. 36), with reference to the report by the officer on duty of 9 to 10
December 1942, which | analyzed earlier (their Doc. 31). With another sleight
of hand worthy of them, the authors carefully avoid explaining what the
Sonderkommando 1 and Sonderkommando 2 actually were. They are explicit-
ly mentioned in the file memo of 10 February 1943 (Document 31). From the
perspective of orthodox Holocaust historiography, there are only two options:

1) Sonderkommando 1 was the first Sonderkommando, and its members
were “gassed” in Crematorium 1 at the Auschwitz Main Camp, and then re-
placed by Sonderkommando 2. In this case, as | pointed out earlier, they could
not co-exist. In particular, the alleged gassing of the first Sonderkommando
took place on 3 December 1942 according to Danuta Czech, so the six detain-
ees in question could not escape from it on the 9th, as all its members had al-
ready been “gassed” six days before. And the escape of the other two detain-
ees from Sonderkommando 2 on 7 December would also have been impossi-
ble, because that Sonderkommando was only formed two days later on 9 De-
cember. Of course, to avoid these contradictions, the authors may change the
dates as they please, but that would invalidate the testimonies these alleged
events are based upon: the date of 3 December 1942 (the “gassing”) was in
fact declared by Arnost Rosin,” that of 9 December (formation of the new
Sonderkommando) by Szlama Dragon.3®

308 Interrogation of Sz. Dragon by investigating Judge Jan Sehn, 10 & 11 May 1945. Hoss Trial, vol.
11, p. 102.
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2) Sonderkommando 1 is said to have been deployed at “Bunker 1,” while
Sonderkommando 2 operated at “Bunker 2.” In this case, leaving aside the
chronological contradictions reported above, new Sonderkommandos 1 and 2
would have been formed on 9 December, although Dragon speak generically
of a single Sonderkommando. Here one could certainly invoke the testimony
by Milton Buki, who declared during the 127th session of the Frankfurt
Auschwitz Trial (15 January 1965):3%

“The 200 inmates were divided in Sonderkommando | and Sonderkom-
mando 11. 100 inmates belonged to each Sonderkommando. The one Son-
derkommando was in charge for the one house in which the people were
gassed, and the second Sonderkommando was in charge of the second
house in which the people were gassed. ”

It should be considered, however, that this statement, which moreover lacks
the term “bunker,” was made in 1965, more than 20 years after the claimed
events, while Dragon spoke less than three years after the alleged events. Giv-
en that the two witnesses were supposedly assigned to the same Sonderkom-
mando on the same day, 6 December 1942 (Czech 1990, p. 280), Dragon’s
testimony must have an obvious priority, both for chronological reasons, and
because the Auschwitz Museum considers him to be the witness par excel-
lence with regard to the “bunkers” of Birkenau.

Fact is, however, that a thorough analysis of the documents in question
does not reveal the faintest connection between these two Sonderkommandos
and the elusive “bunkers.” On the one hand, the duty officer’s report on the
events of the night from 9-10 December 1942 merely tells us about prisoners
having escaped from Sonderkommandos | and Il. The file memo of 10 Febru-
ary 1943, on the other hand, explicitly speaks of barracks for personal effects
installed at the Sonderkommandos 1 and 2. This contradicts Dragon’s respec-
tive statements in two ways. In fact, he stated that there were only two bar-
racks (not three) both near “Bunker 1% and “Bunker 2,7** and that they
were used as changing rooms, not for storing the belongings of the alleged

victims, which were taken away on the day after the alleged gassing:1°

“[The gassing] happened like this: the people were brought to the barracks
with trucks. We who were assigned to assist helped the sick to come down
from the truck and to undress in the barracks. In fact, all the deportees un-
dressed in the barracks. The barracks and the space between the barracks
and the chamber were surrounded by SS with dogs. Those who had un-
dressed went naked from the barracks to the chambers. [...]

307 «“Aussage des Zeugen Buki betreffend den Angeklagten Kaduk,” 14 Jan. 1965. Fritz Bauer Institut
et al. 2005, pp. 27936-27937.

308 Interrogation of Sz. Dragon by investigating Judge Jan Sehn, 10 & 11 May 1945. Hoss Trial, vol.
11, p. 104.

309 Ibid., p. 103.

310 Ibid., p. 105.
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The next day a special Kommando took away the items left behind in the
barracks by those gassed, sorted them and transported them to the
Effektenkammer at Auschwitz. ”

Was this “Kommando” the alleged Sonderkommando of the “bunker”? The
authors say nothing in this regard. Milton Buki claimed to have been part of a
Sonderkommando whose task it was to “gather, tie together and sort the
clothes.” It consisted of 400 detainees, and its main task was to “burn the
corpses”; the witness explained that “before the construction of the crematoria
the corpses were burned in corpse pits. The bodies were brought on trucks to
the pits.”*!* It is unclear where the collection of clothes was done.

Another witness, Simon Gotland, who arrived at Auschwitz on 30 to 31 Ju-
ly or 1 August 1942, claimed during the Frankfurt Auschwitz trial to also have

worked in the Sonderkommando:®*?

“We had to dig graves in a size of 10 times 8 meters, in which the gassed
corpses were laid. We had to scatter lime and sand on these corpses. Then
I have been in various Kommandos, including twice in the Kommando
Canada. When a transport had arrived at the ramp, it was my job — while |
was in the Kommando Canada — to open the cars and chase the people out
of the cars. The packages and suitcases the people had with them we had to
throw onto the ramp.”

Because the members of the Sonderkommando were “carriers of the secret”
who lived isolated from the rest of the prisoners — according to the orthodox
Holocaust narrative — it would make no sense to put them in charge of bring-
ing the belongings of those allegedly gassed to the Kanada storage area, or to
deploy them at the ramp to collect the deportees’ luggage. For this same rea-
son it is also absurd to claim that they could easily switch from the doomed
Sonderkommando working at the “bunkers” to other Kommandos, so they
could blurt out the “terrible secret” they carried.

Gotland clearly stated, however, that a separate “Kommando Kanada” ex-
isted which collected the personal belongings of the deportees. Defendants
and witnesses at the Auschwitz trial not only confirmed the existence of this
Kommando, but they specified that it was actually a Sonderkommando.

Victor Capesius, chief of the camp pharmacy at Auschwitz, declared:**®

“When a transport happened to arrive during my stay [in Auschwitz], the
physician present at the ramp instructed the ‘Sonderkommando’ working

at the ramp to have physicians step out with their luggage.”

Another defendant, Franz Hofmann, gave further details:*!*

811 “Aussage des Zeugen Buki betreffend den Angeklagten Kaduk,” 14 Jan. 1965. Fritz Bauer Institut
et al. 2005, pp. 27839, 27842f.

812 «“Aussage des Zeugen Gotland Simon betreffend den Angeklagten Baretzki,” 70th session (27 July
1964). Ibid., pp. 13401f.

313 “Richterliche Vernehmung des Angeklagten Victor Capesius,” 10/11 Jan. 1962. Ibid., p. 3568.
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“The luggage left behind in the cars and on the ramp were collected by an
inmate Sonderkommando under the supervision of the garrison admin-
istration and brought into the camp. There the items were then sorted. |
have never observed that the luggage would have been sorted or pre-sorted
already on the ramp; there wouldn 't have been any time for this anyway.”
Robert Mulka, who had been an adjutant of Commandant Hoss, stated:3'®

“During the arrival of transports, the supervision service was carried out
by a ‘Sonderkommando’ specifically assembled and sworn-in for this,

which consisted of about 60 men. It was block leader personnel.”

The witness Helmut Bartsch asserted the following:3!°

“The suitcases and belongings of arriving inmates were hauled off the cars
by a Sonderkommando and brought to the Kanada camp. ”

Karl Hykes made the following statement:3’
“Defense lawyer Gerhardt: Mr. Witness, you said that you were involved
with the belongings on the ramp. Hauling them off was a different matter,
you said. My question: Can you specify what your work with the belong-
ings consisted of?
Witness Karl Hykes: Yes, it consisted of the following: We stood there and
had to make sure that the inmates loaded onto the wagon the luggage
which the transports had brought along. [...] That was our task.
Defense lawyer Gerhardt: Now another question. Where did those inmates
come from who carried out this work?
Witness Karl Hykes: That was a ‘Sonderkommando’.”

The witness added:3'®

“The office managing the inmates’ money, where I was temporarily em-
ployed, charged us with making sure that the luggage was properly loaded
up and taken to ‘Kanada.’ This loading was done by a Sonderkommando
which most of the time had been brought to the ramp already beforehand,
led by a block leader.”

The witness Leopold Heger made a similar deposition:3'°

“Presiding Judge: What do you mean by ‘Sonderkommando ’?

814 «Staatsanwaltschaftliche Vernehmung des Angeklagten Franz Hofmann vom 27.04.1961.” Ibid.,
pp. 3942f.

315 “Richterliche Vernehmung des Angeklagten Robert Mulka vom 11./12./13.9.1961 in Frankfurt am
Main.” Ibid., p. 4274.

816 «“Aussage des Zeugen Bartsch, Helmut zu Allgemeines,” 26th session (13 March 1964). lbid., p.
5883.

817 «“Aussage des Zeugen Hykes Karl betreffend Allgemeines,” 58th session, (22 June 1964). Ibid., p.
11484.

318 1bid., pp. 11497f.

319 Deposition by Leopold Heger. 88th session (11 Sept. 1964). Ibid., p. 17710.
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Witness Leopold Heger: A Kommando which had to stand by for a certain
purpose.
Presiding Judge: Yes. And for what purpose was this ‘Sonderkommando’
provided?
Witness Leopold Heger: Just for the ramp.”

The witness Karl Bracht also stated:*?°
“At that moment the ‘Sonderkommando’ was busy cleaning up the ramp.”

This brief overview of witness statements, which the authors could have done
very easily as well, confirms that their conjecture concerning barracks for in-
mate belongings erected near the “bunkers” is completely unfounded, and that
there was yet another Sonderkommando whose task it was to pick up the lug-
gage of the deportees and bring it to the disinfestation facility.

11. “Sonderkommando” and “Bunkers”

Continuing their shoddy work of distorting documents, the authors say:

“Much more material on the functioning of the bunkers from the subse-
guent months is extant, including two receipts for the delivery of coal to
Sonderkommando 11 from December 18, 1942 and February 26, 1943. Da-
ting from this same period are a request for the assignment of two guards
to the Sonderkommando (January 19, 1943) (doc. 55), a request for den-
tists for ‘special operations’ (February 10,1943) (doc. 56), and a letter on
the subject of lengthening the ramp where ‘special transports’ arrived

(April 12, 1943) (doc. 48).” (p. 36)

The authors haphazardly bring together documents which have nothing to do
with the elusive “bunkers.” The only thing these documents have in common
is that they refer more or less to the same period of time.

Regarding the supply of coke, the authors propose a second interpretation,
in addition to that for heating of the “gas chambers,” which | already exam-
ined (see their Document 54):

“It is not known what this coal was used for; perhaps attempts were made
to sprinkle it on the burning pyres at times of a shortage of firewood, or it
may have been used to heat the interior of the gas chambers because
Zyklon B did not release poisonous gas at low temperatures.” (Note 44, p.
36)
One could argue that, in this case, Zyklon B would have been completely un-
necessary, because it is generally known that, if properly operated, braziers
produce lethal carbon monoxide, as is tragically attested to by countless fatali-
ties.

820 «“Vernehmungsprotokoll des Zeugen Karl Bracht vom 28.2.1962.” 73th session (3 Aug. 1964).
Ibid., p. 14079.
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However, even the alleged use of coke for the cremation was unknown to
Dragon, who spoke exclusively of firewood:3*

“At the bottom big wooden logs were laid down, then increasingly smaller
wood across, and eventually dry branches. ”

As for the “shortage of firewood,” evidently the authors have forgotten the
“Pszczyna forests.”

Nothing shows that the “Sonderkommando Nr. 2" mentioned in Document
54 had any connection with the “bunkers,” and not surprisingly, the authors
avoid revealing who the recipient of the coke supply was, that is, who signed
beneath the words “recipient’s signature”: it was SS-Rottenfiihrer Gol3, who is
absolutely unknown as a member of the SS deployed at the “bunkers.”

Because the barracks at Auschwitz-Birkenau were equipped with coke-
fueled heating stoves, the most-logical explanation is that the supply in ques-
tion simply was destined to heat the workplaces and lodgings of Sonderkom-
mando Nr. 2.

The “Request for 2 guards for Sonderkommando” of their Document 55,
has nothing whatsoever to do with the legendary “bunkers,” as | have demon-
strated in my earlier comments. The authors can sustain their argument to the
contrary only by omitting that the request had been made by the “Administra-
tion of Inmate Property,” as is the case for Document 12. This Sonderkom-
mando was therefore involved in the sorting and storage of the inmates’ per-
sonal belongings, as is confirmed by Document 31, the file memo of 10 Feb-
ruary 1943.

With another cunning sleight of hand, the authors pretend that the “Request
for dentists to the special operation” (Document 56) is clear in and of itself
and does not require any explanation. What could be the holocaustic value of
this document? Are they seriously suggesting that the practice of extracting
gold teeth from the corpses of those “gassed” was introduced only after 10
February 1943? However, their star witness Szlama Dragon refers to it at the
very beginning of his activity in the Sonderkommando, that is to say in De-
cember 1942:32

“Now, when corpses lay in the courtyard, a dentist, assisted by an SS

[man], extracted the [gold] teeth [...]”

Seen from the perspective of the orthodox Holocaust narrative, this activity of
extracting teeth was different from that pursued by the Inmate Dental Center.
During the Frankfurt Auschwitz trial, the witness Manne Kratz said there was
a “*Sonderkommando’ of the SS dental station” whose task it was to “melt
down the teeth extracted from the dead. And the bars of gold resulting from

%21 Interrogation of Sz. Dragon by investigating Judge Jan Sehn, 10 & 11 May 1945. Hoss Trial, vol.
11, p. 104.
322 |pid., p. 103.
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this were then sent to the SS Reich Security Main Office in Berlin, as far as |
knew.”*? Here is another Sonderkommando ignored by the authors.

Finally, what relationship the reference to the “lengthening the ramp where
‘special transports’ arrived,” dated 12 April 1943, may have with the “bun-
kers” (which were out of service at the time, according to the Auschwitz Mu-
seum’s orthodox version of history) or, more generally speaking, with the al-
leged extermination of the Jews, it is not even specified by the authors’ inscru-
table imagination.

They then babble about additional documents that allegedly contain “refer-
ences to the extermination of Jews in Birkenau,” in particular “notes about the
progress of various construction projects in the vicinity of the gas bunkers or
the newly erected crematoria.” Here they invoke the additional allocation of
guards to “the prisoners employed in transporting materials designated for the
construction of facilities to be used in carrying out ‘special undertakings,’”
which is mentioned in their Document 67, and “the problem of invoices for
work by prisoners and civilian workers employed in the vicinity of places
where ‘special operations’ were taking place (doc. 72).” (p. 37).

In their lackluster summary they do not add anything new to their respec-
tive comments adjacent to the documents in question, which therefore remain
unexplained. As usual, the authors are satisfied by the mere presence of the
magic terms “special measures” and “special operation” in those documents.

They do not explain what relationship there could possibly be between the
transport to Birkenau of construction materials destined for heating stoves as
part of “special measures” consisting in “accommodating the announced
transports of 10 to 31 January 1943” on the one hand, and on the other hand
what they call “the progress of various construction projects in the vicinity of
the gas bunkers or the newly erected crematoria.” Here their delusional fanta-
sy goes rampant by interpreting housing measures for prisoners as extermina-
tion measures!

When it comes to Document 72, | emphasize that the authors, as a result of
their sloppy superficiality, have committed a colossal blunder. The reference
is not to work alleged performed by inmates and civilian workers near places
where “special operations” were carried out. Instead, this referred to work
which the civilian workers of the company Baugeschaft Anhalt were unable to
carry out due to a “special operation.” This operation consisted of the interro-
gation of all civilian workers employed in the camp by the camp’s Political
Department, which lasted four days and had been triggered by a simple work-
ers’ strike. This resulted in the loss of four working days, for which the civil
companies demanded reimbursement from the Central Construction Office.
The authors’ interpretation is really painful nonsense.

323 “Vernehmung des Zeugen Ménne Kratz,” 122th session (21 Dec. 1964). Fritz Bauer Institut et al.
2005, p. 27049
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12. When Did the Activity at the “Bunkers” Stop?

The authors, all tangled up in their false and contradictory interpretations of
the documents, clearly do not address this question. After the Birkenau crema-
toria went into operation in the spring of 1943, they say,

“the two bunkers were no longer used. The office of the commandant un-
doubtedly intended to liquidate them at this point. As early as April, heads
of camp administrative units began requesting the allocation of the now
unused wooden barracks that had served until then as temporary storage
for the property of the murdered (doc. 32, 33).” (p. 37)

The Sonderkommando Il mentioned in Document 32 is undoubtedly identical
with the Sonderkommando 2 of Document 31, but like Sonderkommando 1, it
is mentioned in the context of barracks and buildings which at the time were
used as warehouses for inmate belongings. Only lots of malice or fantasy
permits associating them with the elusive “bunkers.”

Document 33 contains a passing reference to a “Special Operation 1,”
which the authors do not explain at all. They simply associate it with “Bunker
1” by writing “Sonderaktion 1 (Bunker 1),” and the readers are left to content
themselves with that “authoritative” equation. But from what fact do they de-
duce that “Sonderaktion 1 was connected to the alleged “Bunker 1”?

The authors also claim that “Bunker 2” was left intact to deal with possible
malfunctions of the Birkenau crematoria:

“In fear of further malfunctions, which could even lead to the halting of the
extermination process, it was therefore decided to retain the bunkers on a
temporary basis and treat them as reserve installations.” (p. 37)

This reasoning starts out with “Bunker 2,” but then, tacitly and inexplicably,
also includes “Bunker 1,” despite testimonies that the latter was demolished in
March/April 1943. This reasoning is nonsensical, however, because according
to the witnesses, as interpreted by Piper, the “cremation pits” of “Bunker 1”
and “Bunker 2” were leveled in the spring of 1943, after the crematoria had
been started up (see my comments on their Document 16). It stands to reason
that, if the SS at Auschwitz really feared that the crematoria might malfunc-
tion, they would have left the “cremation pits” at the two imaginary “bunkers”
intact, but these were allegedly leveled; to what end, then, would they have
kept “Bunker 2” or even both “bunkers” operable?

The argument that follows shows very obviously and once again the au-
thors’ pretentious historical and documentary ineptitude:

“The register of trips by truck to the Pszczyna forests and the receipts for

the delivery of firewood to the Sonderkommando in the period from June to

September 1943 indicate that the remains of the murdered people were

then being burned not only in the crematoria, but at times also on pyres.
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This surely occurred when the transports of deported Jews were unusually
numerous.” (pp. 37f.)

The authors refer to a page in an article by Setkiewicz saying (2011b, p. 64):

“Instead, in the trip register of the camp’s motor pool, 29 trips to Kobior

by various vehicles (almost exclusively trucks) are logged from mid-June

to mid-September (64 days). For 23 of them the task or purpose of the trip

is specified, also including:

— Sonderkommando — seven times

— DHW (?) Sonderkommando — twice

— Sonderkommando — Holz [wood] — twice.

In addition, a few times the transport of firewood (Tr. Holz, Holzhof, Holz

fahr., Schlager Holz) is given as the #rip’s reason, without actually describ-

ing in more detail what this wood was meant to be used for. It seems be-

yond doubt, however, that these trips — as before — were related to the sup-

ply of wood to cremate the corpses of prisoners.”
No archival reference is given for this. The purpose for the wood deliveries
cited by Setkiewicz (the cremation of corpses) is purely conjectural; there is
not even a clue in its favor. Seen from an orthodox point of view, cremations
on pyres “when the transports of deported Jews were unusually numerous”
could apply only to August 1943, the month in which about 42,500 victims
were allegedly gassed. However, it would not make sense for June (less than
6,000 claimed gassing victims from the middle of the month), July (440
claimed gassing victims!) and the first fortnight of September (some 5,000
claimed gassing victims). In August 1943, the mortality among registered in-
mates was 2,380 inmates (1,442 men and 938 women).3** Together with those
allegedly gassed, this would have amounted to about 44,900 deaths. Even if
we take these gassing allegations as fact,®* given that Setkiewicz accepts, al-
beit with reservation, the fairy tale about the cremation capacity of Crematoria
/111 of 1,440 corpses per day (Setkiewicz 2011b, p. 57), Crematorium IlI
alone — the only of the four crematoria in operation in August 1943 — could
have cremated 44,640 bodies, hence virtually every corpse, i.e. both the real
and those fictitious ones, and there would have been no need for pyres. Piper
even assumes a cremation capacity of 2,500 corpses per day for each of the
Crematoria Il and 111 (Piper, 1994, p. 171), so that in his opinion Crematorium
111 alone could have cremated 77,500 bodies in August 1943!

In addition, the authors do not provide the slightest bit of evidence that the
Sonderkommando receiving the truckloads of wood was a Sonderkommando
involved in cremations.

824 PS-1469.

325 The figure includes two alleged “selections” among registered inmates, one of 498 prisoners (21
Aug.), the other of 4,000 (29 Aug.), but both are purely fictitious, as | have documented in my
study on health care and selections at Auschwitz (Mattogno 2016c, pp. 117-120).
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Apparently they do not realize that, with their references to wood supplies,
they destroy the orthodox story about open-air cremations of the corpses of al-
leged gassing victims. And here is why:

They state that “in the period from March 1942 to April 1943, about
250,000 people perished inside” the elusive “bunkers” (p. 38), a figure to
which | shall return soon. The cremation of these bodies (as | explained in my
comments on Document 13) would require (250,000 bodies x 320 kg/body =)
80,000 metric tons of firewood, equivalent to 8,000 trips of an average truck
with a trailer. The documentary series Fahrbefehl (travel orders) should there-
fore contain a huge number of travel orders of this magnitude. However, the
trips for firewood collection mentioned by the authors are only these:

— 7 September 1942: 1

— 8 September 1942: 1

— 9 September 1942: 1

— from mid-June to mid-September 1943: 29.

Hence a total of 32 travel orders seem to be extant, most of which, 29, from a
time period when the activities of the alleged “bunkers” had ceased. As I
pointed out above, the reference cited by the authors shows that the Auschwitz
Museum possesses at least two volumes of these documents, and that the first
of them has at least 673 pages. The explanation for such a small quantity of
wood supplies to the Auschwitz Camp therefore cannot be attributed to the
potentially fragmentary nature of these documents, the rest of which the au-
thors never mention.

Now back to the claimed figure of 250,000 victims. The numbers allegedly
gassed in the “bunkers” can be extrapolated to some degree from the data giv-
en in Czech’s Auschwitz Chronicle. Most of Czech’s entries state the exact
number of “gassing” victims, but not all. There are a number of entries for de-
portation trains where only the number of inmates admitted to the camp is
known, but not how many deportees were included in that particular transport.
In a number of these cases Czech does not even indicate whether any of those
not registered were “gassed” in the first place. If we assume, for the sake of
argument, that all those deportation trains with an unknown number of depor-
tees had 1,000 of them (the most common strength among such trains), and
that all inmates not admitted/registered were “gassed,” then the following
numbers result (there are no gassings claimed for March and April 1942):
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— May 1942; 6,800
—June 1942: 6,900
—July 1942: 4,700
— August 1942: 36,000
— September 1942; 20,500
— October 1942: 20,900

— November 1942: 20,900
— December 1942: 16,800
—January 1943: 45,800
— February 1943: 18,800
—1-13 March 1943: 8,800

Total: 206,900

Of course, these numbers also include all the gassings that might have taken
place in Crematorium |, according to orthodox historiography. Czech rarely
indicates where the claimed gassings are said to have occurred. She usually
only writes that the victims were killed “in the gas chambers.” Only in a few
cases is she more specific by pointing to the “bunkers.”

One could try to resort to HOss’s testimony, who declared that some
107,000 victims had been buried in the mass graves near the “bunkers” until
open-air cremations began in late summer 1942, These victims, however, also
included an unknown fraction of victims other than those allegedly gassed in
the “bunkers,” according to Hoss (Paskuly 1992, p. 32). Looking at Czech’s
data of allegedly gassed victims until the late summer of 1942 reveals, howev-
er, that fewer than 70,000 are said to have been killed this way in Crematori-
um | and the “bunkers” together, so H6ss’s number is way too high and thus
unreliable, which isn’t surprising, considering that unreliability is the hallmark
of Hoss’s various statements.

Another unclear point is when exactly gassings are supposed to have
ceased in the “bunkers” in early 1943. From testimonies we can derive that the
“bunkers” were taken out of commission when the new crematoria became
operational, which would make perfect sense. The first gassing in those new
crematoria is claimed to have occurred on 13 March 1943 (Crematorium 11,
1,492 claimed victims; Czech 1990, p. 352). If we take that as the cut-off date
for the operation of the “bunkers,” then we arrive at a maximum of some
207,000 victims. Even if we take March 22 as the cut-off date (the day Crema-
torium IV went into operation; ibid., p. 357), then this number would increase
only by some 4,600. In any case, it doesn’t seem possible to considerably ex-
ceed 210,000 gassing victims in total for the time period mentioned by the au-
thors, and most certainly not anywhere close to this for the “bunkers,” since
some ten thousand of these victims are said to have been killed in the alleged
“gas chamber” of Crematorium I, not in the “bunkers” (Pressac 1989, p. 132).
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It is therefore unclear how the authors arrived at their figure of 250,000 “bun-
ker” victims for 1942-1943.

Coming back to the claimed firewood deliveries, what is decisive here is
that even a considerably lower “bunker” death toll still leads to incredibly
high firewood requirements to cremate these corpses on pyres. Even if we as-
sume only some 150,000 alleged “bunker” victims for the years 1942-1943,
the demand for wood for their cremation would still have been (150,000
corpses x 320 kg wood/corpse =) 48,000 metric tons, equivalent to 4,800 trips
of a 5-ton truck with a 5-ton trailer.

Hence, if what the authors have published about documented wood deliver-
ies to the camp is all that is extant, then these travel order registers drastically
contradict the story of the huge 1942/43 outdoor cremations of corpses alleg-
edly gassed.

In another contradiction to the orthodox history of the Auschwitz Museum
based on testimonies, the authors state:

“On the basis of the extant documents, it is impossible to determine with
complete certainty when the demolition of bunker | began. There are many
indications, however, that this occurred only in February 1944 as the con-
struction of the nearby third part of the Birkenau camp (Blll, ‘Meksyk’)
progressed. That was when the adjacent wooden barracks were dismantled
(doc. 34) and the narrow-gauge tracks (for the carts used to transport
corpses from the gas chambers to the burning pits) were removed (doc. 57,
58). The bunker building itself was completely demolished, and even the
bricks from the foundation were taken away so that no trace of it would
remain.” (p. 38)

As | pointed out above, if “Special Operation 1” mentioned in Document 33
referred to “Bunker 1,” as the authors claim, then two of the three barracks of
Sonderkommando | had already been dismantled and taken away as a result of
the order mentioned in the file memo of 9 May 1943. In this case a single bar-
rack would have remained at Sonderkommando I, but then, why did Bischoff
asked for the return of three barracks on 4 February 1944? It certainly cannot
be argued that Bischoff, as head of the Construction Inspectorate “Silesia,”
was unaware of the removal of the two barracks around 9 May 1943, because
he himself had remained the head of the Auschwitz Central Construction Of-
fice until 30 September of the same year.

We should, however, back up the relationship that existed between Sonder-
kommando | and the crematoria with more documents. The opening sentence
of the letter, which | repeat for clarity, says (see my comments on Document
34).

“For carrying out a special measure, | once made available 3 horse-stable

barracks from Construction Sector Il of the PoW camp on a loan basis.

After the crematoria have been completed long time ago and have been
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handed over to your administration, the above-mentioned barracks allo-
cated on a loan basis are no longer needed at Sonderkommando I.”

The completion of the crematoria thus made superfluous three barracks at
Sonderkommando I, but why? The authors’ criminal interpretation of their
Document 74 no doubt has its own logic: the undressing barracks near “Bun-
ker 1” became unnecessary following the entry into operation of the cremato-
ria’s undressing rooms cum “gas chambers.” But this presupposes a criminal
interpretation of the crematoria’s morgues, which, however, is contradicted by
documents showing that the SS considered the crematoria exclusively as sani-
tary facilities.

As | mentioned above, on 20 March 1943 the garrison physician, SS-
Haupstzzturmf[jhrer Eduard Wirths, made this request to the camp comman-
dant:

“Two covered push-carts must be made available for the removal of the
corpses from the detainee sick-bay to the crematorium, each one allowing
the transportation of 50 corpses. ”

And on 4 August Bischoff wrote to Wirths:**

“SS-Standartenfuhrer Mrugowski declared in the meeting of 31 July that
the corpses are to be removed to the morgues of the crematoria twice a
day, i.e. in the morning and in the evening, which renders unnecessary the
additional installation of morgues in the various subsections. ”

These provisions, which relate to the corpses of the registered prisoners who
had died in the camp, are completely at odds with a logic of extermination.
They categorically exclude the possibility that the morgues of the crematoria,
filled with deceased inmates as they must have been, could have been used as
“gas chambers.”

Above | mentioned Bischoff’s report of 16 May 1943 which stated (see my
comments on Document 17):3%

“Also planned is the insertion of heating coils into the garbage incinerator

at Crematorium Il for the production of [hot] water for a shower unit to

be installed in the cellar of Crematorium I1I. Negotiations for the imple-

mentation of this unit have taken place with Topf & S6hne Co., Erfurt.”
Already three days earlier Bischoff had charged the civilian engineer Rudolf
Jahrling with the task of installing “showers in the undressing room of Crema-
torium 111,"%% which was a “project for heating water for some 100 show-

326 | etter by the SS garrison physician to the commandant of CC Auschwitz dated 20 March 1943
with the subject “Haftlings-Krankenbau — KGL.” RGVA, 502-1-261, p. 112.

327 | etter by Bischoff to Wirths of 4 August 1943 with the subject “Hygienische Sofortmassnahmen
im KGL: Erstellung von Leichenhallen in jedem Unterabschnitt.” RGVA, 502-1-170, p. 262.

328 RGVA, 502-1-83, p. 311.

329 “Bericht {iber die Arbeitseinteilung beim Sofortprogramm im K.G.L. Auschwitz” by Bischoff,
dated 13 May 1943. RGVA, 502-1-83, p. 338.
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ers.”® Hence, it is difficult to explain the meaning of the document under
discussion without any further documentation.

Two issues still ought to be pointed out, though. First, it is not very likely
that the barracks for the alleged “Bunker 1” would have been granted “on a
loan basis,” i.e. that this supposed extermination installation would not even
have been provided with its own proper barracks.

Second, the three barracks came “from Construction Sector III” of the
Birkenau Camp. Now, according to the logic of the authors, two of these three
barracks were those which had been erected outside the Birkenau Camp in
May 1942 (see their Document 21), but at the time the work in Construction
Sector 11l had not yet begun. They were mentioned for the first time in the
“Construction Report for the month of September 1942, which states:**

“Construction Sector Ill: Extension of the open trenches for drainage of
surface water has begun.”

The “distribution list of barracks” of 8 December 1942 states that for Con-
struction Sector 111 of the Birkenau Camp 36 barracks of the Type 260/9 are
required, “only latrine, wash and storage barracks,” of which 12 were already
installed and 24 still pending.®*? If the three barracks given to the Sonderkom-
mando were part of the pending 24 in Construction Sector Ill, then the loan
was made several months after the alleged entry into operation of “Bunker 1.”

The request dated 24 December 1943 for handing back over the field rail-
way which had been given to Sonderkommando | does not prove anything
homicidal either, because we know nothing about this railway. The only doc-
umented information on this Sonderkommando is that it had to do with the
inmates’ personal belongings.

330 APMO, BW 30/34, p. 40.
31 RGVA, 502-1-24, p. 138.
332 RGVA, 502-1-275, p. 207.
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Conclusions

The authors” comments on their documents end here. They close their intro-
duction by stating that Auschwitz grew “in the years 1942-1943 from a medi-
um-sized concentration camp to the largest mass-extermination center,” a
“radicalization” that arose not “from a single decision” but was the result of
many factors (p. 38). By so doing, they openly contradict HOss’s statements,
according to which the alleged extermination of the Jews depended on two
fateful decisions, one by Hitler in June 1941 (the alleged order to exterminate
the Jews), and the other by Himmler in July 1942 (the alleged extension from
a regional extermination center for Jews to one of European proportions).

As for the “bunkers,” the authors claim that 250,000 people fell victim to
them from March 1942 to April 1943, but the most miraculous thing is that
this immense extermination is said to have occurred without leaving the
slightest documentary trace.

In the present study | have shown that none of the 74 documents published
by the authors has any relation to the “bunkers” in particular and to the alleged
extermination of the Jews in general. | also demonstrated that, in order to cre-
ate fictitious relations, the authors have systematically misrepresented and dis-
torted documents, ignored their meaning and their context, provided totally
inconsistent and fanciful interpretations, while showing a remarkable superfi-
ciality and historiographical ineptitude. But the greatest reproach that must be
leveled against them, far more serious than their childish and foolish tenet
about “code words,” is their fundamental deception according to which there
existed merely one kind of Sonderkommando at Auschwitz, so that every doc-
ument containing this term turns into an apparent proof for the existence of the
elusive “bunkers” of Birkenau, and this despite the numerous documents stat-
ing the contrary which they obviously never cite.

The authors’ work, however, has also a meritorious aspect: having pub-
lished a selection of documents that, taken in their context, help to shed light
on still-unclear aspects of the history of Auschwitz.

This my present study can therefore be considered to be an update and
completion of my book Special Treatment in Auschwitz: Origin and Meaning
of a Term, whose theses are thus confirmed and consolidated, thanks to the
documents submitted by the authors.
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DOCUMENT 3: “Haftlings-Einsatz vom 27. Februar 1942”; inmate deploy-
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for the Erection and Extension of the Concentration and POW Camp, Map
No. 2215, dated March 1943. RGVA, 502-2-93, p. 1. Detail enlargement of
the area of the alleged “Bunker 2” (7) and of the map’s stamp imprint (7a).
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DOCUMENT 8, 8a: “Bebauungsplan fuir den Auf- u. Ausbau des Konzentra-
tionslagers u. Kriegsgefangenenlagers, Plan Nr. 2215 ”; Development Map
for the Erection and Extension of the Concentration and POW Camp, Map
No. 2215, dated March 1943. RGVA, 502-1-94, p. 2. Detail enlargement of
the area of the alleged “Bunker 2” (8) and of the map’s stamp imprint (8a).
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DOCUMENT 9: “Lageplan des Interessengebiets K.L. Auschwitz Nr. 1733~
Situation map of the area of interest Auschwitz Concentration Camp no.
1733 of 5 October 1942. RGVA, 502-2-93, p. 13.
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DOCUMENT 10: “Lageplan des Interessengebiets K.L. Auschwitz Nr. 1733”;
“Situation map of the area of interest Auschwitz Concentration Camp no.

1733” of 5 October 1942. RGVA
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502-2-93, p. 13. Detail enlargement of the

claimed area where the alleged “Bunker 1” is said to have been.
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DOCUMENT 11: “Erlauterungsbericht zum Ausbau des Kriegsgefangenenla-
gers der Waffen-SS in Auschwitz O/S”; Explanatory report on the construc-
tion project Concentration Camp Auschwitz O/S of 30 September 1943.
RGVA, 502-2-60, p. 81, section enlargement.
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Quarantéane-Abt.”; CC Auschwitz — Construction Sector 111 inmate infirmary
a. quarantine section.” RGVA, 502-2-110, p. 36. Section enlargement.
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DOCUMENT 13: as DOCUMENT 6. Detail enlargement.
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DOCUMENT 14: Map of the area of Auschwitz-Birkenau without cap-
tion. 1941. RGVA 502-2-93, p. 15a.
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DOCUMENT 15: “Bebauungsplan fiir den Auf- u. Ausbau des Kon-
zentrationslagers u. Kriegsgefangenenlagers, Plan Nr. 2215 (see
my DOCUMENT 7) as reproduced in Bartosik/Martyniak/Setkiewicz

2014, Doc. 15 on p. 83.
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DOCUMENT 16: as DOCUMENT 7, W|th area of the alleged “Bunker 1 ”
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DOCUMENT 16A: as DOCUMENT 7; detail enl
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DOCUMENT 17: “Arbeitsleistung in der Zeit vom 26.111.- bis 25.1V.1942”;
“Work done in the period 26 March to 25 April 1942” of the inmate painter
detail (Haftlings-Malerei). RGVA, 502-1-24, pp. 370f.
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DOCUMENT 18: “Auschwitz, den 9/10.42. Fiuhrer v. Dienst: SS. Ober-

scharf. Wagner”; Auschwitz, 9/10 1942. Officer on duty: Oberscharfuhrer
Wagner. Published on the Auschwitz Museum’s website.
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DOCUMENT 19: “Fluchtmeldung”; escape report, 7 September 1944, Pub-

lished on the Auschwitz Museum’s website.
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Dauverhaben:
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— b 184
Datfes Bady it gefdler wen: wan Bie

Fifmmbintt — Pw — 77, Plucaybaed”, Tiulgm,
W Dmbrdviriog T . Thagr, Tlieiaidy (Mogen. fodlak) 1008

DOCUMENT 20: “Bauausgabebuch”; construction expense ledger of struc-
ture BW 54. RGVA, 502-1-111, pp. 573-573a.
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DOCUMENT 20: continued.
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Au

‘2uinspektion der '"!"affen-=9 Katt
und Felizei "Schleszfent 13.7

oritz 0 den 11. Juli 1044,
RIS Ps

AZ;BI-Seh/2u/KCL/74 /9Ssc /84 /i,
Betr: Bausntrag zur Errichtung von 3 Saracken fur Sonde rmaSnahmen

im £.L. 1T suschwitz =

Bezg: RPahmenbaubefehllr. 1239 v. 13.1.44 - A2:C V/1-So-2/2b/ia/

¥z - u, dort. Schreiben v. 19.€.%54 - =zi3ftgh.¥r.51851 /64 /el /T,

Anlg: 1 gepriifter Bfuontrsg 2-fach.
in die R

Zentrelbauleitung der -
Waffen-58 und Polizel -

secehwitsz

Aur

Ich
1.}
2.)

—

3.

&,

—

5.)

_ Baubefehl Nr. 61. '

‘Orund der eingercichten Unterlagen erteile ich hiermit den
Baubefekl zux Errichtung von 3 Baracken fiiz Sondermafnahmen im ¥L.
Lager 11 Auschwitz.- A e

bvemerke hierzu folgendes: '
Der fntrag auf Ausnslme vom Beuverdot ist nooh worzulegen.'

Dle eirgereichten Unterlegen wurden bdbautechniseh und bauwirt-
achaftlich gepriért. Die Prifungsvermerke =ind zu beachten,

Ple bendtigten Taumitiel in Edhe von

C R, 5l.000.-
{i.%.:%eichemark Einundfinfzigtausend)

werden bei IHavitel 21/7b (Bau) €5/£1 bereitzestellt.Das Bauwerk
ist mit Rahmenbaubefehl Ir. 1239 v. IZ.1.44 - Az: ¢ V/1-So-
2/2v /5 /P .« des S5-Wirtachefts-Vermel tungehruntemteon bereits
genehmigt.

e euszehlunzsenweiszende Saudienststelle, die Zentralbeauleitung
der Tiaffen-SS und ‘olizei juschwitz muas Uber den obigen Betrag
eine Haushaltsiiberwechungslizte fithren. Der leiter der Zentrai-
bauleitung haftet fir ZLuszehlungen oder Zahlungeve roflichtungen,
die tber den zugewiesenen Fetrag hineusgehen. Vor Verwenduns der
restlichen lo v. H., der zugemiesenen Hittel ist dem Amt C V zu

nelden, dess diese zur Deckuns aller anfellenden Ausgeben aus-

reichen; andernfells fot ein begrindeter Hachantreg zu.astellen.

Die Z“uwelsung der erforderlichen ontingente erfolgt im Bahmen
der Zuweisung durch den &.B.-Bau.

0ie Ubergabe des Baues an die hausverweltende Dicnststelle ist
nir genmiS Verfiigung des §3~"frtschalts-Verwal shauwt emtes
imt C VI, V. 18.1.84 - a2:C VI/3-Allg./6l/e (neu) Ta/Xa/Tgb.mr.
208 - 2u melden.
Der Leiter der Beuinspektion
der Warfen-sSs und Folizei "Schlesfen®

gez :Bischor?

SS-Sturzbannfohrer.

DOCUMENT 21: “Baubefehl Nr. 61”; Construction Order No. 61 of 11 July
1944. RGVA, 502-1-281, p. 54.
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wm Avaden 8, Krisgegeransenenlagers gmn-q/
in Awsetwits o/3, .

-

Brrichtung von 3 Baracken fiir Sondersessnshmen

DOCUMENT 22: “Bauantrag zum Ausbau d. Kriegsgefangenenlagers d.
Waffen-SS in Auschwitz O/S. Errichtung von 3 Baracken fiir Sondermass-
nahmen”; construction request for the expansion of the PoW camp of the
Walffen-SS at Auschwitz Upper Silesia. Installation of 3 barracks for special
measures; dated 26 May 1944. RGVA, 502-2-125, pp. 227-229.
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DOCUMENT 22: continued
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/ 4
Kosteavorangehias
® mum Auebau d.Xriegegefangenenlagers d.Waffen-+ in Auscavits 0/5 -
T angene T deagfil h
= Brrichtung von 3 Baracken fiir Sondermasananmen
~ = —_— e w—
4, Exwerb d,Crundattoken:
; ' D"W_— er wird auf
¢ “~reicheeigenem Celidnde errichtet, - v - -
[ =
<o A« Exwerb d,Grundstlickes: o g -
B. L :
Fir Planierungearbeiten yon $éwa
Gl e - d200 Bodenfldone  Entfarnung v,
. ugw.elnscnl Jermes -
fur 1 gqm BM 1,20 5. ---2.b.N. BN 1l.440,—
ST S5 — ==
B, Erechliessung d.Baugrundstiickes: BN 1,440,
" .
A
Grupdflscher 40,76 X 9.56 e 389,66 qm
Barackenhthe: _ 2.6
UmbsGter faum: 389,66 x 2.65= lo032.50 cbm
¥Xosten tur 1 cbm: e T 00
AT 1o;_2. X 387e0 = BN 184586, — 15437, - 4646y —
acken = BN 1l8.588,-- X 3 = B 555758y
g I, Auzgenanlage Sl
. %{iﬂ ein Ecaégirer Bauantrag geztellt: B -, -
¥
-
* -.Rasezmenstollung
I. Bauten_ - B STTSE Ml 67~
II.Ausdenanlagen I
: insgesamt BM S5+F58;-—4£€467 -
C. Bauten u.Auesenanlsgen: 2 RM 5!7758.—*666;,-;

DOCUMENT 22: continued
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D. Hauvtinegemein:

5 v.d. aus den n_Koaten

von AbSCHHITE C =

von Abschnitt B = RM 5;,'5&%8! #“
-—l' By "—

Toz - 23495~
5 v.H_:_xon ol -— = T 3v800, ==
D. Haupiinegemein U, zur Abrundungs: Y 3y8ed,—
2095~
S 2""!‘!‘!‘!‘2@‘“@.
. bt Ny
A. Erwerb d.Grundstilckes | B -y =y
B. Brachliessung d,.Baugrundstiickes RM 1.440,~-
C. Bauten u.Ausssnanlagen BY 5550y C 46 3 -
D. Hauptinsgemein v BN 3yBefi— 3093
Gesamtsumme RY $3roou;e— T oo
aTTE== '
Aufgeztellt:
Auschoritz, den 25.5..19:4 v
Tedi,/zn,
Der Leiter d er Zentralbanleftung
der Waffen-4 und Polizei, Auschwitz
G.p'u"!Ja[ ., // .
Baannsofsu on TS '/“/f —
dor Wallun. uP: 182 LS unistnah H-Oborat! fiihrer (’)Q‘T
= 5 .)“A,/r &

DOCUMENT 22: continued
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. /' :_
e ‘
Bauinspektion attoritz 0/3, fen 20.
der Waffen-SS und Polizel Zine: 2&.7.£¢:~ = 7.194“:f
" " 33 ' X
Bohlesien Pblgh, §3 634004 s

Az:3I-3ch/in /K0T /74,9999

Betr: Emuantrag zur Errlchtung von 2 Pferdesiallbarncken
fir Sondermefnohmen.

Zezg: Dort. Schreiben vem 15.6.68, Az:Bftgh.Hr. 51848 /44/Te 1/R.
Anlp: 1 gepriifter Bauantrag 2-fach : '

An die

Zentralbauleitung der : L !
Waffen-53 und Folizei

Auschwitz

Bauberehl Kr., &3.

Auf Oorund der eingereichten Imterlegen erteile ich hiermit den
g Baubefehl zur Errichtung von 7 Pferdeatallbaracken fiir Sonder-
matnahmen im KL Leger IT Auechwitz, . ’

Ich bemerke hierzu folgendes:

1.) Fiur dea Bauvorhaben ist noch der intrag auf iusnshme vem
Bauverbot vorzulegen.

2.) Die eingereichten Unterlagen wurden bautechnisch uné bau-
wirtachaltlich gepriift. Die Trifunzsvermerke sind zu be-
achten.

2.) Die bentitigten Baumittel in Y¥he von
R 41 000.-

{L.%,:Relchsmark Binundvierzigtsugend)
werden bei Kapitel 21/7v (Bau? £5/63 tereitgestellt,

Die suszeshlungsenweisende Zaudienstatelle, die Zentralbeu-
leitung der Walffen-S8 und Polizef Auschwitz muss (ber den
obigen EBetrag eine Haushalssliberwachungsliste fiéhren, Der
Leiter der Zenftralbauleitunpg heftet fiUr Auszehlungen oder
Zehlungovernflichtungen,die Uber den zugewicaenen Betrag
hinsusgehen. Yor YVerwendung der restlichen lo v.H. der zu-
gewiesenen Littel 12t dem ‘mt C V zu melden, dass diese zury
Deckung #ller mnfallenden Ausgaven eusreichen; andernfalls
iat ein begriindeter Yachantrag zu stellen,

4.) Die Zuweisung der erforderlichen Kontingente erfolgt im
Sahmen der Zuwelsuns dureh den g§,B.Bau

5.) Die Ubergabe dea Daues en (le haueverweltende Diensistelle
it mir gemil Verfigun:s des SS-¥irtschefts-Vermaltungshaupt-
amtes, .mt ¢ VI, v.18.1.44 - az: © VI/3 Allg.-E1fe (neu) Ta/
Ka/Tgb.Nr. 208 = 2u melden.

> Der Leiter der Bauinasrektion
der Waffen-=3 und Polizei "Schlesien™

gez:Bischoll
83-8turnbannfithrer,

DocUMENT 23: “Baubefehl Nr. 63”; Construction Order No. 63, dated 20
July 1944. RGVA, 502-1-281, p. 57.
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3 ]L—_-—n'-—-———— PRSI TP TS TN SR—,

Vorhaben: Kriegsggfangenenlager Auschwitz
X (Dumv/u;/;rung aer Sonderbehandlung)

Bauherr: Reichsfilrer#s; #-Wirfschafrs-
Yerwaltungshayplami
Amisgruppe C,

Berlin Lichterfe/de-west

Cmivipa 2]

DOCUMENT 24: “Bauvorhaben Kriegsgefangenenlager Auschwitz (Durch-
fihrung der Sonderbehandlung”; Construction project Prisoner-of-War
Camp — implementation of special treatment. VHA, Fond OT 31(2)/8,
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- 5=

Ubertrag: 14.574,00 @ TWI 7,435.300,00

Schomatoine:

Je Tromatorium 2 Schormateine:

I oIl 3,70 x 2,30 x 16,00
a4 =
IITu, IV: 1,% x1,% x
17,50 x4 =

(=3 an:

28,80 x 13,60 x },15x 4 =

13 v)

544,00 "
153,00 "

20.311,00

Eosten fiir 1 a%: B 50,00
20.311,00 x 50,00 = 1
1o Stek, Dreimiffel-
ofen Kosten fir

1 Stiek: BI 20.000,-
20.000,~ X lo =™

2 Stk Achtmuffeldfen
Kostan fiir 1 Stdek:

16 a)

Entwesmgaanlace
1. fir Sonderbehandlung

Grundflidche: 50,00 x 20,00 =

Gebindshihe: 6,20

Unbauter Raum:

1000,00 X 5,20 =

Kollortoil:

35,00 x 20,00 x 3,20 =
susamman

Eosten fiir 1 =° R¥ 28,00

8440,00 xg,m -

Brause~ u. Desinfake-
tionsanlage

236.

16 ) 2, fur dle Wachtruppe
Grundfldche :
12,25 x 12,65 + 12,40 x
8,7To =
Sabarter Easar’ -

or :
262,84 x 2,80 = rd. 735,~ 3’

RY_73,680,00

»015.550,=

200.000,~

*  1,400.000,-

looo,~ mz

6.200,~ @

2
8.4“0—

-

320,00

310.000,~

262,84 m°

VOJENSKY HISTORICKY
ARCHIV

kople materldld
Blsfor

Tohertrag

262,84 =° B 9,195.300.~

DOCUMENT 24: continued.
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16 a) Entwesungsanlage

1000,00 x 6,20 = 6.200,~ m3
Kollerteil:

35,00 x 20,00 x 3,20 = 2,240,~ o’
zusammen  B.440,~

Eosten fiir 1 m> R¥ 28,00
400 X 28,00 = 236.320,00

310.000,~

DOCUMENT 24: continued.
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ﬁ'ﬂ"f’-ﬂ.l‘d«.lﬂ& 60,000
29. Koochkeosel u.lleistifen 950,000

4.3 tf:mmn.." 2,406,000

J2,2 ﬂoh&m te ‘au.uub
33,2 Transrorm.etatione,

« (00

watt f
| Bauvorhaben Duve
i (Bauwerks) Ge=  Dewlle m&u
| ‘ sact u\m dor dor “3::‘
I %: | 4% > Blﬂl.m. ma:‘q m.
s 4, barecken
| Gulelen Ne VI Up e R
I 10, 182 mh.mo
| ind Vorratebar, 3,023,600 3,823,600 1,200,000  3,130.
11,27 wasobeu.Abort= : ‘
19, Jare o e 7540600 675,000 250,000 840,
e 3 Btok,1V/3 365,000 365, 120,000 304!
13, 12 Revierbaracken 130,000 . R
3 10 Mooxfinrerber.  109.000 155000 20:550 g
15.1 Viaschbaracken(dope ‘
polt,sus,6 Stok.) 73.200 73.200 W,000 36.¢
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DOCUMENT 25: “Bauten der Zentralbauleitung der Waffen-SS
und Polizei Auschwitz im 3. Kriegswirtschaftsjahr”; Structures of
the Central Construction Office of the Waffen-SS and Police
Auschwitz in the 3rd budget year of war. 15 November 1942.

RGVA, 502-1-85, p. 119.
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|

DOCUMENT 26: “Uberblick der Gelandeaufnahmen im Jnteressengebiet des
K.L. Auschwitz”; Overview of surveying the area of interest of CC
Auschwitz.” 2 June 1943. RGVA, 502-1-88, p. 8.
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DOCUMENT 27: Superimposition of a map of the Birkenau Camp with the
map of 2 June 1943 (my DOCUMENT 26). The areas of “Bunker 1” and
“Bunker 2” are marked with an encircled B1 and B2, respectively.
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DOCUMENT 28: “Ausgabezusammenstellung”; compilation of expenses for
materials at the Birkenau Camp, April, July, October 1942, reproduced in
Bartosik/Martyniak/Setkiewicz 2014, Doc. 52 on p. 201. 300 kg cement and

400 kg bagged lime for BW 4 on 23 April 1942, and another 1,000 kg of ce-
ment for BW 4 on 15 July 1942,




244

Index of Names

CARLO MATTOGNO - CURATED LIES

Individuals only. Page numbers of entries in footnotes are set as italics.

—A—
Alstine, Mark van: 121
August, Jochen: 156
Aumeier, Hans: 162-164

— B—

Balbin, Andre: 58

Bara, Karl: 164

Baretzki, Stefan: 188

Bartosik, Igor: 17, 38, 41,
223,243

Bartsch, Helmut: 189

Bezwinska, Jadwiga: 31, 59,
62, 161

Bialas, inmate: 50

Bilan, Wladimir: 100
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Bracht, Karl: 190

Brandhuber, Jerzy: 159

Braun, Gustav: 165

Broad, Pery: 31, 161

Broszat, Martin: 168, 175

Browning, Christopher: 161-
163

Brzybylski, Alfred: 73

Buch, Hermann: 59, 60

Buki, Milton: 103, 152, 187,
188

Birger, Willi: 99
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Capesius, Victor: 188
Casar, Joachim: 77, 111
Chasan, Shaul: 88, 121
Cole, David: 15, 16
Culer, Samul: 101, 102

Czech, Danuta: 13, 31, 56, 57,
58, 61-64, 71, 90, 101-103,
110, 120, 123, 136, 137,
138, 147, 156, 159, 161,
166-170, 173, 175, 177,
179-181, 184, 186, 187,
195, 196
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Dawidowski, Roman: 30

Deana, Franco: 45, 46, 52, 65,
134

Dejaco, Walter: 63, 134, 135,
185

Dlugoborski, Wéaclaw: 7

Dragon, Szlama: 74, 79, 86,
87,103, 113, 128, 131, 151,
171, 174, 179, 180, 186,
187,191

Dudzinski, inmate: 50

Dyntar, Jozef: 50
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Eichmann, Adolf: 137, 168,
176, 181

Eicke, Theodor: 46

Eisenschmidt, Eliezer: 88,
131

Ertl, Fritz: 65, 70, 183, 184
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Faurisson, Robert: 13, 15, 37

Feinsilber, Alter: see
Jankowski, Stanistaw

Felderer, Ditlieb: 15

Fischer, SS-Schitze: 150

Franke-Gricksch, Alfred: 114,
155

Frei, Norbert: 59, 71, 115,
151

Friedler, Eric: 61, 62, 151,
180

Fritzsch, Karl: 47, 48
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Gabai, Jaacov: 88

Gadomski, Stanistaw: 160,
161

Garbarz, Moshe: 181

Galiner, Ludwig: 164

Gerhardt, lawyer: 189

Globocnik, Odilo: 155

Glucks, Richard: 45, 135,
150, 159

Golik, Ignacy: 166

GoR, SS-Rottenfihrer: 191

Gotland, Simon: 188

Grabner, Maximilian: 47, 48,
50, 51, 159, 160, 162

Graf, Jurgen: 24, 26, 71, 95,
170

Greif, Gideon: 88

Grotum, Thomas: 184
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Hatgas, Kazimierz: 160, 161

Harmata, Jozef: 77, 167

Heger, Leopold: 189, 190

Himmler, Heinrich: 64, 65,
69, 95, 124, 137, 147, 159,
164, 168, 177, 178, 181,
182, 184, 200

Hitler, Adolf: 124, 200

Hocker, Georg: 99, 100, 133

Hofmann, Franz: 188, 189

Hoss, Rudolf: 18, 26, 27, 30,
31, 47, 63, 64, 69-71, 87,
91, 92, 94, 103, 106, 111,
133-135, 138, 148, 150,
152, 160, 166-168, 175-
178, 181, 182, 185, 186,
189, 196, 200

Hossler, Franz: 63, 69, 135,
162, 185

Hunt, Eric: 8

Hykes, Karl: 189

Irving, David: 164

—J—
Jahrling, Rudolf: 198
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Janisch, Josef: 107, 109, 130

Jankowski, Stanistaw: 31, 59,
62, 87

Josten, Heinrich: 53, 55

Jothann, Werner: 54, 55, 76,
91, 116-118, 122

— K —

Kaduk, Oswald: 187, 188
Kammler, Hans: 81, 82, 100,
109-111, 113, 114, 117,
119, 123-125, 142, 143-
145, 148, 149, 153, 182
Kelm, SS-Unterscharfihrer:

59, 60
Kempner, Robert: 176
Kilian, Andreas: 151
Kirschnek, Hans: 78, 109-
111, 124, 143
Klapper, clerk: 68
Klodzinski, Stanistaw: 120
Knapp, Ladislav: 101, 102
Korherr, Richard: 167
Kramer, Josef: 110
Kranz, Tomasz: 24, 26
Kratz, Ménne: 129, 191, 192
Kues, Thomas: 71, 95, 170
Kihnemann, Heinz: 99, 100,
133
Kula, Michat: 160

— L —
Lamock, Henri Joseph: 127
Lasik, Aleksander: 59
Lenz, Otto: 164
Lenzer, Wilhelm: 183
Levin, military judge: 180
Liebehenschel, Arthur: 53,
133
Lipstadt, Deborah: 163
Longerich, Peter: 168
Lubitz, Heinz: 52

— M —
Maier, SS-Oberscharfiihrer:
47
Maliszewski, Stefan: 50, 160
Mandelbaum, Henryk: 88
Marczewska, Krystyna: 61,
70, 156, 157, 161
Martyniak, Lukasz: 41, 223,
243
Mattogno, Carlo: 8, 9, 13, 16,
20, 22, 24-26, 45, 46, 49,

52, 60, 63, 64, 65, 70, 71,
74,75, 76,77, 81, 83, 84,
89, 91, 95, 97, 99, 114,
119-122, 131, 134, 139,
142, 143, 151, 157, 158,
159, 164, 170, 177, 184,
194
McCalden, David: 28
Messing, Heinrich: 107, 110
Meyer, Fritjof: 80
Mieczystaw, Stecisko: 160
Milch, Erhard: 124
Mildner, Rudolf; 159, 160
Mockel, Karl E.: 111, 112
Morgiel, inmate: 50
Morris, Errol: 27, 28
Mrugowski, Joachim: 198
Mulka, Robert: 189
Miiller, Filip: 73, 121
Miiller, Heinrich: 147

—_N—
Nosal, Eugeniusz: 131
Nowak, Hans Jirgen: 35
Nyiszli, Miklos: 121
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Paisikovic, Dov: 121

Parcer, Jan: 184

Paskuly, Steven: 167, 168,
177,181, 196

Pelt, Robert Jan van: 27, 28,
41,71, 163, 166

Perz, Bertrand: 72, 99

Petzold, Walter: 164

Pezola, Wachtmeister: 103,
104

Phillips, Raymond: 111

Pietrzykowski, Tadeusz: 166

Piper, Franciszek: 15, 16, 41,
56, 59, 60, 64, 79, 90, 100,
121,137, 151, 181, 193,
194

Plagge. Ludwig: 62, 179

Pohl, Oswald: 53, 72, 95, 122,
154

Pollock, Josef: 138, 143, 174

Pressac, Jean-Claude: 16, 17,
41, 42,51, 57, 66, 78, 88,
105-108, 120, 121, 126,
136, 137, 140, 144, 150,
153, 182, 184, 196

Priifer, Kurt: 65, 69-71, 110,
135, 164-166, 178, 183

245
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Rademacher, Franz: 176

Rademacher, Werner: 35

Rdgner, Adolf: 100

Rosin, Arnost: 58, 62, 63,
178, 179, 186

Rudolf, Germar: 8, 10, 20, 35

S
Sackar, Josef: 88
Sander, Fritz: 165
Sandkdhler, Thomas: 72, 99
Scheide, Rudolf: 146
Schellekes, Maurice: 180
Schiile, Annegret: 165
Schultze, Karl; 165
Schulz, Heinz: 59
Schumann, Horst: 156
Schwarz, Heinrich: 162
Schwarz, SS-
Hauptsturmfiihrer: 146
Sehn, Jan: 31, 74, 107, 128,
129, 130, 137, 138, 174,
186, 187, 191
Seidler, Fritz August: 45
Setkiewicz, Piotr: 17, 41, 57,
58, 64, 69-71, 110, 128,
180, 194, 223, 243
Siebert, Barbara: 151
Stark, Hans: 32, 161, 162
Strzelecki, Andrzej: 100
Swiszczowski, Stefan: 51
Szablewski, Stanistaw: 160
Szternfinkiel, Natan Eliasz:
175

— T—

Tauber, Henryk: 59, 87, 105,
107, 111

Timfold, Alfred: 102

Tintner, Eduard: 102

—U—
Urbanczyk, Walter: 166

—V =
Venezia, Shlomo: 121

— W —

Wagner, SS-Oberscharfiihrer:
227

Wallwey, Willy: 35

Wazniewski, Wiadystaw: 61,
70, 156, 157, 161
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Wirths, Eduard: 105, 111, Wohlfahrt, Wilhelm: 152 —Z—
122, 135, 149, 198 Wolken, Otto: 102 Zalewski, Jozef Piotr: 50
Wisinska, Jozefa: 77 Ztobnicki, Adam: 17, 18
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Most of them are based on decades of research from archives all over the world. They are heav-

This ambitious, growing series addresses various aspects of the “Holocaust” of the WWII era.

ily referenced. In contrast to most other works on this issue, the tomes of this series approach
its topic with profound academic scrutiny and a critical attitude. Any Holocaust researcher ignoring
this series will remain oblivious to some of the most important research in the field. These books
are designed to both convince the common reader as well as academics. The following books have

appeared so far, or are about to be released.

SECTION ONE:
General Overviews of the Holocaust

The First Holocaust. The Surprising Origin of
the Six-Million Figure. By Don Heddesheimer.
This compact but substantive study documents
propaganda spread prior to,
' during and after the FIRST
World War that claimed East
European Jewry was on the
brink of annihilation. The
magic number of suffering
and dying Jews was 6 million
back then as well. The book
details how these Jewish fund-
raising operations in America
raised vast sums in the name
wof feeding suffering Polish and
Russian Jews but actually fun-
neled much of the money to Zionist and Com-
munist groups. 5th ed., 200 pages, b&w illustra-
tions, bibliography, index. (#6)
Lectures on the Holocaust. Controversial Is-
sues Cross Examined. By Germar Rudolf.
This book first explains why “the Holocaust” is
an important topic, and that it is essential to
keep an open mind about it. It then tells how
g many mainstream scholars
expressed doubts and sub-
sequently fell from grace.
Next, the physical traces
and documents about the
various  claimed  crime
scenes and murder weapons
are discussed. After that,
the reliability of witness tes-
timony is examined. Finally,
the author argues for a free
exchange of ideas on this topic. This book gives
the most-comprehensive and up-to-date over-
view of the critical research into the Holocaust.
With its dialogue style, it is easy to read, and
it can even be used as an encyclopedic compen-
dium. 4th ed., 597 pages, b&w illustrations, bib-
liography, index.(#15)
Breaking the Spell. The Holocaust, Myth &
Reality. By Nicholas Kollerstrom. In 1941,
British Intelligence analysts cracked the Ger-
man “Enigma” code. Hence, in 1942 and 1943,
encrypted radio communications between Ger-
man concentration camps and the Berlin head-
quarters were decrypted. The intercepted data
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Pictured above are the first 50 volumes of scientific stud-
ies that comprise the series Holocaust Handbooks. More
volumes and new editions are constantly in the works. Check
www.HolocaustHandbooks.com for updates.

refutes the orthodox “Holocaust” narrative. It
reveals that the Germans were desperate to re-
duce the death rate in their labor camps, which
was caused by catastrophic typhus epidemics.
Dr. Kollerstrom, a science
historian, has taken these in-
tercepts and a wide array of
mostly unchallenged corrobo-
rating evidence to show that
“witness statements” sup-
porting the human gas cham-
ber narrative clearly clash
with the available scientific
data. Kollerstrom concludes
that the history of the Nazi
“Holocaust” has been written
by the victors with ulterior motives. It is dis-
torted, exaggerated and largely wrong. With a
foreword by Prof. Dr. James Fetzer. 6th ed., 285
pages, b&w ill., bibl., index. (#31)

Debating the Holocaust. A New Look at Both
Sides. By Thomas Dalton. Mainstream histo-
rians insist that there cannot be, may not be,
any debate about the Holocaust. But ignoring it
does not make this controversy go away. Tradi-
tional scholars admit that there was neither a
budget, a plan, nor an order for the Holocaust;
that the key camps have all but vanished, and
so have any human remains; that material and
unequivocal documentary evidence is absent;
and that there are serious
problems with survivor testi-
monies. Dalton juxtaposes the
traditional Holocaust narra-
tive with revisionist challeng-
es and then analyzes the main-
stream’s responses to them.
He reveals the weaknesses
of both sides, while declaring
revisionism the winner of the
current state of the debate.
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